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@%Wa@ of Swakgpmund
AGENDA
PART 1
ORDINARY

COUNCIL MEETING
ON
THURSDAY
02 OCTOBER 2025

CONTACT US:

Telephone: +264 64 410 4206
Email: akahuika@swkmun.com.na
Website: www.swkmun.com.na




@ +264 64 410 4201 @ @ P O Box 53, Swakopmund, Namibia

Ref No: 5/2/1/1/2

Enquiries: Ms A Kahuika
23 September 2025

The Chairperson and Members
of the Management Committee
Municipality of SWAKOPMUND

Dear Sir/ Madam_
NOTICE: ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING

Notice is hereby given in terms of Section 24 (1) of the Local Authorities Act of 1992, Act 23 of 1992
as amended, of a ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING to be held:

DATE : THURSDAY, 02 OCTOBER 2025

VENUE : COUNCIL CHAMBERS,
MUNICIPAL OFFICE BUILDING,
C/O RAKOTOKA STREET AND DANIEL KAMHO
AVENUE, SWAKOPMUND

19:00
)

4




3
Ordinary Council Meeting - 02 October 2025

INDEX

OPENING BY PRAYER, IF SO DESIRED

2. APPLI IONS FOR LEAVE OF ABSEN Y MEMBERS OF COUNCIL

3. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA OF THE MEETING OF COUNCIL

4, ONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETI F COUNC
(C/M 2025/10/02 - 5/2/1/1/2)
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(pp 142/2025 - 164/2025)

5. INTERVIEWS WITH DEPUTATIONS OR PERSONS SUMMONED OR
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6. PETITIONS
None.

7. MOTIONS OF MEMBERS
None.

8. ANSWERS TO QUESTIONS OF MEMBERS OF WHICH NOTICE WAS GIVEN
None.

9. OFFICIAL ANNOUNCEMENTS, STATEMENTS, AND COMMUNICATIONS

10. REPORT OF THE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE REFERRED TO IN SECTION

10.1

26(1) (E) OF THE ACT

REPORT TO COUNCIL ON RESOLUTIONS TAKEN BY MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE DURING SEPTEMBER 2025

PAGE
29

Minutes of the Ordinary Management Committee

L Meeting held on 11 September 2025
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1. RECOMMENDATION OF THE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

11.1

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE MEETINGS HELD IN SEPTEMBER 2025

ITEM NO

SUBJECT

REF NO

PAGE

11.1.1

Relocation Of Informal Settlers In The Transnamib
Servitude (Mondesa, Extension 14) And
Relocation Of Informal Settlers In The Nampower
Servitude (Extensions 24 & 37, Swakopmund

15/2/1/2

31

11.1.2

Feedback Regarding The Registration Of
Households In Extension 24 And 25,
Swakopmund

15/2/1/2

39

11.1.3

Omavala Trading & Enterprises: Current Status Of
Availability Of Land For The Construction Of A
University

17/1/4/2/1/13

60

11.1.4

Swakop Uranium: Amendment To Council
Resolution Of 29 April 2025 Under Item 11.1.27

17/1/472/1/7

69

11.1.5

Proposed Sale Of 3 General Residential 2 Erven,
Erf 10827, Erf 10828 & Erf 10829 Located In
Extension 42, Swakopmund, To Shack Dwellers
Federation Of Namibia (SDFN)

15/2/1/4

78

11.1.6

Application To Retain And Purchase Erven 7104 &
7105, Extension 26, Swakopmund: Mervin Dennis
Domestic Solution Cc

E7104,E
7105, E
7979, E 7980

85

11.1.7

Reiterverein Swakopmund: Renewal Of Lease
Periods For Two Lease Sites

19.03.08,
E 1307

97

11.1.8

Request For Continuation Of Financial Assistance
From Paddock Gardens Trust

15/2/8/1/3

106

1.1.9

Update: Application For Land For A Film Studio:
Imwe Namibia Holdings {(Now Desert Dunes Film
Studios Namibia (Pty) Ltd)

17/1/4/2/1/5

136

11.1.10

Resubmitted: Oluga Trading Enterprise (Pty) Ltd:
Current Situation Regarding The Development Of
A Portion Of Land Located On The Banks Of The
Swakop River

16/1/4/2/1/5

149

11.1.11

Automated Street Sweeping Pilot Project

17/2/7/8

173

11.1.12

Request For Team Flippy To Set Up A Pop-Up
Coffee Stand At The Weekly Park Run Event

15/1/3/1

190

11.1.13

Re-Naming Of Aukas Street To Chief Christian
Zeraeua Street

17/1/4/1/6

192

11.1.14

Naming Of The Mondesa Sports Field

17/1/4/1/6

195

11.1.15

Request To Transfer Erf 7924, Extension 29,
Swakopmund, From Mr Paulus Nghuuhulu To Mr
Zuze Nguvulu

E 7924

200

11.1.16

Request For Transfer Of Funds From Vote:
800031033700 (Regulatory Standards) To Vote:
800031033800 (Vhf Radio’s - Aerodrome)

19/1/1/1/2

203

11.1.17

Allocation Of Funds & Budgetary Provision For
Urban Agriculture

18/5/2

204

11.1.18

Application For Consent Use To Operate A Hotel
Pension On Erf 406, Myl 4, Extension 1

M4 E 406

206

11.1.19

Subdivision Of Erf 254, Matutura, Extension 1,
Into 5 Portions And Remainder

E254 M

236
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ITEM NO | SUBJECT REF NO PAGE

Application For The Rezoning Of Erf 690,
Mondesa, Extension 2, From Single Residential

11.1.20 | With A Density Of 1:600m? To General Business M 690 259
With A Bulk Of 2.0 And Consent To Operate A
Carwash While The Rezoning Is In Process
Application For Relaxation Of Lateral Building

11.1.21 Lines And Set-Back On Erf 177, Myl 4 Proper WSS 291

11.1.22 | Writing Off: Redundant Material - Water Works 17/2/5/1 316
Procurement Quarterly Progress Reports July

11123 1 2024 To March 2025 i i

11.1.24 | Unclaimed Deposit Policy 3/P 320
Transfer Of Capital Expenditure - Procurement Of

AL Electronic Pallet Stacker / Forklift 17/12/5/2/3 i

11.1.26 | Invitation: Hats & Roses Swakopmund 3/15/1/1 329
Declaration Of Swakopmund Municipality As An

11127 "Authorised Planning Authority” In Terms Of 17171716, 334

o Section 113(1)A) Of The Urban And Regional 2/1/2/1

Planning Act, 2018 (Act 5 Of 2018)

11128 Request For Additional Funds To Participate In 13/6/3 341

The SAIMSA Games - Maseru, Lesotho

12. REPORTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS OF COMMITTEES OR THE CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER
None.

13. DRAFT REGULATIONS AND TARIFFS, IF ANY

None.
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142 7 2025

MINUTES

of an Ordinary Council Meeting held in Council Chambers, Municipal Head Office,
Swakopmund on Thursday, 28 August 2025 at 1 9:00.

PRESENT:

Councillor 5 M Kautondokwa  : Deputy Mayor

Councillor W O Groenewald Chairperson of the Management Committee
Councillor E Shitana - Ahernate Chairperson of the Management Committee
Councillor M Henrichsen 5 Member of the Management Committee

Councillor D Am-1Gabeb : Alternate Member of the Management Committee
Councillor C-W Goldbeck : Member of Council

Councillor P Shimhanda & Member of Council

OFFICIALS:

MrV K Kaulnge : Chief Executive Officer {(Acting)

Mr M Haingura E General Manager: Corporate bervices & HC

Mr H INaruseb 5 General Manager: Finance

Mr A Strauss : General Manager: Engineering and Planning Services (Acting)
Mr A Kationdeorozu : General Manager: Health Services and SWM (Acting)

Mr U Tjiurutue : Corporate Officer: Administration

Ms A Kahuika : Administration Officer: Administration

ALSO PRESENT:

Ten (10) members of the public. Alse in attendance was His Excellency Ambassador Samuel
Sheefeni Nuuyoma, the fermer Namibian ambassador to Brazl.

1. OPENING BY PRAYER

Councilior D Am-1Gabeb opened the meeting with a prayer.

2. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA OF THE MEETING OF COUNCIL
(C/M 2025/08/28 H121/1/2)

On the proposal of Counciller D Am-lGabeb, seconded by Councillor W O Groenewald,
it was:

RESOL ]

That the agenda be adopted.

Ordinary Council Mesting - 28 August 2025
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143 72025
3.
3.1 Application for leave of absence:
* Councillor B R IGoraseb - Approved
3.2 Declaration of interest:
Councillor M Henrichsen - e 11.1.7
4 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES
41
(C/M 2025/08/28 - 5/2/1/1/2)
On the proposal of Councillor M Henrichsen, seconded by Councillor E Shitana, it was:
RESOLVED:
That the minutes of the Ordinary Council Meeting held on 31 July 2025, be
confirmed as comrect.
A A COUNCIL
None.
6.  PETINIONS
None.
7. MOTIONS OF MEMBERS
None.
8.
Nona.
9. F 1] TATEM AND CO N N
(C/M 2025/08/28 . 5/5/2)

Ordinary Council Moating - 28 August 2025
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Cirdinary Councd Meating - 28 August 2025
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10.1 REPORY TO COUNCIL ON RESOLUTIONS TAKEN BY MANAGEMENT COMMITYEE
DURING AUGUST 2025

(C/M 2025/08/26 E 5/2/1/1/2)

RESOILVED:

That the report to Council on the resolutions taken by Management Committes
maetings held on 14 August 2025 be noted.

11. RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD
DURING AUGUST 2025

11.1 MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 14 AUGUST 2025

11.11

(C/M 2025/08/28 - M Re 4326, M 3702, M 1143, Erf 7821)
RESOLVED:

(a) That Council takes note of the application received from Deon Hoto
Foundation dated 19 June 2025 for the donation of the remaining
portion of land measuring approximately 2.5Ha located on Erf 9821,
Extension 38, Swakopmund, for the development of the Deon Hotto
Sport and Football facilities.

{b) That Council’s decision passed on 31 August 2022 under item 11.1.34
forthe construction of Deon Hotto sport facilities on Erven Re 4326 and
3702, Mondesa, is no longer relevant as the basis of the application is
no longer to donate facilities to Council.

{¢) That Council approves the sale of a portion of land measuring
spproximmely 2.5 Ha located north of Erf9821, Extension 38,
Swakopmund to Deon Hotte Foundation (21/2024/0828) for the
devslopmant of Deon Hotto sports and football facilities.

{d) That Daon Hotto Foundation provides proof of financing to fund the
preject in terms of point (e) of Courncil’s resolution passed omn
25 February 2021 under itam 11.1.4.

{e) That Deon Hotto Foundation pays a deposit of N$10 000.00 within 90
days from the data of being inf ed of this C il resolution to cover
all fees and the costs of publication of the sale notice as required in
sarms of the Local Authorities Act, Ack 23 of 1992 {as amended)-

(f) That the standard conditions contained in Council's Property Policy for
the sale of land to non-profit entities attached as Annexure “C" be
applicable.

(g) The purchase price based on 50% of the davelopment cost, curently at
=n average cost of NS$250.00/m? is N$125.00/m? x 29,829 m?
(2.9829Ha) - N$3,725,625.00.

(h) That all costs relating to the transfer of this erf, (including but not
limited to transfer duty, conveyancer’s costs, compilation of

Ordinary Council Meeting - 28 August 2025
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Agreement of Sale, as well as any legal or other costs that may arise
from this application), be for the Deon Howto Foundation’s account.

That the requirements of the Local Authorities Act, Act 23 of 1992, as
amended, and the Urban and Regional Planning Act, 2018 (Act No. 5
of 2018) be successfully complied with.

That payment of the purchase price be seacured sither in cash or bank
guarantee in favour of the Swakopmund Municipality within 120 days
from the date of the Surveyor-General-approved plan being in place.
Failure ts secure the purchase price will result in cancellation of the
transaction without further notice.

That Deon Hotte Foundation in collaboration with Werner Erkes
Foundation (Tangeni Shilongo) be responsible for the appointment of
& geotechmnical consultants to confirm the suitability of the erf for their
proposed developments, attend to an environmental assessment,
attend to the closure of the portion of the erf as Public Open Space, the
subdivision and rezoning of the portion of land.

That Deon Hotto Foundation, at their costs, comply with the statutory
processes until completion of the project.

That Deon Hotto Foundation submit total layout plans, indicating the
infrastructure, details of the project, as well as the service demand for
the intended project, within 3 months of being notified of the approval
of the application.

That the whole development project must be completed within 48
months from the date of sale, and if no developmant is made in terms
of the conditions of the agreement of sale, the property shall revert 1o
Council without any compensation to the purchaser.

That Deon Hotto Foundation takes note that no rights will accrue to
them unless all the above-mentioned conditions are complied with in
full and all the relavant authorities have given the necessary
permission, if applicable.

That Council retains a first right of refusal to purchase the developed
land at the market value of the improvements at the time, and the
purchase price paid should the owner decide to sell it.

That Deon Hotto Foundation shall not use the PROPERTY for any other
purpose than for which it was bought or sold, sublease or donate the
PROPERTY without the consent of the SELLER, for 30 (thirty) years from
the date of sale.

That the applicant indemnifies Council against any claims resulting
from blasting. ;

That the following decisions made by Council for possible suitability
for housing development, be amended, given the above sale:

(i) Council resolution of 30 January 2025, item 11.1.13 (<) (i) 9
of a geotechnical repor.” |

Crdinary Council Meeting - 28 August 2025
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(ii) Counecil resolution of 26 June 2025, item 11.1.3 (¢}

fc) Thar Erf 9821, Extension 38, Swakopmund, be excluded from
the offer as a portion measuring approximately 5 ha has been
sllocated to the Wemer Erkes Foundation, and the remaining
portion of approximately 3 ha is subject to a geotechnical
assessment to determine the suitability for ‘housing purposes
{old refuse dump site).

11.1.2

OLUGA ENTERPRISE (PTY) LTD: CURRENT SITUATION REGARDING THE
EVELOPMENT OF A PORTION OF LAND LOCAYTED ON THE BANKS OF THE

DEVELOPMENT OF A PORTION OF LAND LOCATRL 25 2% Z2ma 22—

SWAKOP RIVER
(C/M 2025/08/28 16/1/4/2/1/5)

RESOLVED:
() Thatthisitem be raferred back to the Management Committes.

{b) ThatOluga Trading Enterprize (Pry) Lrd be invited for an audience with
Council.

1113

3745, SWAKOPMUND

(C/M 2025/08/28 E 3745)

RESOLVED:

(a) ThatCouncil takesnote that the lease agreament edinto b =

Council and Jakaranda Investments Twenty Siix CC wading as Bo Jo's
for leasing a portion of the sidewalk, measuring =88 m? in front Erf
3745, Swakopmund lapses on 31 August 2025.

(b) That Council approves a naw lease period for Jakaranda Investments
Twenty-Six CC trading as Bo Jo's for the 5 years which period
commences on 01 September 2025 and terminates on 31 August 2030
for a portion of the sidewalk, mensuring B8 m? in front Ecf 3748,
Swakopmund.

{(¢) That the monthly rental be N$ 57.80/m? x =88Bm? = N$5.086.52 +
N5762.98 (15% VAT) = N$5.849.5 with an annual escalation of 7%
starting 1 July 2025.

(d) That the lease be advertised in terms of Section 63 (2) of the Local
Authorities Act, Act 23 of 1992, as amended at the cost to Jakaranda
Investments Twenty Six CC and permission be obtained from the
Minister of Urban and Rural Development as required in terms of the
same Act.

(o} That Council reserves the right to cancal the lease if valid objections
from the public are received.

(i Thatthe lease be subject to the standard conditions and the following:

(i) Thatadeposit equalto 1 months lease which was previously paid
be adjusted in order to equal the current menthiy rental amount.

Ordinary Council Meating - 28 August 2025
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That a notice of termination period of three (3) months for both
parties be applicable.

That the demarcated asrea be bamicaded by way of a non-
permanent fixture, such as a rope.

That che lsssee does not apersate later than 22:00.

That no fixed structures be erected and that temposary structures
be srectad st the risk of the lessee and be removed at the cost of
the lessse at the termination / Iapring of the ieaze period.

That all costs involved be for the applicant’s account.

That should the lessee cease operating, they must inform Council
in writing and reinstate the area to its original condition at their
own cost

That the applicant shall indemnify and keep Council indemnified
during the full period of this agreement against possible claims,
which may arizse from the use of a portion of the sidewalk
concernad by the [sssee.

the lease be subject to the standard conditions and the following:

That a deposit equal to T months lease which was previously paid
be adjusted in order to equal the current monthly rental amount.

That a notice of termination period of three (3) months for both
parties be applicable.

That the demarcated area be bamicaded by way of a non-
permanent fixture, such as a ropa.

That the lessee does not operate later than 22:00.

That no fixed structures be erected and that temporary structures
be erected at the risk of the lessee and be removed art the cost of
the Jessee at the termination / lapsing of the lease period.

That all costs involved be for the applicant’s account.

That should the lsssas cease operating, they must informn Council
in writing and reinstate the area to its original condition at their
own cost.

That the applicant shall indemnify and keep Council indemnified
during the full pariod of this agresment against possible claims,
which may anise from the use of 5 portion of the sidewalk
concernad by the lessees.

Ordinary Council Meeting - 28 August 2025
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RESUBMISSION: REZONING OF ERF 441 TAMARISKIA. EXTENSION 1 FROM
SINGLE RESIDENTIAL WITH A DENSITY OF 1:600M* JO GENERAL
RESIDENTIAL 2 WITH A DENSITY OF 1:100M2

(C/M 2025/08/28 T 441)

RESOLVED:

(a)

{b)

{c)

{d)

(=)

4]

{g)

(h)

(i

(i)

That the Council Resolution Number C/M 2024/10/08 - T 441 be
supplemented by this Council Resolution.

That it be noted that Erf 441, Tamariskia is located in Tamariskia,
Extension 1.

That the rezoning of Erf 441, Tamariskia, Extension 1 from "Single
Residential” with a density of one dwelling per 600m?2 to “General
Residential 2" with a density of one dwelling per 100m? be turned
down.

That instead, Erf 481, Tamariskia, Extension 1, be rexoned from “Single
Residential” with a density of one dwelling per 600m? to “General
Residantial 2" with a density of one dwalling per 260m?*.

That the rexoning of Erf 441, Tamariskia, Extension 1 from “Single
Residential” with » density of one dwelling per 600m? to “Ganeral
Residential 2* with a density of one dwelling per 250m?iis subjectto a
20% compensation fee calculated according to the Betterment Fee
Policy of 2009 and be paid by the applicant.

That no building plans, inclusive of relaxation of building lines or
aesthetics application, be approved until proof of payment of the
compensation fee for the rezoning has been received by Council.

That the applicant provides proof that the rezoning of Erf 441,
Tamariskia, Extension 1 from "Single Residential” with a density of one
dwelling per 600m?* to »Ganeral Residential 2" with a density of one
dwelling per 250m® has been approved by the Minister and
promulgated before any submission of building plans o the
Engineering and Planning Services Department for approval.

That all additional infrastructures that are to be required as a result of
the proposad development be for the account of the applicant and in
accordance with the specifications of the General Manager:
Enginwering and Planning Services.

That the on-site parking requirements be as per the Swakopmund
Zoning Scheme.

That the applicant be informed that she may appeal againstthe Council
decision for the allocated density to the Minister in terms of Section
110 of the Urban and Regional Planning Act, 2018 (Act No 5 of 2018),
within 21 days of receipt of notice of this resolution, provided that
written notice of such an appaal shall be given to the Ministry, as well
as Council within the said period.

Ordinary Councif Meeting - 28 August 2025
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REQUEST FOR APPROVAL FOR E-MOTION ELECTRICAL SCOOTER RENTAL
AND TOURS TO OPERATE MOBILE ELECTRIC SCOOTER RENTAL SERVICES IN

SWAKOPMUND
(C/M 2025/08/28 15/1/3/1)

RESOLVED:

(=)

(b}

(<)

(d)

{e)

)

{g)

That Council spprovss E-motion Electrical 5cooter Rental and Tours te
operate an electric scooter rental and guided mour service in
Swakopmund. Subject to compliance with all municipal regulations
and safety conditions.

That the mobila station be permitted 1o be placed at the Tennis Courts
parking area.

That a monthly rental fee be charged for placement of the mobile
station at the Tennis Court Parking as per the Council Gazette tariff
(N$385.99 X5 per month VAT Excl.).

That the mobile station be approved on condition that it is to the
satisfaction of the General Manager: Engineering and Town Planning
sarvices, per proposal, be solar-powered. nom-invasive, assthetically
appropriate, ssfely anchored. and removed daily when not in
operation, and that it shall not obstruct public walkways, views, or
wraffic flow.

That E-motion Electrical Scooter Rental and Tours be held responsible
for the maintenance of all » and ciated squipment, the
provision of safety briefings and protective gear, and for indemnifying
Council against any and all risks, claims, injuries, or damages arising
from the service.

That the operation be limited to pre-approved routes avoiding national
and high-traffic roads, with tours restricted to daylight hours only and
not permitted during peak traffic periods {07:00-08:30 and 17:00-
18:30), and that all riders be at least 16 years of age, with a maximum
of six participants plus one guids per tour.

That a 1-year plot project be approved for the E-motion Electrical
Scooter Rental and Tours during which Council and its relevant
departments must monitor the operation’s safety, community impact,
and compliance with municipal conditions, with the option for renawal
subject to satisfactory performance.

11.1.%

ALLOCATION OF ERF 8416, EXTENSION 30, SWAKOPMUND TO MS

(C/M 2025/08/28 - 15/2/1/2, E 8416)
RESOLVED:
{a) That Erf 8416, Extension 30, Swakopmund, be donated to Ms Nislote

(b)

Tjikongo and Mr Andrew Abraham Tjikongo.

That the payment of the administrative fee of N$1,000.00 be
communicated to Mr & Ms Tjikongo.

Crdinary Council Meating - 28 August 2025
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(C/M 2025/08/28 - 77272, 7/2/5)

During the discussion of this itemn, Councillor M Henrichsen declared his interest
in the matier and left the Chambers.

(a)

{b)

(<)

id)

{e)

)

(h)

(i)

4

RESOLVED:

That Council approves the request to hang a banner between the palm
srees st the comaer of Daniel Tjongarero and Tobias Hainyeko from 10
August 2025 until 17 August 2026.

That the Gensral Manager: Health and Solid Waste Management
deliver 10x rubbish bins to be placed at sites to be identified for the

avent.

That Council grants permission for the Karnevalsverain to put up
signboards in the main street forthe duration of the camival (10 August
2025 to 30 September 2028).

That the Swakopmund Municipality participates in the float procession
at Kiiska on 27 September 2025.

That the Crane truck, Isuzu 250 - N 8773 S, be used duning the float
procession and that ten (10) municipal saff membaer volunteers to
participate in the float procession and be provided with the following
refreshments:

e 10x breakfast packs; 10x lunch packs at the cost of N52,300.00 and
e« 10x Idrinks; 10x w 10x juicss at the cost of N$2,313.58

That the permission be granted for decoration and refreshments forthe
staff members to be procured.

That the funds for the refreshments and decoration of the truck
(according to the theme) be defrayed from the Corporate Service's
Publicity Vote: 15051 5533000, where N$169 559.57 is available.

That all available Councillors attend the Swakopmunder
Kamevalsverein (Kiiska).

That the organizers of the Swakopmunder Kamevalsverein {Kiiska) be
ancouraged to hold future evaents in the suburbs.

Ordinary Council Meating - 28 August 2025
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APPLICATION FOR THE SUBDIVISION OF ERF 69, TAMARISKIA, INTO
PORTION A AND REMAINDER
(C/M 2025/06/28 T 69)
RESOLVED:

{a) That the subdivision of Erf 69, Tamariskia, into Pomtion A and
Remainder as per the table below be approved:

Portion Number Sixe in ov? iam'ng
| Portion A 432 Single Residential
Rem /69 3668 | Single Residential
| Toral 798 Single Residential

{b) That conditions registerad against Erf 69, Tamariskia, be retained and
be registered against the newly created Portion A and the Remainder
of Eef 69, Tamariskia.

{¢) That the subdivrision of Erf 69, Tamariskia, be subject to a
compaensation fee {endowment fes) of 7.5% as provided for in terms of
the Urban and Regional Planning Act, 2018 {Act No.5 of 2018), as well
as the Municipality of Swakopmund Propany Policy.

{d) That all additional infrastructure to be required as a result of the
propossd development be for the account of the applicant and in
accordance with the specifications of the Genaral Manager:
Engineering and Planning Services.

(#) That no building plans, inclusive of relaxation of building lines or
mesthetics application, be approved until proof of payment of the
compensation (endowmaent) fee for the subdivision has been received
by Counecil.

{(f) That the applicant provides proof that the subdivizion of Erf 69,
Tamariskia, into Portion A and Remainder has besn approved by the
Mimister of Urban and Rural Davslopment and provides Council with
an approved disgram before any submission of building plans to the
Engineering and Planning Services Department for approval, and

{(gq) That the on-site parking requiraments be as per the Swakopmund
Zoning Schemae.

11.19

SUBDIVISION OF ERF 492 MATUTURA, EXTENSION 1 INTO PORTION A AND

REMAINDER
(C/M 2025/08/28 - E 4722 M)

RESOLVED:

(s} That the subdivision of Erf 492, Matutura, Extension 1, into Portion A
and Remainder be approved on condition that Portion A and the
Remaindesr of Erf 492, Matutura, Extension 1 be rexoned from general
residential to single residential.

(b) That the applicant agrees in writing that they accept condition (a)
above.

{(¢) That upon acceptance of the rexoning condition, the applicant
undertakes the notification procedure for the rexoning in accordance

COrdinary Council Macting - 78 Aagust 2025
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with Regulation 10 of the Urban and Regional Planning Acx,2018.
before applying to the Urban and Regional Planning Board, provided
that no objection to the proposed rexoning.

That should there be objections against the rezoning. such objections
should be submitted to Council for consideration before an application
2o the Urban and Regional Planning Board is made.

That the panhandle be not loss than 4m in width and be in accordance
with the national design standards.

That the subdivision of Erf 492, Matutura Extension 1, bs subject to a
compensation fes (endowment fee) of 7.5% as provided for in tenms of
the Urban and Regional Planning Act, 2018 (ActNo.5 of 2018), as wall
as the Municipality of Swakopmund Proparty Policy.

That all additional infrastructure to be required as a result of the
proposed development be for the account of the applicant and in
accordance with the specifications of the General Manager:
Engineering and Planning Services.

That no building plans, inclusive of relaxation of building lines or
aesthetics application, be approved until proof of payment of the
compensation (endowment) fee for the subdivision has been received
by Council.

That the applicant be informed of this decision and their rights that
they may appeal the Council decision to the Minister of Urban and
Rural Development with valid reasons within twenty-one (21) days
from the date of the decision in accordance with Ragulations 18 of the
Urban and Regional Planning Act.

11.1.10

CONSENT TO OPERATE A PUBLIC GARAGE ON ERF 3952, SWAKOPMUND,

NSION 10
(C/M 2025/08/28 - E 3952)

RESOLVED:

(a)

(b)

(e}

(d)

{e)
f)

(9)

That the consent to operats a public garage (spray painting workshop)
on Erf 3952, Swakopmund, Extension 10, be granted subject to
taking the necessary corrective actions against the emission of harmful
substances.

That Incredible spray-painting cc registers with the Health Services and
Solid Waste Management, and that the standard Health Requlations

will apply.

That Council reserves the right to cancel a consent use should there be
valid complaints.

That the applicant must operate within the Swakopmund Zoning
Scheme ragulations.

That conseat is not transferable.
That sufficient parking will be provided on the premises.

That no on-strest parking will be tolerated.
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(h) That the objsctors be informed of their right to appsal to the Minister
against Council's Resolution as provided for in terms of Section 110 of

the Urban and Reagional Planning Act, Act Ne 5 of 2018.

11.1.11

P : ¥ - L) : A 3 [ ¥
(C/M 2025/08/28 17/1/3/2)
RESOLVED:

{a) That Council approves the renewal of Swakopmund Municipaliry’s
membership with ICLEL

That Council
N$33,972.63.

(b) seloct the thres-year membenhip package for

(<)

The General Manager: Enginesring & Planning Services completss the
application process.

{d) That the membearship fees be sourced from the Environmental
Management Vote: 500031032600.

11.1.32

ETH INTERNATIONAL CONFERENCE ON PUBLIC PROCUREMENT
REGULATION & POLICY IN AFRICA. 12-13 SEPTEMBER 2025
(C/M 2025/08/28 11/1/4/35)

RESOLVED:
{a) That Council grants permission for the Head of Procurement to attend
the 5th international Conference on Public Procurement Regulation &
Policy in Africa, from 11-15 September 2025, in Stellenbosch, South
Africa.

conference Vote:

{b) That the total cost be defrayed from the

101015505500, whaere N$600,000.00 is available.

No | Sextfbember |  dter e | molttion | Teiw | sa0c | D | Spene
Alrport N3 [ ] Countries NE)
(Sonberboech) "
o) - s
H SDeys X SDays X
1 | Kanandjembe | 4,500.00 7, 99400 2,400.00 400.00 1000.00 = 1000.00 = 20.494.00
B,000.80 £,.000.00

(<)

That special leave be granted to the Head of Procurement for the
duration of the conference and travel days.
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(C/M 2025/08/28

11/2/4/3, 15/2/11/2)
RESOLVED:

{a) That Council takes note of the Youth Development Officer, Ms S N
Kathens's nmomination o participate in the Intermational Visitor
Leadership Program (IVLP), themed Entreprensurship as the engine of
Prosperity and Stability - Small Business Development Il

{b) That Council approves the Youth Development Offices, Ms S N
Kathena, to attend the IVLP, themed Entreprensurship as the engine of
the Prosperity and Stability - Small Business Developmant I, scheduled
for 3 10 21 November 2025 in the United S2ates of Amaerica.

{c) That Council spproves the incidental allowance of the Youth
Dewvelopment Officer, Ms 5 N Kathena, amounting to N$40 300.00
during her stay in the United States.

{d) That cost be defrayad from Vote: 450015505500 - Confersnce
Expenses, whers N$200,000.00 is availabls.

(2) That the Youth Development Officer, Ms 5 N Kathena, provides a
report upon her return from the IVLP program in the US.

11.1.14

APPLICATION FOX ¥ i b O . B : MARISKIA KIENSION
FROM SINGLE RESIDENTIAL WITH A DENSITY OF 1:600 TO GENERAL

RESID 2 WITH A DENSITY 1:250
(C/M 2025/08/28 T718)
RESOLVED:

{(a) That the rexoning of Erf 718, Tamariskia, Extension 3, from “Single
Residential” with a density of 1:600 to “General Residential 2" with a
density of 1:250 be approved.

{b) That the rexoning of Erf 718, Tamariskia, Extension 3, be subjectto a
betterment fee calculated according to the betterment fee policy of
200% and be paid in full by the applicant (owner) upon submission of
any business registration application, building line relaxation
application, and/or building plans submission to the Engineering and
Planning Services Department for approval.

(c) That all the parking be provided on-site in line with the Swakopmund
Zoning Scheme, and no parking on street reserve shall be tolerated.

{d) Thatif there is a need for upgrading the municipal services, it shall be
for the account of the applicant, and it must be designed to the
satisfaction of the Gemeral Manager: Engineering and Planning
Services.

{#) Thatno access will be obtained from Dr. Schwistering Street.

() Thatthe applicant provides proof that the rexoning has been approved
by the Minister and promulgated.
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REQUEST FOR SPONSORSHIP TOWARDS WINTER SEMESTER EXCHANGE

(C/M 2025/06/28 12/5/4/2)
RESOLVED:

(a) That Council approves the request for financial assistance towards the
accommedation of Mr Che-Vaugn Jahrs for his Winter Exchange
Programme.

(b) That the amount of N$67.059.20 be paid directly to the service
provider.

(¢) That the approved amount be dsfrayed from Mayoral Development
Fund Vote 200515578000, where N$250.284.50 is available.

11.1.16

CHOIR CONFERENCE
{C/M 2025/06/28 - 15/2/7/1/2)

RESOLVED:

{a) That Council takes nots of the provisional beoking, Number 216761.1,
made by the Ora Pronobis National Choir to host their National Choir
Conference at the Swakopmund Municipal Rest Camp from 2-5 October
2025.

{(b) That Council provides a 15% Dis t on the I a modation costs,
the valus of N$16,893.65, in support of Council's commitmant to social
responsibility and inclusivity, snabling unemployed youth, women, and
pensionars from rural areas to participate.

{¢) That Ora Pronobis National Choir be informed that the discount is only
applicabls if the booking wvalue remains as per booking number
216761.1.

11137

REQUEST FOR REDUCED RATE BY ROMAN CATHOLIC MOTHERS CIRCLE
FOR ACCOMMODATION AT MUNICIPAL REST CAMP TO HOST WOMEN'S
CONFERENCE

{C/M 2025/08/28 - 15/2/7/1/2)

RESOLVED:

{(a) That Council takes note of the provisional booking, Number 216354.1,
made by the Roman Catholic Mother's Circle of Namibia to the value of
N$100,654.00 to host their annual women's conference at the
Swakopmund Municipal Rest Camp from 12-14 September 2025.

{(b) That Council provides a 15% Discount to the booking value of
N$20,130.80 to the Roman Catholic Mothers Circle of Namibia as per
booking number 2156354.1.

(¢) That Roman Catholic Mothers Circle be informed that the discount is
only applicable if the booking value remains as per booking Number
216354.1
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11.1.18  REQUEST FOR REDUCED RAYE AT MUNICIPAL REST CAMP FOR THE
(CEM 2025/08/28 15/2/7/1/2) .
RESOLVED:

{a} ThatCouncil takes note of the provisional booking, No. 215978.1. made
by the Ministry of Works and Transport at the Municipal Rest Camp from
31 August - 6 September 2025.

{b) That Council provides a 10% Discount on the total accommodation value
of N$680,156.58 as par booking No. 215978.1.

{e) Thatthe Ministry of Works and Tramsport be informed that the discount is
only applicable if the booking value remains as per booking Ne.
215978.1

11.1.9
(C/M 2025/08/28 12/5/%)

RESOLVED:

{a) That the Council approves the Mayor and the PA to the Mayor's
steendance at the National Mayors Forum Executive Committes
Meeting scheduled for 21 August 2025 in Tsumsh.

(b) That the Management Committes approves the Mayor and the PA to
the Mayor's participation in subsequent NMF-related engagements
during the year 2025/2026.

{c) Thatthe Council approves the payment of the annual membership fes
of N$30,000.00 to the National Mayors Forum.

(d) That the amount of N$30,000.00 be defrayed from the Membership
and Subscription Vote: 101015526500, where N$300,000.00 is
available.

{e) Thatthe travelling expenses to the value of N$21,600.00 be defrayed
from the Conference Vote: 101015505500, where N$630,700.00 is
available.

11120  NATIONAL DAY OF FRANCE AND 249™ U.S INDEPENDENCE DAY
(C/M 2025/08/28 12/5/1)

RESOLVED:
{a) That Council takes note of the above information.
(b) That Council condones the travalling and subsistence costs incurred to

the value of N$8,800.00, which were defrayad from the Council’s
Conference Vota 1D1015505500.
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(C/M 2025/08/20 - 13/3/1/2)

RESOLVED:

(a)

(b)

(<)

That Council condones the participation of Council at the Uis Investors
Conference hosted an 05 July 2025.

Thaz the following estimated expenditure for expenses be approved.

Five (5) N$1,500.00
TOTAL N$7,500.00

That the amount of N$7500.00 be defrayed from the Publicity Vote:
101015513000 where N570,000.00.

11.122

NOTICE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS EXTRAORDINARY MEETING RE-
SCHEDULED TO TAKE PLACEON 29 JULY 2025, IN WINDHOEK ATTH N

OFFICE
(C/M 2025/08/28 12/6/1)

RESOLVED:

(=)

(b)

(e)

That Council condonas the attendance of Councillor Dina Namubes to
the ALAN Extra-ordinary meeting scheduled to take place on 29 July
2025.

That the fellowing expenditure be approved.

That the amount of N$8000.00 be defrayed from the Conference Vote
101015505500, whers N$630,700.00 is available.
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11.123 TATION TC : BAY ME

(C/M 2025/08/28 13/3/1/2)

RESOLVED:

{a) That Council condones the participation of Council at the Walwis Bay
Mayoral Fundraising Gala Dinner hosted on 02 August 2025.

{b) Thatthe following estimated expenditure for sxpenses be approved:

l; — —f-ﬁ.--. N STl i i S = I
Seven (7) NS$1.500.00
TOTVAL : N$1D,500.00

(e) That the expenses to the value of N$10,500.00 be defrayed from the

Conference Vote: 101015505500 where N$630,700.00 is available.
11.124

(C/M 2025/08/28 - 12/2/4/4, E 179/2)

RESOLVED:

(a) That Council waives the restrictive condition of alienation and or
sransfer contained in Deed of Transfer T 27/1996 and thereby grants
approval in respact of Erf 179/2, Swakopmund, to enable the transfer
of ommership from the estate of lats Helga Elsa Alice Engahard vo the
beneficiary, Uta Clausen.

{b) That Council delegates the authority to the Chiof Executive Officer to
sign waivers of reswrictive conditions registered against the title deeds
of the old residential townships located in the CBD on conditions that
a building is constructed thereon.

11125

(C/M 2025/06/28 INNNANANT/215/2(2)

RESOLVED:

(a)

{b)

That permission be granted to the General Managar: Finance to
transfer the funds on Vote: 700031030800 to the 2025/2026 Financial

Year.

That the funds requested in (a) above be transferred to Vote:
7000310303800 so procure one refuses compactor truck.
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(C/M 2025/08/28 17/2/5/1)
RESOLYED:

(a) That the following old and redundant wehicles, equipment, and
materials be written off and sold at the next public auction:

Neahicles:
¢ | CAY D6 Bulldozer - N2428S - Yaar Model 1975 Works Section
g " Opel Corsa Chevrolet - N8153S - Year Model 2011 with | Works Section
canopy
1 | Nissan NP 300 Hardbody - N177225 - Year Model 2012 Works Section
1 | Chevrolet Spark - N17440S - Year Model 2012 Works Section
M ials/Equi

2 Boxes / Jcal harness Works Section

] Fan/Cowling | Works Section

1 Prop shait Works Section

E] Mantold intake Works Section

1 Ei Mﬁm—mﬂm: 9205673566 Works Section

1 Gearbox -JBS Works Section

1 Swimming Pool Equipment Assorted Works Section

b ] 3 Leg puller Works Section

1 5/Stael table, sink comblnation Works Section

4 Toyota rim/tire -205R16 Works Section

p) Amptron battery charger Works Section

) Box assorted lead lights Works Section

7 Glga set wireless phone Works Section

] Kinzo battery-operated dril Works Section

bl Hitachi small grinder Works Section

2 Pop Rivet gun Works Section

1 Measuring tape Works Section

1 GT1 golf rim 18~ Works Section

p) HP printer Works Section

] Hitach! hand drill | Works Section

1 Hikoki small grinder Works Section

] Bosch big grinder and asgoried tools | Works Section

1 Brake flaring tool kit | Works Section

1 Sony ear radio Works Section

1 Box Assorted gauges | Works Section

] Hydraulic cylinder Works Saction

) Box Assonted TYools | Works Section

2 Impact tools Works Section

F] Vacasum pump | Works Section

b} Mechanical Gearbox oil pump | Works Section

3 681 Truck batterles | Works Section

b | 680 Truck batvery Weorks Section

1 Manual winch Works Section

] Tow in rope Works Section

2 Stainless steel cupboards Works Section

) [Honda 5.5 plate vibrator - $10032 Works Section

{b) That the Chisf Executive Officer and the Chairperson of the
Management Committes determine the upset prices for the above-
mentioned redundant vehicles, squipment, and materials.
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RESOLVED:

That the rexoning of the Erf 808, Swakopmund, from “Single
Residential” with a density of 1:900m2 to "General Business” with a
bulk of 2.0 be approved.

That the snvironmental impact assessment be undertaken and a copy
of the snvironmental clearance certificate be submitted to Council
before the submission of the application to the Urban and Regional
Planning Board.

That the rexoning of Erf 808, Swakopmund, from “Single Residential”
with a demsity of 1:900m? to “General Busineas” with a bulk of 20is
subject to a 40% compensation fee calculated according to the
National Bettermant Fee Policy of 2009 and be paid by the applicant.

That no building plans, inclusive of relaxation of building lines or
assthetics spplication, be approved umil proof of payment of the
compensation fes for the rezoning has been received by Council.

That all the parking be provided on-site in line with the Swakopmund
Zoning Scheme, and no parking on street reserve shall be tolerated.

That the applicant provides proof that the rexoning has been approved
by the Minister and promulgated, before any submission of building
plans to the Engineering and Planning Services Department for
approval, and

That all additional inframtructures required as a result of the proposed
developmant shall be for the account of the applicant and in
accordance with the specifications of the General Manager:
Engineering and Planning Services.

11.1.28

SUBDIVISION OF REMAINING EXTENT OF ERF 1759, SWAKOPMUND,

EXTENSION 1 INTO PORTION A AND REMAINDER
(C/M 2025/08/28 E1/5%9)

RESOLVED:

(a)

(b)

(€)

That the subdivision of the Remaining Extent of Esf 1759 Extension 1
into Portion A and Remainder be approved as per the table balow:

Esf Numbaer Size In Sguam Metres Zoning
Portiorn A 2614 Institutional
Remaindsr 1759 1877 Institutional
Yoead 4491

That Council take cognisance of the 13m? axcess area and that it is
insignificant,

That all additional infrastructure required as a result of the proposed
development be for the account of the applicant and in accordance
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with the specifications of the General Manager: Enginesring and
Planning Services.

That conditions registered against the Remaining Extent of Erf 1759,
Swakopmund Extension 1, be retained and be registerad against the
newly creaved eorf and the Remainder of Erf 1759, Swakopmund,
Exvenpion 1.

That the applicant provides proof that the subdivision of the Remaining
Extent of Erf 1759, Swakopmund, Extension 1, into Portion A and
Remainder has been approved By the Minister of Urban and Rural
Development, and provide Council with the approved diagram before
any submission of building plans to the Enginesring and Planning
Sarvices Deparoment for approval.

That the on-site parking requirements be as per the Swakopmund
Zoning Schema.

11.1.29

SWAKOPMUND AS STREET
(C/M 2025/08/28 - E 460, £ 3683, E 3684)
RESOLVED:

(a)
()

{=)

(d)

(=}

That Erf 3683, Swakopmund, be closed as a street.

That Council takes note that the consolidated diagrams of the
consolidation of Erf 3683, Swakopmund, with Erf 1331, Swakopmund,
into Erf 3684, Swakopmund, have already besen approved by the
Surveyor Ganesal.

That MAE Courtney-Clarke or his/her appointed town planner
undertakes the closure procedures as stipulated in Section 50 of the
Local Authoritiss Act, 1992, Act 23 of 1992.

That upon conclusion of the strest closure procedures, MAE Courtney-
Clarke provides proof of notifications before a closurs certificate is
issued.

That the approval for the closure of Erf 3683, Swakopmund, is subject
to anvironmental impact assessment, and a copy of the anvironmental
clearance centificate be submitted before the closure certificate is
issued.
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11.1.30 W}’_]Wwﬁw

(C/M 2025/08/28 - 6/1/4/2/1/13)

RESOLVED:

(a) That Council takes note of the presentation by Loop Technologies to
enhance the Customer Service sxpserience for wallk-in customars and
other Technologies.

() That Messrs Loop Tachnologies submit a detailed cost implication of
their system and products.

(¢) Thatdue diligence be caried out to satisfy Council on the need and use
of similar systems and technologies.

{d) Thatthe Procurement process via open bidding be considered, to meet
the need for efficient Customer Service and Queue Management.

11.1.31 REQUEST BY MS ESTER MAGANO KAMULILO TO BE EXEMPTED FROM THE

PAYMENT OF DEVELOPMENT COST

(C/M 2025/08/28 E 7604 M, 15/2/1/2)

RESOLVED:

(a) That Council repeals the resolution taken on 27 February 2025 under
itern 11.1.25.

{b) That Council declines to purchase the property on Erf 7604, Extension
28, Swakopmund as offerad by Ms Ester Magamo Kamulilo to Council
and permit her to sell the proparty.

{c) That all future waivers be handled accordingly.

11.1.32 REVOCATION OF DIRECTIVE ISSUED ON 30 MARCH 2021 REGARDING

MUNICIPAL POLICE SERVICES ASSISTANCE TO NAMPOL FOR VIP ESCORT

DUTIES AND STATIC ROAD AND STREET MANNING NATIONWIDE
(C/M 2025/06/28 - 9/1/5/3, 8/2/3)

RESOLVED:

{s) That Council takes note of the letter from the Namibian Police Force 1o
revoke the directive issued on 30 March 2025 in terms of escort duties
by the Municipal Traffic Officers.

(b) That Council allow Municipal Traffic Officers to apsist the Namibian
Police Force with VIP escort duties and static road closures, and street
staffing in and outside their authority if the need arises.

(¢} That permission be requested from the office of the Chief Executive
Officer for any assistance outside the Municipal Boundaries of
Swakopmund.
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12. DRAFT REGULATIONS AND TARIFFS. IF ANY

MNone.

The meeting adjourned: 19:28.

Minutes to be confirmed on 26 Septembar 2025.

Councillor B R {Goraseb My Alfeus Benjamin
MAYOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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REPORT TO COUNCIL ON RESOLUTIONS TAKEN BY PREVIOUS
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD DURING SEPTEMBER 2025

10.1 (A) MINUTES OF THE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON

2.1

11 MBER 2025

CONFIRM F MINUTES
(M/C 2025/09/11 - 5/2/1/1/2)

MINUTES OF THE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 14 AUGUST
2025

On the proposal of Councillor E Shitana and seconded by Councillor H H Nghidipaya, it
was:

RESOLVED:

That the Minutes of the Management Committee meetings held on 14 August 2025
be confirmed as correct.

7.5

RESUBMISSION: APPLICATION FOR THE REZONING OF ERVEN 2280 & 2281,
SWAKO D EXTENSI M SINGLE RESIDENTIAL WIT NSITY OF 1
900M2 TO GENERAL RESIDENTIAL 1 WITH A DENSITY OF 1:100M? m?,
SUBSEQUENT CONSOLIDATION INTO CONSOLIDATED ERF X AND CONSENT TO
OPERATE A PENSION ON CONSOLIDATED ERF X,

(M/C 2025/09/11 - E 2280, E 2281)

RESOLVED:

That this item be referred back for further clarification.

8.9

SUBDIVISION OF THE REMAINDER OF ERF 1794 MONDESA PROPER INTO
PORTION A, B, AND REMAINDER, PERMANENT CLOSURE OF PORTION A AND B
OF THE REMAINDER OF ERF 1794 MONDESA AS “STREET", CONSOLIDATION OF
PORTION A WITH REMAINDER ERF 1797 INTO ERF X AND PORTION B WITH ERF
3209 MONDESA INTO ERF Y AND SUBSEQUENT REZONING OF THE
CONSOLIDATED ERVEN X AND Y FROM SINGLE RESIDENTIAL WITH A DENSITY OF
1:200M? TO GENERAL BUSINESS WITH A BULK OF 2

(M/C 2025/09/11 - M 1797, M 3209)

RESOLVED:

That this item be referred back for further clarification.

8.14

WRITING OFF: REDUNDANT MATERIAL - WATER WORKS
(M/C 2025/09/11 - 17/2/5/1)

RESOLVED: (For Condonation by Council)

(a) That the following redundant items from the Water Works Section be written
off and sold at the next public auction:

Quantity Description
105 Meter Boxes
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10 Standpipe Heads
60+ Standpipe Batteries
100+ Electronic Meters

18 Valve Boxes

(b) That the Chief Executive Officer and the Chairperson of the Management
Committee determine the upset prices for the above-mentioned items.

8.18

BASELINE RISK ASSESSMENT OF ASBESTOS-CONTAINING MATERIALS
(M/C 2025/09/11 - 17/1/3/8)

RESOLVED:
That a presentation on the modalities of the baseline risk assessment of asbestos-

containing materials be done first, to satisfy Council on the need for funding
allocation.

10.2

REQUEST FOR ADDITIONAL FUNDS TO PARTICIPATE IN THE SAIMSA GAMES -
MASERU, LESOTHO
(M/C 2025/09/11 - 13/6/3)

RESOLVED: (For Condonation By Council)

(a) That Council approves the additional funding of N$366,400.00 for
participation in the SAIMSA Games 2025.

(b) Thatthe General Manager: Finance transfers the additional N$366,400.00 to
Vote: 101015563500, where N$55,049.75 is currently available.

(c) That it be recorded that, even though approval was granted by the
Management Committee, Councillor W O Groenewald did not support the
additional funding request that would bring the total spending to over
N$500,000.00.

(d) Thatitbe recorded that Councillor W O Groenewald maintained that Council
was supposed to be informed of the total participation cost with the first
submission that requested approval of Council’s participation in SAIMSA
Games 2025 in Maseru, Lesotho.
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RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD
DURING SEPTEMBER 2025

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 11 SEPTEMBER 2025

RELOCATION OF INFORMAL SETTLERS IN THE TRANSNAMIB SERVITUDE
MONDESA, EXTENSION 14) AND RE TION OF INFORMAL SETTLERS IN
THE POWER SERVITUDE (EXTENSIONS 24 7. 5W PMUND

(C/M 2025/10/03 - 15/2/1/2)

Ordinary Management Committee Meeting of 11 September 2025,
Addendum 7.1 page 03 refers.

This item was submitted to the Management Committee for consideration:

1. INTRODUCTION

This submission informs Council about the registration of households in Ext
14, Mondesa ("Airport location"), reported to Council in April 2025 and
particularly the residents residing within the TransNamib servitude area as
indicated in (Annexure A), and the residents residing in the Nampower
servitude area.

2. BACKGROUND

On 14 June 2024 Portion 184 was registered as Ext 14, Mondesa at the
Deeds Office. Extension 14, Swakopmund is unserviced and the sole utility
currently available is communal taps, without individual connections to
residential erven.

The extension is characterized by informal settlements located along the
railway and airport perimeter. To facilitate informed planning and
development, the Housing Section initiated a project to enumerate all
households occupying the erven in Ext 14, Mondesa.

3. DISCUSSION

On 14 October 2024, the Housing Section commenced with the
registration process and enumeration of all households in Ext 14, Mondesa.
The process recorded socio-economic data and counted the number of
households to plan for the relocation and allocation of erven. Every
household was provided with the original registration form, while a copy is
kept in the registration book for record and audit purposes. An electronic
database is also created to record data of the enumeration.

A feedback submission tabled at the Council meeting on 29 April 2025,
under item 11.1.22 where the following was resolved:

(a) That Council takes note of the feedback on the registration of
households in Extension 14, Mondesa “Airport Side”.

(b) Thatall 172 households in Extension 14, Mondesa, that reside in the
Transnamib Servitude area be relocated to clear encroachments on
the railway reserve by ensuring the safety of all occupants in
Extension 14, Mondesa.

e TRANSNAMIB
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172 structures were identified as encroaching onto the TransNamib
servitude per point (b) above.

 NAMPOWER

A letter was received on 25 March 2025 from NamPower reporting
encroachment and safety concerns for structures under the main grid
powerlines in Extensions 24 and 37 Swakopmund (Annexure B).

A survey was conducted to identify and document any unauthorized
structures or encroachments. Through a two-phase process involving initial
aerial map analysis (Annexure C) and subsequent on-site verification, a
total of 48 structures were identified within these designated servitude
zones.

There are a total of 20 structures in Ext 37 and 28 structures in Ext 24,

Swakopmund as listed below:

Extension 24
Total Erf No | Structure No Total | Erf No SO
1 6315 (3/6) 15 6325 (1/4)
2 6316 (1/7) 16 6325 (2/4)
3 6318 (1/10) 17 6326 (1/5)
4 6318 (2/10) 18 6326 (2/5)
5 6318 (3/10) 19 6326 (3/5)
6 6319 (2/10) 20 6327 (1/1)
7 6321 (1/14) 21 6328 (1/2)
8 6321 (2/14) 22 6329 (2/5)
9 6321 (3/14) 23 6332 (57/67)
10 6321 (4/14) 24 6332 (58/67)
11 6322 (1/8) 25 6332 (59/67)
12 6322 (2/8) 26 6332 (60/67)
13 6322 (3/8) 27 6332 (61/67)
14 6323 (1/3) 28 6332 (62/67)

In addition, in Ext 24, six structures were identified as being directly
under the power lines, on Erf 6332 posing significant safety risks and
requiring urgent relocation. The affected structures are (57/67), (58/67),
(60/67), (61/67) and (62/67) as per attached map ~ Annexure "A".

Extension 37

Total | Erf No | Structure No Total | Erf No | Structure No
1 9456 6 11 9459 (4/4)
2 9456 16 12 | 9461 (7/7)
3 9456 17 13 | 9462 (4/7)
4 9456 18 14 9463 (3/3)
5 9456 19 15 9466 (4/4)
6 9456 20 16 9603 10
7 9456 45 17 | 9603 11
8 9456 49 18 9603 13
9 9459 (1/4) 19 | 9603 14
10 9459 (2/4) 20 | 9689 49
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PROPOSAL

ltis proposed that all 178 households be urgently relocated from hazardous
servitude areas for safety, thereby allowing uninterrupted operation of
essential services in Swakopmund. This total includes 172 households
currently within the TransNamib Servitude area in Ext 14 and 6 households
in the NamPower servitude in Ext 24.

There are currently no single residential erven available for relocation of the
178 households; therefore it is proposed to relocate the identified
households to erven 10822, 10827, 10828, 10829, and 10832 in Ext 42,
which are zoned General Business and General Residential.

It is proposed that the 20 households in Ext 37 (see above table) be
permitted to remain in their current locations until Phase 2 of the Ext 37
Project is finalized, since there are no single residential erven currently
available. Their structures are situated at a safe distance from NamPower's
servitude. Future allocations in Phase 2 of the Ext 37 project (donation of
erven) may consider high- and middle-income residents.

The 6 residents in Ext 24 whose structures are directly under the power lines
should be relocated as a matter of urgency due to their immediate proximity
to existing power lines posing a safety hazard. In addition, it is proposed
that the less affected 22 households in Ext 24 remain at their current
locations until erven are made available or until the Northern Wedge is
ready and available for occupation.

Relocation to the Northern Wedge should be considered as a secondary
option; it is therefore imperative that the Engineering and Planning Services
Department prioritise the service of the Northern Wedge to receive
residents.

The Housing Section will create a relocation plan with logistical support
and timelines for the affected households. Throughout this process, regular
communication and consultation with the residents will be made to
maintain transparency and address concerns, ensuring an organised,
smooth, and respectful relocation.

After the matter was considered, the following was:-

RECOMMENDED:

(a)

(b)

(c)

That Council takes note that there are households residing within the
TransNamib railway reserve and Nampower servitudes as per
communication received from the two parties.

That the urgent relocation of all 172 households within the TransNamib
Servitude and 6 households within Nampower Servitude area in
Extension 24, Swakopmund, to the designated erven in Extension 42,
Swakopmund (Erven 10838, 10839, 10840, 10841, 10842), be
prioritized to mitigate safety risks and ensure railway operational
safety.

That a detailed relocation plan, including logistical support and
timelines, be developed by the Housing Section and communicated to
the affected residents as a matter of urgency, to address the associated
risk factors.



(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)
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That Council approves the households in Extension 37 presented in the
table below:

Total ErfNo. S'm":;mra- Total | EtfNo -Sfmée_’twe
0 No’
1 9456 [ 11 9459 (4/4)
2 9456 16 12 9461 (7/7)
3 9456 17 13 9462 (4/7)
4 9456 18 14 9463 (3/3)
5 9456 19 15 9466 (4/4)
é 9456 20 16 9603 10
7 9456 45 17 9603 11
8 9456 49 18 9603 13
9 9459 (1/4) 19 9603 14
10 9459 (2/4) 20 9689 49

be allowed to remain in their current locations until Phase 2 of the
Extension 37 Project (donation of erven) is finalized, since there are no
single residential erven currently available.

That the less affected 22 households in Extension 24 are presented in

the table below:
Total Erf No Stﬂ;vc;ure Total | Erf No Stn’lvc;ure
1 6315 (3/6) 12 6322 (2/8)
2 6316 (1/7) 13 6322 (3/8)
3 6318 (1/10) 14 6323 (1/3)
4 6318 (2/10) 15 6325 (1/4)
5 6318 (3/10) 16 6325 (2/4)
6 6319 (2/10) 17 6326 (1/5)
7 6321 (1/14) 18 6326 (2/5)
8 6321 (2/14) 19 6326 (3/5)
14 6321 (3/14) 20 6327 (1/1)
10 6321 (4/14) 21 6328 (1/2)
11 6322 (1/8) 22 6329 (2/5)

remain at their current locations until erven are made available or until
the Northern Wedge is available for occupation.

That signboards be designed and erected along the servitude lines by
TransNamib and NamPower, cautioning the public from erecting
structures and clarifying the penalties for non-compliance.

That the General Manager: Engineering & Planning Services ensures
the implementation of recommendation (f) above.
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ANNEXURE “A"

o
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ANNEXURE “B"

Namibia Power Corporation (Pty} L1d

PC Box 2864, Windhoek Namibia MamPower Centre, 15 Luther Straet

Tel: +264 61 2054111

Fax: +264 &1 232 805

Email address: register@nampower com na NamPower

Website address: www nampower.com Na

mmm Enquiries: E. Amutanya (+264 81 380 1382)
P.0.Box 53 Date: 25 March 2025

Dear Mr Benjamin,

mmmmmmvnormmmrmxm
POWERLINE IN THE DRC AREA

NamPower has obsanved with great concem that informal housing and refated structures in the
mwmmm}m.wmmmmm
Mmmmmmmwmmmuw
poweriine servitude.

mmdmmmmwmmmmm
maWMNMMbmmanm
mmmummmhmmwmmmﬁnmm
d&.hm.mmmmmmmmum
infrastructure which could lead to avoidable and prolonged service disruptions affecting not only
the residents of e DRAC setemant but also the entire Swakopmund town.

mmdmmmmwmmwdwn
mwmmmmwmmbmmmmm
mummwnwmmuimmm
mmmmmmmﬁmmmmmmum
powerfine is 11 meters on both sides from the center of the powerine. This clearance distance
mtm:mydmmm“mmmhmmnm.
it would not fall on any permanent structure and Cause injuries.

mmmmmwmmmmmmmnmm
on the steps hat will be taken to rescive this issue.

L&MW'OM:MWISW‘ gy L3 £

1. M
Mamiii P Corposatass (Foy) Anl Co. Sag . 3e 2051
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Please feel free to contact Elizabeth Amutenya at the number provided above.

Thanking you in advance.

—

?o\Ner fPf
s Bd

25 MAR 2025
%

)
‘ OFFICIAL

Yours Sincerely,

KS Haulofu
Managing Director

>

Pictures illustrating the informal settiement undemeath the powerline.
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ANNEXURE "C "
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1.

11.1.2 FEEDBACK REGARDING THE REGISTRATION OF HOUSEHOLDS IN
EXTENSION 24 AND 25, SWAKOPMUND
(C/M 2025/10/03 - 15/2/1/2)
Ordinary Management Committee Meeting of 11 September 2025,
Addendum 7.2 page 11 refers.

A. This item was submitted to the Management Committee for consideration:

INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this submission is to inform Council on the progress made
on the household registration in Extension 24 and 25, Swakopmund. It
outlines the current state of occupancy, highlights the challenges
encountered during the registration process, and presents crucial socio-
economic data that underscores significant affordability concerns among
residents.

Extension 24 comprises 246 erven, which have been allocated to private
developers for servicing and the construction of low-cost housing. The
aforesaid was approved at the Council meeting held on 31 May 2018
under item 11.1.25. attached as Annexure “"A". A locality map is attached
as Annexure “B".

Extension 25 consists of 318 erven. Of these, 115 erven, located on the
southwestern corner, have already been fully serviced by Council and are
highlighted in Annexure “C”. Annexure “D” indicates the border of
Extension 25. The remaining 194 unserviced erven include 173 erven
zoned as "Single Residential”.

BACKGROUND

A desktop study conducted by the Housing Section on 23 March 2022
revealed that Extension 25, Swakopmund, is densely populated. This
density hinders the installation of services and the construction of houses in
both Extensions 24 and 25 by the private developers.

To facilitate informed planning and development, the Housing Section
initiated a project to register all households occupying erven within
Extension 24 and 25, Swakopmund. This initiative was resolved by Council
on 27 January 2022, under item 11.1.44.

On 06 January 2025, a team of enumerators was appointed. Their
mandate was to conduct a comprehensive census, quantifying the resident
population and collecting detailed socio-economic data to make informed
future planning initiatives during the registration process.

OUTCOMES

On 7 January 2025, the Housing Section commenced with the registration
process of all households in Extension 25 and subsequently moved to
Extension 24, Swakopmund. The number of households in both extensions
are recorded to plan for the relocation and allocation of erven.

Each registered household receives an original registration form, while a
copy is retained in the registration book for record and audit purposes. An
electronic database has also been created to store the registration data.



3.2.
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3.1. Occupation
EXTENSION 24
There are 246 erven in Extension 24, Swakopmund, zoned for various land
uses. All 246 erven are allocated to Lewapa Property Developers (Pty) Ltd.
for servicing and are all currently occupied by 2,259 households. As
indicated in the table below, there are 240 Single Residential erven, 4
Public Open Space erven, and 2 Institutional erven.
EXTENSION 25
There are 318 erven in Extension 25, Swakopmund, zoned for various land
uses. Currently, 194 erven are occupied by 2,306 households. As indicated
in the table below, there are 288 Single Residential erven. However, 173
single residential erven of the 288 erven are allocated to Momporisa
Trading Enterprises (Pty) Ltd, and Lherix Investment (Pty) Ltd.
On the other hand, 115 Single Residential erven in the southwestern
corner of Extension 25 are vacant and have been allocated to Swakop
Uranium (63 Single Residential erven) and Mupupa Realtors CC (50
Single Residential erven)
 Zones _ | Ext2a | Ext 25
Single Residential 240 288
General Residential 1 0 3
General Residential 2 0 3
Local Business 0 0
General Business 0 14
Public Open Space 4 3
Institutional 2 5
Local Authority 0 4
Undetermined 0 1
Private Open Space 0 0
Registration

With the assistance of the committee members, each household in Extensions
24 and 25, Swakopmund, was visited for registration.

Registration notices were placed at strategic gathering points, issued to
committee leaders for distribution, and placed under the doors where

occupants were absent (Annexure E). Neighbours were also requested to

inform those who were not found at the households about the registration
process.

Extension 24 - Registration Summary:

Ext 24 Registration Total Number
Total number of erven 246
Number of erven occupied by households 246
Total number of households 2259
Number of households registered 1607
Number of households yet to be registered 652
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e Extension 25 - Registration Summary:

Ext 25 Registration Total Number
Total number of erven excluding the southwestern 194
corner

Number of erven occupied by households 194

Total number of households 2306
Number of households registered 1782
Number of households yet to be registered 524

Despite efforts and funds dedicated to the registration process, some households
remain unregistered. There are various reasons why some households remain
unregistered despite multiple visits and implemented strategies:

There are unoccupied structures in the area, making it difficult to trace the
owners.

Some occupants are out of town, either for vacation or with employment, e.g.,
at sea.

Some structures are possibly erected by possible speculators, intending to
lease it out.

Radio announcements in different languages will be made as a last attempt to
invite unregistered residents.

Challenges experienced during registration, and proposed remedies

No CHALLENGES REMEDIES

1 Unclear boundaries of erven | Acquired — aerial  maps from the
occupied by the informal | Engineering &  Planning Services
structures, making it difficult | Department to overlay the latest aerial
to establish which Erf is | images to be used for mapping during
occupied by the structures. | enumerations.

2 Occupants who are out of | Occupants in Extensions 24 & 25,
town for vacation or | Swakopmund, have been accorded an
employment. opportunity to register their households

since 7 January 2025, and there are still
524 unregistered households up to 12
June 2025 despite efforts from Council.
The Seaside Committee, representing
the community, also assisted. Therefore,
a decision is required to remove the
unoccupied shacks. For occupants who
are currently out of town or otherwise
unreachable, the registration process
will also be extensively advertised via
local radio broadcasts as an attempt to
reach those unregistered occupants.

Income and affordability assessment

The survey determined the socio-economic status of the households. Registered
households were required to provide proof of income, i.e., either a payslip or bank
statements for 3 months. To differentiate the financial status in this submission,
income is categorised into high income (those who earn N$6 001.00 and above),
middle income (earn between N$3 001.00 - N$6 000.00), and low-income (those
who earn N$3 000.00 and below).

1

Description | Ext24a | Ext25 |
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Registered households that provided proof of | 608/1 607 622/1806
income

- High income (N$6001.00 - above) 173 171

~ Middle Income (N$3001.00 - N$6000.00) 282 255

~ Low income (N$3000.00 - less) 153 196
Subtotal of households that provided proof 608 622

of income

Unemployed 396/1607 570/1806
Persons who receive grants 10/1607 19/1806
Not stated whether employed or not 85/1607 0/1806
Number of registered households that did not | 508/1607 595/1806
provide proof of income

Subtotal of households that did not provide 999 1184
proof of income

Total number of registered households 1607/2259 | 1806/2306
Unregistered structures 652/2259 500/2306

Data from both Extension 24 and Extension 25 reveal a significant problem of
affordability for registered households. A substantial number of residents in both
areas are classified as low-income or unemployed, with many more unable to

provide proof of income, indicating widespread

inability to afford.

3.4.1 Extension 24

248

financial vulnerability and
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The above, 'Household Demographics in Extension 24, chart displays:

e Low-income households: 153
e Unemployed households: 396

o Households that did not provide proof of income: 999

3.4.2 Extension 25

WMW'“MZS

GO0 |

g

]

)-;-?"— J
i pa 1|-|||1-. h

L'p‘;i"r{." ;‘.""_-!:_'-‘
. {9




43
Ordinary Council Meeting - 02 October 2025

The above, 'Household Demographics in Extension 25', chart displays:

e Low-income households: 196
e Unemployed households: 570
e Households lacking proof of income: 595

This combined data strongly suggests that a large portion of the occupants in both
extensions will face significant challenges in meeting the financial demands of
relocation and the purchase of residential erven. The associated costs, including
land servicing, transfer fees, and potential construction, are likely prohibitive for
these vulnerable households.

To ensure an equitable and accessible relocation and land ownership process for
all residents, regardless of their financial status, the following measures are
proposed:

o Development of flexible payment plans and/or provision of subsidized land
specifically for low-income households. To directly address the affordability
concerns and enable more residents to acquire erven within Ext 24 and 25.

e Prioritization of low-income earners who are unable to acquire erven within Ext
24 and 25, for relocation to the Northern Wedge once it becomes available. To
promote inclusivity and facilitate homeownership for those facing severe
financial constraints.

The implementation of these solutions will not only alleviate the financial burden
on vulnerable households but also contribute to a smoother, more inclusive
allocation and relocation process in Swakopmund.

PROPOSAL

It is proposed that occupants who were unreachable due to being out of town or
other factors should be notified of the registration process via radio
announcements.

Secondly, it is proposed that the 622 households in Ext 25, Swakopmund,
occupying residential erven be allowed to purchase the erven they are currently

occupying, contingent upon individual affordability.

Extension 24 Erven Sharing Ratio:

Zoning Total Number of Erven Sharing Ratio
- Erven Developer Council
Single Residential 240 144 96
Public Open Space 4 0 4
Institutional 2 0 2
Extension 25 Erven Sharing Ratio:
Total Number of Erven Sharing Ratio
Zoning Erven Developer _gCouncll
Single Residential 288 173 115
General Residential 2 3 0 3
General Business 14 8 6
Public Open Space 3 0 3
Institutional 5 0 5
Local Authority 4 0 4
Undetermined 1 0 1
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Registrations of households in Ext 24 and 25, Swakopmund, have been ongoing
since 07 January 2025, and there are still 1152 unregistered households despite
numerous efforts from the office; hence, itis proposed that Council obtain a Court
Order for demolition of unoccupied and unregistered households’ structures,
should they still not be registered by the time of relocation.

It is further proposed that occupants in Extension 24 and 25 who cannot afford to
purchase erven within the extension, be relocated to the Northern Wedge once
serviced. '

After the matter was considered, the following was:-

RECOMMENDED:

(a) That Council acknowledges the allocation of Extension 24 to Lelwapa
Property Developers (Pty) Ltd.

(b) That the Property and Housing Division arrange a meeting with
Lelwapa Property Developers (Pty) Ltd, to discuss the proposed
allocation process and determine appropriate placement strategies for
occupants who do not meet the qualification criteria.

(¢) That Council takes note of the feedback regarding the registration of
households in Extensions 24 & 25, Swakopmund “Seaside Side".

(d) That Council prioritises the preparation of the Northern Wedge
extensions (reception area) to expedite the relocation process.

(e) That the registered households in Extensions 24 & 25, Swakopmund,
be informed at least 3 months in advance about the relocation to be
prepared for the activity.

() That 622 households in Extension 25, Swakopmund, occupying
residential erven be given the first opportunity to purchase the erven
they are currently occupying, contingent upon individual affordability.

(g) That a payment plan, or subsidised land, be created for low-income
households to ensure affordability.

(h) That at the time of relocation, all necessary steps be taken to remove
the unoccupied structures in Extensions 24 & 25, Swakopmund, and
that they be stored at Council’s stores to assist future fire victims.
Additionally, radio announcements be made to give notice to the
owners of the approximately 1152 unregistered structures.

(i) That Council resolution 11.1.16 (h), passed on 4 June 2024, be
implemented and enforced as directed. “That signboard be designed
and erected at all informal areas, cautioning occupiers from leasing
structures and clarifying the penalties for non-compliance.”

(j)  That the General Manager: Engineering & Planning Services ensures
the implementation of recommendation (h) above.
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ANNEXURE “A”

771712018
Rezoning of Erf 172, Swakopmund, from “Single Residential” with density

of 1:900 to “General Business” with a bulk of 2.0. (Council Resolution 27-
03-2014)

* Rezoning of Portion A of Erf 2226, Swakopmund, from “Public Open Space”

fo “General Residential 2" with a density of 1:250. (Council Resolution 25
01-2018)

That Van der Westhuizen be authorized to submit the Amendment
Scheme No. 66 to the Ministry of Urban and Rural Development for
approval by the Honourable Minister.

11.1.25

LAND AND HOUSING ACTION PLAN

(CM 2018/05/31 - H 5, H 5/5)

RESOLVED:

(a) That Council remains with its of 30 November 2017 under item
11.1.22

(b)

That it be noted that the Action Plan for the development of
Council's unserviced land will focus on the following extensions:

Extension 3

(c) That the following be approved:

1.1.1. Extension3
1.1.1.1. Erven and Layout

« The extension 3 consists of a mixture of single residential, General
Residential, Business. Institutional, Local Authority, Public Open

= This extension is targeted for Medium Income level.
« The compilation of erven available is illustrated in the Table befow.

Zaning Total Number of Erven :
Residential rt !
General Residential 2
Local Business
Genernl Business
| Public Opan Space
.. Institusional
Local Authovity

1142 Distribution of Erven

* Council remains the owner of the property during the development of
the extension and the developer will not be alfowed fo transfer the
fand in their name. The transfer of land ownership will be done at the
end of the whaole project to the beneficiary.

= The developer will return a portion of the serviced fand as well as the
entire infrastructure back to the Swakopmund Council

= The distribution of return land wiil be at a minimum of 33.33% of the
Single residential erven for Council, but Council to receive the full
return on the institutional, Local Authority, Public Open Spacs,
Private Open Space and Undetermined erven.

o | h A )

Oy Comscll Sating: 31 By 3008
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78172018

« The Business and General Residential erven will be returned on a

portion base as stipulated in the table below.

M Zoning Total Number Erven Sharing Ratio
of Erven Deve Council
loper
Single Residential 271 180 91
General Residential 2 1 1 0
Local Business 9 5 4
_General B 3 E 1
| Public Open Space 4 0 4
_Institutional 1 [! 1
Local Authority 1 0 1
1.1.1.3. Cost Distribution

1.1.14.

1.1.1.5.

In order to keep the cost of the project as low as possible and to
ensure that targeted consumers of Swakopm und are reached by this
project, the developer will not pay for the land and will not be charged
a premium for the land.

The developer will use own funds or funds from financial institutions
to develop the extension, but Council will not contribute financially to
the construction and installation of services and houses on this
extension.

Specification of Services

The area will be fully serviced with interlock surfaced roads/streets
with kerb stone defining the gravel sidewalks, water, sewer and
electrical infrastructure up to the erf boundary.

The specifications for the services will be supplied and construction
monitored by the Engineering Services Department of the
Swakopmund Council

Specification of Houses

The Houses to be constructed shall consist of two fo three bedroom
houses with garages (optional), but structures to the value of not less
than N$500 000.00 but not more than N$800 000.00. This excludes the
cost of the land.

The specifications for
monitored by the
Swakopmund Council

the houses will be supplied and construction
Engineering Services Department of the

1.1.2. I LY ] Ghetto Assistance CC
1.1.2.1. Erven and Layout

This extension consists of a mixture of single residentjal, Business.
Institutional, Local Authority, Public Open Space erven.

This extension is targeted for Medium income level.

The compilation of erven is illustrated in the Table below.

2Zoning Total Number of Erven
Single Residential 31
Local Busl; 18
General Business B
Public Open Space 1
Ingtitutional 1
Local Authority 3
1.1.2.2. Distribution of Erven

Council remains the owner of the property during the development of
the extension and the developer will not be allowed to transfer the
land in their name. The transfer of land ownership will be done at the
end of the whole project to the beneficiary.

Ordinary Gouncll Mewting: 31 May 2018
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7972018

The developer will return a portion of the serviced land as well as the
entire infrastructure back to the Swakopmund Council

Due to the ratio of the erven in this extension, the distribution of
return land will only be affected to the business erven and the
developer to maintain with full number of single residential erven.

The Council to receive the full return on the institutional, Local
Authority, Public Open Space, Private Open Space and Undetermined
erven.

The Business erven will be returned on a portion base as stipulated in
the table below.

Zoning Total Number Erven Sharing Ratio
of Erven Developer Council
Single
Residential i | S 0
Local Business 18 10 8
General
Business | B e 2
Public Open
Space i g i
Institutional 1 [7] 1
Local Authority 3 (] 3 -
.1.2.3. Cost Distribution

In order to keep the cost of the project as low as possible and to
ensure that targeted consumers of Swakopmund are reached by this
project, the developer will not pay for the land and will not be charged
a premium for the land.

The developer will use own funds or funds from financial institutions
to develop the extension, but Council will not contribute financially to
the construction and installation of services and houses on this
extension.

.1.2.4. Specification of Services

The area will be fully serviced with interlock surfaced roads/streets
with kerb stone defining the gravel sidewalks, water, sewer and
electrical infrastructure up to the erf boundary.

The specifications for the services will be supplied and construction
monitored by the Engineering Services Department of the
Swakopmund Council

.1.25. Specification of Houses

The Houses to be constructed shall consist of two to three bedroom
houses with garages (optional), but structures to the value of not less
than N$500 000.00 but not more than N$800 000.00. This excludes the
cost of the land.

The specifications for the houses will be supplied and construction
monitored by the Engineering Services Department of the
Swakopmund Council

.1.2.6. (D4 CLHETL N Riving Trading Enterprise CC
1.2.7. Erven and Layout

This extension consists of a mixture of general residential, Business,
Local Authority, Public Open Space erven.

This extension is targeted for Medium income level.

The compilation of erven is illustrated in the Table below.

Zoning Total Number of Erven

Single Residential

General Residential 1

General Residential 2

o

Local Business

Ordinary Council Mesting: 31 May 2018
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80/2018

| General Business I S 3
Public Open Space 1

Institutional [] -
Local Autharity 1
Undetermined ! 0
0

Private Open Space

1.1.2.8. Distribution of Erven

Council remains the owner of the property during the development of
the extension and the developer will not be allowed to transfer the
land in their name. The transfer of land ownership will be done at the
end of the whole project to the beneficiary.

The developer wiil return a portion of the serviced land as well as the
entire infrastructure back to the Swakopmund Council

Due to the ratio of the erven in this extension, the distribution of
return land will only be affected to the business and general
residential erven.

The Council to receive the full return on the institutional, Local
Authority, Public Open Space, Private Open Space and Undetermined
erven.

The Business and General Residential erven will be returned on a
portion base as stipulated in the table below.

Total Number of " Erven Sharing Ratio
Zoning Erven

Developer Council

Undetermined

| Single Residential 0 0 0
General Residential 1 - 4 1
General Residential 2 6 5§ 1
Local Business i 6 6 1
General Business 3 3 1
Public Open Space 1 0 1
Institutional (/R . ' 0
Local Authority 1 0 1

/] 0 0
0 0 0

Private Open Space

1.1.2.9. Cost Distribution

In order to keep the cost of the project as low as possible and to
ensure that targeted consumers of Swakopmund are reached by this
project, the developer will not pay for the land and will not be charged
a premium for the land.

The developer will use own funds or funds from financial institutions
to develop the extension, but Council will not contribute financially to
the construction and installation of services and houses on this
extensiaon.

1.1.2.10. Specification of Services

The area will be fully serviced with interlock surfaced roads/streets
with kerb stone defining the gravel sidewalks, water, sewer and
electrical infrastructure up to the erf boundary.

The specifications for the services will be supplied and construction
monitorad by the Engineering Services Department of the
Swakopmund Council

1.1.2.11. Specification of Houses

The Houses to be constructed shall consist of two to three bedroom
houses with garages (optional), but structures to the value of not less
than N$500 000.00 but not more than N$800 000.00. This excludes the
cost of the land.

Ordinery Councit Mesting: 31 Mey 2018




49
Ordinary Council Meeting - 02 October 2025

81/2018

e The specifications for the houses will be supplied and construction
monitored by the Engineering Services Department of the
Swakopmund Council

1.1.3. Extension 24 Immanuel Shikongo and

1.4.31. Erven and Layout

o mhaxmuhnmsbud.mmmdmrﬂmﬂd.ﬂusm
Local Authority, Public Open Space erven.

° mwmnmmmmm.

° mwmdmkwmmramm.

Zoning Total Number of Erven
_Single Residential 240
General Residential 1 0
General Residential 2 [/] |
Local Business 0 1
_General Business 0 |
Public Open Space 4
| Institutional 2
| Local Authority [1]
| Undetermined o
" Private Open Space [1]

B Cound!myﬁmhmdmwmmmmtof

end of the whole project to the beneficiary.
mmummmapmnwmmwasw:asm
entire infrastructure back to the Swakopmund Council.

° ﬂndisﬁbuﬁondrﬂumhndwﬂ!boataminimumof%ofm
WWMMMMWNMM!M
mmmmM.MAM.PMOpMSpuq
mwm«wmm.

. mBmmMWMm-ﬂlmmﬁmedona

Total Number Erven Ratio
Zoning of Erven | Developer Council
Single 240 144 [
Residential
General 0 0 0
Residential 1
! General 0 0 0
| Residential 2 |
Local Business | 0 a i []
General 0 o [/}
Business |
Public Open | 4 0 4
_Space
Institutional 2 a 2
["Local Authori [ 0 0
“Undetermined 0 0 ) —]
Private Open 0 0 0
_Space J J

1.13.3. Cost Distribution

B m«deermmemstdmm;sMasposﬂbksrdw
mummmrgeansumdMapmundmmachedbym

Doy Camscll Wesling: 37 Way 2018
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project, the developer will not pay for the land and will not be charged
a premium for the land.

« The developer will use own funds or funds from financial institutions
to develop the extension, but Council will not contribute financially to
the construction and installation of services and houses on this
extension.

1.1.3.4. Specification of Services

e The area will be fully serviced with gravel roads/streets with kerb
stone only defining the intersections with bladed gravel sidewalks,
water, sewer and electrical infrastructure up fo the erf boundary.

B mmmmmw:u:wmmm

by the Engineering Services Department of the
Swakopmwrd(:ounch'

1.1.35. Specification of Houses

e The Houses fo be constructed shall consist of one (1) to two (2) to
three bedroom houses, but structures to the value of not less than
N$150 000.00 but not more than N$250 000.00. This excludes the cost
of the land.

» The specifications for the houses will be supplied and construction
monitored by the Engineering Services Department of the
Swakopmund Council

114. Extension 25

{(Lherix Investments CC And Momporisa

1.1.41. Erven and Layout

= This extension consists of a mixture of general residential, Business, Lacal
Authority, Public Open Space erven.

I Zoning Tatai Number of Erven
__Singfe Residential 288
._General Residential 1 [
General Residential 2
Local Business
General Business

E |
Q~lalawpe|w

e This extension is targeted for Low income Level.
= The compilation of erven is illustrated in the Table below.

1.14.2. Distribution of Erven

e Council remains the owner of the property during the development of the
extension and the developer will not be allowed to transfer the fand in their
name. The transfer of fand ownership will be done at the end of the whale
praject to the beneficiary.

s The developer will return a portion of the serviced land as well as the entire
infrastructure back to the Swakopmund Council.

= The distribution of retum land will be at a minimum of 40% of the Single
residential erven for Council, but Council to receive the full return on the
institutional, Lacal Authority, Public Open Space, Private Open Space and
Undetermined erven.

e The Business and General Residential erven will be returned on a portion
base as stipulated in the table below.

Total Numberof | Erven MM |
Touing Erven Developer ! Counc® 1
Single Residentisl 288 173 1 115

Onafiswry Comsnd Nesing: Y Slay 20%0



1.1.4.3.

1.1.4.4.

1.1.4.5.

1.1.5. Extension 38 gelil:{ge)si

1.1.5.1.
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General Residential 1
Ganeral Residential 2
Local Business
General Businass
Public Open Space
Institutional

Local Authority
Undetermined
Private Open Space |

CIENENTI N (Y S
Sl=Alnivielolole

QIQIooIn|a Do

Cost Distribution

In order to keep the cost of the praject as low as possible and to ensure
that targeted consumers of Swakopmund are reached by this project, the
developer will not pay for the land and will not be charged a premium for
the land.

The developer will use own funds or funds from financial institutions to
develop the extension, but Council will not contribute financially to the
construction and Installation of services and houses on this extension.

Specification of Services

The area will be fully serviced with gravel roads/streets with kerb stone only
defining the intersections with bladed gravel sidewalks, water, sewer and
electrical infrastructure up to the erf boundary.

The specifications for the services will be supplied and construction
monitored by the Engineering Services Department of the Swakopmund
Council

Specification of Houses

The Houses to be constructed shall consist of one (1) to two (2) to three
bedroom houses, but structures to the value of not less than N$150 000.00
but not more than N$250 000.00. This excludes the cost of the land.

The specifications for the houses will be supplied and construction
monitored by the Engineering Services Department of the Swakopmund
Council

Building Contraction CC and Too

Erven and Layout

This extension consists of a mixture of general residential, Business, Local
Authority, Public Open Space erven.

This extension is targeted for Medium income Level.

The compilation of erven is illustrated in the Table below.

_Zoning

Total Number of Erven
Fpr— ] 198

Single R

General Residential 1

2

“General Residential 2

_Local Business

General Business

Public Open Space

Institutional

Local Authority

Undetermined

Private Open Space

olo=lomaola

1.1.5.2. Distribution of Erven

Council remains the owner of the property during the development of the
extension and the developer will not be allowed to transfer the land in their
name. The transfer of land ownership will be done at the end of the whole

project to the beneficiary.

Ordinary Councit Mesting: 11 May 2018
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« The developer will return a portion of the serviced land as well as the entire
infrastructure back to the Swakopmund Council.

« The distribution of return land will be at a minimum of 33.33% of the Single
residential erven for Council, but Council to receive the full return on the
institutional, Local Authority, Public Open Space, Private Open Space and
Undetermined erven.

« The Business and General Residential erven will be returned on a portion
base as stipulated In the table below.

Zoning Total Number of [ Erven Sharing Ratio
Erven | Developer Counecil

Single Residential 198 132 66
General Residential 1 2 2 0
General Residential 2 0 0 B
Local Business 0 I I 0
General Business |0 0 0
Public Open Space 4 [} 4

| Institutional 0 0 0
Local Authority 1 [1] 1
Undetermined 0 0 0
Private Open Space 0 o | 0

1.1.5.3. Cost Distribution

In order to keep the cost of the project as low as possible and to ensure that
targeted consumers of Swakopmund are reached by this project, the developer
will not pay for the land and will not be charged a premium for the land.

The developer will use own funds or funds from financial institutions to develop
the extension, but Council will not contribute financially to the construction and
installation of services and houses on this extension.

1.1.5.4. Specification of Services

The area will be fully serviced with gravel roads/streets with kerb stone only
defining the intersections with bladed gravel sidewalks, water, sewer and
electrical infrastructure up to the erf boundary.

The specifications for the services will be supplied and construction monitored
by the Engineering Services Department of the Swakopmund Council

1.1.5.5. Specification of Houses

The Houses to be constructed shall consist of one (1) to two (2) to three bedroom
houses, but structures to the value of not less than N$500 000.00 but not more
than N$800 000.00. This excludes the cost of the land.

The specifications for the houses will be supplied and construction monitored by
the Engineering Services Department of the Swakopmund Council

Prorer Teofelus Uvanga and Quintessential Trading & Consultanc

1.1.5.6. Erven and Layout

« This extension consists of a mixture of single residential, general residential,
Business, Local Authority, Public Open Space erven.

e This extension is targeted for Medium income Level.

e The compilation of erven is illustrated in the Table below.

Zoning Total Number of
Erven
Single Residential 214
General Residential 1 0
General Residential 2 4
Local Business 9 |
General Business 2

Orfinary Councif Mesting: 31 May 2018
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[ Public Open Space
Institutional
Local Authorit

Undetermined
Private Open Space

Qo|o|=|Ww

1.4.5.7. Distribution of Erven

Council remains the owner of the property during the development of the
extension and the developer will not be allowed to transfer the land in their name,
The transfer of land ownership will be done at the end of the whole project to the
beneficiary.

The developer will return a portion of the serviced fand as well as the entire
infrastructure back to the Swakopmund Council.

The distribution of return land will be at a minimum of 33.33% of the Single
residential erven for Council, but Council to receive the full return on the
institutional, Local Authority, Public Open Space, Private Open Space and
Undetermined erven.

The Business and General Residential erven will be returned on a portion base as
stipulated in the table below.

Zoning Total Number of Erven Sharing Ratio
Erven Developer Council

Single Residential — 214 143 71
General Residential 1 0 0 0
General Residential 2 - 4 2 2
Local Business 9 5 4
General Business 2 1 1

| Public Open Space 3 0 3
Institutional 1 0 1
Local Authority 0 0 0
Undetermined 1] 1 0
Private Open Space 0 0 0

1.1.5.8. Cost Distribution

 In order to keep the cost of the project as low as possible and to ensure
that targeted consumers of Swakopmund are reached by this project, the
developer will not pay for the land and will not be charged a premium for
the land.

» The developer will use own funds or funds from financial institutions to
develop the extension, but Council will not contribute financially to the
construction and installation of services and houses on this extension.

1.1.5.9. Specification of Services and Houses

e The area will be fully serviced with gravel roads/streeis with kerb stone
only defining the intersections with bladed gravel sidewalks, water, sewer
and electrical infrastructure up to the erf boundary.

o The specifications for the services will be supplied and construction
monitored by the Engineering Services Department of the Swakopmund
Council

1.1.5.10. Specification of Services and Houses

o The Houses to be constructed shall consist of one (1) to two (2} to three
bedroom houses, but structures to the value of not less than N$500 000.00
but not more than N$800 000.00. This excludes the cost of the land.

o The specifications for the houses will be supplied and construction

monitored by the Engineering Services Department of the Swakopmund

Council

Ordinary Councl! Meetings 31 May 2010
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86/2018

3.2.8 Serviced Land

The Honourable Minister directed that 40 Erven should be
allocated to each contract. Attached is a list of contractor for
selection.

3.29 Power Oyeno

The Council resolution of 31 May 2017 under item 11.1.24. is on
file.

That it be recorded that 1 986 serviced erven are available in the
Matutura Area.

That consideration be given to allocate 40 erven to each local /
Swakopmund based developer and that the surplus be equitably
distributed to the remaining developers from outside
Swakopmund taking their date of application into account.

That Developers be required to construct 2 (two) show houses to
the satisfaction of Council before consideration is given for
further allocation.

That Extension 36 on the layout map be amended to read
Extension 38 and that the Council Resolution of 30 November
2017 under item 11.1.22 be amended accordingly.
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ANNEXURE "B"
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ANNEXURE "C”
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ANNEXURE "E”

Ref 142172
Enqumies:  Nikalas Ndekonghola

21 January 2025
Dear Sir/Madam
REMINDER TO PARTICIPATE IN THE REGISTRATION PROCESS: EXT 24 & 25
SWAKOPMUND, "SEASIDE™

We refer to the above subject matter

You are hereby informed that the Municipality is currently busy registering residents in
Extension 24 & 25 Swakopmund “Seaside”. however the enumerators could not find you
at your home, notwithstanding multiple wisits. Please note that the due date for
completion of the registration process is 28 Fabruary 2025

Kindly wisit our Housing Section at the Municipal Head Office from Monday to Friday
between 14h00 to 15030 before the 28 February 2025 to be registered Plaase bring
along this letter, a copy of your identity document, a copy of the mamage ceatificate and
your spouse's identficatron document (in case f you are mamed]. We will then do a
physical site vwisit with you for varshcation purposes

For any further enguines, please do not hesitate to contact Mr Nikolas Ndeikonghola at
064-4104232 or Mr Charles Awaseb at 0644104237

'f';-u'_-\_"'
Yours faithfully, i ""4333
G
— ' = \
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Ref 15/2:172

Enguiries Nikoias Nde:konghola
2S5 February 2025

Dear Sir‘fMadam

REMINDER TO PARTICIPATE IN THE REGISTRATION PROCESS: EXTENSION 24
SWAKOPMUND, "SEASIDE™

We refer to the above subgect matter.

You are herehy nformed that the Municpality s currently registeang residents in
Extansion 24 Swakopmund ‘Seas:da”. however the enumarators could not find you at
your hame. notwithstanding multipie wisits. Please note that the due date for completion
of the registration process 1s 28 March 2025,

Kindly wisit our Housing Section at the Municipal Head Office from Monday to Friday
between 14h00 to 16h30 before the 28 March 2025 to be registerad. Please bring
along this letter, a copy of your identity document, a copy of the marriage
certificate, your spouse’s identification document (in case if you are married), and
proof of income in a form of a payslip or 3 Months Bank Statement We will then do
a physical site visit with you far venfication purposes.

Far any further enquines. please do not hesitate to contact Mr Nikolas Ndeikanghola at
064-4108232 or Mr Charles Awaseb at 164-4104231

Yours faithfully
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OMAVALA TRADING & ENTERPRISES: CURRENT STATUS OF AVAILABILITY

OF LAND FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF A UNIVERSITY

(C/M 2025/10/03 - 17/1/4/2/1/13)

Ordinary Management Committee Meeting of 11 September 2025,
Addendum 7.3 page 32refers.

This item was submitted to the Management Committee for consideration:

il

2.1

Purpose

The purpose of this submission is to inform Council of the current status of
the proposed transaction and the way forward following the in-principle
approval by Council on 29 July 2021 under item 11.1.19 (quoted for ease

of reference):

“a) That Ceuncil approves the merits of the application by Omavala

(b)

(c)

(d)

Trading & Enterprises to substantiate the amendment of Council’s
decisions to calf for development proposals by allocating the Western
half of the Martin Luther Wedge to Omavala Trading and! Enterprise in
principle. '

That the conditions of sale be re-submitted for approval, along with
the draft site layout of the propesed university, to be provided to the
General Manager: Engineering & Planning Services Department.

That the application for approval to commence with brickmaking be
approved and that the General Manager: Engineering and Planning
Services submits a site plan indicating the preferred site of the
brickmaking project for Council’s approvai, along with the lease
conditions.

That other applicants for tertiary land be submitted for consideration.”

On 13 August 2021 (Annexure “A”"), Omavala
Trading Enterprises (hereinafter “Omavala”) was
informed of the approval, and it was pointed out
that the approval is in principle, as the minimum
requirement to commence with a transaction is

that a Surveyor-General-approved diagram is in
place. Attached to the letter is the requirements in

e

terms of the Property Policy for the sale of land to -
Private Educational Institutions.

On 16 July 2025, Councils Town Planning |
Section confirmed that the layout for Desert View
township (the township in which the subject
portion of land is located) has not yet been
approved by the Townships Board, so the

description of the property is not official/legal, and
the size is not accurate as it is not yet surveyed.

Introduction

“in principle” approval

Portion of Land not
yet surveyed. No

™ Surveyor-General

diagram in place yet.

To systematically report on the timeline of the application for land to
construct a university, the various Council decisions are quoted below under

point 4 and commented on.
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This is also done for a complete record, should it be necessary to
substantiate the proposed private treaty transaction in the future, if being
reviewed or challenged due to the non-competitive allocation.

It is pointed out from the outset that the allocation on 29 July 2021 under
itern 11.1.19 was in principle. It was accordingly pointed out to the applicant
in Council's letter dated 13 August 2021 (Annexure “A”").

With reference to point (c) of the above decision, 7
Omavala was informed per letter dated 13
September 2022 (Annexure “B") that the
General Manager: Engineering & Planning
Services indicated that it will not be possible to
allow brickmaking on Portion A. Alternative
options are being considered in the industrial
area, which might pose risks with the transport of J
bricks over the busy B2 road.

- Brickmaking issue.

Although Omavala submitted a bulky document during November 2022
(Annexure “C") in reply to Council's letters dated 13 August 2021 and
13 September 2022 (Annexures “A” and “B"), due to the lapse of time
(4 years), it is necessary to review the application, keeping in mind that:

The proposed portion of land measures approximately 48 hectares
Council has a Ministerial directive not to allocate large portions of land
(dated 04 June 2015) to one entity, although the allocation can be
substantiated in terms of Council’s Structure Plan 2020 - 2040 (see point 3
below)

The possible requirement to subdivide the portion of land to allow for
specific land zonings as appurtenant uses, such as “general residential” and
“business” for financial management, whilst maintaining that the subdivided
portions may not be alienated or speculated with

The requirement that the main purpose for the sale of land to Omavala is
for the construction of a University and that residential township
development will under no circumstances be allowed, and a reverting
clause be included in the agreement

that 90% of the surface area of the portion of land be used for University
purposes, and the need and sustainability of such be duly substantiated by
Omavala to justify the allocation of a vast portion of land measuring
approximately 48 ha

that timelines be determined for the various phases of the development,
following the signing of the agreement, of which the construction of the
University is a priority

Formal proof of financing based on the calculated development costs
(services, infrastructure, and construction of the University) will be provided
as resolved by Council on 25 February 2021 under item 11.1.4, point (e):

“le) That in future developers be screened to determine their financial
capabilities to perform and any other matter Council deemed
necessary.”

The establishment of the Investment Coordination Committee by Council
on 29 February 2024 and various requirements set by Council to ensure
due diligence and the responsible allocation of land to ensure such is used
for the purpose applied for, the substantiated need for the venture,
sustainability, and financial ability of the entity.



2.5
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It is therefore required that Omavala review, update, and resubmit their
substantiated motivation (as per letter dated 13 September 2022,
Annexure "B") for assessment by the Investment Coordination Committee:

(i) A copy of the latest registration document of Omavala Trading
Enterprises as an entity, indicating the names of shareholders,
trustees, or members and their identifications (latest amendments).

(i) Provide proof of financial ability to purchase the portion, install
services, and develop a university immediately after transfer.

(iii)  Proof of experience and capacity in a similar project.

(iv) Proof of cooperation agreements with other tertiary educational
institutions.

It is also required to comply with the requirements of the Investors’ Proposal
Checklist attached as Annexure “D”.

Municipality of Swakopmund Structure Plan 2020 - 2040

For information, Council's Structure Plan was approved on 03 December
2020, and the relevant points relating to the establishment of a university
are attached as Annexure “E”.

Ti ine o uncil’s Decisions Passe t stablishmen a
University
uncil’s Decision ma n 28 Ju 018 under ite 1.1.5

The first decision with regard to applications for the establishment of a
University was submitted to Council, and the following decision was made
on 28 June 2018 under item 11.1.5:

“(a) That the Council takes note of the varicus applications received for
land for the construction of tertiary institutions.

(b) That the Engineering Services Department determines the most
suitable location, zoning, and size for a university, keeping mind future
extensions; and attends to the subdivision of such portion.

(c) Thatthe applicantsin(a)above be informed that once Council decides
on conditions of sale, proposals for the corstruction and management
of such will be publicly invited.”

With reference to point (a) of the above resolution, the following
applications were submitted and were informed of the decision in writing
on 02 July 2018:
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Applicant

Date

Comments / Progress Report

-

Menrose
Education Trust

04 Dec 15

Was requested on 04 Jan 16 to provide the

following (no further correspondence was

received):

® The trust deed of Menrose Educational Trust
clearly indicates the trust aim / objective and
the trustees and beneficiaries;

@ indicate any other projects undertaken by
the trust; and

@ indicate how an area of 10,000 m? will be
optimally used.

An email was sent to the applicant dated

23 February 2018 enquiring whether they are

still interested in obtaining land. Mr A R Kavari on

12 March 2018 confirmed that they are still in the

process of getting the required documentation

in order.

Hakuna Matata
Real Estate CC
On behalf of
Global Business
Development

2 Aug 16

30 hectares for a private university

Their application was acknowledged on 22
August 2016, setting out the requirements to
comply with.

The applicant confirmed on 01 March 2018
that they are still interested in pursuing the
venture.

International
University of
Management

30 Nov 16

The International University of Management
bought Erf 519, Extension 2, Matutura, and the
construction of the facility is completed.

Platinum

17 Feb 17

Applied to purchase Erf 3342, Swakopmund.
Council on 29 June 2017, under item 11.1.9,
resolved not to approve the application.
Following the above decision Council invited
development proposals for Erf 3342,
Swakopmund, and the property was allocated
to Welwitchia Health Training Centre (Pty) Ltd
on 27 May 2021. Platinum did not submit a
proposal.

Damnic Business
Consortium

23 May 17

Had a presentation at the Planning Forum on
24 October 2017.

Before the above, the Special Management
Committee passed the following decision
under point (c): _

“That it be recorded that Messrs Damnic
Construction went into partnership with Messrs
Riverview Development CC and jointly applied
for Extensions 32, 33 & 36 Kramersdorf,
Swakopmund, and their application was dealt
with by Councif on 27 April 2017 under item
11.1.36"

Omavala

06 Feb 18

Presented their proposal to the Planning Forum
on 06 March 2018.

As per email dated 12 March 2018, Omavala
confirmed that they have previously applied
as the Damnic Business Consortium.

4.2

e |t is therefore pointed out that Omavala previously applied as the Damnic
Business Consortium, which entity was interested in developing Extension 32, 33,
and 36 as residential townships. In this regard, also see 4.7 below.

Council’s

ision

de on 28

ne 2018 under item 1

On 14 November 2018, all land applications received since 2016 was
submitted and the Management Committee made a decision that the report
be circulated to the Councillors separately. All applications for university
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land were listed under point 3.2.6 of the submission, which is the same list
as recorded above.

Management Committee Decision made on 16 January 2020 under
item 7.1

Dr Captain Abisai and Dr lyaloo Konstantinus made a presentation
regarding a business concept for the Swakopmund University. The list
above of all applications received in the past was again quoted in the
submission. The Management Committee passed the following decision:

a)  That the presentation by Dr Captain Abisai and Dr lyaloo Konstantinus be
noted.

(b)  Thatthe matter be resubmitted to the Management Committee by the General
Manager: Engineering Services and Town Plarning, which submission must
indicate the available land pockets for instituticnal use.”

The applicants submitted a development proposal for Erf 3342,
Swakopmund, as Ndatara Survey (Pty) Ltd. As indicated above, the
allocation was awarded to Welwitchia Health Training Centre (Pty) Ltd on 27
May 2021.

With reference to point (b) above, please see the decision made under point
4.4 below.

Council’s Decision ma n2 2020 ritem 1.1

With reference to point (b) of the Management Committee decision made
on 16 January 2020 under item 7.1, the Engineering & Planning Services
Department submitted possible available erven zoned “institutional”
suitable for tertiary education facilities, and the following decision was
made on 28 May 2020 under item 11.1.13!

"(a)  ThatEdf 3342, Swakopmund, Extension 9, measuring 5.6 Hectares, be deemed
suitable for the development of a tertiary education facility for any institution
for which this size and focation might preve suitable. '

Erf Number Tovznship | Area (Ha)
| 3342 | Swakopmund Extension 9 5.6

(b)  That Erf 3342, Swakopmund, be sold immediately for the construction of a
tertiary education facility, provided that Council revokes its decision of 2014.

(¢)  That Council revoke its resolution of 02 September 2014 under ltern Numbern
11.1.11 and replaze it with this Council Dacision.

(d)  That Council call for development proposals for the fallowing Erven:

Erf 982, Matutura, Extension 4

Erf 1143, Matutura, Extension 6

Erf 2028, Matutura, Extension 12

Erf 2809, Matutura, Extension 13

Erf 7546, Swakoprrund, Extension 28
Erf 7643, Swakopmund, Extension 28

*® " o 8 ° @

{e)  That Council offer availabie vacant instituticnal erven to interested institutions
subjectto development agreements.”

Erf 982 and Erf 2809 are endowment erven belonging to the Government
of Namibia.



4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8
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The institutional erven listed under point (d) above are occupied by informal
households. Council's decision of 25 February 2021 under item 11.1.8(see
below):

“e) ~ That development proposals be called for the erven zoned “Institutional”
subject to the conditions prescribed in Council’s Property Policy.

(d)  That before every sale, the Engineering & Planning Services Department
confirms whether the erven are unoccupied by informal dwellings.”

Council’s Decision made on 31 August 2020 under item 11.1.17

With reference to point (b) of Council's decision made on 28 June 2018
under item 11.1.5, Engineering and Planning Services submitted the
subdivision of a suitable portion of land for the establishment of a University.
Council approved the subdivision on 31 August 2020 under item 11.1.17.

This decision was amended by Council on 01 July 2021 under item 11.1.2,
and Omavala was informed accordingly on 13 August 2021(Annexure
IIA").

On 16 July 2025, Council's Town Planning Section confirmed that the
layout for Desert View township has not yet been approved by the Board,
so the description of the property is not official/legal, and that the size is not
accurate as it is not yet surveyed.

The layout of the subject portion is attached as Annexure "F”.

Management Committee’s decision made on 11 February 2021 under
item 8.10

A proposal was received from Omavala to establish a university on what they
describe as Plot 40 and to enter into a PPP to develop Extensions 32, 33 &
36. The Management Committee made the following decision:

“a)  That the Management Committee invites Omavala Trading & Enterprises to
present their proposal for the. establishmert of a university

(b)  That in the meantime Council takes up discussions with Trans Namib to
alienata their fand in town.”

Special Management Committee Meeting of 31 March 2021 under
item 5.1

The same submission as under point 4.6 above was tabled to the Special
Management Committee of 31 March 2021.

It cannot be determined from the Minutes whether Omavala made a
presentation, but the following decision was made:

“That all the applications received so far be submitted to the next
Management Committee Meeting.

Council’s Decision made on 29 July 2021 under item 11.1.19

In line with the decision made on 31 March 2021 under item 5.1, the
complete list of applications quoted under point 4.1 above was again
submitted to Council, and the following decision was made on 29 July
2021 under item 11.1.19:
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“la)  That Council approves the merits of the agplication by Omavala Trading &
Enterprises to substantiate the amendment of Council’s decisions to call for
‘development proposals by allocating the Western half of the Martin Luther
Wedge to Omavala Trading and Enterprise in principle.

(b)  That the conditions of sale be re-submiitted for approval, along with the draft
site layout of the proposed university, to be provided to the General Manager:
Engineering & Planning Services Department.

(¢)  Thatthe application for appreval to commence with brickmaking be approved
and that the General Manager: Engineering and Planning Services submits a
site plan indicating tha preferred site of the brickmaking project for Council’s
approval, along with the lease conditions, '

(d)  That other applicants for tertiary land be submitted for consideration.”

With reference to point (d), no separate submission was made for the
applicants, as such was included in the subject submission.

As decided by Council on 25 February 2021, under item 11.1.8,
development proposals are being invited as and when land zoned
“institutional” becomes available from qualifying entities.

Below are the only applicants from the list that was submitted to the
Management Committee on various occasions who might still be interested
in acquiring land for the construction of a University:

Applicant Date Comments / Progress Report
Menrose Mr A R Kavari on 12 March 2018 confirmed that
1| Education Trust 04 Dec 15 they are still in the process of getting the
required documentation in order.

Hakuna Matata

Real Estate CC The applicant confirmed on 01 March 2018
2| On behalf of 2Aug 16 that they are still interested to pursue the

Global Business venture.

Development

Applied to purchase Erf 3342, Swakopmund.
Council on 29 June 2017, under item 11.1.9,
resolved to not approve the application.
Following the above decision Council invited

3| Platinum 17 Feb 17 development proposals for Erf 3342,
Swakopmund and the property was allocated to
Welwitchia Health Training Centre (Pty) Ltd on
27 May 2021. Platinum did not submit a
proposal.

In addition to the above list the following applicants applied for land for the
establishment of Universities:

4 Dr Captain Abisai and Dr lyaloo Konstantinus (Ndatara Survey (Pty) Ltd)
5  Mordecai Investment Group (Pty) Ltd (Mr Kennedy B Kauka)

5. Conclusion
Although the subject portion of land has notyet been surveyed, itis prudent
and pro-active to consider various possible issues for consideration relevant
to the alienation of a vast portion of land as recommended below.

After the matter was considered, the following was:-

RECOMMENDED:



(a)

(b)

(c)
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That Council takes note of the following:

(i)  that Omavala Trading Enterprises previously applied to acquire
Extensions 32, 33, and 36, Swakopmund, for residential township
development under the name of Damnic Business Consortium;

(i)  that the allocation approved by Council on 29 July 2021 under
item 11.1.19 to Omavala Trading Enterprises for the
establishment of a University is in principle and not yet finally
approved;

(iii) that the proposed portion of land is not yet formally subdivided,
therefore, the minimum requirement for a transaction of having a
Surveyor-General-approved diagram in place has not yet been
complied with; and

(iv) The approximate size of the land is 48 ha.

That although Omvala Trading Enterprises submitted a bulky document
during November 2022 (Annexure “C") in reply to Council’s letters
dated 13 August 2021 and 13 September 2022 (Annexures "A” and
“B"), due to the lapse of time (4 years), it is necessary to review the
application, keeping in mind that:

(i) The proposed portion of land measures approximately 48
hectares

(iij)  Council has a Ministerial directive not to allocate large portions of
land (dated 04 June 2015) to one entity, although the allocation
is supported in terms of Council’s Structure Plan 2020 - 2040

(iii) the possible requirement to subdivide the portion of land to allow
for specific land zonings as appurtenant uses, such as “general
residential” and “business” for financial management, whilst
maintaining that the subdivided portions may not be alienated or
speculated with

(iv) the requirement that the main purpose for the sale of land to
Omvala is for the construction of a University and that residential
township development will under no circumstances be allowed,
and a reverting clause be included in the agreement

(v) that 90% of the surface area of the portion of land be used for
University purposes, and the need and sustainability of such be
duly substantiated by Omavala to justify the allocation of a vast
portion of land measuring approximately 48 ha

(vi) that timelines be determined for the various phases of the
development, following the signing of the agreement, of which
the construction of the University is a priority

(vii) formal proof of financing based on the calculated development
costs (services, infrastructure, and construction of the University)
be provided as resolved by Council on 25 February 2021 under
item 11.1.5, point (e).

(viii) the establishment of the Investment Coordination Committee by
Council on 29 February 2024, and various requirements set by
Council to ensure due diligence and the responsible allocation of
land to ensure such is used for the purpose applied for, the
substantiated need for the venture, sustainability, and financial
ability of the entity.

That Omavala Trading Enterprises review, update, and resubmit their
substantiated motivation of November 2022 for assessment by the
Investment Coordination Committee:



(d)

(e)

(£

(g9)

(h)
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(i) A copy of the latest registration document of Omavala Trading
Enterprises as an entity, indicating the names of shareholders,
trustees, or members and their identifications (latest
amendments).

(ii)  Provide proof of financial ability to purchase the portion, install
services, and develop a university inmediately after transfer.

(iii)  Proof of experience and capacity in a similar project.

(iv) Proof of cooperation agreements with other tertiary educational
institutions.

(v) Complete the Investors' Proposal Checklist.

That Council’s valuer calculates a purchase price for the portion of land
being unserviced once estimates are available for the cost of
installation of services to Extension 32, Swakopmund (Kramersdorf).

That conditions of sale be based on Council’s Property Policy for the
sale of land to private education institutions where applicable, keeping
in mind that the entity is profit-generating (attached hereto to the letter
dated 13 August 2021, Annexure “A” and 13 September 2022,
Annexure “B").

That all statutory requirements be complied with at the cost of Omavala
Trading Enterprise, and the required N$100 000.00 be included in the
conditions once a purchase price is submitted for approval.

That Omavala Trading Enterprises accepts that no rights will accrue to
them from Council’s resolution unless all the relevant conditions of the
Property Policy are complied with in full and all the relevant authorities
have given the necessary permission, if applicable.

The portion of land is sold “voetstoots” or “as is” with the Council
giving no warranty or guarantee, whether express or implied, oral or.
tacit, as to the suitability of the layout or situation or subterranean
composition of the property or any improvements thereon.




11.1.4
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SWAKOP URANIUM: AMENDMENT TO COUNCIL RESOLUTION OF 29 APRIL

2025 UNDER ITEM 11.1.27
(C/M 2025/10/03 - 17/1/4/2/1/7)

Ordinary Management Committee Meeting of 11 September 2025,
Addendum 7.4 page 58 refers.

This item was submitted to the Management Committee for consideration:

1.

PURPOSE

The purpose of this submission is to seek Council’s approval to amend the
wording of Iltem 11.1.27 (e) of the Council resolution passed on 29 April
2025. The amendment is intended to clarify the commencement date of the
14-day period within which the addendum to the Deed of Sale, relating to
the extension granted to the twelve Swakop Uranium beneficiaries, must be
signed.

BACKGROUND

On 29 April 2025, under Iltem 11.1.27, Council resolved to grant a 60-day
extension to 12 Swakop Uranium beneficiaries to settle the purchase prices
of their erven, allocated under the first batch of sales in Extension 25,
Swakopmund, as follows:

(a)  That Council takes note of the progress regarding the sale of 63 erven
zoned “single residential” located in Extension 25, Swakopmund, to
qualifying employees of Swakop Uranium.

(b)  That Council takes note there are 12 purchasers from the first batch of
allocation who are in breach of the Deed of Sale and have not settled
the purchase price within the prescribed 120-day payment period,
despite being issued with notices to remedy the breach within 14
days.

(c)  That Council takes note that the breach mentioned in point (b) above
is caused by the dissatisfaction of the beneficiaries with the terms
given by the developer and Swakop Uranium, such as the high
development rate charged by the developer and the rigidity to
accommodate the preferences of the beneficiaries during
construction.

(d)  That Council approves a 60-day (2-months) extension period for the
following 12 beneficiaries to pay the erf prices:

ERF
ERF SIZE PURCHASE
NO. | SURNAME NAME NO. | METRES PRICE (N$
180.00/m?)
1 Johannes
Nelende Kandali 6872 | 400 NAD 72 000.00
2 Julius
Haiyaka Ndemweefa | 6884 | 400 NAD 72 000.00
3 Van Jeffrey
Rooyen Nathan 4889 | 423 NAD 76 140.00
4 Nelson
Tsaraeb Nesley 6893 | 433 NAD 77 940.00
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5 Sheetheni | Festus 6896 | 400 NAD 72 000.00
6 Ngolo Efraim 6898 | 400 ‘NAD 72 000.00
7 Hoabeb Hotago 6902 | 400 NAD 72 000.00
8 Mbangula | Petrus 6903 | 400 NAD 72 000.00
9 Matheus Edward 6904 | 480 NAD 86 400.00
10 | Johannes | Festus 6906 | 400 NAD 72 000.00
11 | Johr Albert Eric 6880 | 400 NAD 72 000.00
12 Patrick NAD 72 000.00
IGonteb Kenneth 6909 | 400

(e)  That the purchaser in (d) above be granted a period of fourteen (14)
days from the date of the Council meeting to sign an addendum to the
signed Deed of Sale, which shall extend the payment period,
commencing on the date of execution by the last signing party.

(f) That the extension granted in point (d) above not be used as a
precedent for future breaches of conditions of allocation.

@)} et venthvent vl el
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(i} 1 Gesmsmiiiiae sudiims i as A
() Az it ain i vesisaenta

(k)  That all other conditions of sale as determined at the initial allocation
remain enforceable.”

On 9 May 2025, an execution letter (Annexure "A") was issued to the 12
beneficiaries, inviting them to sign the addendum to the Deed of Sale in
order to formalize the extension of the payment period. However, the letter
incorrectly stated that the 14-day period for signing the addendum would
commence from the date of the notice (9 May 2025), rather than from the
date of the Council resolution (29 April 2025), as per the Council's directive.

This discrepancy was brought to the attention of the Administration by the
appointed conveyancing attorneys, Kinglaw Associates, in their
correspondence dated 14 July 2025 (Annexure "C").

DISCUSSION

Following the issuance of the execution letter on 9@ May 2025, the twelve
Swakop Uranium beneficiaries signed the addendum to the Deed of Sale
within the 14 days stated in the letter. While the Council resolution of 29
April 2025 stipulated that the 14-day period for signing the addendum
would commence from the date of the Council meeting, the execution letter
inadvertently referenced the date of the notice (9 May 2025) as the start of
this period. Consequently, the signed addenda technically do not align with
the resolution as originally worded.

However, the beneficiaries acted in good faith and complied fully with the
instructions provided in the official correspondence. Amending the Council
resolution to reflect the 14 days as commencing from the date of issuance
of the execution letter, rather than the date of the Council meeting, would
therefore be a practical and administratively sound solution. This
amendment would validate the process already undertaken, avoid
unnecessary nullification of the agreements, and prevent delays or
disruption to the beneficiaries concerned.
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4. PROPOSAL

Itis therefore proposed that the wording of Item 11.1.27 (e) be amended to
reflect that the 14-day period for signing the addendum shall commence
from the date of issuance of the execution letter (9 May 2025), rather than
from the date of the Council meeting, rather than nullifying all the
agreements and starting over the entire process again.

After the matter was considered, the following was:-
RECOMMENDED:

That Item 11.1.27 (e) of the Council meeting held on 29 April 2025 be
amended from:

(e) Thatthe purchaserin (d) above be granted 14 (fourteen) days from the
date of the Council meeting to sign an addendum to the signed Deed
of Sale, which shall extend the payment period, commencing on the
date of execution by the last signing party.
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ANNEXURE A
Pumulo Musialike
From: Aina S Nduwwund:
Sant: 15 July 2025 1131 AM
Te Purmuic Mys:aike
Sabyect: PW Extension of payment panod towards the purchase price of Erf 6998
Swakopmund

Aing § Nduuvundi | Human Sattiement Clerk | Corporate Services & Human Capatal | +264 58 4104134

Subject- RE: Extenson of payment period towards the purchase price of Erf 6898, Swakopmund
Desar Mr Ngolo

The 50 days will start from the date of the last party signing (i.e. the data the CEQ signs). We will
nform you in & formgl letter as well.

Ragards,
Aina S Nduuvundi
Human Settlement Clerk
Tel +264 64 410 6234 Emal  ANduuvvundi@swkmun.com.na
Acdress cnr Rakotoka Street & Daniet Kamho Avenue  OWAKOPMIL
Swakopmund, Erongo
_——""’"ﬁ

www.swiamunc

From: eframn ngolo <gframngoio@emad com>

Sant: 09 May 2025 11.52 AM

To: Aina 5. Neuuvundi <ANduwvyndiZsadimun com na>

O wiko@s Ndekanghols <pndeigaghgls @vwhmun com na>

Subject: e Extznsion of payment period 1owards the perchase prce of Erf 6898, Swakopmund

Means that the 60days extension, will apply from the day | will Signed

On Fri, 09 May 2025, 11:41 efraim ngoio, <eframngolo@gmail.com> wrote:

I got the amail, thank you
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On Fri, 08 May 2025, 11:11 &ina 5. Nduuvundi, <ANduuvundi@swkmun.cam.ng> wrote:

Good marning, Mr Ngela

Pleaaa find the attached latter for your attention. We kindly request that you take nate of the dates
mentionad, and we would appreciate it if you coutd confirm receipt of this amail.

Thank you in advance.

Regards,
Aina 5. Nduuwvundi A
Human Settlement Clerk
Tol: +264 64 410 4234 Email:  AMduuvundi@swikrnun.com.na B
Address: chr Rakotoka Street & Daniel Kamha Avenue SWAKO PN
Swakopmund, Erango

P

W swignun@swiemun

www.ewhkmun

Disclaimer
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SWAKOPMUND

Ref. k&893

Enquinias Nikodas Noekonghola

Efraim Ngolo
PO Bax 5@
Swakapmurd
13001
efraimpgoloBgmai.com

Dear £fra:m Mgualo

SWAKOP URANIUM: mummmmmmmmm
THE PURCHASE PRICE OF 5898, EXTENSION 25, SWAKOPMUND

We cater 1o the above subjext matter

This commurigue serves to snform you ihal 4 submasan was tabled o Councd srd at s
meeting hald on 29 Ageil 2023 resalved undar fem 11 1 27 a5 follows

"a) Mn—ﬂﬁlﬂdhﬂ--—“hﬂdﬂ“u—l
“Single Residentisl” focated in Extension 25, Swakopmund, to qualifying
employeaes of Swakop Uraniurs.

(1] MM-M*MM_“#_‘-M“‘
m*mhhﬂdhmdd“ﬂlﬂﬂﬂﬁ

purchase price within the prescribed 120-day payment pericd, despite baing
Hﬂ*h_ﬂﬁhm*“m

(] Mwﬁﬂhhmwhpﬂm*h“ﬂ
hﬁwdhmﬂﬁh—ﬁ-hﬁm
ﬂmm-ﬁ-h*m.nm-ll’m
mﬂmumumdmm
during construction.

()] Mc—dw.ﬂ-ﬁynﬂuﬂ}-ﬁ-ﬁ-nﬂhﬁﬂ-ﬂﬂ
beneficiaries to pay the erf pricas:
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(o} Mh—“hﬂlhh#&-ﬁ.ﬂﬂﬁphﬁhd
h“*h#n“hﬁ““d&“ﬂ
ﬂnw#muua—dmuuu

Mhﬂpﬂhpﬂ(ﬂ“ﬂh.ﬂn.#h
futare hreaches of conditices of allacation.

-
.
-

ma.-_n—u-n-m.umm-—h
enforcasble.”

2e2gE

Plaase take mote of the Counail resolutian raferanced above. In accordance with paut (el
you are hereby mvied 10 SGn an Addendum to the Deed of Sale dunng the penod from
14 May 2025 "o 05 Jume 23S iy 2 achisad that fadyura 20 sign the Addendum wdhn
thes timeframs wll st o the cancellanon of the transachon. 35 stpulated » po™ (ot
the resoiubon

Far any furthar engunes. please do not hesate 0 santact Ve Nikotas Ndawonghola
AndadkongholsBsekmun com na | 0644104232

Jours Epuhd ity

u};&\hf{\
Kruger

MANAGER: PROPERTIES AND HOUSING
fagm

Cr [Kinghaw Assocawesi
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ANNEXURE C

Wa taks nota and will procesd accorgingty.
Xand Regards
HENDRIAAN VISSER
DIRECTOR

GO AESCIATES HCORPORATED

e e B b jaf et
LEGAL PRAC TITIONERS FAALOPMLND LS SRy PEOHOEK
CORvEVARCESRY wOTARES rhais Adtrn 78 Smeny aewesc e Jad e [uwThey wevim 35 & T Tarteepeey Slegh
ESTATE PRACTITOMERS B 3oe 43 Feemoyerarl 122 Trees e Samvels Avmoen 2 Bost Vogate Ssere &
e fel slma G4 WMEC T A0 Bea 92 Puvian Bay i N T RO

Tas «204 40 AT Ty =R s FIGS T <25 23 WD I
Cytvar Criome At ﬁ#mw-lw-ﬁww’ﬁmﬂ emad paryes. ater

oo ad Aata Hew Dt sczyaat Setads ) Tee w1 e ﬁwoﬂbnﬂm-uﬂahmmﬁ-
ﬂl“ﬁmmm-wﬂdwﬁmmﬂﬂ-w“-ﬁ

CHRCLMMESR e st B0 ey TPy f T s s Ot Ptene evd @ erehat Seh T s by e sesbusameil St
e, Sncmnes tultuir ¥ ey o BE el sw w2y S CEs 8 Tl SETSaas # i et T s € v Swake Gl P e

rrewtumey @l pemmrariy Sea Ty AT S 8y TE o rewas Pwencd

Sent: Monday, 14 July 2025 11.54 am

To: Hendriaan Visser <tendraanv@kinglaw.com.na>
ccmnmmm;m;wwxmw
mcwm.umwwmb

Subject: RE: TRANSFER OF ERF NO. 5898 SWAXOPMUND. EXTENSION NO 25 MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF
SWAKOPNUND /f £ MGOLO

Good moming Ms Vissed.

We acknowledgs The oversight from our pant MMWMMW“AMMN
sate of irndATetion” TO Sign the sddendum tnmmﬁm.mﬂtmmtmulmmw e (8}
pccorgngly.

From:

(e} MﬁlWh(ﬂthWW(ﬂlﬁthﬁhdh Council
Miuwﬁumwuwmummmmmm
mmummumwwu“m.

Ya:

(e mumnmma,—umunmmum of invitstion to sign
u“hﬁdﬂd“dﬂ.““mﬂﬂhm”ﬂm
om the date of sxecution by the last signing party.

In tha meantime, tm.um,mmmwmnmmm accordingly.

Ginel rega s
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Nikolas Ndeikonghola i
Admin Officer: Human Settlement ﬁ
Tab <264 64 410 4232 Emaik angeikonghola@swkmun.com.na

Col: +264 811461 5738  tddress onr Rakotoka Street & Daniel Kamho Avenue SWAKOPNN
Swakopmund, Erongo

e T
e

swkmun@swkrmun.e
wWww.swkmun.e

From: Handriaan Visser <Hendriganvi@kinglaw.cam ng>
Seqt: 14 July 2025 10:47 AM

Ce: lanine K <faninec@kinglaw.com.nas; Aina 5. Nduwvendi <ANduuyyndi@ swkmun,com na>; Barbara Aamos
viegas <bramosviegas @awkmun com ng>

Subject: TRANSFER OF ERF NO 6398 SWAKOPMUND, EXTENSION NO 25: MUNICIPAL COUNCIL DF SWAKOPMUND
B RGOLD

Doar SetMadarn,

With relarence to the above matter, kindly be infarmed that upon parusal of your insiructinns dated 16 June
2025 (raceived on 19 Juna 2025), we notad that the Addendum as well as Coungil's Resolution dated 29 Agril
20:25 provided far the Addendum to be signed wathin 14 (Fourtean)] days of the date of 1he said Councit
Rasolution.

Erom the information received, the Councit Resalution is dated 29 Aprk 2025, and the Addandurn was signed
am 2 Juna 2025 by the Purchaser. No date indicated whers Council signod the Addondum. Accordingly, the
Addendum was not signed within the 14 days providad for,

Please advise accordingly.

Kind Regards.

HENDRIAAN VISSER
OIRECTOR

7

INGL AW

KIRGHORN ASEOTIATEY MEOAPORATEDR

Falgtatration Mo 201976034 =S PSS e = —— e =L
LEGAL #HAC TITIOMERS SWAXDPWLND WALVIE BAY WINDIOTK
1

OINVEYSHZERS. HOTARIES b Aftria 25 Timu Mpeiyams Sud Ll 2 The landens Linka 1B A 2H Teapwegee vénge

RATATR FRALCTITNINERE B Bae V55 | 122 Fraws B Sor b teeerad 6 Futew? Mol Areres d
bt L eyt S b Lo iniiy o lsmima T SR B A Bzm 1078 Webea Doy Asius Masrare Sl 9 retioss,
Fan =204 6 {72109 T v B4 JRART% RIS LN RS RS

Cyhmr Crirma Alie1: T orowst you agomst lowm coused by Cyber naudalers whio Fhercep, s-mall cummuricalon Betwensn pames. shar
sottieal Mals ke sank anctunl detaile aod then Soewang [ altneed el i P rsided recgomre. we wles pou fe Inphocicaly vecdy
crveal dara and taewing dalieh el (he paosrds o ie i W dializ with pue mallys befers aciing Tharean
VST MER TS aens i) 4%y SLkIeruEFial areia Ttey cordan atesied o SRARA moUnaon asz i e sl 3R IS 1ad by O auzikeraninl sarad

Inent, LHREAALTY AN bR T O THA ST R SATAR A0 A0y SEACYTwT{A] hera 6 S5l P BT (7R IREBAS LK 4TI W MITS Dm0 (30 S
VresBIcuEl 1% PATRERENR 3EAE VY DTtk 35 gEy A (00T Ueen)
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PROPOSED SALE OF 3 GENERAL RESIDENTIAL 2 ERVEN, ERF 10827, ERF
10828 & ERF 10829 LOCATED IN EXTENSION 42, SWAKOPMUND, TO
SHACK DWELLERS FEDERATION OF NAMIBIA (SDFN)

(C/M 2025/10/03. - 15/2/1/4)

Ordinary Management Committee Meeting of 11 September 2025,
Addendum 7.6 page 110 refers.

This item was submitted to the Management Committee for consideration:

1.

PURPOSE

This submission requests Council's approval for the allocation of three (3)
General Residential 2 erven 10827, 10828, & 10829, Extension 42,
Swakopmund, to Shack Dwellers Federation of Namibia (SDFN). A map is
attached as Annexure “A".

BACKGROUN

The SDFN, supported by the Namibia Housing Action Group (NHAG), has a
long-standing and proven track record of successfully implementing
community-driven housing projects. They usually acquire unimproved land
and undertake the installation of services themselves, and facilitate the
construction of low-cost houses for their members.

Council resolved at its meeting held on 29 September 2011, under item
11.1.14 approved the allocation of erven 3594 and 3598, Extension 26 to
SDEN on condition that they attend to all internal subdivisions and services
of the block erven at their own cost. The houses were completed and
handed over to beneficiaries in 2018.

(h)  Thaterven 3594 and 3598 be allocated to Shack Dwellers Federation
and that they be informed that the erven allocated to them should be
subdivided to ensure that individuals can obtain full title to their
properties,

() That it be noted that the full development cost of N§1.35/m? be
implemented.”

The purchase price was determined at the Council meeting that was held
on 27 March 2013 under item 11.1.4 as follows:

(b)  That erven 3594 and 3598, Mondesa be sold to the Shack Dwellers
Federation of Namibia at 12% of the development cost, of
N361.35/m?- 129 = N$7.36/m? to make the erven more affordable
(the 2 blocks will therefore cost N§7.36 x 5684m? = Ni541 845.61 and
N$7.36 x 5631m? = N$41 444.16 raspectively).

Following this successful endeavour by the SDFN, Council additionally
allocated erven 3595 and 3597 Mondesa on 29 August 2019 under item
11.1.21, to SDFN. The allocation was done on the same principle for the
benefit of low-income residents in Swakopmund, and the project was
completed and handed over to the beneficiaries on 17 May 2022
(Annexure “C").
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(a) That Erven 3595 and 3597, Extension 8, Mondesa, be sold to the
Shack Dwellers Federation of Namibia at the cost of N$37 916.11 and
N$37 386.00, respectively.

(b)  That the Shack Dwellers Federation of Namibia attends to all internal
subdivisions and services of block Erven 3595 and 3597 Extension 8,
Mondesa, at their own cost.

(c) That the Shack Dwellers Federation of Namibia ensures that every
individual erf to be created, be provided with a separate water and
electricity meter, and be transferred into the name of the owner.

On 24 November 2022, under item 11.1.6, Council allocated another
piece of land, erf 3596, which was subdivided into 18 erven. They have
successfully serviced and are currently busy with the construction of homes.
Council commends Shack Dwellers Federation of Namibia for using their
own resources to extend services to the individual erven, and through that
assisting many ultra-low-income residents to acquire land ownership at a
cost-effective price.

(a) That point (f) of Council’s resolution passed on 22 February 2018
under item 11.1.10 be amended to sell Erf 3596, Mondesa (6 078m?)
to Shack Dwellers Federation of Namibia.

(b) That a portion of land be identified to be allocated to the Build
Together Housing Program.

(c)  That upon approval by Council, Ministerial approval be obtained to
proceed with the sale of Erf 3596, Mondesa, Extension 8 (6 078m?) to
Shack Dwellers Federation of Namibia.

(d) That Erf 3596, Mondesa, be sold at the cost of N$7.36 x 6 078m* =
N$44 734.08 m?.

DISCUSSION

SDFN has consistently demonstrated its effectiveness through steady
progress on previously allocated erven, showcasing a strong commitment
to improving the living conditions of low-income families.

On 18 March 2022, SDFN, in collaboration with NHAG, submitted an
application (Annexure “B”") requesting the allocation of additional land in
Swakopmund. The objective of this application is to support the
continuation of SDFN housing development initiatives for its members.
There are three vacant erven 10827,10828, and 10829 zoned as General
Residential 2, located in Extension 42, Swakopmund. This extension is
currently being serviced. It is proposed that these erven be allocated to the
SDFN in principle, to be purchased at development cost. The SDFN will be
responsible for subdividing and servicing the allocated erven at its own
cost.

The development cost will be determined once the services have been
installed. The sale of the erven will be subject to several conditions,
including: )

e SDFN’s commitment to undertake bulk servicing of the erven to be
created. The design and layout of the proposed water and sewerage
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infrastructure is being submitted to the Engineering and Planning
Services Department for approval before construction.

o The application for Need and Desirability and the replanning application
from the Ministry of Urban and Rural Development, for Erven 10827,
10828 & 10829, Extension 42, Swakopmund are to be facilitated through
the Engineering and Planning Services Department, at SDFN'’s cost.

e The allocation will be subject to Ministerial consent for the sale, in
accordance with Section 30(1)(t) of the Local Authorities Act, Act 23 of
1992, as amended, and the purchase price based on the developmental
cost.

The property details are as follows:

No Erf No Extension | Size (m?) Zone
1s 10827 42 1884 General Residential 2
2. 10828 42 2382 General Residential 2
3. 10829 42 2574 General Residential 2
Total 6830

Furthermore, the sale of erven will be subject to conditions to ensure proper
development and alignment with municipal standards. SDFN will be
responsible for costs and execution of all necessary bulk and internal
services, including water, sewerage, electricity, and internal streets.

SDFN will submit a list of beneficiaries for approval by Council. Regular
progress reports on servicing and construction must be submitted to
Council to ensure transparency and accountability.

4. PROPOSAL

Itis proposed that Council grant approval in principle for the allocation and
eventual sale of Erven 10827, 10828, and 10829, Extension 42,
Swakopmund, to the beneficiaries for the purpose of developing affordable
housing for low-income residents. SDFN, in partnership with NHAG, has a
successful track record in servicing allocated land and facilitating the
construction of cost-effective housing.

In line with previous allocations, it is proposed that the sale price be
determined based on the actual development cost of the land once
servicing is completed. SDFN will be responsible for the subdivision of the
block erven, bulk and internal servicing, and ensuring that all individual
erven created are equipped with separate water and electricity meters and
transferred into the names of beneficiaries.

To ensure compliance and oversight, SDFN will be required to submit
detailed servicing and infrastructure layout plans to the Engineering and
Planning Services Department for approval before any construction, and to
submit periodic progress reports to Council throughout the development
process.

After the matter was considered, the following was:-
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RECOMMENDED:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

That Council takes note of the successful track record and ongoing
progress of the Shack Dwellers Federation of Namibia and Namibia
Housing Action Group in providing affordable housing in
Swakopmund.

That Council approves in principle the sale of three (3) General
Residential 2 erven in Extension 42, Swakopmund, to the beneficiaries
as per the list to be submitted by Shack Dwellers Federation of Namibia

. and Namibia Housing Action Group as follows:

b Purchase Price
No | ErfNo | Extension o Zone at Development
(m?)
Cost
General To be
1. | 10827 | 42 1884 | posidential2 | determined
General To be
2. | 10828 42 2382 | pesidential 2 determined
» General To be
3. | 10829 42 2574 | Residential 2 determined
Total 6830

That the purchase price be the development cost of servicing Extension
42, Swakopmund.

That the erven be allocated directly to beneficiaries, who must be first-
time homeowners, in accordance with the list to be submitted by the
Shack Dwellers Federation of Namibia.

That the necessary Need and Desirability and planning applications for
the proposed development be submitted to the Ministry of Urban and
Rural Development by Shack Dwellers Federation of Namibia, through
the Engineering and Planning Services Department, and at the cost of
Shack Dwellers Federation of Namibia.

That before application for ministerial approval in terms of Section
30(1)(t) of the Local Authorities Act, Act 23 of 1992 (as amended), the
sale be advertised in terms of Section 63 (2) of the Local Authorities
Act, Act 23 of 1992 (as amended) at the cost of Shack Dwellers
Federation of Namibia. '

That the layout and design of the water and sewerage infrastructure be
submitted to the Engineering and Planning Services Department for
approval before construction.
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ANNEXURE B

AT DUWELLBINS FEDERATION OF NAMERLA [SDFV) AMD
AAMLL 0L G MTIIIN SROUP eMAG)
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S=prOwen the Sers of Boe People o Mamnduo

18 March 2022
Chief Frecumive Officer

1 W

' : e |

S pkogwwd
Desr Mr. Benjsmam

Re: Appication for land

1 hanve regacsted % 3pply 3 Council for Land for the saving groups m Swakopemmd a5 follows:
1 e would hhe to apply for the Lnd next to the land that was allocsted, 3ad houses comnpleted

rocently .
2 We have 679 land mambery i Swakoyp § and we will sppeeciate if Council when plansmg
Tand also mkes i acoosnt the applicanon.
Since 1998 Swakopaund Muaicipalty allocated 98 plots 2ad we have constructed fos-cost Bouses on
all ploes. We humbiy raquest Councl 1o assist our members with Liad alfocation, the Lnd will be ssed
flor housizg construcuon. We fusther thank Council for the suppor w the foderatwmn and we plodged our

amtmused Cooperation

We would spprocate ot +f thrs mafter received youar ghest
sttenion yours truly in development

(Jﬁ -«
Hetmrieh Smmwshila
NHAG Co-Directer

hanhsg < iway.m
aR11473839

VT T W D B wmrmeii B NaTarmoe Aewet | tstemr W Srmmua Weawe on W Macwes sy larrs W O
Aate Me Rewew Swam
En e Cnaiban 46 Fouvas oo Co-Jmay Sahh O Acsp Gty Oy Sas)
SN Ageu ipupmy Mipagg Getgre oW Loty o e Sgmptc 3 Aigmtey
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ANNEXURE C
FHACK DWELLERS FEDERATION OF NAMBIA {SINN) AND
PD BOX 21010
WAINDHOEK
NAMIBIA
Tel 239398 fax 239397
Impeoving the lives of Poor People in Nomibia
31 May 2022
Chuel Executive Otficer
Swakopmund Municipality
Swakopmund
Dear Myr. Renjamin

Re: Invitation ta attead the officisl handover ceremony of 32 houses

Honourshle Emstus Untoni, Minister of Urban and Rural Development will officiate the handover of 32
houses constructed by the Shack Dwellers Federatron of Narmibia,

I have been requested by the Shack Dwellers Federation of Namibia at Swakopmund to invite Mayor,
Hosoursble Town Councillors, CEQ and Stafl to attend the handover ceremony of 32 houses on the 17%%
May 2022 at 16600, Of the 32 houses, one house belongs 1o a Standard bank non-clencal staff af the
Swakopmund branch. This will be the finit house for a Standard bank staff for their non-clencal staff
members, Standard bank will launch the housing scheme for non-clerical employees.

16 houses are funded through the Ministry's ansusl funding 2020/2021, bouses “construction ceuld
pat sturt due 1o the dolny in building plans approval transfer of title deeds, 15 bonses fundoed through
SDFN revalving fund and ooe staff member funded by Standard hank themselves.

We are furthier requesting Her Worshap the Mayor 1o do the welcoming remarks.

We would appreciate if this matter receaved your highest attention

Yours triely in development

At

Heinrich Amuwhila
NHAG Co-Director
Hlvimrich_amushila(a gmail com
B811473839
MHAG Tnassas  Abr Daves Sulve o1 - mnr; i, Hom bix. Ade Hirnta- Wiy Oruy iats Lia Naortw
£ Oftcs T Mo Haosich Anuanaa (Co Liciy NHAG). D Ao Mol (Dunca NHA)

EDEN Pavon  Masame Mo Sanged. Fral Ladly of the Reputils of
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11.1.6 TION ET. AND PURCHASE ERVEN 7104 & 7105, EXTENSION
AKOPM : MERVIN DENNIS DOMESTIC SOLUTION CC
(C/M 2025/10/03 - E 7104, E 7105, E 7979, E 7980)
Ordinary Management Committee Meeting of 11 September 2025,
Addendum 7.7 page 116 refers.
A. This item was submitted to the Management Committee for consideration:

1.

INTRODUCTION

This submission seeks Council's approval to allow Mervin Dennis Domestic
Solution CC (hereafter referred to as MDDS) to purchase Erven 7104 and
7105, Extension 26, Swakopmund (which is currently leased by him) to
continue operating his gas refilling business (hereafter referred to as
"E7104" and "E7105" respectively); instead of the two business erven, Erven
7979 and 7980 located in Extension 29, Swakopmund that were previously
allocated by Council (hereafter referred to as "E7979" and "“E7980"
respectively).

Attachments:
Annexure “A” | : | A letter dated 23 October 2024 was received from
Mervin Dennis, Domestic Solution CC.
Annexure “B” | : | Submission to the Management Committee of 15 April
2021 serves as a complete background.
Annexure “C” | : | Council’s decision passed on 29 April 2021 under 11.1.4.

For ease of reference and serving as an overview, the map below indicates
the location of E7104 E7105 (being leased and on which the business is
established) and E7979 and E7980 (which Council approved for sale to
MDDS and which are occupied by informal households:




2.1

2.2
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BACKGROUND
On 24 September 2009, under item 11.1.10, Council approved the lease

of a portion of land to MDDS CC, who has since been operating a gas
refilling business on E7104 and E7105.

Quoted from the lease agreement:
WHEREAS

The LESSOR is the owner of Erf 7105 Swakopmund, Extension 26 and Erf 7104 Swakopmund,
Extension 26, onto which the business parlially encroaches and measuring +300m?in extent(as

indicaled on Ihe atlached plan and marked Annexure “A").

In a submission to the Management Committee of 11 May 2017, the
Engineering & Planning Services Department provided comments on
whether a gas refilling business is a hazardous or noxious industry, and it was
confirmed that such a business can be allowed in a residential area in terms
of the Environmental Management Act, 2007, but it is a listed activity under
9.5:

"Construction of filling stations or any other facility for the underground and
aboveground storage of dangerous goods, including petrol, diesel, liquid,
petroleum gas and paraffin.”

According to the comments received per memo dated 3 March 2017 from
the General Manager: Engineering & Planning Services, the gas company
has kicked in its roots with an established clientele base, and relocation
would have devastating effects. It was thus proposed not to relocate the
business to an alternative site. It was further proposed to consolidate Erven
7101, 7102, and 7104 and rezone it to “Local Business" for MDDS to
continue selling gas, and as a result will save his business from the negative
impact relocation will have.

The General Manager: Engineering & Planning Services further motivated
his opinion to not relocate MDDS because the gas operation business is
currently (since 2011) located in proximity to residents, which is practical
since the clientele resides in the surrounding areas, and to date, no
complaints have been received. Most existing petrol service stations in
residential areas, with the assistance of Afrox, also supply gas by refilling
bottles on a smaller scale. MDDS is also bound by the safety regulations of
Afrox.

The gas refilling business in the informal settlement area provides an
essential service that is growing in terms of economic and social
development.

In response to an application by MDDS to expand the current lease area,
Council made the following decision on 31 May 2017 under item 11.1.11.

“la) That the application of Messrs Mervin Dennis Domestic Solution CC
to expand the current lease area of 300m?2to 1 200m? be noted.

(b) That Messrs Mervin Dennis Domestic Solution CC identifies an

"

alternative erf zoned for “Business”.
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2.4
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The lease period for E7104 and E7105 expired on 30 June 2020. During
the lease period, MDDS expanded its operations and contributed positively
to the community by providing training, employment opportunities, and
promoting gas safety awareness.

On 25 January 2018, Council approved to sell E7979 and E7980 to MDDS
to construct a gas refilling business/depot, under item 11.1.2 as follows:

“a) That the application of Messrs Mervin Dennis Domestic Solution CC
to purchase Erf 7979, measuring 716m?, and 7980, measuring 716m?
Extension 29, DRC (combined size is 1432m?) to construct its gas
refilling business / depot be approved, in principle.

(b) That upon finalisation of the installation of services valuations be
obtained in terms of Council’s Property Policy based on the zoning of
“General Business” in order to determine a purchase price.

(c) That Messrs Mervin Dennis Domestic Solution CC submits the
Environmental Impact Assessment Certificate to the General
Manager: Engineering Services before the construction of the gas
depot.

(d) That the conditions of sale be approved simultaneously when
approving the purchase price.

(e) That Messrs Mervin Dennis Domestic Solution CC be informed that
the extent/level of the operation be similar to the current.

(f)  That the lease period of Messrs Mervin Dennis Domestic Solution CC
forthe current lease site (Erven 7104 and 7105) be extended until such
time that the sale of Erven 7979 and 7980 is finalized.

(g) That Council be indemnified of all the risks associated with the
business.

(h) That this application be regarded as special due to the essential service
rendered to the community and that no applications for business land
in the DRC be considered until the statutory processes are finalised.”

MDDS accepted the offer to purchase E7979 and E7980 and paid a deposit
in the amount of N$10 000.00 for each one of the two business erven
towards advertising, and compilation of the agreement, as well as other
costs that may arise from the transaction.

On 29 April 2021, under item 11.1.4, point (j), Council approved the lease
period to continue until ownership of E7979 and E7980 is transferred in the
name of MDDS.

Quoted from the lease agreement:

2.  DURATION

2.1 Inespeclive of the date of signing of this agreement (he parties agree that the lease
shall be deemed to have commenced on 1 November 2018 and shall continue for a
period of 6 months wilh lapsing date 30 April 2019 or unlil the sale of Erven 7979
and 7980, Exlension 29, Swakopmund is finalised.
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In order not to repeat the information contained in the submission which
was served at the Management Committee on 15 April 2021, the item is
attached as Annexure “B” as comprehensive background information on
the application.

On 30 April 2024, under item 11.1.10, point (a), Council approved the
relocation of 18 residents on E7979 and E7980, and under point (e) that
E7105 be allocated to a Build Together beneficiary once MDDS vacates the
orf and relocates the business operations to E7979 and E7980.

In light of the above resolutions, even though Council approved the
allocation and sale of E7979 and E7980 as an alternative for the gas refilling
business, these erven are still occupied and unavailable for relocation and
occupation by MDDS and might not be vacated in the near future.

The intended sale of E7979 and E7980 was published as required in terms
of the Local Authorities Act, Act 23 of 1992, as amended, and no objections
were received. The Minister of Urban and Rural Development approved the
proposed sale on 20 October 2020. The deed of sale agreement could not
be signed between MDDS and Council for the sale of E7979 and E7980, as
the two business erven are still occupied by informal households.

Current Situation

On 23 October 2024 an application (Annexure “"A") was received from
MDDS proposing to remain located on the lease area, i.e E7104 and E7105
(combined size is 800m?) and in addition to be allocated Erven 7101 and
7102, since the process of transfer is being delayed by the occupants of erf
7979 and 7980 who do not want to relocate.

The erven are adjacent to his existing business location, and it will also be
an advantage for the customers who are in the same area.

E7979 and E7980, which were allocated to MDDS (combined size is 1,432
m?), are still occupied by residents, and MDDS confirmed that it does not
interfere with the process of relocating the current occupants.

Regarding Erven 7101 and 7102 were allocated to Build Together
beneficiaries in line from the Master Waiting List in terms of the two Council
resolutions quoted below, and are therefore not available:



4.1
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3.2.1 Council's resolution of 30 April 2024 under item 11.1.10, point (d):

“(d) That Erf 7101, Ext. 26, Swakopmund be allocated to Ms Prieska Karipo
instead of Erf 7105 currently being occupied by Messrs Mervin Dennis
Domestic Solution CC.”

3.2.2 Council's resolution of 27 February 2025 under item 11.1.4, point
(a):

“la) That Council approves the allocation of Erf 7102, Swakopmund,
Extension 26 to Ms Maria Nghitoynwa.”

Therefore, MDDS can only be offered E7104 and E7105 to purchase.

Discussion

Occupation of Erven 7979 and 7980

Since the allocation of the business erven, E7979 and E7980 MDDS could
not relocated its operations.

Housing Section visited the site and confirmed the two business erven are
occupied by 18 residents who must be resettled before development can
proceed. It was proposed that the affected individuals be temporarily
relocated to Erven 10269 and 10308 in Extensions 40 and 41,
Swakopmund, which are zoned “general residential” (Council resolution of
30 April 2024 under item 11.1 10, point (a)). These arrangements were to
remain in place until the northern wedge area is prepared for permanent
resettlement.

However, the occupants residing on E7979 and E7980 have resisted
relocation. Forced relocation will have a negative impact on the reputation

of the business operations of MDDS.

Purchase Price for Erven 7979 and 7980 Extension 29, Swakopmund

The purchase price for the two erven zoned "general business”, E7979
(762m2) and E7980 (750m?), was approved by Council on 29 April 2021
under item 11.1.4 as 1 432m?2 x N$156.00/m? = N$223 392.00 + (15% VAT,
i.e, N$33 508.80) = N$256 200.80.

In terms of Council's Property Policy, the purchase price was determined as
being the cost for the installation of services + 25%, i.e, N$156/m? (upset
price).

The cost of installation of services to Extension 26, Swakopmund is
N$110.00 / m2. With the decision approving the purchase price for E7979
and E7980 by adding 25%, the cost will be N$137.50 /m? x 800m? =
N$110.000 for E7104 and E7105, measuring 400m? each.

Application _to Remain on Erven 7104 and 7105, Extension 26,
Swakopmund

As per Annexure “A”, MDDS applies to remain on the current lease area
and, in addition, acquire Erven 7101 and 7102. The allocation of the
additional two erven cannot be considered as these are allocated to Build
Together beneficiaries as stated under point 3.2 above.
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The combined surface area of Erven 7104 and 7105 is 800 m? and will be
sufficient to allow the business to maintain its operations and accommodate
future growth.

4.4, Suitability of Erf 7104 and Erf 7105 Ext 26, Swakopmund

E7104 is zoned “Local Business,” making it suitable for commercial
operations, while E7105 is zoned “Single Residential” and would require
rezoning to "Local Business” to align with the business need of establishing
a gas refilling depot.

4.5 Environmental Impact Study

The gas refilling business is established within a residential area, and in the
long run, this may pose environmental and health risks. The Environmental
Management Act, 2007, requires an environmental assessment for the
nature of this business (listed activity) on E7105.

Approval should be conditional on compliance with this requirement.

Therefore, it is proposed that MDDS undertake an updated Environmental
Impact Assessment to assess and highlight possible environmental and
social impacts, whether negative or positive.

5.  Proposal

To address the identified needs and challenges, the following is proposed:

That Mervin Dennis Domestic Solution CC be granted the opportunity to
purchase Erven 7104 and 7105 in Extension 26, Swakopmund, instead of
Erven 7979 and 7980 in Extension 29, Swakopmund, to secure the
continuity of their gas refilling operations and facilitate future growth.

The rezoning of Erf 7105 Ext 26, Swakopmund, from "Single Residential" to
"Local Business" be initiated to align the zoning with the business’s
operational requirements.

It is thus further proposed that compliance with the Environmental
Management Act, 2007, be enforced, requiring Mervin Dennis Domestic
CC to conduct an environmental assessment before the sale of E7105 is
finalized and that the lease period continues as contained in the current
lease agreement allowing uninterrupted operations on Erf 7104 and Erf
7105, Swakopmund, until the necessary rezoning and sale processes are
completed.

After the matter was considered, the following was:-
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RECOMMENDED:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

That Council approves the application of Mervin Dennis Domestic
Solution CC to remain on Erven 7104 and 7105 instead of relocating to
Erf 7979 and 7980.

That Council repeals its resolution of 25 January 2018, under item
11.1.2 requiring Mervin Dennis Domestic Solution CC to purchase Erf
7979 and Erf 7980 located in Extension 29, Swakopmund to relocate
and construct its gas refilling business/ depot and instead approve the
sale of Erven 7104 and 7105 located in Extension 26, Swakopmund to
Mervin Dennis Solution Domestic Solution CC, subject to the conditions
approved on 29 April 2021 under item 11.1.4 and at a purchase price
as follows:

(i)  The cost of installation of services to Extension 26, Swakopmund
isN$110.00/ m2 + 25%, the cost will be N$137.50/m? x 800m?
=N$110,000 for E7104 and E7105, measuring 400m? each;

(ii) That 15% VAT be applicable on the purchase price of Erf 7104,
Swakopmund, zoned “Local Business”; and

(iii) That Erf 7105, Swakopmund, be rezoned from “Single
Residential” to “Local Business”, and no betterment fee be
charged.

(iv) That the balance of the N$10 000.00 per erf paid for the statutory
process for Erven 7979 and 7980 be refunded, and Mervin Dennis
Domestic Solution CC be requested to pay a deposit of
N$10 000.00 for Erven 7104 and 7105 combined as per point (i)
of Council’s decision made on 29 April 2021 under item 11.1.4.

That Council repeals point (a) and point € of Council’s decision passed
on 30 April 2024 under item 11.1.10, where relevant to the transaction
of Mervin Dennis Domestic Solution CC.

That Mervin Dennis Domestic solution CC be responsible for the
appointment of a town planner and surveyor, and all related costs of
rezoning and consolidation of Erven 7104 and 7105, Extension 26,
Swakopmund, from Single Residential to “Local Business” to align the
zoning with the current business operations.

€That Messrs Mervin Dennis Domestic Solution CC appoints a
consultant to attend to the Environmental Impact Assessment in terms
of the Environmental Management Act, 7 of 2007, as amended, before
the sale of Erf 7105.

That the current lease period for Erven 7104 and 7105, Extension 26,
Swakopmund, be maintained as resolved under point (j) of Council’s
decision passed on 29 April 2021 under item 11.1.4.
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ANNEXURE “A”

imnpact
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23 October 2028

Municipality of Swkopmund
PO box 57
Swiopmund

Dear Sar\Madeen

RE New proposed area for Gas buseness

Wtk reference 10 your letier dased | 4 Ocaober 2024, ref No 14271/1_E 7979 & 7980 Referrmy 10 erf
7979 and T80 thar was aikocated to MD Domestc Solution T3 Impact Gas Depoi o 15 stilll occupied by
retidents and we wish not %o interfere m the process of relocatmy the Curment ocoupants

\kc.\lwrn-nr‘wm;ﬂmﬂmnaMmzﬁmhnaffmm;s_r_?{
I-oﬂwntnl‘smbhfu-:m.ﬂn.-tawmcnrﬂvm-cmhfolh-qm‘hﬂ. Ti0rend

e The sdentified three erf are close ® the exssting business location snd would be an advantage o uw

and our customers s

Kmdly please conssder our solution

Kund regards g

MP Domestic Soistion Tis Impact Gas Depot
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ANNEXURE "“B”

M/C ADDENDUM NO: 75
(15 April 2021)

DETERMINATION OF PURCHASE PRICE FOR ERVEN 7979 AND 7980,
EXTENSION 29, DRC FOR MESSRS MERVIN DENNIS DOMESTIC SOLUTION
CcC _{19.03.08.7979; 19.03.08.7980)

1. 1 UCTION

The purpose of this submission is to consider and determine the purchase price for
Eff 7979, and Eff 7980, Ext. 29, Swakopmund. Each erf is 716m? in extent, a
combined total of 1 432m?. The erven will be sold to Messrs Marvin Dennis Domestic
Solution CC, hereinafter refer to as MDS CC.

Business”. A map is attached as Annexure “A".
2. BACKGROUND

On 25 January 2018, Council approved to sell Erven 7979 and 7980, Ext 29,
Swakopmund to Mervin Dennis Domestic Solution CC to construct a gas refilling
business/depot, under item 11.1.2 as follows:

(a) That the appiication of Messrs Mervin Dennis Domestic Solution CC to purchase Erf
7979, measuring T16m? and 7980, measuring 716m? Extension 29, DRC (combined
size is 1 432m7) to construct its gas refilling business / depot be approved, in principle.

(b}  That upon finalisation of the instailation of services valuations be oblained in terms of
Councifs Properly Policy based on the zoning of “General Business” ji.oniet.(@
defermine a purchase price.

(c) That Messrs Mervin Dennis Domestic Solution CC submits the Environmental Impact
Assessment Cerlificale to the General Manager. Engineering Services prior (o the
construction of the gas depot.

(d That the conditions of sale be approved simufianeously when approving the purchase
price.

(e) That Messrs Mervin Dennis Domestic Solution CC be informed that the exient / level of
the operation be similar as cument.

(D  That the lease period of Messrs Mervin Dennis Domestic Solution CC for the curmrent
lease site (Erven 7104 and 7103) be extended untl such time that the sale of Erven
7979 and 7960 is finafized.

That Council be indemnified of all the risks associated with the business.

@

(h) That this application be regarded as special due to the essential service rendered to the
communily and that no applications for business land in the DRC be considered until
the statutory processes are finalised.

On 29 January 2018, the above resolution was communicated to the applicant
(Annexure “B™). Two follow-up letters were sent to the applicant on
11 May 2018 and10 August 2013, respectively, to confirm whether he still interested
in purchasing Erf 7979 and 7980, Ext 29, Swakopmund. Messrs MDC CC responded
positively on 19 September 2018 (Annexure “C"), that he intends in purchase the
two erven.
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3 S WITH MAS

...............

Nauonalhlassl-loumumm TheNatonaIMassl-kmsqumpdmlaibewen
serviced with Government funds and Council had to obtain permission to sell them.

4  PURCHASE PRICE

On 25 January 2021 the Engineering & Planning Sesvices Department provided the
cost for the installation of services for various extensions as NS 115.75/m2 _but
advised that a cost of NS120 00/m"® - N5125 00/m* be used as the actual combined

cost per square metre price.

On 25 February 2021, the purchase price for Erff 7979 and 7980 Extension 29,
Swakoptmndwasapplwedthowﬂasioluwsmdeflemﬂ_l,s:

Inle:mome\cistpeﬂyPoicyantpsetpncesde!ennnedasbmgﬂtecost
for the installation of services « at least 25%, being NS156/m*

The business showed growth over the years for the reason they require 1432 m®, but
Messrs MDC CC is a relatively small business providing an essential seqvice in the
area.
The purchase price for Exf 7979 and 7980 will be as follows:
1 432m? x N§156.00/m? = NS 223 392 00 « (15% VAT) N§33 508.80) = NS256 500 80
It is further proposed that Council's standard conditions of sale be applicable.

5. CONCLUSION

Erf 7979 and 7980 must be consolidated into one erf. The purchaser be responsible
for all fees and cost to the transaction induding but not limited to compilation of the
agreement of sale as well as legal cost that may arise from the transaction to Council

It be noted that as per point () of the above Coundl resolution, the lease
for Erf 7104 and 7105, measuwring 300 m7 is renewable every six months for the
interim until finalisation of the sale of Exf 7979 and 7980, Swakopmund.
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ANNEXURE “C”

19.1.4  DETERMINATION OF PURCHASE PRICE FOR ERVEN 7979 AND

7980, EXTENSION 29, DRC FOR MESSRS MERVIN DENNIS

DOMESTIC SOLUTION CC

(CA 2021/04129 = 19.03.06.7979; 19.03.08.7980)
RESOLVED: et
e GM: CS&HC

(a) That Council approves the purchase price as per
calculation below at N§156.00/m* to Messrs Mervin Dennis
Domestic Solution CC for purchasing of Erf 7979 and 7980,
Ext 29, Swakopmund, measuring approximately 1 432m*

= 1432m* x NS1S6.00m® = NSX23 33200 + (15% VAT) N$S3I350889) =
N$256 500.80

(b) That it be noted that the purchase price is determined at
the cost for installation of services +25% excluding 15%
VAT which has to be paid in terms of the business zoning,
being, “General Business”.

(c) That the duly appointed Town Planner upon acceptance of
the purchase price by the purchaser attends to the required
statutory processes. >

(d) That Erf 7979 and 7980, Ext 29, Swakopmund be
consolidated into one erf at the cost of the purchaser.

3
&

Otlimary Coumnmil Mastiieg: T9 Agell 2001

60 /2021

(e} That Messrs Mervin Dennis Domestic Solution CC be
requested to confirm in writing acceptance of the purchase
and the terms and conditions of sale.

() That upon acceptance by the purchaser of conditions in (a)
fo (d) above, Council's intention to alienate the two erven
be advertised for possible objections as required in terms
of the relevant fwo sections of the Local Authorities Act,
Act 23 of 1992 at the cost of the purchaser.

(g) That the transaction be concluded after approval has been
granted by the Ministry of Urban & Rural Development;
within 120 days from the last party signing the agreements.

(h) That payment of the purchase price and 15% VAT be
secured either in cash or formal bank guarantee in favour of
the Swakopmund Municipality within 120 days from the last
party signing the agreements.
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(i) That the following standard conditions be applicable:

)] That the purchaser pays a deposit of NS 10 000.00 for each one of Erven
7979 and 7980 fowards the statufory costs refating to the transaction
mﬁlg.bmmlmnﬂedmaduwﬂsﬁlgmtwmﬁaﬂmofﬂle
wtdsﬂo.aswaﬂaswhﬂcoﬂlﬁatmmmm
fransaction.

(Y Mmmamemtmmmmmmm
purchaser on completion of the related statutory processes.

(i) MMWMMMMWMNHMM
resolution unless all the relevant conditions of the Property Policy are
wmmmmwmmmmwm

necessary permission, if applicable.

mwmmmmmmumwam
mmmMﬁrmrumcmemmun-m.
interest will be levied as from the date of alfocation or Ministerial
wmmmam«manmnm
with Council’s Bank on the date of sale.

{wi) MNMM(WWWM#
least 4 times the municipal valuation of the property. Structural
i for purposes of this condition, shall not include the
construction of boundary walls or any changes to the subterranean
composition of the property;

Mmﬂwmsmumwmummn
years) from date of transfer.

rmmmmymummummm

the date of a completion certificate being issued in respect of the m
Mﬂmms.mwmnmmmuw

against the title deed of the property.

g

§

Ordinary Council Meeting: 29 Apeil 2021

6172021

(ix) Mo development or construction will be permitted to commence untif the
smwmmmmmmMﬂwM

{x) mmtdmummwbmm
mm.wmmmmumdww

(xi) That the purchaser indemnifies Council against any claims resulting
from blasting, should blasting need to be dane.

() That the lease on erf 7104 and 7105 Swakopmund be
terminated once the above erven have been transferred to
Messrs Mervin Dennis Domestic Solution CC.
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REITERVEREIN SWAKOPMUND: RENEWAL OF LEASE PERIODS FOR TWO
LEASE SITES

(C/M 2025/10/03 - 19.03.08, E 1307)

Ordinary Management Committee Meeting of 11 September 2025,
Addendum 7.8 page 128 refers.

This item was submitted to the Management Committee for consideration:

1.

Introduction

The purpose of this submission is for Council to consider the renewal of the
lease periods for ReiterVerein Swakopmund (hereinafter referred to RVS) as
per the e-mail received from RVS dated 18 April 2025, attached as
Annexure "A". Although the attached e-mail only refers to one lease site, it
was telephonically confirmed that they intend to renew both lease sites.

List of Annexures:

Annexure “A" - e-mail received from RVS dated 18 April
2025

Annexure “B” - an aerial photo of the two lease sites
Annexure “C” - Map indicating the two lease sites, i.e., day
camp and track

Annexure “D" - Statement

RVS is leasing two portions of land, as follows:

M2 Comm;:;ement Expiry Date Purpose
Day camp for
16013 g;ZI\éovember gézgctober keeping the horses.
Annexure “C”
Country track and
+ 78 855 01 November 31 October park for hostlng ‘
2020 2025 events and training.
Annexure “C”

Both lease agreements lapse on 31 October 2025 and provide for an
option to renew the lease period, subject to Council’s approval.

RVS is a non-profit organisation, existing for almost 38 years, and its
activities involve horse-riding events and training.

Background

With reference to the two lease sites, Council passed the latest resolution
for the renewal of the lease periods on 29 April 2020, under item 11.1.3:

“(a)  That Council approves the extension of the lease periods of Messrs
Reiterverein Swakopmund for a further 5-year period for the following
two lease sites:

Commencement

Size m? Date Expiry Date Purpose
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Council; and failing which Council will restore the leas= area to
its previcus condition for the account of the Messrs ReiterVerein
Swakopmund.

(ix) That the club erects a perimeter fence (such as used tyres or
split poles) and warning signs to warn the public of the horses
on the site to the satisfaction of Council.

(x)  Thataccess to the lease site measuring =21 500m? to the public
not be denled, but controlled for the enjoyment of the
community.

(xi) The lease may not be ceded or assigned to a third party without
the written permission of Council first being obtained.

Lease agreements for both lease sites were signed, and the rental is paid to
date.

On 25 February 2021, under item 11.1.7 Council reviewed the size of the
country track and park for hosting events and resolved that the correct size
is 78,855 m2 and not £21,500 m2. The increased size does not affect the
annual lease tariff, as the lease tariff is not based on size, but on the lessee
being a club.

3. Current Situation

The email dated 18 April 2025 has been received from RVS confirming that
they intend to renew the lease period.

4. Current Lease Tariffs

Finance Department confirmed the annual lease tariffs as follows,
applicable as of 01 July 2025:

Lease Portion Size Annual Lease Tariffs for 2025/2026
Portion Erf 1307 N$2 733.19 = annual lease
! , | tariff
Swakopmuna =16013m* | Ng 409.98 - 15% VAT
N$3 143.17 - total
Portion of Erf N$6 966.45 - annual lease
, | tariff
o =78855m* | g1 04497 - 15% VAT
P N$8011.42 - total

The above lease amounts are applicable for the period 1 November 2025
and will increase on 01 July 2026 by 7%

5.  Proposal

It is proposed to consider the lease period for 5 years for both lease areas.
Although Council’s Property Policy under section 9.5 provides for a lease
period of 9 years, 11 months for non-profit entities, 5 years is proposed as
Council might require the land in the future. In this regard, a notice of
termination of 3 months can be issued by either party.

Furthermore, itis proposed that the lease conditions and lease tariff remain
the same as previously approved by Council.

B. After the matter was considered, the following was:-
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RECOMMENDED:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

That Council approves the extension of the lease periods of
Reiterverein Swakopmund for a further 5-year period for the following
two lease sites:

Size m? Commencement Date Expiry Date Purpose

+16 013 1 November 2025 31 October 2030 | Day camp for keeping the horses.

Country track and park for hosting

+78 855 1 November 2025 31 October 2030 s .
events and training.

That the rental tariffs be as follows, the next escalation of 7% on 1 July
2026:

Lease Portion Size Annual Lease Tariffs for 2025/2026
Portion Erf 1307, N$2733.19 - annual lease tariff
Swakopmund, next to 16 013m? | N$ 409.98 - 15% VAT
the SPCA N$3 143.17 - total
Portion of N$6 966.45 - annual lease tariff
Erf 1307, Swakopmund +78 855m2 | N$ 1 044.97 - 15% VAT

’ N$8011.42 - total

That the leases be advertised in terms of Section 63 (2) of the Local
Authorities Act, Act 23 of 1992, (as amended), at the cost to
ReiterVerein Swakopmund.

That Council reserves the right to cancel the lease if valid objections
from the public are received.

That the following conditions be applicable:

(i) That the lease terms be set for 5 years, commencing 1 November
2025 to 31 October 2030, with an option to renew for a further
period.

(ii) The annual rental amounts be as set out under point (b) above.

(iii) That a refundable deposit, equal to one year'’s rent, be adjusted
according to the annual increases and any shortfall be levied.

(iv)  That the lease period is terminable by either party by giving/receiving 3
months’ written notice;

iv)  That no fixed structures be erected and that temporary structures be
erected at the risk of the lessee and to be removed at the cost of the
lessee at the termination/lapsing of the lease period;

(v)  That Council be indemnified against any claims from the public or
members of the club which may arise due to the use of the site by the
club;

(vi)  That the Municipal Council has unrestricted right of access to the area;

(vii)  That the lease sites only be used for the following purposes:

Size m? Purpose
*16 013 Day camp for keeping the horses.
*78 855 Country track and park for hosting events and training. |

(viii) That the site be restored to an acceptable condition on
termination/lapsing of the lease period to the satisfaction of Council;
and, failing which, Council will restore the lease area to its previous
condition for the account of the ReiterVerein Swakopmund;

(ix)  That the club erects a perimeter fence (such as used tyres or split poles)
and warning signs to warn the public of the horses on the site to the
satisfaction of council;

(x)  That access to the lease site measuring + 21,500 m? to the public not be
denied, but controlled for the enjoyment of the community; and

(xi)  The lease may not be ceded or assigned to a third party without the
written permission of Council first being obtained.
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ANNEXURE "A”
From: Holger Kleyenstueber <holger kleyenstueber@gmail.com>
Sent: Friday, 18 April 2025 01:29 PM
To: Stephny Bruwer <sbruwer@swkmun.com.na>; Aina Uushona
<auushona@swkmun.com.na>
Cc: RVS <secretary@rvsnam.com>; Silvia Kleyenstiber <silviakleyenstueber@gmail.com>;
Jackie Woker <jackiewoker@me.com>; Wiebke Ruckert <wupsi69@gmail.com>; DORIS
KLEEMAN <drk@iway.na>; Inka Brell <brellinka109@gmail.com>; Monika Lotter
<monika@clarchitects.net>
Subject: Renewal of lease agreement Erf 1307

Good day Ms Uushona,

The ReiterVerein Swakopmund would herewith like to apply for the renewal of the current 5-
year lease agreement of the portion of land Erf 1307, next to the SPCA (16,013sgqm) & Portion
of Erf 1307 (21,500sqm), on which our Eventing Track is built, for a further 5-year or longer
term. Could you kindly advise the amount payable and if any additional contract needs to be
signed.

Thank you very much in advance.

Kind regards,
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ANNEXURE "B”

| Reiterverein Swakopmurd ! 5
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ANNEXURE "C"
Correct size of the two lease portions:
Lease Portion Size
Portion Erf 1307, Swakopmund, next to the SPCA +16 013m?2
Portion of Erf 1307, Swakopmund +78 855m?
e S—

Scdle

LOCAUTY FOR REITERVEREIN
DATE: 17 OC'QBER 2016

MUNICIPALITY SWAKOPMUND
Logrwsting Survees DeparimestMil 2012

|

i T q
|
§
Y 4 + 21 500m?
71 . Country track ang
I{ # B8 park for hosting
/| / !:j events and
! ‘ <3 training.
; | z
{
f 16 013m?
| 3758 Day camp for
) keeping
& horses.
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REQUEST FOR CONTINUATION OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FROM

PADDOCK GARDENS TRUST
(C/M 2025/10/03 - 15/2/8/1/3)

Ordinary Management Committee Meeting of 11 September 2025,
Addendum 7.9 page 137 refers.

This item was submitted to the Management Committee for consideration:

1.

INTRODUCTION

Annexure “A” is a request from Messrs Paddock Gardens Trust (PGT),
seeking approval from Council for the continuation of financial assistance in
the amount of N$100 000.00 per annum for the next three (3) financial
years, totalling N$300 000.00.

BACKGROUND

The Paddock Gardens Trust was established by property owners residing in
the vicinity of the Paddock Garden area. The park was created 21 years ago
and has since been maintained primarily through funds collected from
annual membership fees as well as revenue generated from the sale of lawn
to various homeowners.

On 11 February 2022, the PGT committee members met with the Chief
Executive Officer and other senior management members during an
information-sharing session. At this meeting, the committee raised
concerns regarding the worsening financial position of the Trust, which has
negatively affected its ability to maintain the park/garden. The financial
challenges have been exacerbated by, among others:

* The economic slowdown associated with the COVID-19 pandemic.

* The death and aging of long-standing members.

» Change in property ownership, with new owners unwilling to contribute
membership fees.

¢ Increased renting out of properties; and

* Properties remaining vacant due to economic hardship

Atits Ordinary Management Committee Meeting held on 16 August 2022,
Council resolved as follows:

That Council approves the raqusst by Messrs Paddock Gardens Trust for
annual financial assistance of N$100 000.00 for the next thrae (3) financial
years only, as well as 2 once-off payment of N$3 300,00 for the purchase of
garden equipment, to enable the Trust to continue maintaining the Paddcck
Gardens.

The final payment instruction was issued to the Municipal Finance
Department on 14 March 2025, thereby concluding Council's commitment
in respect of the above resolution, Annexure “B.

Furthermore, based on Annexure “C”, Council entered into a
Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with Paddock Gardens Trust for the
management of Paddock Gardens. The MoU primarily covers the following
aspects: the purpose of the agreement, custodianship and maintenance,
roles and responsibilities of each party, channels of communication, and the
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harvesting of the lawn. Importantly, the MoU does not impose any ongoing
financial obligations on Council.

Despite these interventions, the Trust continues to experience difficulties in
independently funding the maintenance of the Paddock Gardens.

After the matter was considered, the following was:-
RECOMMENDED:

That Council approves the request by Messrs Paddock Gardens Trust for the
continuation of annual financial assistance of N$300,000.00 for a period of
three (3) financial years, to enable the Trust to continue maintaining the
Paddock Gardens.
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“"ANNEXURE A"

Apglication for continued financial assistance for the
Gardens Trust from the Municigal Counci of und
Dear Councillors

Az the Annual Feedback and Pianning Meeting (FPM] an 227 Agril 2025 between
representatives of the Paddock Gardens Trust {PGT] and Municipal Heads of Department,
Chairperson Mr Vilho Kaulinge recommended that the PGT approach Council to request
continuad financial support for its custodianship of the Paddock Gardens park, a successful
joint project between the local com ry and the Mumcipality of Swakopmund (Mo5}.

introductian

i 2022, in response ta an urgent request for funding from the PGT, the Swalkopmund
Municipal Counal kindly allacated an amaunt of NS300 300 over a perod of three years. in
annual instalments, to support the PGT's mantenance, development and management of
the Paddock Gardens Since we are now caming to the end of the third year of ths support,
the PGT would respectfully lika to request Councl’s consideration of a similar arrangement
from Octaber 2025

Since its incegtion in 2002, the PGT has bean groviding substantial financial and human
resources to develop this ever-growing public pasic in that time. the ance neglected, sand-
blawn and littered wasteland has gradually become the well-loved community greenspace
that everyone in Swakopmund knows and 2njoys as the Paddock Gardens. Working
Fongside the Muniapality, in terms of an official MOU agreed between the two paries, the
PGT has piayed a vital role, through good times and bad, i the park’s establishment and
growth.

For the first 20 years, the PGT aperated on an entirely self-funded basis, with certain
material and infrastructural support from MoS. But in 2022, in recognition of the PGT's long
record of voluntary management and sustaned finandal ingut, the considerable se to
which the gardens had by that Eme grown, and the PGT s increasing difficulty of meeting its
Fnanca’ oblgatons alome, the Council awarded the sbove-mentioned grant, aswellas a
once-off contribution of N53 D00 towards the cost of equipment and tocls for maintaining
the park over the same three-year period.
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Motivation - past and ongoing commitment of the PGT to the Paddock Gardens Park

in 2025, the PGT continued its work of the past 23 years, which, inter alia, inciudes:

Planning and maintaining the existing park via an employed gardening service and a
team of voluntary supervisors and advisors;

tdentifying and executing new developments, in consultation with the Municipality,
PGT committee meetings and AGMs;

Reporting to its members via regular newsletters and meetings to secure their
ongoing financial, practical and moral support;

Working together with its project partner, the Municipality of Swakopmund, via
regular correspondence with relevant Heads of Department and its annual Feedback
and Planning Meetings (FPM), usually held in March at the offices of the Department
of Economic Planning.

Financial responsibilities of the PGT

Collecting PGT members’ annual contributions;

soliciting support from local businesses and well-wishers for specific, case-by-case
initiatives {such as the building of our toolshed and the supply of hose pipes and
other equipment};

The occasional sale of lawn;
Securing financial support from Mos5 via grant applications. In respect of this, the PGT

has reported annually to the FPM on how the funds were disbursed. This spending
was also set against detailed background information on the PGT's financial situation;

Circulating audited Financial Statements - these are submitted annuaily to the
Municipality FPM in March, and to the PGT AGM in April.
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Request

Since we are now coming to the end of the third year of this arrangement, the PGT would
like to ask for a continuation of this funding agreement. For all the reasons indicated in our
previous application, we continue to face serious and growing challenges in terms of
independent financial sustainability:
¢ adwindling pool of reliable contributors from home-owners on The Paddock (many
original members have passed away, become pensioners or maved to other homes);
e the difficulty of convincing incoming home-owners to fund the development and
maintenance of an already established resource;
e the perception that the Paddock is an entirely municipally-funded facility;
» ongoing cost-of-living restraints which feave PGT members with less disposable
income for contributing to the upkeep and growth of the park.

The Council’s grant has meant that for the past three years we could be confident of paying
our Gardening Service, and could employ a much-needed additional full-time member of the
gardening team. We were also able to see through the long process of establishing a
permanent toolshed on the Paddock, equipped with decent, durable resources. Our other
expenses are detailed in our yearly Financial Statements, which are available far your
perusal (a summary of the 2024/25 PGT Financial Statements is attached).

The PGT’s team of elected trustees and committee members, who administer its work, do so
on an entirely voluntary basis. Most are in full-time employment, but make time to engage
in a constant process of communication and conversation about the Paddock Gardens as a
commiittee, with other PGT members, with various municipal HODs, with our Gardening
Service, and with members of the public who use the park on a daily basis.

We hope that the ongoing success and widespread popularity of the Paddack Gardens is
testament of the PGT’s dedication, and its rellability as custodian of this unique
community/Municipal Council project. However, without the same kind of financial support
provided by the Council over the past three years, it will be impossible for us to guarantee
the maintenance and development of the park to the high standard we have been proud to
uphold so far.

We hope you wilf consider this request for further funding favourably, and enable your
project partner to continue its work with the same sense of sustainability, commitment and
confidence it has enjoyed in recent years.

Thank you and best wishes
Kate Burling
(Secretary of the Paddock Gardens Trust}
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GENERAL INFORMATION

COUNTRY OF INCORPORATION AND DOMICILE

TYPE OF TRUST

REGISTRATION NUMBER

NATURE OF BUSINESS AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

TRUSTEES

REGISTERED OFFICE

BANKERS

TAX NUMBER

ACCOUNTING OFFICER

Namibia

Notarial Deed Of trust,

T40442002

The trust to maintain open garden space.

P.F koep
K Nebe
C. Marals

The Paddock
Vineta

P.O, Box 495
Swakopmund
Namibia

MNedbank Namibia Ltd
04482052

F. Costzee of

Prestige Accounting and Tax Services CC
Cottage Avenue

PO Box 2434

Swakopmund

Namibia
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Annual Financial 5tatements for the year ended 28 February 2025

TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES AND APPROVAL

The trustees are required to maintaln adequate accounting recards and are respansible for the content and integrity of the
financial statements and related flnancial infarmation Included in this report. It Is their respensibility to ensure that the annual
financial statements satisfy the financial reporting standards with regards to form and content and present fairly the statement
of financlal position, results of operations and business of the trust, and explain the transactions and financial position of the
buslness of the trust at the end of the financial year, The annual financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting
policies consistently applied throughout the trust and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

The trustees acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the
trust and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the trustees to meet these
respansibilities, the trustees set standards for internal cantral aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost effective
manner. The standards Include the proper delegatian of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective
accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These contrals are monitored
thraughout the trust and all employees are required ta maintain the highest ethical standards In ensuring the trust's business is
canducted in 3 manner that In all reasonable circumstances is above reproach.

The focus of risk management in the trust is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitering all knawn forms of risk across
the trust, While operating risk cannat be fuily eliminated, the trust endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that apprapriate
Infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and
constraints,

The trustees are of the opinion, based on the Information and expianations given by management, that the system of internal
control provides reasonable assurance that the financlal records may be relied on for the preparation of the annual financial
statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide anly reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss, The gaing-concern basis has been adopted in preparing the financial statements, Based on
forecasts and available cash resources the trustees have no reason to believe that the trust will not be a going concern in the
foreseeable future. The annual financial statements support the viahility of the trust.

The compilers are responsitile for reporting on the trust's annual financial statements. The compilation report is presented on
page 5.

The annual financial statements set out oh pages 6 to 14, and the supplementary information set out an pages 15 to 16 which

have been prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by the trustees and ware signed on on their
behalf by:
Trustee Trustee
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PADDOCK GARDENS TRUST

{Registration Number T404/2002)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 28 February 2025

TRUSTEES' REPORT

The trustees present their raport for the year ended 28 February 2025,

. Review of flnancial resuits and activitles

Main business and operations

The trust to maintain open garden space, There were no major changes herein during the year.

The trust generated a deficit after tax for the year ended 28 February 2025 of N$1,406 (2024: surplus of N$9,541).
The trust's revenue increased from N$191,160 in the prior year ta N$193,700 for the year ended 28 February 2025.

The trust's cash flows from operating activities changed from an (nflow of N$1,950 in the prior year to an outflow of N$7,956
for the year ended 2B February 2025.

. Objactive of the trust

The trust to maintain open garden space,

. Type of trust

Paddock Gardens Trust is a Notarlal Deed of trust.

. Going concem

The annual financlai statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern, This
basis presumes that funds will be available to finsnce future operations and that the realisatian of assets and settlement of
liabilities, cantingent obligations and cammitments will occur in the ardinary course of business.

Trust capital
Na changes were made to the trust capital during the year under review.
Distribution

No distribution was awarded to Beneficiary's during the year,

. Trustees

The trustees of the trust during the year and up to tha date of this report are as follows:
P.F Koep

K. Nebe

C Marais

Compilers

Prestige Accounting and Tax Servicas CC complled the annual Anancial statements far the year under review.
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REPORT OF THE COMPILER

To the Trustees of Paddock Gardens Trust

We have compiled the accompanying annual financial statements of Paddack Gardens Trust based an information you have
provided. These financial statements comprise the statement of financial positicn as at 28 February 2025, the statement of
comprehensive Income, the statement of changes in trust funds and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting palicies and other explanatory Information.

We performed this compilation engagement in accardance with International Standard on Related Services 4410 {Revised),
Compilation Engagements.

We have applied our expertise in accounting and financial reporting to assist you in the preparation and presentation of these
financlal statements In accordance with Namibian Generally Accepted Accountlng Practice - NAC 001: Financial Reporting for
Smail and Medium Sized Entities, We have complled with relevant ethical requirements, including principles of Integrity,
objectivity, professional competence and due care.

These financial statements and the accuracy and completeness of the information used to complle them are your
responsibility.

Since a compilation engagement is not an assurance engagement, we are not required te verify the accuracy or completeness
aof the information you provided to us to compile these annual financial statements.

Prestige Accounting and Tax Services CC
Per: F. Coetzes

Accounting Officer

Member in Practice
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Figuras in N$ 2025 2024

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 19,469 19,469

Unit trusts 161,498 149,152

Total non-current assets 180,967 168,621

Currant assats

Cash and cash equivalents 104,052 112,008

Total assets 285,019 280,629

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

£quity

Accumulated surplus 278,619 280,025

Liabltities

Current llabilitias

Trade and other payables 6,400 604
285,019 280,629

Total equity and Habilities
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Figures in NS Note 20258 2029

Revenue 193,700 194,160
Administrative expenses {8,815) (8,327}
Other expenses {198,637} {186,340)
Deflcit from operating activitins {13,752} {3.507)
Finance incame 12,345 13,048

(Deficit) / surplus for the year {1,405) 9,541
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PADDOCK GARDENS TRUST

(Reglstration Number T404/2002)

Financlal Statements {or the year ended 28 February 2025

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TRUST FUNDS

Accumuiated
Figures In N$ surplus Total
Balkance at 1 March 2023 270,484 270,484
Changes in equity
Surplus For the year 9,541 9,541
Total comprehensive income for the year 9,541 9,541
Balance at 29 February 2024 180,025 280,025
Balance at 1 March 2024 280,025 280,025
Changes in sguity
Deficit far the year (1,406} (1.4086)
Total comprehensive income for the year (1,406 (1,406)
Balance at 28 February 2025 278,619 278,619
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PADDOCK GARDENS TRUST

{Reglstration Number T404/2002)
Financial Statements for the year ended 28 February 2025

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Figures in N$ Note 2025 2024

Cash flows used (n operations

(Deficlt) / surplus for the year (1,406} 9,541

AdJustments to reconclle {deficit) / surplus

Adjustments for finance Income (12,346) {13,048)
Adjustments for increase / (decrease] In trade accounts payabia 46 (920)
Adjustments for increase in other operating payahles 5,750 -

Total adjustmants to reconcile {deficit) / surplus (6,550} (13,968)
Net cash flows used in operations (7,956) (a,427)
Interest received - 6,377

Net cash flows (used in) / from aperating activities (7,956) 1,950
Cash flows from investing activities

Puschase of ather financial assets (12,346} -

Proceeds from disposal of other financial assets . 21,963

Dividends recelved 12,346 6,671

Cash flows from investing activities - 28,634
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (7,956) 30,584
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 112,008 81,424
Cash and cash equivalents at and of the year s 104,052 112,008
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PADDOCK GARDENS TRUST

{Registration Number T7404/2002)
Financial Statements for the year ended 28 February 2025

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

. General information

Paddock Gardens Trust {'the trust') ta maintaln open garden space.

The trust [s registered with the Master of the High Court and domiciled in Namibia. The address of its registered office is The
Paddock, Vineta, P.O. Bok 495, Swakepmurnd, Namibia.

Basis of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies

The financlal statements of Paddock Gardens Trust have been prepared In accordance with Namibian Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice - NAC 001: Financial Reporting for Small and Medium Sized Entities. The financial statements have been
prepared under the historlcal cost canvention. They are presented in Namibian Dallar.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Namibian Generally Accepted Accounting Practice - NAC 001:
Financiat Reporting far Small and Medium Sized Entities requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise Its Judgement in the process of applylng the trust's accounting policies.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these annual financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment |s stoted at historical cost less actumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Histarical cost Includes expenditure that is directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating In the manner intended by the trustees.

The trust adds to the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment the cost of replacing parts of such an Item
when that cost is Incurred If the replacement part is expected to pravids incremental future benefits ta the trust. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to surplus or deficit during the
perlad In which they are incurred.

Asset class Useful life / depraciation rate
Machinery 3 years

The assets' residual values, useful lives and depreciation mathods are reviewed, and adjusted prospectively if appropriate, i
there is an indication of a significant change since the last reparting date.

An asset's carrying amaunt is written down immediately to its recoverable amount If the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than Its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within
'other galns / (losses)' in the statement of comprehensive income.

Financial instruments
Othur financial assats

Other financial assets are recognised initially at the transaction price, including transaction casts except where the asset will
subsequently be measured at fair value.

10
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PADDOCK GARDENS TRUST

(Reglstration Nurber T404/2002)
Financial Staternents for the year ended 28 Fabruary 2025

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

o 1 o

Bosis of preporation and summary of significant oc g p

where ather financial assets relate to shares that are publicly traded, or where fair values can be measured reliably without
undue cost or effort, these assets are subsequently measured at falr value with the changes in fair value being recognised in
profit or lass, Other investments are subsequently measured at cost less impalrment,

Debt instruments are subsequently stated at amartised cost. Interest income is recognised on the basis of the effective interast
method and is included in finance income

Commitments to receive a loan that meet the conditions in paragraph 11.8(c) are measured at cost less impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, demand depasits and other shart-term highly liquid investments with ariginal
maturities of three months or less, Bank overdrafts are shown in current liabilities an the statement of financial pasition.

Trade and other payables
Trade payables are recognised initially at the transaction price and subseguently measured at amortised cost using the
effective intarest methad.

Trust capitai and retained earnings

All funds of a capital nature received by the trust are accounted for directly to the Trust Capital account. This includes the
original donation received by the trustees to estabiish the trust, as wall as all donations received by the trustees since the
trust's inception. This excludes capital gains and losses realised by the trust in the narmal course of its business activitles. Trust
capital is reduced by any capital distributed by the trustees to any capital beneficiary.

Retained earnings consist of all revenues, capital gains and losses retained by the trust after the payment of all expenses, taxes
and distr|butions of Income and capital gains to beneficiaries.

Tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current tax, Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except that a change attributable to an
itam of income or expense recognised as other comprehensive income is also recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

The current income tax charge Is calculated on the basis of Yax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date in the countries where the entity operates and generates taxable income.

Revenue

Revernue is measured at the fair value of the cansideration received ar receivable. Revenue Is shown net of value-added tax,
returns, rebates and discounts.
When the outcome aof a transaction nvalving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue assaclated with the
transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completian of the transaction at the end of the reporting period. The
outcome of 3 transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:

= the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

« itls probable that the ecanamic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity;

» the stage af completion of the transaction at the end of the reporting periad can be measured reliably; and

s the casts incurred far the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably,
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

8ass of preparation and summary of significant accounting policies continued...
Dividend income Is recognised when the trust’s right to receive payment has been established and is shown as 'finance
income',




5.1

124

Ordinary Council Meeting - 02 October 2025

PADDOCK GARDENS TRUST

(Registration Number T404/2002)

Financial Statements for the year ended 28 February 2025

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Figures in N$ 2025 2024
. Property, plant and equipment
Balances at year and and movaments for the year
Machinery Total
Recancillation for the year ended 28 February 2025
Balance at 1 March 2024
At cost 72,878 77,878
Accumulated depreciation (58,409) (58,409)
Carrying amount 19,459 19,469
Closing balance at 28 February 2025
At cost 77,878 77,878
Accumulated depreciation (58,409} (58,409)
Carsying amount 19,469 19,469
Reconciliation for the year ended 29 February 2024
Balance at 1 March 2023
At cost 77,878 77,878
Accumulated depreciation (58,409} (58,409)
Carrying amount 19,469 19,469
Closing balance at 29 February 2024
At cost 77,878 77,878
Accumuiated depreciation {58,409} (58,409)
Carrying amount 19,469 19,459
. Unit trusts
Unit trusts comprise tha following balances
Pointbreak Wealth Management (Pty) Ltd 161,498 149,152
The fund Is stated at capital balance and comprise of
a maney market unit trust fund and a treasury bill
purchased.
161,498 149,152
. Cash and cash squivalants
Cash and cash equivalents included In current assets:
Cash
Balances with banks 104,052 112,008

13
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PADDOCK GARDENS TRUST

{Reglstration Number T404/2002)
Financlal Statements for the yesr ended 28 February 2025

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Figures In N$

2025

2024

Cash and cash equivalents continued...
Detail of cash and cash aquivalent balances

Bank balancss
Nedbank Namibia Ltd

. Accumulated surplus

Accumnulated surplus

Accumulated surplus at the beginning of the year
Deficit for the year
Accurnulated surplus at the end of the year

. Trade and other payables

Trade and othar payables comprise:

Trade creditors
Accrued |labilities
Total trade and other payables

. Incoma tax expensa

Assessed tax loss

104,052

112,008

180,025
11,406}

170,484
9,541

278,619

280,025

650
5,750

604

6,400

604

The trust has nat provided for income tax In the current year as there was an calculated deficit recognised.

14
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Annual Financlal Statements for the year ended 28 February 2025

DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT

Figuras in N$ Note 2025 2024
Revenue
valuntary contributions 193,700 191,160
Administrative expenses
Accounting fees 7,004 6,630
Bank charges 1,881 1,697
8,815 8,327
Other expenses
Garden hoses and fittings 32,484 3,649
Garden malntenance 160,000 149,500
Garden malntanance - bullding repairs - 29,735
Garden maintenance - Fuet 2,778 3,456
Printing and signage 3,375 .
198,637 186,340
Deficit from operating activities {13,752) (3,507}
Finance income
Dividends received 12,346 5,671
Interest received - 5,377
12,346 13,048
{Deflcit) / surplus for the year (1,408) 9,541

15
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PADDOCK GARDENS TRUST

(Registration Number T404/2002)
Annwal Financial Statements for the year ended 28 February 2025

INCOME TAX COMPUTATION
Figuras in N$ 2025 2024
(Deficit) / surplus before tax and distributions (1,406) 9,541
{Deflcit) / surplus from discontinued operations before tax - =
Total {deficit) / surplus befora tax and distributions (1,4086) 9,541
Dividends received - non taxable {12,346) (6,671}
Interest received - non taxable - 6,377)
(12,346) (13,048)
Computed Income for the year {13,752} [3,507)
Assessed loss brought forward (68,029) (64,522)
Taxable incame (81,781) {68,029)

16
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a

SWAKgPMUND

MU NICTIP?ALITY

“ANNEXURE B”

@ popos 53, Swakopmund, Namitsa

geswikmun.comuni |

Internal Memorandum

TO : General Managers: Finance

FROM : General Manager: Economic Development Services
DATE : 14 March 2025

REF  : 18/25M13

SUBJECT: Paddack Garden Trust Final Payment

Counail at its Ordinary Management Committee Meeting dated 16 August 2022, resolved as
below:

e tanen of Ne100 000.00 for the mext thres (3)fiancial years onlyand ance off payment
of garden equipment of N$3 300.00 to enable the Trust to continue maintaining the

Kindly find attached an invoice from Messrs Paddock Garden Trust for payment. Please note that
this will be the final payment to Messrs Paddock Garden Trust.

Reg/afgs. :

MANAGER: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SERVICES
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“ANNEXURE C”

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
BETWEEN
THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF SWAKOPMUND
AND

PADDOCK GARDEN TRUST
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. Introduction

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) establishes the terms and conditions
under which the Municipality of Swakopmund and the Paddock Garden Trust will
manage and care for Paddock Garden.

. Background

Swakopmund Council has had an informal agreement with Paddock Garden Trust
for the management and preservation of the public gardens located at the
Northen beach area, for roughly 26 years. See Appendix diagram 1. The Paddock
Garden Trust has faithfully maintained the garden at a joint expense, thereby
contributing to the area’s attractiveness as well as the overall aesthetics of the
Swakepmund, and without preventing public access to the grounds.

. Purpose

The purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding is to establish a cooperative
working relationship between the Swakopmund Council and the Paddock Garden
Trust to facilitate collaboration, facilitating the sharing of information between the
parties to enable the effective management, development, enhancement, and
maintenance of the Paddock Garden to a high standard.

. Custodianship And Management

Paddock Garden Trust is the primary custadian of the Paddock Gardens. The
Paddock Garden Trust will oversee all Garden development and upkeep, as well
as fundraising to fund planned improvements. The Trust's aims and vision will
initially be discussed with the Municipality at its annual feedback & planning
meeting held in February/March every year.

. Roles and Responsibility of each organization

a. The Paddock Garden Trust will oversee gardening, watering, planting, etc.
via its supervised gardening service. It will continue to provide this
service and purchase limited equipment {e.g. hoses, fittings, John Deere
tractor-mower) if it is financially able to do so.

b. The Municipality will be responsible for water provision, refuse collection,
trimming of hedges, and maintenance of municipal infrastructure in the
Paddock Garden. It will also be responsible for litter collection.

c. The Paddock Garden Trust may not under any circumstances lay claim of
the land constituting the Paddock Gardens

Page 2 of 7
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d. No member of the Paddock Gardens may prevent the public from
utifising the gardens or confront public mambers for ublising the
Paddock gardens Any acton by public causing damage should be
reported immediately to the Muniopality

e The Paddock Garden Trust will report any problems beyond #s control to
the Municipality as per documented channe! of communications, e.g
vehides driving in the gardens, inadequate water supply, uncollacted
garden refuse, braken water pipes, broken streetlamps, stc.

6. Channel of Communication

Written communication = the form of a letter, email, memo, report, or propasal
must be adopted for all communications and information sharing and only be
camed out by persons who have been designated by the wo organizahons

a.  Forthe Paddock Garden Trust
Bruno Nebe/ Piemre Le Roux
Mobile + 264 811 283 241/ + 264 811 292 444
Emaikpeter. koep@gmail.com/kate@tumstone-
tours.com/tum@iafrica,com.na

b. For the Municipality -General Manager Economic Development.
Tel: +264 64 140 4601

Email: vkaulinge@swkmun.com.na

¢ The garcen will be open to the public for refaxation and 1o host variaus
events. Should the Mumiopality recewe requests to hold occasional
larger events, Paddack Garden Trust will be mformed to avoid
awkwardness or misuncerstandings on the day. Simdarly, i larger-scale
developments are planned acjacent to the Paddock Gardens, it would
be apprecated i timeous and considerate commurccation and/or
consultatan with the Paddock Ganden Trust were factored in. to faciitate
the spread of informanon among residents helpmg to finance and
promate the Paddack Garden Trust
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7. Harvesting Lawn

a. The Municipality being the legal owner of the Paddock Garden Trust and
in consultation with Paddock Garden Trust has a right to harvest grass
and plants at the Paddock Garden.

b. Lawn may only be harvested in September, October, February, and
March.

c. Post-sod-cutting, the harvested area must be rehabilitated with water
and topsoil. Please see Appendix diagram 2 which deals with the
specifics of the harvesting, utilization, and sharing of grass resources.

d. All profits from harvested lawns must go towards maintaining and
developing the Gardens.

e. No commercial or personal ventures (nurseries, plantations,

8. Funding

That Paddock Garden Trust use its own funds especially profits from harvested lawns
and contributions from its members to maintain and develop the Gardens.

9. Duration

This MOU is at-will and may be meodified by mutual consent of autharized officials
fram the Municipality and the Paddock Garden Trust. This MOU shall become
effective upon signature by the authorized officials from the Municipality and the
Paddock Garden Trust and will remain in effect until modified or terminated by
any one of the partners by mutual consent. In the absence of mutual agreement
by the authorized officials from the Municipality and the Paddock Garden Trust
this MOU shall terminate upen three (3) months’ written notice by either party.

Page 4 of 7
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THUS, DONE AND SIGNED at SWAKOPMUND on the .. 2.1:.. 1Ok 203y

ON BEHALF OF SWAKOPMUND MUNICIPALITY

ENT COMMITTEE CHAIRPERSON

THUS, DONE AND SIGNED at SWAKOPMUND on the ... \ Q ..... Clichy HOIY

ON BEHALF OF PADDOCK GARDEN TRUST

"._‘.}'_,/;,/(“co‘tfut (/L, \mg ;)

PADDOCK GARDEN TRUST CH.AIRPERSON

AS WITNESSES ON BEHALF OF PADDOCK GARDEN TRUST CHAIRPERSON

2. lé:‘*"\@\q ........................

Page 5of'7
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Appendix Diagram 1
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Appendix Diagram 2

SHARED UTILIZATION OF GRASS.

DEFENITIONS:
A Grade lawn: Lawn that has more than 70% broadleaf grass.
B Grade lawn: Ltawm that has more than 30% sead grass.

HARVESTABLE QUANTUMS AND TIME FRAMES;

Harvested areas must remain unharvested for no tess than 24 months lor purposes of fuil racovery
and long term sustainability,

PGT I3 antitled to 50% of the harvestabie lawn. A and 8 Grade

MOS |5 entitlad to 50% of harvestable lawn. B Grade only

Tatal lawn Is 16000 Sq meters

20% of the tewn iz considered un-harvestable. This would be the edges and areas of low quality soll.
80% harvestable lawn will be 12800 Sg meter

There will ba 4 harvest cycles of 3200 sq meter to aliow for a 24 manth regrowth period.

This allows each party with 1600 Sq maters per cycle

Harvest timas will be September/ October as wel as February { March of each year.

Page 7of 7
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UPDATE: APPLICATION FOR LAND FOR A FILM STUDIO: IMWE NAMIBIA
HOLDINGS (NOW DESERT DUNES FILM STUDIOS NAMIBIA (PTY) LTD)

(C/M 2025/10/03 - 17/1/4/2/1/5)

Ordinary Management Committee Meeting of 11 September 2025,
Addendum 7.10 page 167 refers.

This item was submitted to the Management Committee for consideration:

1.

2.1

2.2

Purpose

The purpose of this submission is to report to the Management Committee
regarding the progress / status of the application by Imwe Namibia
Holdings for a portion of land measuring approximately 115 Ha for the
establishment of a film studio.

Introduction

Apart from an application received from Imwe Namibia Holdings during
2017, the latest application dated 09 June 2024 (Annexure "A") was
discussed at the Investment Coordination Committee (hereinafter “ICC")
meetings on the following dates:

04 June 2024

11 July 2024

13 August 2024; and
04 and 12 March 2025

The submission was also discussed by ExCo on 04 June 2025 and it was
concluded:

(a) that the apphcar:on be tabfed to the to The Namibia Investment

1 for assessment and comments;

(b)  that Council must be cautious of alienating vast portions of land and
to abide by the Ministerial directive dated 04 June 2015 not to issue
large portions of land to one entity.

This submission is as compact as possible without excluding relevant
information.

Background
Application

An application dated 09 January 2024 was received from Imwe Namibia
Holdings applying to acquire a portion of land measuring 115 ha for the
establishment of a film studio and a presentation was made to the
Management Committee of 08 February 2024 under item 10.1.

Discussi C of 04 June and 11 Jul
The application was discussed at the ICC meeting of 04 June 2024, and

the applicant was informed under cover of a letter dated 18 June 2024 to
complete the “investor proposal checklist” by 12 August 2024.
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At the ICC meeting of 11 July 2024 the General Manager: Engineering &
Planning Services confirmed that they met with the applicant on 04 July
2024.

The discussions held were related to the preferred site by the applicant. The
applicant was supplied with a map and would proceed to conduct in-loco
inspections to determine the best location and position for the project.
Once the location and position have been identified, the applicant is to
submit their final proposal.

On 22 May 2025 the General Manager: Engineering & Planning Services
confirmed that the sites earmarked is as per the attachment marked
Annexure "B”.

Discussion at ICC of 13 August 2024

In reply to our letter dated regarding the submission of documents by 12
August 2024, Namibia Motion Picture Studios (Pty) Ltd replied per letter
dated 25 July 2024 that they will only be able to comply by 10 December
2024 (which is a public holiday), therefore by Wednesday, 11 December
2024. In their letter, they state various conditions that take up some time;
they also plan to include a renewable energy plant, which they still have to
research.

An e-mail dated 05 December 2024 was received from Mr Guy Nockles of
Imwe Namibia Holdings, to which the following bulky documents were
attached:

G 1. Letter of Submission 6 Dec 2024.paf

T 2. Municipaity Proposal Checklisst-response09242024.pdf
(1 3. DDFS Name Change Special resolution cm26 + cm9-Approved 30 Oct 2024_compressed.pdf
[0} 4. Name change doc - whmps to ddfs.pdi

() 5. lewe Trust Centificate pdf

@) 6. MANKS-incorporationDoc.pdf

(@) 7. ACG Ontario Registration.pdf

(0 8. MO signed 18 Feb 2023_compressed.pdf

{3 9. DDFS-BusinessPlan 24 Nov 2024-b_compressed pdf

@i 10. Brian O'Leary Bio 2024 pdf

{&) 11. DDFS-Economic Forecast-O'Leary.pdf

[ 12. Erongo Consultations SUPPORT LETTER 11 Nov 2024.pdf
[ 13. Peek y Eavwi tal Bt Social Impact Assessment (ESIA) 11 Nov 2024_compressed.pdi
() 14. Overview of TMCON Survey padf

(33 15. TMCON-Report-Print-v4_compressed.pdf

{1 16. DDFS-Resource-Consultants List 11 Nov 2024 pdf

@ 17. Angus Clarke CV fan 2023 pdf

(5 18. UB short CV 2021.pdf

@) 19, namibfilmcommEndorsment 23 August 2024 jpg

{33 20. SASC LH Guy recomendation.pdi

[} 21. LH Letter of reco Guy.pdf

[} 22. DDFS SWOT on Letterhead.pdf

@ 23. SWOT analysis being addressed 16 Sept 24.pdf

On 22 January 2025 Mr Guy Nockles submitted a letter dated 22 January
2024 of support from The Namibia Investment Promotion and
Development Board (NIPDB) which is attached as the last page (Annexure
IIC").
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Discussion at ICC of 12 March 2025

Concerns, contradictions, and unclarities were discussed at the ICC meeting
of 12 March 2025, as quoted from the recommendation below:

“(a) That the members of the Investment Coordination Committee takes
note of the various documents submitted by Mr Guy Nockles and
comment / elaborate of the respective fields of expertise.

(b)  That Mr Guy Nockels explains the relationship between the latest
entity, Desert Dunes Film Studios Namibia (Pty) Ltd and the initial
applicants Imwe Namibia Holdings / Namibia Motion Picture Studios
(Pty) Ltd.

(c)  That it be noted that no complete list is submitted for the proposed
facilities planned for the 115 ha, that a backlot of 80 ha is indicated, as
well as among other sound stages, an office building, a grocery store,
24 unit assisted-living facility, 20 unit condominium, solar farm and
water recycling system (the different attachments list difference
facilities).

(d)  That Mr Guy Nockles be requested to provide a proper listing of the
facilities intended to be constructed and the need of 80 ha for a
backlot.

(e) That it be noted that Desert Dunes Film Studios Namibia (Pty) Ltd
budgeted US$ 50 000.00 for the acquisitioning of 115 ha,
summarized:

& US$50000.00 equals N$925,000.00 (approximately
N$1 000 000.00).

% 115hax 10 OOO m2= 1150000 m?

= N$0.87c / m? offered for the sale of the portion of land”

These issues were pointed out in a letter dated 03 April 2025 (Annexure
"D").

Areply dated 22 April 2025 was received (Annexure “E").

¢ Although the relations between the various entities which were
mentioned in the past is not clarified, it is confirmed that the applicant is
Desert Dunes Film Studios Namibia (Pty) Ltd.

e Alist of proposed facilities is stated under point 2 of their letter.

e Itis confirmed that they intend to acquire the entire 115 Ha from Council
and not as proposed in our letter dated 03 April 2025 that Council only
sells 30 Ha to them and the remainder be bought from the Government
of Namibia as the backlot area required (80 Ha).

Concerns were raised in our letter dated 03 April 2025 regarding the size
of the land applied for and the opportunity cost compared to future
township developments.

The likelihood of a gated township being established was also raised at a
discussion held on 22 May 2025.
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3. Way Forward

At an informal meeting held on 22 May 2025 between the General
Manager: Engineering & Planning, the Manager: Properties and Housing,
the Manager: Corporate Services and Corporate Officer: Properties, it was
concluded that in view of the training received from NIPDB and their offer
to assist with performing due diligence, the application and bulky
supporting documents which were provided on 05 December 2024 be
forwarded to The Namibia Investment Promotion and Development Board
for assessment and comments.

The above process was also confirmed by the ExCo on 04 June 2025.

/It should be noted that to date no proof of financing for the massive long-
term project was provided to date.

After the matter was considered, the following was:-
RECOMMENDED:

(a) That Council takes note of the progress made with the application by
Imwe Namibia Holdings (now Desert Dunes Film Studios Namibia (Pty)
Ltd); i.e.:

(b) an audience held with the Management Committee on 08 February 2024
under item 10.1;
(ii) discussions at the Investment Coordination Committee on

04 June 2024

11 July 2024

13 August 2024; and
04 and 12 March 2025

e & & o

(iii) that the application is forwarded to the Namibia Investment
Promotion and Development Board for due diligence;

(iv) that no proof of financing is in place for financing of the massive
long-term project; and

(v) that Council abides by the Ministerial directive dated 04 June
2015 not to issue large portions of land to one entity.

(c) That once an assessment is received from The Namibia Investment
Promotion and Development Board, the item be submitted to Council to
consider, in principle the allocation of a portion of land for the project,
subject to requirements to be met such as the need and optimal use of a
portion of land measuring approximately 115 ha, proof of financing,
viability and long terms stability/feasibility, environment requirements.
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ANNEXURE "A"
From: Guy Nockels <guy@imwe.com.na>
Sent: Tuesday, January 9, 2024 5:09:20 PM
To: Alfeus Benjamin <abenjamin@swkmun.com.na>
Cc: Claus W. Goldbeck <cgoldbeck@swkmun.com.na>
Subject: Proposal for Film Studios in Swakopmund

Dear Mr. Benjamin,

| am writing on behalf of imwe Namibia Holdings, Manks Productions Inc. (Canada) and
Anton Communications Group Ltd (Canada), expressing our interest in establishing film
studios within Swakopmund's municipal area. Our proposed project aims to contribute to the
cultural and economic development of the region while fostering community engagement.

Enclosed is a brief overview of our proposal and requirements. We kindly request information
on available properties or suitable locations for the film studios within the municipality.

We are eager to discuss this proposal further and explore the potential collaboration
between us and the Municipality of Swakopmund.

Thank you for considering our proposal. We look forward to the opportunity to meet soon
and to discuss this matter in detail.

Sincerely,
Kindest regards
Guy Nockels

CEO

Imwe Namibia Holdings
Tel: +264 64 46 3371
Mobile: +264 81 127 9858
PO Box 2209
Swakopmund
www.heavenlyglow.net

IMDB:

[Z

AMIB FILM MAGIC TO

H FILMS DESERT ACE TOURS & CHARTERS
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EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW
PHASE L
* 4 sound studios with attached =500 sq m Production building

¢ Adminisirative building housing: daycare, rental office space. boardrooms, kitchen, cafetenia,
site administrative offices, bank. media room. classrooms. etc.

s 115 hectares campus 60-hectare Backlog. to include for example: full scale aircraft, pool, New
York street set, western town set and large green screen.,

PHASE 2

* 24 unit assisted living facility.

® 20-unit condominium

* Supplics and services sourced locally.

* Film set education and apprenticeship program to train crew.
* Hiring and operations focused on diversity. inclusion. and education.
REVENUE SOURCES:

¢ Studio rentals

¢ Backlot rental

* Film School fees

* Office / meeting space rental

¢ Daycare fees

® Interest on investment

* Editing suite, post-production, and animation facilitics

* Equipment rentals

REQUIREMENTS:

® 113 hectares of open property away from any major roads or railway line but with an access
road, water, and electricity supplics.
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ANNEXURE “B"
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ANNEXURE “C”

&y NiPDB

o

E: Sefona K

Emall
Tel. »264 (0) 63 323 3600

22 january 2024

ESTABLISHMENT OF A WORLD-CLASS FILM STUDIO IN SWAKOPMUND
The above subject matter refers.

The Namiba investment Promotion and Development Board (NIPDB) is a Public Entity incomporated
under Section 21 of the Companies Act {28 of 2004). The Board was estabilished as an aulonomous
entity in the office of the President io promote and facilitate investments and new ventures that would
contribute to the economic growth and development of Namibia,

In accordance with our mandate, the NIPDB offers investment cilitation senvices to both focal and
foreign businesses, fo expedite the implementation of investment projects that contribute to the
economic development in Namibla, The NIPDB & on hand 0 support your project in a number of
areas. including but not limited 1o, the facilitation of:

e ‘Work permit applications for expatriates.
e Meetings with government and other stakehoigers, and

Agwising on the reguiatory environment.

The NIPDB is plaased 10 hear of Desen Dunes Féim Studios (Namibia) Pty Lid, a groundbreaking
intiative aimed at establishing world-ciass film studios in Swakopmund. Desert Dunes Fism Studios
ams to postion Namiba as a compettve and sought-after destination fior infemational film and
felevision productions, which will signficantly contribute o the local economy through job creation,
skills deveippment, and §im production. The proposed project has the potential to boister Namibia’s
film industry and i is for this reason that we are ready 0 render the possible support & ling with our
mandate.

Please be assured of gur highest consideration.
Yours sincerely,
B~

Nanguia Neiuty Uaandja
CHAIRPERSON AND CEO

T Carten St wfolnedh com Practe Blag 15340 . L 2600
A0 A B May Strect W O™ wmil?umm ‘. 6605 AL 5

Advizory Board Mermbers H8 (e £ Sigee DHormben SMuge IV Mrpape V) Mungunos S0 Noiua - VK CShoangs

o o g2 L naperon and CEY M (a1 Hamangd - 08 Lusongs - 1 Visstucdiana  #54 wan Scmaicayi
[ =23 Section 17 - R e TIOMNOSIS
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ANNEXURE “D”

Ref Moc 1INI2NTS

Enquiries: Ms S Bruwer

04 April 2025

The Cheaf Executrve Officer
e Marmibisa Holdngs
PO Box 2209
13001
Attention: Mr Guy Nockels

€ gulee.comaoa

B +264 54 46 33N

& +26431 127 9958

Dear Sor
APPLICATION FOR LAND FOR A FILM STUDIO

The attached it of cocumants racewed on 05 December 2024 under caver of an a-mal froem
Termre Narmsbna Holdngs and another document recerved on 22 January 2025, refor

‘l‘hewdmapdm g of everal hundred pages was dacusted at the
mﬂﬂlt“““amm
Mhappkunmtdtmdrﬁhmmndmcmwm
such as:

1 The refationsing beteeen the Qtest ennty, Desert Dunes Fim Studeos Namba {Pry Lid

The latest applicaton dated 06 December 2024 5 » the name of DDFSN

A Cersficate of the Change of the Name of 2 Company reflects the change of the name
from Wakas Bay Moton Picture Studios {Pty) Lid o DDFSN on 30 October 2024

fs it carrect therafiare that Counoll aniy be deafing wth DDFSM m future?

We require fram DDFSN the = b sty the sharsholders - ==
and a power of Itomey nbﬂrdhmmwﬂwﬂ
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The list of the facilites is not ciear. The different attachmants List different fac:lties with
different sizes

Please provide a complete listing of the facidies intended to be constructed and
motivate the requirement for each, such as 24 assisted-living faciites and 20
accommadation units

Please demonstrate by informal fay-out the intended use of the different facilities on the
portion of land measuring approwmatety 115 ha.

The General Manager; Engineenng and Planning confirmed that he discussed and
preposed that the backlot be located on state land for which 3 separate applcat:on must
be subminted to the Government of Namibia. If this was agreed on, the applcation
should be for a portion of land measuring only 35 ha located on the municipal boundary
of Swakopmund.

It was noted that DDFSN budgeted USS 50 000 00 for the acquisitioning of 115 ha,
summarized

HUSE 50 0D0.00 equals N% 933 867.95 (02 Apnl 2025, 1 USS = NS 18.68).

%115 ha x 10000 m? = 1 150 000 m?
% NS 933 867.95 /1 150 000 m?
= NS0.81¢c / m? offared for the sale of the portion of land

%3S ha x 10 000 m? = 350 000 m?
% N$ 0.81¢ x 350 000 m?
= N$ 283 500 offered for the sale of the portion of land

Itis correct that Councit is not 3 prafit-onented entity, however Council has a fiduciary
duty towards its c:tizens 1o manage s assets, ie land responsibly which includes
providing affordable housing and land for its low-income residents. There is a great
demand for fow cost housing and a backlog of around 18 000 exists.

Council has therefore always sold commaercial and high value residential land at a
markup above cost in order to generate funds for subsidizing fow-cost housing
development. If the land you request were to be developed in the usual fashion as mixed
residential suburbs containing a percentage of commercial units, Councid could
accommadate approximately 15 suburbs with no less than 2 250 units on 115 ha.

‘Profit” on land sales in these suburbs would amount to approximately N§ 30 to N§45.5
million per suburb, meaning a total amount of N$ 682.5 million avaitable to subsidize
low-income housing. Addiuonally, Council would add the sesvices in those suburbs to
its asset register and recerve monthly income from the rates, taxes and provision of
services.

To put the offer of NS 933867 95 for 115 ha in perspective, it would represent
approximately 1.3 % of the potentiai income for Council {N$ 682 500 000.00).

Therefare, should Council approve the sale, Council's valuator will determine the
purchase price in line with our Property Policy.

Furthermore, it 15 accepted that the film industry would generate employment
opporunities as well ss create service companies to support the film industry This is a
nebulous area as itis well-known that the film industry uses ex-pats and religs on foreign
expertise in all facets of fiim-making. Also, the structuring of film companies is intended
to ensure that profit is generated in companies in their home countries,
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How will DDFSN ensure that this trend s not perpetuated in Swakopmund that Namibia
and Swakopmund will not end-up with a few fow-end jobs?

Once the information required above is received, a final a submission will be tabled to Council.

Kindly be reminded of the standard disclaimer and that no claim for expenses incurred in
pursuance of the application will be considered.

“Disclalmer: We are at pains to reiterate that no rights accrue to an applicant unless a Council
resolution is in place, all the relevant conditions of the Property Policy are complied with in full
and alf the relevant authonties have given the necessary permmission. Nothing in this letter shall
be interpreted as creating an expectation that Council will grant permission for any
development, or that Council will allocate tand to the applicant. The due diligence process is a
critical step required by Council to ensure that its fiduciary duties are carried out in full.*

Should you have any further enquiries, please do not hesitate to contact Ms S Bruwer at & (064-

4104212

Yours faithfully

v N
P
Mpasl Haingura Jo
General Manager: Cofpoutc Services & RC

/5D \‘g ﬁ' N i ’

Caopies:GM: Economic Development Serwices
GM: Engineering & Planning Services
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ANNEXURE "E”
Deserfi e
Film Studios Namibia
Attention: Mr. A Benjamin 22 April 2025
Chief Executive Officer
Municipality of Swakopmund
Swakopmund,
Namibia
Dear Mr Benjamin,

Re: Your email of April 3, 2025 — Desert Dunes Film Studios Namibia Pty Ltd. (DDFSN)

Thank you for your comrespomdence regarding the Desert Dume Film Studios Namibia (DDFSN)
proposal. We appreciate the Council’s continued engagement in this matter and have addressed your
comments and queries point-by-point below.

1. Representation and Registration

We confirm that all future dealings regarding the film studio project will be conducted solely through
Desert Dunes Film Studios Namibia Pty Ltd. (DDFSN).

Please find attached the following documentation:

e A copy of the DDFSN company registration, incdluding a breakdown of the shareholders.

e Asigned Power of Attorney, designating the official representative who will engage with
Council on behalf of DDFSN.

2. Outline of Fadlities (approsimate dimensions):
The planned development on the proposed site includes the following key infrastructure
componenis:

e 2.1 Sound Stage #4 - 2,787 m? {52m x 52m)
e 2.2 Sound Stage ¥S - 2,787 m? {S2m x 52m)
e 2.3 Sound Stage #3 - 1858 m” (52m x 35m)
e 2.45ound Stage #6 - 1,858 m* (52m x 3Sm)
e 2.5 Administrative Building - 3-storey facility {approx. 59m x 60m footprint)
o 2.6 Future Developments:
o #11-Condominium Complex

o #12 - Assisted Living Facility
Please note: These components are not part of the initial development phase.
Planning for these elements is projected to commence post-2030, depending on
demand and supporting infrastructure.

Desert Dunes Film Studios Namibia (Pty) Lad
Registration number (2021/0118) | PO Box 2209, Swakopmund, Namibia
GR Nockels (South Afnican) | J Russell (Canadian) | AG Williams {Canadian)



148
Ordinary Council Meeting - 02 October 2025

3. Site Layout and Land Use

We attached an informal layout sketch and accompanying key plan for your reference.
We wish to clarify that it was never cur intention to include any portion of the studio infrastructure on
state land. As previously discussed with the Land Office, the project is situated within a 115-hectare
parcel of munidpal land, zoned for light industrial use, located on the northermmost boundary of
Swakopmund’s municipal area. This parcel lies immediately adjacent to the southern boundary of state
fand but remains wholly within the municipal jurisdiction, see attached map of Municipality of
Swakopmund.

4. Valuation and Nature of Operations

Land Valuation:

The figure of USD $50,000 was proposed purely as an estimated reference point for
unserviced, light industrial-zoned land situated at the far edge of the municipality. We fully
respect that Council's appointed valuer will determine the appropriate purchase price. That
said, we would greatly appreciate the opportunity to negotiate the final price within reason,
taking into account the nature of the land, its current state, and the long-term benefits the
studio will bring to the municipality.

Nature of Business:

We wish 10 underscore that DDFSN is not a content-producing company, but rather a facility
provider and sidlls development institution. Our primary function is to host and support film
and television produtctions—Ilocal and intermational—by providing infrastructure, logistics, and
access to skilled crew members.

The training component of our project is central to our mission. DDFSN will operate an in-
house education and apprenticeship program to equip Namibian citizens with the technical
and creative skills required in the film and television industry. This initiative aims to reduce
reliance on imported crew, while simultaneously increasing local employment opportunities.
interns will be paid during their training phase, though at rates aligned with global industry
standards for trainee roles. Upon qualification, Namiblan crew members will receive equal
pay to their international counterparts performing the same functions.

This long-term strategy ensures skills transfer, industry growth, and broader economic benefit
for Swakopmund and Namibia at large.

We thank you for the opportunity to provide this additional information and clarification. Please do
not hesitate to reach out for any further details or discussion as the matter progresses. We remain
committed to working closely with the Council to realise this significant project.

Warm regards,

G.R.
On
Partner
Tel: 081

A,

#f of Desert Dunes Film Studios (Namibia) Pty L1d. (DDFSN)

127 9858

guy@imwe com.na

Desert Dunes Film Studios Namibia (Pty) Ltd
Registration number (2021/0118) | PO Box 2209, Swakopmund, Namibia
GR Nockels (South African) | J Russell (Canadian) | AG Williams (Canadian)
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RESUBMITTED: OLUGA TRADING ENTERPRISE (PTY) LTD: CURRENT
SITUATION REGARDING THE DEVELOPMENT OF A PORTION OF LAND
LOCATED ON THE BANKS OF THE SWAKOP RIVER

(C/M 2025/10/03 - 16/1/4/2/1/5)

Ordinary Management Committee Meeting of 11 September 2025,
Addendum 7.11 page 180refers.

This item was submitted to the Management Committee for consideration:

1. Purpose of the Submission

The purpose of this submission is for Council to consider whether it intends
to continue with the long outstanding transaction for the sale of a portion of
land (1 ha) along the Swakop riverbanks to Oluga Enterprises (Pty) Ltd
(hereinafter referred to as "“Oluga”) for the development of an
accommodation establishment.

Point (i) of Council’s decision made on 27 April 2017 is quoted:

(i) That the applicant takes note that no rights will accrue to the applicant unless
all the above mentioned conditions are complied with in full and all the
relevant authorities have given the necessary permission, if applicable.

The application for the allocation of 3 ha was initially approved on 27 April
2017 and the size was reduced to 1 ha and approved by Council on 28
March 2018.

Although the progress of the installation of services to Extension 32,
Swakopmund (located in the vicinity of this portion of land), has an effecton
the development of the accommodation establishment, it does not hamper
the requirement for Oluga to provide proof of financing for the project.

Various consultations were held with Ms H Dula of Oluga and it was
explained repeatedly on numerous occasions in the presence of several
different potential investors and friends of Ms Dula that the allocation of the
land is to Oluga for the establishment of an accommodation facility and not
for mere speculation. Ms H Dula offered the undeveloped property to a
number of entities for sale.

Below a map showing the location of the portion located to Oluga south of
Extension 36, Swakopmund:

— — —
82 jgprapazsd

sa8 8 Fig3ssast’

2. Introduction

Oluga has not fully complied and has not submitted all the documents as
required in terms of the latest letter addressed to them dated 20 January
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2025 (Annexure “A"). The following information was requested to be
submitted by the entity by 09 May 2025:

Proof of the appointment and payment of a town planner to attend to
the subdivision of the portion of land measuring approximately 10,000 m2.
This is required in terms of the two Council resolutions quoted below:

Council’s resolution of 27 April 2017 under item 11.1.33, point (j):

“j)  Thatthe applicant takes note that a Surveyor-General approved diagram must
be in place in order to finalise the transaction.”

Council’s resolution of 28 March 2018 under item 11.1.4, point{(c)”

“lc) That the transaction be concluded within 120 days from date when the
Surveyor-General approved diagram is in place.”

The appointment of a town planner is the responsibility of the developer. In
this regard see point (h) of Council’s decision passed on 27 April 2017:

“th)  That all costs related to this transaction (advertising-, subdivision-, rezoning
etc.) be borne by the applicant.”

Provide formal proof of the entity’s ability to finance the project, as well
as a clear description of the project and the buildings expected to be
erected on site (see point (c) (iv) below), in order for Council to measure
progress and performance. This requirement is in terms of Council's
decision made on 25 February 2021 under item 11.1.4 (e):

“le)  Thatin future developers be screened to determine their financial capabilities
to perform and any other matter Council deemed necessary.”

A good standing from the Ministry of Finance for Oluga. This is a
standard requirement by the Deeds Registry Office in order to enable
transfer of ownership.

As elaborated under point 4 below, the developer submitted documents
on 09 May 2025. However, the proof of the entity’s ability to finance the
project was in the name of Howard Krogh Architects.

The involvement of a third party to which Council has no contractual
obligations complicates the relationship between Council and Oluga in that
Council has no recourse against the third party, basically stepping into the
place/part of Oluga.

Background
On 20 July 2016, Oluga applied to purchase a portion of land on the banks

of the Swakop river with the intention to establish a tourism and
accommodation facility in the form of a lodge.

For ease of reference, the resolutions are quoted as part of the submission
and not attached as annexures.

Their application was approved on 27 April 2017 under item 11.1.33,
subject to the following conditions (for ease of reference comments are
made for clarification):

“(a)  That Council sells a portion of land on

the banks of the Swakop River to On the official company registration
document of the entity Ms Helena
Dula is the sole shareholder and Mr
Dennis de Wet as Directors.
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Messrs Oluga Enterprises (Pty) Ltd to
establish a tourism and
accommodation facility as per their
presentation to  the  Special
Management Committee meeting
held on 08 March 2017.

(b)  That should the application of Messrs Oluga be approved, the same terms
and conditions applicable as that of Messrs Desert Breeze Lodge be
applicable to Messrs Oluga Enterprises (Pty) Ltd as below:

(c)  Thatthe following conditions be made applicable to the sale of the portion of
the Swakopmund Townlands, 30 000m?2 in extent adjacent to the Swakop
River, to Messrs Desert Breeze Lodge as approved by Council on 30 July 2015
under item 11.1.8:

(i} That the Engineering Services Department determines the intended
zoning.

(ii) That Engineering Services Department supplies a layout plan of the
land to be sold.

(i}  That the probable market
valuation based on the

intended zoning be obtained On 28 March 2018 under item 11.1.4

from  Council’s appointed Council approved the purchase price
municipal valuators and two  p inthe amountof N$ 430.00/m? i.e
additional valuators of which N$ 4 300 000.00 for a portion of land
the average of the three measuring 10 000m2.

valuations be used to
determine a purchase price, 7
for consideration and approval

by Council.

(iv)  That a detailed development plan be provided before any statutory
procedures are started with.

(v}  That any required upgrading of Municipal services be for the
applicant’s account.

(vi) That  the requirements On 16 July 2018 approval was granted by
f"egardln[:;l the alienation of the Ministry of Urban and Rural
JaieErells RESHERY &S Development to proceed with the

f\ﬁﬁ;ﬁieez Ac’tn23 ;’;61 9950('::5/ transaction. The transaction is pending
¥ the provision of a Surveyor-General

amended), and the Townships

Ordinance . 11 .of 1963 approved diagram by the developer.
respectively, be dealt with
successfully.

(vii)  That the applicant to provide all infrastructure for its own account and
to the specifications of the Engineering Services Department and
Erongo RED.

(viii) That no development be permitted to commence until the statutory
disciplines have been completed.

(d) That the following procedures also be applicable:

(i) That the applicant be
responsible for all statutory
disciplines to be completed
within 12 months from date of
sale at their own cost.

The “date of sale” is the date of
signing the deed of sale.
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(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

(i)

(4)
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(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

{vii)

Council is in the process of expanding
the existing external services closer to
the location of the portion of land.

external services within 24
months from date of sale.

The whole development project must |
from date of sale and if no development is made in terms of the
conditions of the agreement of sale the property shall revert to Council
without any compensation to the purchaser.

Completion of internal and }

concluded and signed within 12 description is available, i.e a Surveyor-General
months after this resolution is approved diagram is in place. On 03 August 2018
received by the applicant and 23 March 2023 ENSafrica was requested to

4 P .
failing which the resolution will compile a draft agreement.
lapse.

That the agreement of sale be l The deed of sale can only be signed once a property

That in terms of the Property )

Policy, a deposit of N$100 On 26 June 2018, Slowtown Coffee Roasters
000.00 be required of the \ CC(MrDennisde Wet)paid the required
applicant to cover all fees and deposit as director of Oluga Trading

costs to Council, within 90 days Enterprise (Pty) Ltd.

from date of being informed of  /
this Council resolution.

The purchase price to be secured by means of a bank guarantee
payable on date of transfer.

Submit total layout plans, indicating the infrastructure, details of the
project as well as the service demand for the intended project within 3
months of being notified of the approval of the application.

That the applicant indemnifies Council against any claims resulting from
blasting.

That the action referred to in (a)(vi), only be proceeded with once the deposit
referred to in (b)(v), has been made.

That all costs relating to the transfer of this erf, (including but not limited to
transfer duty, conveyancer’s costs, compilation of Agreement of Sale, as well
as any legal or other costs that may arise from this application), be for the
applicant’s account.

That all costs related to this transaction (advertising-, subdivision-, rezoning
etc.) be borne by the applicant.

That the applicant takes note that no rights will accrue to the applicant unless
all the above mentioned conditions are complied with in full and all the
relevant authorities have given the necessary permission, if applicable.

That the applicant takes note that a
Surveyor-General approved diagram
must be in place in order to finalise the

In this regard a letter dated 17 May 2024
was issued to the developer.

transaction.”

The above resolution was communicated to Oluga per letter dated 22 May
2017.

On 28 March 2018 under item 11.1.4 Council approved the reduction of
the size of the portion of land from 3 ha to 1 ha and approved the purchase
price of the said portion of land:

“(a)

That Council approves the purchase price of undeveloped land on the banks
of the Swakop River at:
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(i) N$430.00/m? x 10 000m? = N§4 300 000.00, excluding VAT to Messrs Oluga

Enterprises (Pty) Ltd.

(b)  Thatupon acceptance of the purchase o ]
price by the purchasers, Ministerial As indicated above, the required
approval be obtained in terms of approval was granted on 16 July
Section 30 (1) (t) of the Local 2018.

Authorities Act 23 of 1992 to proceed
with the transaction.

(c) That the transaction be concluded in this regard, a letter dated 17 May 2024
within 120 days from date when the was issued requesting the submission of a
Surveyor-General approved diagram Surveyor-General approved diagram.

is in place.

(d)  Thatpayment ofthe purchase price be secured either in cash or bank guarantee
in favour of the Swakopmund Municipality within 120 days from date of the
Surveyor-General approved plan in place. Failure to secure the purchase price
will result in cancellation of the transaction without further notice.

(e)  That Messrs Oluga Enterprises (Pty) Ltd comply with the statutory processes
until completion of the projects.

A letter dated 22 November 2018 was addressed to the entity to provide
the outstanding documents in terms of the above decision. No response
was received from the applicant. Upon further inquiry, it was determined
that the lack of response was due to insufficient funds as well as a lack of
understanding of the concept of the transaction on the part of Oluga
Enterprise Pty Ltd.

Over the years, various meetings and discussions of the transaction were
held between Council and Ms Helena Dula of Oluga with her different
representatives and letters were written to her to clarify of what is expected
of the applicant to comply and submit to Council in order to continue with
the transaction. The details of the transaction were explained on numerous
occasions and even in the presence of translators.

Although the development of the two adjacent portions is also held in
abeyance pending the installation of services to Extension 32,
Swakopmund, the developers paid the respective purchase prices and
transfer of ownership was finalized.

Current Situation

An email dated 22 April 2025 (Annexure “B") was received from Howard
Krogh Architects stating that they were appointed to act on behalf of Oluga
to facilitate the purchase and develop the allocated portion of land on the
banks of the Swakop river.

It appears from the various discussions and documents that Howard Krogh
Architects intends to acquire the portion of land from Oluga and
development same.

They state in their e-mail that they have appointed Andrew Van der
Westhuizen Town Planning & Properties as town planner who has been
working on the statutory process; and they have also recently appointed
Herman Strydom a land surveyor to further assist in the subdivision process
in order to speed up the process. In this email they requested for a meeting
to discuss the way forward regarding Oluga.
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Subsequent to the above, On 24 April 2025 a meeting was held between
the representatives of Howard Krogh Architects, the Manager: Property and
Housing Mr M Kruger, the Property Office Ms N Gustaf and the property
officer, Ms E Nakale.

In the meeting, Howard Krogh Architects wanted to clarify all enquiries
regarding the transaction and to confirm their intention of assisting Oluga
and that they will take full responsibility to facilitate the successful
development of the portion land.

During the meeting, the Manager: Property and Housing made it clear
Howard Krogh Architects who is acting on behalf of Oluga that if the
documents required are not submitted by the set due date the transaction
will be cancelled.

The final opportunity to provide the outstanding documents to Council was
09 May 2025.

As can be seen from the attached email dated 08 May 2025 (Annexure
#C") and documents submitted by Howard Krogh Architects, appointed to
act on behalf of Oluga Trading Enterprise did not manage to submit all
required documents to Council as undertook, they only managed to submit
the following documents listed:

letter from appointed Town Planner (Van Der Westhuizen Town Planner &
Properties) to attend to the subdivision of the portion of land; and a

letter from Bank Windhoek confirming Mr and Ms Howard are in good
standing to complete the project on behalf of Oluga.

In addition the above, Mr and Ms Howard have also submitted additional
documents important to the transaction;

(i)  Resolution appointing Mr. de Wet as Shareholder;

(i) Share Certificates; and

(i) The power of attorney signed by both Mr De Wet and Ms Dula,
authorising Howard Krogh Architects to act on behalf of Oluga.

A good standing certificate from the Ministry of Finance for Oluga Trading
Enterprise Pty Ltd is still outstanding.

Ms Ciske Howard confirmed in the email that the good standing
confirmation from the Ministry of Finance for Oluga Trading Enterprise is in
progress as the company is dormant.

On 22 May 2025 Ms Ciske Howard enquired on the way forward and a
reply was sent to confirm that the matter must be submitted to Council to
consider whether Council intends to proceed with the transaction.

Discussion

The portion of land allocated to Oluga is located on the site neighbouring
the portions already allocated to Santiago Property Developers being +7ha,
and Swakopmund River Eco Consortium being +3.5ha and Desert Breeze
Lodge being +3ha

A map indicating the location of the portion of land is attached as Annexure
"D". Except for Desert Breeze Lodge, these portions of land are not yet
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serviced, and they are in an area that is rapidly expanding with numerous
future extensions that are already planned and approved by Council.

Council secured funds with Erongo Red to develop Extensions 32, 33 and
36, Swakopmund. Until the main service lines are not installed, no services
will be available for Oluga to connect to.

After the matter was considered, the following was:-

RECOMMENDED:

(a)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

(i)

()

That Council takes note of the email dated 08 May 2025 and
documents received from Howard Krogh Architects acting on behalf of
Oluga Trading Enterprise (Pty) Ltd in reply to Council’s letter dated 20
January 2025 executing Council’s decision passed on 27 April 2017
under 11.1.33 point (j) and on 28 March 2018 under item 11.1.4, point
(c).

That Council takes note that in terms of Council decisions mentioned in
(a) above, Howard Krogh Architects, acting on behalf of Oluga Trading
enterprise, complies and submits a good standing certificate from the
Ministry of Finance.

That Council grants an extension of time to Oluga Trading Enterprise
(Pty) Ltd, for a further period of twelve (12) months to perform as per
the initial conditions approved by Council, and that no township
subdivision be allowed.

That it be noted that the proof of financing is not issued in the name of
Oluga Trading Enterprise (Pty) Ltd, but in the personal names of Mr D
and Ms C Howard, and that Oluga Trading Enterprise (Pty) Ltd be
requested to submit the proof of financing.

That Oluga Trading Enterprise (Pty) Ltd, shareholding
structure/ownership should NOT be amended.

That Clause 7.5 of the Property Policy be complied with in terms of
purchase price escalation which is prescribed as follows:

(i) Should a period of more than one year, but less than 5 years, lapse since
Council approved a purchase price, the purchase price be escalated with
5% per annum and be submitted to Council for approval.

(ii)  Should a period of more than five years lapse since approval by Council
of the purchase price, fresh valuations be obtained and submitted to
Council for approval.

That the transaction be concluded within 120 days from date when the
Surveyor-General approved diagram is in place.

That ministerial approval be obtained as a result of the change of the
purchase price due to price escalation.
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' SWAKOPMUND
! The Centre uj[ Adventire

Ref No: 16/4/8/2/1/5

Enquiries: Ms Emilia Nakale

20 January 2028
Oluga Enterprises (Pty) Ltd
P O Box 2840

Swakopmund
13001

Attention: Ms Helena Dula

Dear Madam

DEVELOPMENT OF A PORTIOM OF LAND LOCATED ON THE BANKS OF THE SWAKOP
RIVER

Our letter dated 17 May 2024 refars (attached for ease of referance).

V. Proof Required in terms of our Letter dated 17 May 2024

Thes serves to confirm that the following was not yet provided as required in the above
{etter:

11 A diagram for the subdivided portion of land.
1.2 Proof of your financiai capacity to finance the project.

2.  Reievant Councl Resolutions

The rel Council futions are quoted below with explanatory notas
2.1 Council's Resolution gassed on 27 Agril 2017 under item 11.1.33

“ta) That Council sells a portion of fand on the
banks of the Swakop River to Messrs Oluga | Attached is the official company
Entarprises (Pty) Ltd to establish a tourism | cegistration document of the
and omn—o‘:d:-.- facility as per their [ oty indicating Helena Dula and

& i w q 5
presentation s 2017. Dennis de Wet as Directors




(b)

(e

(d)
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2

That should the application of Messrs Oluga be approved, the same terms and
conditions applicable as that of Messrs Desert Breeze Lodge be applicable to
Messrs Oluga Enterprises (Pty) Ltd as below:

That the following conditions be made applicable to the sale of the portion of the
Swakopmund Townlands, £30 000m? in extent adjacent to the Swakop River, to
Messrs Desert Breeze Lodge as approved by Council on 30 July 2015 under item
11.1.8:

(i)
(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(wii)

That the Engineering Services Department determines the intended zoning.

That Engineering Services Department Attached is a map indicating the

supplies a layout plan of the land to be location of the portion of land.
sold.

That the probable marsket valuation
based on the intended zoning be On 28 March 2018 under item
obtained from Council’s appointed 11.1.4 Council approved the
municipal valuators and two additional purchase price in the amount of
valuators of which the average of the NS$ 430.00/m?3, i.e

three valuations be used to determine NS$ 4 300 000.00 for a portion of
a purchase price, for consideration and land measuring 10 000m2,
appraval by Councll.

That a detailed development plan be provided before any statutory
procedures are started with.

That any required upgrading of Municipal services be for the applicant’s
account.

On 16 July 2018 approval was
That the requirements regarding the granted by the Ministry of Urban
alienation of immovable property as
gr;‘:;‘b::o;" t{: L:;:L‘:::";’or::: fh‘: proceed wish the tran saction. The
Townships Ordinance 11 of 1963 transaction Is pending the
respectively, be dealt with provision of a Surveyor-General
successfully. approved diagram by you.

and Rura! Development to

That the applicant to provide all infrastructure for its own account and to
the specifications of the Engineering Services Department and Erongo RED.

{viii) That no development be permitted to commence until the statutory

disciplines have been completed.

That the following procedures also be applicable:

(i}

(ii)

That the applicant be responsible for " .
all “‘m:::y dlsclpﬂn:s % be T_he ' date of sale® is the date of
completad within 12 months from date signing the deed of sale.
of sale at their own cost.

Council is in the process of
Completion of internal and external expanding the existing external
services within 24 months from date of services closer to the location of
sale. the portion of land.
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(iif} The whole development project must be completed within 48 months from
date of sale and if no development is made in terms of the conditions of the
agreement of sale the property shall revert to Council without any
compensation to the purchaser.
The deed of sale can only be signed once
(iv) That the agreement of sale be| aproperty description isavailabie iea
concluded am'i signed within 12 | Syryeyor-General approved diagram is in
months after this resolution is received place. On 03 August 2018 and 23 March
by the applicant, failing which the

rasoliblon will lapse. 2023 ENSafrica was requested to compile

a draft agreement.

(v}  That in terms of the Property Policy, a
deposit of N§100 000.00 be required | On 24 June 2018, Slowtown Coffee

of the applican.t to cover all fees and | Roasters CC (Mr Dennis de Wet) paid
costs to Council, within 90 days from o roquired deposit as director of

date of being informed of this Council . .
resolution. Oluga Trading Enterprise (Pty) Ltd.

(vi) The purchase price to be secured by means of a bank guarantee payable an
date of transfer.

(vii) Submit total layout plans, indicating the infrastructure, details of the project
as well as the service demand for the intended project within 3 months of
being notified of the approval of the application.

(e)  Thattha applicant indemnifies Council against any claims resulting from blasting.

(f) That the action referred to in (a)}{vi), only be proceeded with once the deposit
referred to in (b)(v), has been made.

(g) That all costs relating to the transfer of this erf, (including but not limited to
transfer duty, conveyancer’s costs, compilation of Agreement of Sale, as well as
any legal or other costs that may arise from this application), be for the
applicant’s account.

(h) That all costs related to this transaction (advertising-, subdivision-, rezoning etc.)
be borne by the applicant.

(i) That the applicant takes note that no rights will accrue to the applicant unless all
the above mentioned conditions are complied with in full and all the relevant
authorities have given the necessary permission, if applicable.

(1)) That the applicant takes note that a Surveyar- | |n this regard, also see our attached
General approved diagram must be in place ' |.q.r Jated 17 May 2024,
in order to finalise the transaction.”

Council's Resolution passed on 28 March 2018 under [tem 11.1.4

“(a) That Council approves the purchase price of undeveloped land on the banks of
the Swakop River at:

(i)  N$430.00/m’ x 10 000m? = NS4 300 000.00, excluding VAT to Messrs
Oluga Enterprises (Pty) Ltd.
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(b)  That upon acceptance of the purchase price o )
by the purchasers, Ministarial approval be As indicated above, the required
obtained in terms of Section 30 (1) (t) of the ~ 3oprovalwas granted on 16 July
Local Authorities Act 23 of 1992 to proceed 2018
with the transaction.
in this regard, please also see our
(e} That the transaction be concluded within 120 attached letter dated 17 May 2024
days from date when the Surveyor-General requesting the submission of a

approved diagram is in place. Surveyor-General approved diagran

{d)  That payment of the purchase price be secured either in cash or bank guarantee in
favour of the Swakopmund Municipality within 120 days from date of the
Surveyor-General approved plan in place. Failure to secure the purchase price
will result in cancellation of the transaction without further notice.

(e}  That Messrs Oluga Enterprises {Pty) Ltd comply with the statutory processes until
completion of the projects.

A letter dated 22 November 2018 was addressed to you to provide the outstanding
documents in terms of the above decision,

Conclusion

(n conclusion, as was requested in our letter dated 17 May 2024 you are required to
provide the following documents by Friday, 09 May 2025

3.1 Proof of the appointment and payment of a town planner to attend to the
subdivision of the portion of land measuring approximately 10 000m?. This is
required in terms of the two Council resolutions quoted below:

11.1 Council’s resolution of 27 April 2017 under item 11.1.33, point {j}

“(j)  That the applicant takes note that a Surveyor-General approved diagram |
must be in place in order to finalise the transaction.”

3.1.2 Council's resolution of 28 March 2018 under item 11.1.4, point (e}

“fc) That the transaction be concluded within 120 days from date when the
I Surveyor-General approved diagram is in place.”

This is a task you are required to complete at your own cost. In this regard see point
(h) of Council’s decision passed on 27 April 2017

32  Provide formal proof of your ability to finance the project, as well as a clear
description of the project and the buildings expected to be erected on site, in order
for Council to measure progress and performance.,

3.3 A good standing from the Ministry of Finance for Oluga Trading Enterprise (Pty} Ltd.
This is a standard requirement by the Deeds Registry Office in order to enable
l transfar af nwnershin




160
Ordinary Council Meeting - 02 October 2025

Should the above information not be provided by 09 May 2028, the non-performance will
be reported to Council.

As soon as the above conditions are met, the deed of sale will be finalizad for signing.
List of attachments:

1. Ourletter dated 17 May 2024,

2.  The company registration documents (2017/0279) indicating Helana Dula and Dennis de
Wet as Directors.

3. Amap indicating the location of tha subjact portion of land.

4 Proof of Payment of the N$ 100 000.00 deposit by Slowtown Coffee Roasters CC (Mr
Dennis da Wat)

5. Ourletter dated 22 November 2018.

For any further enquiries, please do not hasitate to contact Ms E Nakale at & 064-4104217.

Yours faithfully 7

r. * g
GM: CORPORATE SERVICES & HC

en



161
Ordinary Council Meeting - 02 October 2025

“ANNEXURE B”
Emilia Nakale | Property Officer | Corporate Services & Human Capital | +264 64 410 4217
From: Ciske Howard < Zhka =>
Sent: Tuesday, 22 April 2025 09:54 AM
To: Emilia Nakale < >, Andre Plaatjie < tia@sw ki na>
Cc: Desmond Howard < Srng>
Subject: Oluga Trading erf

Dear Mrs Nakale

As per the attached documentation and the email below, we have recently been appointed
to act on behalf of Oluga Trading Enterprises to facilitate the successful realization of this
development.

We kindly request your urgent assistance regarding the following matters:

1. Land Parcel Clarification
The diagram attached to this letter (Ref No: 16/1/4/2/1/5) appears to indicate that the
relevant land is adjacent to Desert Breeze Guest House. However, | spoke with Ms.
Stephny Bruwer on Thursday, and she confirmed that the land in question is further
down the riverbanks, not the area shown.
Please provide us with the correct diagram of this erf to ensure we are working with
the correct parcel.

Proof of Appointment and Payment for Town Planning and Surveying

e Andrew van der Westhuizen has been working on this, and we have recently
appointed Herman Strydom Land Surveyors to further assist in the subdivision
process.

e We have temporarily put this on hold to first confirm the correct parcel with your
office.

. Additional Documentation

e Formal proof of finances will be provided by the due date.
Good standing confirmation from the Ministry of Finance for Oluga Trading is in
progress; as the company is dormant, we do not anticipate any issues.

In light of the above, we kindly request a meeting with your office at your earliest
convenience to discuss these matters further. We are aware that this is a sensitive and
historically complex property, and we want to ensure transparency and clear communication
throughout the process.

From our side, we have maintained meticulous documentation to keep all parties informed
and have explicitly advised Ms. Helena Dula that all communication with the municipality and
council will be coordinated through our office.

Our primary goal is to facilitate this transaction successfully and achieve the best possible
outcome for all involved. We recognize that this project aims to support a previously
disadvantaged woman, and we are committed to executing our mandate with the utmost

sensitivity and dedication to this objective.

Please indicate a suitable time for us to meet and discuss the next steps as a matter of
urgency.

Thank you for your prompt attention to this matter.
Thank you

Ciske
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HOWARDKROGH
A RECHITEGLTS
CISKE HOWARD +264 81 6817211
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“ANNEXURE C”
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-
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TOWN PLAMNING & PROPERTEIES

8 May 2025
Dear Sir,

APPLICATION FOR SUBDIVISION OF FARM NO. 166, SWAKOPMUND, INTO PORTION
A AND REMAINDER.

Apglication is herewith made to Council m terms of the Urban and Regional Planning Act,
on behalf of the Oluga Enterprises (Pty) Lid. for the Subdivision of Farmn No. 166,
Swakopmund. into Portion A and Remamder (Annexure C1)

1. BACKGROUND

Oluga Enterprises (Ply) Lid entered into a sales agneement with Council b acquire the said
Portion A. In order to effectively comply with the expected requirements communicated o
the developer it is needed to perform the statutory processes to first create proposed Porion
A

The omginal Council resalution was taken i Apnl 2017 but due to the fact that development
will be problematic without services the project sialled. The Swakopmund Municipal Council
recently rescived o service extensions 32 and 33 thus bnnging senwces in close proxmity
of the area. This application is aimead at formally creating the proposed Portion A in order for
the saie of the property to be concuded.

2 LOCALITY AND SIZE

Proposed Portion A of the Farm Mo 166, Swakopmund, measures 1 iha or 10 000m? n
extent and is located along Duneside Avenue on the southem boundary of Swakopmund
{Annexure A). The site is located in an area hat is ragudly expanding with numerous future
mentioned, Ext 32 Swakopmund, is soon to be serviced and the Municipality will release
more erven to the Morth and Northeast in Ext 33_etc.

From: Ciske Howard <ciske@hka.com.na>

Sent: Thursday, 08 May 2025 04:47 PM

To: Mahne Kruger <mkruger@swkmun.com.na>; Emilia Nakale <enakale@swkmun.com.na>
Cc: Ndiili Gustaf <ngustaf@swkmun.com.na>; Desmond Howard <des@hka.com.na>
Subject: Re: Oluga Trading erf

Good Afternoon All,

| am pleased to report and attach the proof of submission for the subdivision of the parcel of
land.

Please see attached.

Please acknowledge receipt thereof and whether we could possibly schedule a meeting at
your earliest convenience to discuss.

Thank you

Ciske
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Bank Windhoek

& ey ot Copraoes Growp
Financa Brarch

PO Box 23072
WK H House
7584 Jan Jomker Road
Ausspannplatz Centre
Winghoek
Mamibia

0GR Te: +264 51 299 0500
Fax' +264 61 290 0551

Municipality of Swakopmund

PO Box 53

S akopmund

Mamibea

Dear Sir / Madam

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT PROJECT — OLUGA TRADING ENTERPRISES

mmmw.wwams.mmnmmmmm
Windhoek and p n track record in project develupment with our Institution,
MMMMMLMMM.NWWM
m;mmnm&ntrﬂmmumdm

alduic‘smbeenonaumuﬁﬁmwmdmwmwﬂnﬁbunmﬂy
met.

Based on the information avadable 10 us, we can confirm that they have compbed with all
mhmmmmmmamwdacmdwmwnm
mmmmmmﬂmm'ﬂmﬂemummmammm

mmmummmmawnzmmw.w&m Semith or thes
nomines, Oluga Trading Enterrises for develop " purp bject to the Bank's normeal
credit onitena, terms and conditions.

m:mmmawnnmmmwmmw hgwever arsmg, on
our part mmmmmmhmmmlwmmm mdaect,
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SPECIAL POWER OF ATTORNEY

We, the undersigned,

OLUGA TRADING ENTERPRISE (PROPRIETARY) LIMITED
Company No 2017/0279

Herein represented by DENNIS DE WET on behalf of EL PORTA INVESTMENTS
©C AND HELENA DULA on behalf of FIMANEKENI INVESTMENTS CC, they being
the shareholders of the above-mentioned company and duly authorised herein

do heraby nominate, constitute and appoint

HOWARD KROGH ARCHITECTS

Herein representad by DESMOND HENRY HOWARD. being a partner, and duly
authorised herein

with power of Substilution, to be my lawful Atomey and Agent in my name, place and
stead, to exacute any of the following documents:

1 Anry documant whatsoever required 0 be signed by the Municipal Council of
Swakopmund and to appoinl consultants for services such as land surveying
and town planning amongst other specifically pertaining to the property on ofter
from the municipality;

2 Any document whaisoever required to be signed by Erongo Red and to appoint
consultants for sarvices such as land surveying ard town planning amongst other
spectfically pertaining to the property on offer from the municipality

3 Any document whatsoever required 1o be signed by Surveyor General and o
appoint consultants for services such as land surveying and town planning
amongs! cther specifically panairing to the property on offer from the municipality

4 Any document required to be signed by any service provider or contractor or
agent or purchaser of supplier or banking institution and 0 appoint consullants
for services such as land surveying and town planning amengst cther spedcifically
pertaining lo the property on offer from the municipaiily ;

and tc sign or initial any amendmenis or afterations ¢f a formal nature that may have to
be made n any of the above-mentioned documents and generally for effecting the
purpeses aforesaid, to do or cause fc be done whatscever shall be requisite, as fully
and effq;ctually, for all intents and purposes, as | might or could do if personally presenrt
and acting herein-heredy ratifying, allowing and confirming and promising and agreeing
to ralify. allow and cenfirm all and whatscever my saig Allomey and Agent shall
lawfully do, ar cause to be done, by virlue of these presonts
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SIGNED al SWAKCPMUND this € dayof Lafus 2025
in the presence of the underiigned witnesses.

AS WITNESSES
Hr= Ve J

1

. A tan~ L
DENNIS UE'WET ON BEHALF OF
EL. PORTA INVESTMENTS CC

-

SIGNED at SWAKOPMUND this (§  cayot pIaeed! 2025
in the presence of the undersigned withesses

wru;3~sss.

1 ﬁ@;{’(wg
7 /2'{,9-5/4'.?4 Waw—é
2 M il _ Hetena

}\'{ N?A' P HELENA DULA ON BEHALF OF

FIMANEKEN! INVESTMENTS CC

21



_,.

el [ —————.
et —
Hemtmn —

Secretarial Servicas ¢
SEC DEPT 8SC

23 August 2019

The Directors
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Private Bag 12012, Ausspannplatz, Windhoek, Namibia

Unit 5, Ground Floor, Ausspann Plaza. Dr Agostinho Neto Road,
Windhoek, Namibia

Tel: +2684-61-429850 o Fax: +264-61-429855

BY HAND

Oluga Trading Enterprizses (Pty) Ltd

P O Box 2860,
Swakopmund,
Namibia

Attention: Ms Halen Dula

Dear Madam

OLUGA TRADING ENTERPRISES (PTY) LTD

REG NO.: 2017/0279

Wae refer to the above company and herewith attach the following original company documents

as requested:

- Original signed Director’s resolution dated 03/07/2018;

- Form CM29 - Register of Directors (16/07/2018}.
Form CM27 — Consent 1o act as director (03/07/2018} atfached to the CM29;

- Original signed share transfer forms (X2) together with original cancellad share certificate 1
and letter of indemnity dated 03/07/2018;

- Original signed Share Certificates No's 2 and 3 dated 63/07/2018.

Yours faithfully

L and B Secrataria! Services CC f hereby acknowledge receipt of all the documents.

{l
' I"J-‘

S KURZ (Mrs) -

SIGNATURE T ‘

Company Secietdrial Services ‘
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Oluga Trading Enterprise (Pty) Ltd

Reqg-stration Mo 2017/0279

RESOLUTION PASSED BY THE DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY ON 03 JULY 2018 -~

RESOLVED-

THAT the appmntment as director of DENMIS DE WET. be and is hersby accepted and
confirmed;

THAT the following tranafer of shares. be and is hereby accenied and confimed;
o~
90 (Ninety) Ordinary shares from HELENA DULA to EL POTRA INVESTMENTS CC;

e
10 (Ten) Ordinary shares from HELENA DULA to FIMANEKEN!I INVESTMENT CC.

I = ool R o =N —

DIRECTOR
H DULA
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Form CM 29
REPUBLIC OF NAMIBIA
COMPANIES ACT 2004
(Sections 224(2), 284, 328(1). 331(1) and 333(1)) (Regulation 46 1 )

CONTENTS OF REGISTER OF DIRECTORS, AUEHTORS AND OFFICERS'

h—

) . . Number of

Companies Registration Office | Regnstronn umpere Companyz l Bl ﬁlﬁiﬂrilﬂ sﬂm o ! |
PO Box 21214 201710279 ¢ !
WINDHOEK | R S _mac!ﬂrhlmpfcd_im |

NAMIBIA

OLUGA TRADING ENTERPRISE {PROPRIETARY) LIMITED
Name and postal address of Company

P O BOX 2880, SWAKOPMUND, NAMIBIA

Ratuen of particulars as at Lo o 03 JULY 2098, ... vooeveneneannriesar e i e ammenmnats

1. HELENA DULA . — R — ~ ===
(name of ditector eloefiver)

+a that, the written consent of tha direclors of officers whote namea appess In thig retum have been obigined an a duly completed
+ CM 27, the ditectors or officers are not disqualified under 3achon 225.

Sgned breeleine, ——

Date 03 JULY 2040 o . i m—

A.  Directors

KEY 10 PERSONAL PARTICULASS REQUIRER _ PERSONALPARTICULARS

}..f-, Surname . DUL: et
2 Fulforesames . .
NONE

|_3 Formue and forenames )
| Yaar Month | Day

4. Identity number o, if nat, available. dute of birth —— ! .
allrl'n]sa :0'|2 olo?s Iz =5] l

(8] Date of appointment
2IMARCH2017

HRECTOR. .
16 SWAKOP STREET, SWAKOPMUND, NAMIBIA l

(b} Deusignotion

. _Residuntial address

I.7 Busines dress R 15 SWMOE’ STREET, SWAKOPMUND, NA:‘_IBIA |
|
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REPUBLIC OF NAMIBIA

COMPANIES ACT 2004
(Sections 224i2), 284, 328(1), 331(1) and 333(1}) (Reguiation 46(1)}

CONTENTS OF REGISTER OF DIRECTORS, AUDITORS AND OFFICER

. ) i Registration Number of Compan !
Sompanigs Registration Office *9 pany Ravenue stamp ar

20 Box 21214 2017/0279 ! l ravanue franking
1

NINDHQEK o - machine impressicn
NAMIBIA N$10,00

\ame and gostal address of Company OLUGA TRADING ENTERPRISE (PROPRIETARY) LIMITED B

_— e,

2 0 BOX 2860, SWAKOPMUND, NAMIBIA

Rewrn of particulars as at s rarere e DS JULY 2018,

. HELENA DULA

(name of director ofaticer)

‘s that, the writlen congent of the directors or officers whose namas appear in (hie relurn have baen oblained on 2 duly completed

. CM 27, the directors or officers are not disquailfied under section 225.

signed  __ bleetaainc .

Jate 03 JULY 2018

A, Directors
KEY TD PERSONAL PARTICULARS REGUIRED = PERSCNAL PARTICULARS

1 Surmmme — = _WLA
2 Full forenames . HELENS S - |
MONE

3 Fesmer sumame ard farensmes -

. ) Year + Manth Day |
4 tgenity number or, if not, avasdable, date of birth |

8 |7 oJ_9:0|2?o[0 ENERER

(8] Data of appoinimant 1
| 29 MARCH 2017

T {nj Designation

| oRecTOR

§._Residentia 15 S\WAKOP STREET, SWAKOPMUND, NAMIBIA

7. Business addivgs 15 SWAKQP STREET, SWAKOPWLIND, NAMIBIA

8 Postal agdress P O BOX 2660, SWAKOPIUND, NAMIBIA
.._Jy-—--u _ — . _— —

8. Nalionalty (f not Namibiar, S
10, Qecuration - {B’USINESSWOMAN ‘
' |
11. Resident in Namibla _(Yes or No) = 'tﬁi —— ] |

| NG CHANGE

12, Nature of change In 1 to § above ard date B
CM 29 PAGE 1
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“"ANNEXURE D”

.§
4
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1.

3.1.

3.2.

11.1.11 AUTOMATED STREET SWEEPING PILOT PROJECT
(C/M 2025/10/03 - 17/2/7/8)
Ordinary Management Committee Meeting of 11 September 2025,
Addendum 8.1 page 03 refers.

A. This item was submitted to the Management Committee for consideration:

Purpose

Purpose of this submission is to seek Council's consideration and
endorsement of a non-commercial, limited-duration Automated Street
Sweeping Pilot Project proposed by Namibia Sweeper Services
("NamSweep”), aimed at improving urban cleanliness, enhancing public
health and safety, and exploring sustainable municipal service innovations.

Background

In August 2024, Messrs NamSweep submitted their proposal for street
cleaning service for an eco-friendly road sweeper trucks pilot project
(Annexure "A"). Messrs NamSweep was directed to the office of the General
Manager: Engineering and Planning Services (GM:EPS) as the maintenance
and cleanliness of the road network is the Engineering and Planning
Services Department’s responsibility.

During August 2024, the GM:EPS engaged with the proponent to arrange
for the demonstration of their services. It is important to mention that the
demonstration of the services by Messrs NamSweep would be at their own
costs. Unfortunately, the pilot project did not materialise due to logistical
complications faced by Messrs NamSweep, when they tried to bring the
machinery into the country.

In April 2025, Messrs NamSweep submitted a proposal (Annexure "B") and
a comprehensive operational plan (Annexure “C") outlining a 3-month pilot
project to demonstrate the environmental, operational, and economic
benefits of automated street sweeping in the Swakopmund municipal area.

Proposed Pilot Project

Scope

Messrs NamSweep is proposing to clean approximately 300 km of roads,

which are in the CBD, Vineta, Kramersdorf, Ocean View, Tamariskia, and

Mondesa. The pilot is proposed to be over 3 months, and the operation will

be done twice weekly between the hours of 00:00 - 05:00 and 09:00 - 11:00.

Objective

It is the objective of this pilot project to,

(a) Improve Public Cleanliness: Boost urban hygiene and
Swakopmund's international image as a clean tourist destination.

(b)  Support Safety & Health: Reduce nighttime manual labour risks and
occupational hazards.
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3.4.

3.5.
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(c)  Preserve Employment: Complement, not replace, manual cleaning
teams. Includes staff upskilling and new job roles (operators,
coordinators, mechanics).

(d) TestEco-Solutions: Pilot uses low-emission vehicles with a long-term
plan to transition to electric or hydrogen-powered alternatives.

Pilot Phases

To obtain the objective of this pilot project, Messrs NamSweep is proposing
that the project be implemented in the following phases.

(a) Phase 1 - Setup
e Arrival and inspection of equipment
o Community awareness and stakeholder briefing

(b) Phase 2 - Implementation
e Street sweeping and debris collection
¢ Continuous maintenance and performance tracking

(c) Phase 3 - Monitoring & Evaluation
e Performance review against KPIs

o Public feedback sessions and academic collaboration (e.g., with
UNAM)
e Final report to inform future planning

Additional Benefits

Through the pilot project, Messrs NamSweep also highlights that, besides
the above-mentioned factors, the pilot project will also present benefits in
the sense of data collection and possibility as a case study for future
planning, namely:

Operational Efficiency: Area cleaned/hour, uptime, maintenance

(a) Environmental Impact: Reduction in dust/litter, air quality
improvements

(b) Economic Evaluation: Cost per km cleaned, cost-benefit analysis

(c) Public & Stakeholder Satisfaction: Survey results, number of
complaints

(d) Health & Safety: Reduction in injuries and occupational exposure

Risk Mitigation

As this pilot project will be interacting with pedestrian and vehicular traffic,
it is important that the risk of this project is minimized, and Messrs
NamSweep are presenting the following mitigating efforts to reduce or limit
the risk during the pilot exercise.

(a) Traffic Disruption: Mitigated via signage, communication
campaigns

(b) Mechanical Failure: On-call mechanic, daily inspections

(c)  Public Confusion: Public engagement via radio, print, and digital
media

(d) Environmental Concerns: All operations comply with emissions
and waste management standards



3.6.

175
Ordinary Council Meeting - 02 October 2025

Financial Implications
There are no financial obligations for Council during the pilot phase.

NamSweep will bear all costs related to equipment, staffing, operations,
and monitoring.

After the matter was considered, the following was:-

RECOMMENDED:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

That Council endorses the implementation of the proposed 3-month
pilot project by Namibia Sweeper Services.

That the General Manager: Engineering and Planning coordinate pilot
activities with Namibia Sweeper Services.

That a baseline study be conducted to determine the condition of the
streets before the commencement of the pilot project by means of pre-
and post-photos to demonstrate the effectiveness of the project.

That Namibia Sweeper Services submit a detailed report upon
conclusion of the pilot, including operational, environmental, and
economic findings, along with recommendations for scaling to the
General Manager: Engineering and Planning Services.
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ANNEXURE A

i

NamSweep

Ms. Lydia Mutenda

swakopmund Municipality 09 Aupust 2024
c/o of Daniel Kamho Ave, Rakotoka

P.O. Box 53

SWAKOPMUND

Dear Ms. Mutenda

PROPOSAL FOR STREET CLEANING SERVICES: PILOT PROJECT ECO-FRIENDLY ROAD SWEEPER
TRUCKS

| acknowledge receipt of your letter regarding my email sent on 03 August 2024.

Kindly, to clarify, we are interested in providing street cleaning services for the Swakopmund
municipality using our eco-friendly road sweeper trucks. We understand that all required services go
thwough the tender process, and we fully respectthis procedure.

as part of our efforts, our team had a meeting on 23rd July 2024 with Mr. Kationdoruzu, Mr.
Mwanangombe, and Ms. Neshuku to discuss our proposal. They are familiar with our proposed
methods and can brief the municipality internally.

Our goal is to demonstrate how our road sweeper rucks work, explain their benefits, and explore the
possibility of starting a pilot project. This could help the municipality make an informed decision when
the service goes to tender.

please let us know if this is something we can armange and how to proceed. | would be happy to discuss
this further at your convenience.

Yours sincerzly,

Lucius Muyehstiha
Q PR WA T

B ORI TeCCD T T

Q@ aar.a Pawer b throzr Pewriazmonh
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ANNEXURE B

Y

<1 h

NamSweep

Namibia Sweepers Services
7 Hugo Hahn Street

P.0. BOX 91591

Klein Windhoek

Windhoek, Namibia

Date: 14 April 2025
The Chief Executive Officer
Municipality of Swakopmund
Conmer of Rakotoka Street & Daniel Kamho Avenue
Swakopmund, Namibia
Dear Mr. A. Benjamin

RE: PROJECT SUMMARY FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION - AUTOMATED STREET SWEEPING PILOT
PROJECT

SUBMITTED BY: NAMIBIA SWEEPERS SERVICES

1. Executive Summary

Namibia Sweeper Services respectfully submits this project summary for consideration by Council
regarding the proposed implementation of a limited-duration, automated street sweeping pilot within
the jurisdiction of the Swakopmund. The undertaking seeks to demonstrate, on a non-commercial and
non-binding basis, the operational efficacy, environmental advantages, and occupational health
benefits of utilizing mechanical street sweeper vehicles in high-density traffic corridors — primarily
during nocturnal hours when manual operations pose elevated safety risks.

2. Human-Centered Technolegical Integration

The conceptual underpinning of this pilot is premised not on replacement, but on harmonious
integration. Manual street cleaners shall continue to serve an indispensable role within residential
precincts and other low-traffic zones during daytime hours, where automated interventions may be
neither efficient nor necessary. This initiative instead proposes a dual-model approach:

- Manual operatives form the Day Crew

- Automated sweeper vehicles operate as the Night Crew

Such coordination is designed to augment municipal service delivery through shared responsibility
and strategic deployment.

3. Preservation of Employment and Workforce Transition

Contrary to the perception that automization displaces labour, this project is designed to support the
creation of dignified employment opportunities in emerging urban maintenance roles, including:

- Equipment operators for night shifts

- Mechanical support and maintenance personnel

- Route and safety coordination staff

- Dperational data collection and logistics roles
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Namibia Sweeper Services is committed to facilitating reskilling and upskilling programmes, in
collaboration with the Municipality, to ensure that existing personnel and unemployed residents are
equipped to participate meaningfully in the transition towards modernized service models.

4. Environmental Commitment and Technological Transition

Whiist the long-term service framework of Namibia Sweeper Services envisages the deployment of
fully-electric or green hydrogen-powered street sweepers in alignment with national sustainability
objectives, the pilot initiative shall, for reasons of current availabllity and operational expedience, be
undertaken utilizing a petrol/diesel-powered unit. This unit shall conform to internationally
recognized environmental standards {e.g., Euro 5/6), and is intended solely to facilitate the practical
evaluation of automized service performance within the Swakopmund context The pilot serves as 2
precursor to a phased transition to low- and zero-em ission altematives.

5. Swakopmund as a Strategic Tounsm Destination

Swakopmund is not only a municipal jurisdiction but a renowned national and intemational tourist
destination. Clean, vibrant, and safe public spaces directly influence visiter satisfaction and the town's
global reputation. Through improved street cleanliness, aesthetic appeal, and modern infrastructure,
this pilot positions Swakopmund as a world-ciass coastal city that is progressive, environmentally
resporsible, and visitor-ready at all times.

By enhancing street hygiene standards, the project reinforces Swakopmund's brand as a clean, well-
managed, and attractive destination for investment, events, and eco-tounsm.

6. More Than Just a Sweeping Company

Namibia Sweeper Services is not merely a provider of equipment—we are a strategic municipal

partner. We bring:

- More Value: Proactive maintenance, data-driven reporting, and emergency readiness.

- More Capability: The ability to scale operations, adapt te urban challenges, and deliver measurable
environmental outcomes.

- More Yision: A commitment to transforming Namibia’s approach 1o public hygiene and urban
infrastructure, responsibly and inclusively.

We are a catalyst for cleaner, smarter cities.

7 Procurement Integrity and Financial Terms

Namibia Sweeper Services wishes to affirm that the pilot project shall be conducted pro bono, and
that no financial remuneration, exclusivity, or procurement preference is sought

The demoenstration shall serve solely as a proof of concept, the outcomes of which may inform future
service planning. Any future engagements, commercial or otherwise, shall be pursued strictly in
accordance with the Public Procurement Act, 2015 (Act No. 15 of 2015) and relevant intemal
municipal protocols.

Should Countil require any additional documentation, briefing, or presentaticn in support of this
submission, Sweeper Services Namibia stands ready to assist.

Yours faithfully, ;
o ) -f
Lucius Muyelutha .~
Managing Director | Namibia Sweepers Services
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ANNEXURE C
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NAMIBIA
SWEEPER
SERVICES

Pilot Plan Official Handover to the
Municipality of Swakopmund by Namibia
Sweeper Services Effective Date: 01 May
2025
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
ST

Namibia Sweeper Services is prouwd to present this comprehensive pilot programme to the
Mumcpality of Swaloprmund for the implementation of automated Street Sweeping Pilot Project.
This pilot is designed to demonstrata the afficiency, amironmental benefits, and cost-effectveness
of using owr adhance technology and automated strest sweeper wehicles to maintan urban
cheanliness. The initiative aligns with the Municipality's goals for sustainabifity, reducing poliutian,
and enhancing the overall quality of e tr s residents and visitors.

The piot will cover approximately 300 kilometers of roads acoss Swakopmund, with deaning
operations conducted once or twice per weelk for 3 period of 3 months Our sweepers are
cutting-edge, low-emission vehicies that offer a deaner, quieter, and more cost-effective solution -
working slongside existing cleaning effoets to strengthen overall service delivery and support a
more sustainable iNtegrated approadh to urban maintensnoe .

The mamn objectives of this pilot inciude

Assessing Operation feasibility: Determine the efficency and praclicality of depioying
automated street sweening in Swakopmund and demorstrating that automated mechaniced
street sweepers can clean lrge whan aseas more efficdently, with reduced time and cost. by
complimenting o conventional methods.

Measuring Cleaning Performance and effectiveness: Asess how effectively the mechanised
street Sweepers remove dust, sand, and fitter whie complismenting to manusl sweeping.
Economic & Cost Evaluation: Assess long-term Snancial implications for the Municipality.

and environmental benefits of automated street sweepess and set the foundation for a potential
long-tarmn partnership. Cur team is committed 1o prowiding comprebensive reports throughaut
the pilot phase, ensuring full transparency on progress, key performance indicators (KPis), and the
impact of this innovative street deaning technology.

Al the conclusion of the pilot, we will subrmett 2 detailed svalustion that includes
+ Operational results

« Cost savings analyss

* Public feedback

= Emvironmental impact data

= Occupational Hazards

The data gathered will dermonsirate the long-term value of transibonng to sco-friendly urban
maintenance solutions, Namibiz Sweeper Services 5 confident that this project will lead o a
signicart improvermant in urban deanfiness and sustanabslity for Ssakopmund. We are eager to
parnner with the municpality an this forward-thinking initiative and ook forward to working
together to achieve 3 deaner, greener future for the aty.



&€
GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

Operational: To dermenstrate the efficiency of mechanized straat swee

of Swakopmund’s streets

pers in chkeaning 200 km

Environmental: To reduce pollution, emissions and improve the twn's aesthetics.

Economic: To showcea

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (KPIS)

Operational KPis

Environmantal Impact

Cost Efficiency

Stakeholder
Satisfaction

Performance of

Sweeper Trucks

Health & Safety Metrics

Public Impact

Measure overall efficiency
of the sweeper trucks

Demonstrate
enviranmental benefits of
autemated sweepers

Assens cost-effectiveness
of autecmated sweepers

Ensure stakeholder
satisfaction

£ nsure optimal truck
performance

Assess improvernent in
heaith and safety for
workers

Ensure improvement in
urban cleanliness

- Time to complete
cleaning specific area

- Area covered per hour
- Fuelfelectricity
consumption per area
cleaned.

- Reduction in
dust/particulate matter
- Amount of waste
collected

- Cost per km cleaned
- Maintenance costs

- Stakeholder satisfaction
score

- Nurmnber of
complaintsfissues raised

- Number of
breakdawns/repairs
- Operational uptime

- Reduction in workplace
injuries

- Reduction in
occupational health
issues

- Public cleanliness
ratings
- Litter reduction

se cost savings and long-term financial implications for the Municipalty.

Track duration, energy
consumption via vehicle
tracking and reporting
systems

Use air quality monitars
and vehicle data for air
quality; track waste
collection

Track all operational
costs, including fuel,
maintenance

Conduct surveys at
intenvals; track
complaints through
communication channels

Track downtime and
maintenance logs,
calkculate uptime

Track injury reports and
health assessments pre-
and post-pilot

Use visual assessments
and public surveys for
cleanliness feedback
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PROJECT PHASES'

PHASE 1: PREPARATION AND INITIAL SETUP (MONTH 1)
TIMELINE: 01 JULY 2025 - 21 JULY 2025 (20 DAYS)

Research Study on Current Street Cleaning Operations

Objective: Collabarate with the municipality Lo explore more ways to enhance health, safety
and overall well-being of street cleaning personnel through observational study during the
pilot

Activities:

« Working alongside the University of Namibia to gain better understanding of the day-to-
day experiences of manual street cleaners.

« Observe routine tasks to identify areas where comfort, safety, or efficiency could be
supported through thoughtful innovation.

« Collect supportive data that can help inform future decisions on how automated and
manual approaches can complement gach other for the benafit of the workforce and the
community.

Outcome: A collaborative. insights-based report developed with acadernic partners, offering
suggestions

staffing, Recruitment and Training

Staffing Needs:
Operations Team: Operators (two for the mecha nical broom and vacuum sweeper truck

Support Staff Security parsonnel (1 for nighttime shifts), traffic management {1 coordinatot)
Maintenance Crew: On-call mechanic {1 Mechanic)

Communications Team: Responsible for public awareness, media outreach, and community
angagement.

Becruitment Process
Advertise positions locally and screen applicants based on qualifications and experience.

Training:
Conduct training programmes for currant manual cleaner & unemployed youth focusing on
equipment operation, safety protocols, and communication practices prior Lo operations.

Provide health and safety training. including PPE usage, with a focus on minimizing physical
strain,

Qutcome: & fully staffed, well-tr alned team prepared to implement sweeping operations safely
and efficiently.
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TIMELINE: 21JULY 3DISEPTEMBER 2025 (LOGISTICS
AND PROCUREMENT READINESS)

Equipment Procurement and Arrival
8) Objective: Ensure timely arrival and setup of the mechanical broom and vacuum sweeper vahicke.

Activities:
» Coordinate with procuremeant to confirm delivery dates.
= Schedule an equipment inspection and pra-operational check.

Outcome: Sweeper Urucks ready for operation as per schedule.
Sweeping Operations Schedule

® Areas Covered:
« Central Business District (including parking lots)
« Vineta, Krammarsdorf, Ocean View neighborhoods.
« Main streets of Tamariskia and Mondesa lownships.

Sweeping Frequency and Hours:
- Twice per week, from 00:00 am - 500 arm, and again from 0300 am - 1L00 am.

Security and Traffic Coordination:
» Security personnel will accompany the 00000 am crew to ensure safety.
« Traffic enordinators will place mobile road signage in targeted areas, informing motorist of
restricted patking during sweseing hours

Communication:
« Publish sweeping times in local media and social platfarms.
« Conduct public awareness campaigns to familiarize residents with sweeping schedule and
parking restrictions

Equipment and Waste Management

’/i) Equipment:

« Mechanical broom and vacuum sweeper truck: for thorough cleaning of the streets and debris
collection.
« Power brooms for confined spaces the sweeper cannot reach.

Daebrig Disposak
« Debris will be transported to the local waste management partner for proper disposal.

Equipment Maintenance:
= Daily aquipment inspections and weekly maintenance routines will be scheduled to ensure
uninterrupted operations.

Outcome: Efficient, reliable, and regular street sweeping in designated areas, with waste handled
responsibly
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PHASE 3! MONITORING, REPORTING, AND

ANALYSIS T

TIMELINE: FOLLOWING THE COMPLETION OF
OPERATIONAL SWEEPS (4-8 WEEKS)

Performance Monitoring
Metrics Tracked

« Area covered per hour. armount of waste collected, type of wasted collected, frequency of
operations per area.
s [ncidents reports, if any (breakdowns, delays, etc.)

Data Collection
« Use GPS tracking on truck for route and timing data.
« Record the volume of debris collected per shift and report maintenance needs,

Staff Feedback
= Conduct weekly debriefs with operators and support staff to capture on-ground insights
and suggestions for process improvement.

- Community Feedback and Engagement

« Conduct surveys and interviews with local residents and businesses to gather fesxdback on
the project's impact and perceived improvements in street cleanliness.

« Host a public feedback session at the project’s end to promote community engagement
and gather insights for long-term project adoption.

- Final Reporting and Recommendations

Data Analysis
« Compile and analyze data from perfarmance monitoring and community feedback.

Report Preparation
= Prepare a final report highlighting operational effectiveness, environmental impact, and
community response.

Recommendations for Scaling
« Based on finding, make recommendations for expanding the project countrywide 1o
additional municipalities.
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Traffic and Safety
= Implement clear signage and public communication to prevent accidents and ensure
srooth operations.
« Coordinate with local authorities to manage traffic during sweeping hours, aspecially in
high-traffic zones.

Equipment Maintenance

Sweeper Trucks: One industrial-grade sweeper trucks equipped with advanced dust
suppression systems.

Support Vehicles: One utility wehicle for on-site support and minor maintenance needs.
Maintenance Tools: Comprehensive toolkits and spare pants to address commaon
mechanical issues,

Risk Management
« Ensure regular maintenance Lo awold equipment breakdowns that could disrupt
sehedules.
e Maintain an on-call mechanic for immediate support in case of mechanical issuss.
« Comprehensive toolkits and spare parts o address common mechanical issues,
s Use GPS and telematics to track truck locations and adjust routes dynamically.

Community Communication

Notification of operation: Badio and newspaper notifications
» When work will be dons

= Where work will be done

= Pre-sweeping measures

Risk Management
« Conduct consistent awareness campalgns o educate the public on project benefits,
schedules, and road usage during sweeping times.
* Routine maintenance checks before and after shifis,
+ Setl up a hotline or contact paint for residents to provide feedback or report concarms,
= Adapt schedules to accommodate wraffic, road closures, or adverse weather,

Staffing and Environmental Compliance

Training Programs: Comprehensive training for operator on vehicle handling, safety
protocols, and emergency proceduras,

Safety Gear: High-visibility clothing and personal protective equipment (PRE) for staff will
be provided.

Cleaning Materials: Frivironmentally friendly cleaning agents and lubricants for vehicle
maintenance.

Risk Management
» Partner with focal waste management organization to ensure all collected debris is
disposed of according to ervironmental regulalions
« Frnsure sweeper trucks meel emission standards and are serviced reqularly to
minimize environmental impact
= Environmentally friendly cleaning agents and lubricants for vehicle maintenance.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Funding

Narmibia Sweepers Services has acquired funding to successfully launch and manage its
aco-friendly street sweeping project and set the foundation for long-term operations. The
financial plan outlines the specific use of funds, projections for revenue growth, and an
anticipated tweak-even imeline.

The pilot will cost require significant funding to cover the costs of purchasing equipment,
operational expenses, and research activities, This funding will be crucial in executing the

pilot project and preparing for the expansion into other regions, ensuring the long-term
sustainability of the business.

Financial Accountability
Namsweep Pilot Financial Breakdown

Adrministrative Cost
Service Cost 29,
1-!“";
Resource
Cost
12% ?Assﬁai
i 69% |

B Administntive Cost WAssets @ Resourte (o5t mSenvice (o5t
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Agreement

By signing below, the parties agree to the implementation of the Automated
Street Sweeping Pilot Program as outlined in this decurnent, which forms an
annexure to the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU). The parties commit
to the successful execution of the pilot and agree to cooperate fully in
achieving the objectives stated.

For Namibia Sweeper Services  For Municipality of Swakopmund

Signed by: Signed by:
Name: Lucius Muyelutha Name: Clarence MCclune
Managing Director General Manager: Engineering and
Planning
" Signature: Signature.
Date Date:

For Witness (if applicable)
Signed by:

Name:

I Signature:
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Operational Efficiency
Track the area covered and debris coltected per shift to
measure productivity.

Community Satisfaction
Cauge resident and business satisfaction through surveys
and feedback sessions.

Environmental Impact
Monitor reductions in dust, particulate matter, and visual
cleanliness of the streets,

Cost Savings

Document cost reductions achieved through autormation.

Conculsion and Next Steps

With meticulous planning, community engagement, and
adherenice to safety and environmental standards, this
pilot  project in Swakopmund has the potenual to
showcase the benefits of automated street sweeping. The
putcomas and kessons from this pilot will guide decisions
for broader implementation, helping transform urban
cleaniiness while ensuring environmental sustainability.
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11.1.12 REQUEST FOR TEAM FLIPPY TO SET UP A POP-UP COFFEE STAND AT THE
WEEKLY PARK RUN EVENT
(C/M 2025/10/03 - 15/1/3/1)
Ordinary Management Committee Meeting of 11 September 2025,
Addendum 8.2 page 20 refers.

A. This item was submitted to the Management Committee for consideration:

1.

INTRODUCTION

This submission seeks Council’s approval of a proposal submitted by Mr.
Phillip Seidler, a local entrepreneurial team, seeking permission to set up a
pop-up coffee stand at the weekly Swakopmund Park Run event. The
request attached outlines their intention to provide coffee and light
refreshments to runners and spectators each Saturday morning for the
duration of the event.

BACKGROUND

A formal request was received from Mr Phillip Seidler on 03 April 2025,
addressed to the Chief Executive Officer, seeking permission to operate a
temporary coffee stand for a trial period at the Swakopmund Parkrun venue.
The Park Run event takes place every Saturday morning and attracts a
consistent number of local and visiting participants, making it an ideal
platform for community-based value addition. As per the letter, Mr Seidler
proposes the following:

o The setup would consist of a gazebo and a bench, placed at a suitable location near the
Park Run route.

e Operating hours are proposed for three (3) hours every Saturday morning, to accommodate
runners and spectators before and after the event.

» A request is made for the trial period to continue until the end of December 2025, at no
charge.

e Should the concept be well-received, Mr. Seidler undertakes to submit a formal proposal
for continued operations, including payment of a minimal annual rental fee in advance.

Mr. Seidler has committed to ensuring that the site will be cleaned and
maintained after each event and will coordinate with the official Park Run
organizers once Council approval is secured.

DISCUSSION

The proposal aligns strongly with Council’'s Green City Pillar, which
promotes the creation, enhancement, and activation of urban green spaces
for the health, well-being, and enjoyment of residents and visitors alike. By
integrating small-scale, community-driven entrepreneurial initiatives such
as the proposed coffee stand, Council reinforces its commitment to making
public spaces more lively, accessible, and people-oriented. The presence
of light refreshments at recreational gatherings like Park Run enhances the
user experience, encourages greater public participation in health-focused
activities, and fosters a sense of community.

Furthermore, the proposal supports the objectives outlined in the
Swakopmund Beach Access Plan, particularly those aimed at increasing
the usability and vibrancy of beach and park-adjacent zones through low-
impact, community-friendly activations. The provision of temporary
amenities like mobile coffee services enhances the utility of the space
without compromising its openness or environmental integrity.
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Importantly, the proposed setup remains in compliance with the
Swakopmund Beach, Parks, and Jetty Regulations, which govern the
appropriate use of public recreational areas. The plan’s reliance on non-
permanent structures (e.g., a gazebo and bench), clear waste management
responsibilities, and limited operational hours demonstrates a conscious
effort by the applicants to align with existing policy requirements, ensuring
responsible and sustainable use of the space.

In order for facilitation of such an initiative and in efforts to maintain
transparency, Council can opt to approve the utilisation of public land for
free for a period of 6 months this could however create a precedence for
such request in future or alternatively impose the standard fee as per the
gazetted rate for the leasing of public open spaces at a daily fee of
(N$270.77 X 4 weeks per month equating to) N$1,083.08 per month, VAT
included.

In ition to Council’s roval, the following conditions shoul oly:

® That Mr Seidler adheres to Council’s regulations regarding the use of public spaces;

o Thatthe area be left clean and all refuse removed after each event;

e That no permanent structure be erected-only temporary, non-intrusive setups (e.g.,
gazebo and bench);

e That operations be limited to Saturdays during Park Run hours (maximum three hours);

e That Mr Seidler formally engages with Parkrun organizers upon approval.

CONCLUSION:

The request from Mr. Seidler presents an innovative, community-driven
initiative that complements the spirit of the Swakopmund Park Run while
promoting small business development. By offering a convenient and
welcoming refreshment point, the pop-up coffee stand has the potential to
enhance the overall experience for both locals and visitors. Council has an
opportunity to assess its value and impact with minimal risk or cost.
Approval of this initiative would further demonstrate Council's commitment
to supporting local entrepreneurship, enhancing public spaces, and
reinforcing Swakopmund's position as a dynamic and inclusive destination.

After the matter was considered, the following was:-

RECOMMENDED:

(a)

(b)

(c)

That Council approves the request by Mr Seidler to set up a pop-up
coffee stand during the weekly Park Run events as a trial initiative, in
accordance with the conditions.

That Council charge a levy as per Council’s fees structure for a period
of 6 Months as per the gazetted rate for the leasing of public open
spaces at a daily fee of (N$270.77 X 4 weeks per month equating to)
N$1,083.08 per month, VAT included.

That the following conditions apply on approval:

o That Mr. Seidler adheres to Council’s regulations regarding the use of public
spaces;

o That the area be left clean and all refuse removed after each event;

o That no permanent structure be erected, only temporary, non-intrusive
setups (e.g., gazebo and bench);

o That operations be limited to Saturdays during Park Run hours (maximum
three hours);

o That Mr Seidler formally engages with Park Run organisers upon approval.
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RE-NAMING OF AUKAS STREET TO CHIEF CHRISTIAN ZERAEUA STREET
(C/M 2025/10/03 - 17/1/4/1/6)

Ordinary Management Committee Meeting of 11 September 2025,
Addendum 8.3 page 22 refers.

This item was submitted to the Management Committee for consideration:

1.

3.1

Purpose

The purpose of this submission is for Council to consider the following
names and matters as per the recommendation of the Naming of Streets,
Public Places, Natural Area, and Council-owned Buildings/Facilities
Advisory Committee meetings dated 9% July 2025.

Introduction and Background

The minutes of the Naming of Streets, Public Places, Natural Area, and
Council-owned Buildings/Facilities Advisory Committee meeting held on
the 9% of July 2025, were confirmed in the meeting of the 17* July 2025.
The minutes are attached herewith.

Discussion Points

The Naming of Streets, Public Places, Natural Area, and Council-owned
Buildings/Facilities Advisory Committee considered the following item for
Council’s approval:

Application For the Re-Naming of Aukas Street to Chief Christian Eerike
Zeraeua (11/1/4/28,(16/1/4/1/5)

The Management Committee, in their meeting of the 17" October 2024,
took note and deliberated on the presentation by the Senior Traditional
Councillor of the Zeraeua Royal Traditional Authority regarding the
renaming of Aukas Street to Chief Christian Eerike Zeraeua Street. The
Management Committee then recommended that the request be referred
to the Naming of Street, Public Places, Natural Area, and Council-owned
Buildings/Facilities Advisory Committee for consideration and subsequent
recommendation to the Management Committee.

Considering the above, members indicated that the matter is long overdue
and voted to have Aukas Street renamed to Chief Christian Eerike Zeraeua
Street unanimously.

After the matter was considered, the following was:-

RECOMMENDED:

(a)

(b)

That Council approves the renaming of Aukas Street to Chief Christian
Eerike Zeraeua Street.

That due to space limitations, the street be named “Christian Zeraeua
Street”.
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ANNEXURE A - MINUTES

MINUTES

of » meating hald by the Naming of Street, Public Places, Natural Area and Council-owned

Buildings/Facilities Advisory Committee of Swakopmund i the Management Commtes
Room. Municipal Office Building. Swakopmund on Wednesday, 9 July 2028 at 18:00

PRESENT:
Clir B 'Goraseb Mayor
Mrs E Manga Naming Advisory Committee Member
Mrs T Musheko Naming Advisory Committee Member
Ms K Gareses : Naming Advisory Committee Member
Mr J Herta - Town Planning Division
Mrs R Set : Town Planning Division
Ms H Kevanhu : Town Planning Dwision
APOLOGIES
Cor W O Groenewald Naming Advisory Committae Member (with apology)
Cir M Henrchsen Naming Adwisory Committee Membaer (without apology)
Ciir C W Goldbeck Naming Advisory Commatee Member (without apology)
Clir # N Shumhanda Naming Advisory Committee Member (without apology)
M¢ G Gurirab Naming Advisory Committee Member [without apology)
Mr K Ngwena Naming Advisory Committee Membaer (without apology)
1. OPENING
Clir B 'Goraseb chared the meeting and staned by welcoming everyone present atthe
meeting

The committee posiponed the meeting room for a penod of 30 minutes as prescrbed
by the Naming of Street Public Places, Natural Area and Councl.owned
Buldngs/Faciites Advsory Committee guidelines The mambers present then formad
the quorum.
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CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

Proposed by Mrs E Marga and seconded by Mrs T Musheko. The minutes of the 67
March 2024 were confirmed to be 3 true refection of the said meeting

DISCUSSION POINTS

3.1 APPLICATION FOR THE RE-NAMING OF AUKAS STREET TO CHIEF CHRISTIAN
EERIKE ZERAEVA (11/1/4/28, (16/1/4/1/5)

The Management Committee in their meeting of the 17" October 2024 took note and
deliberated on the presentation by the Senior Tradtional Councillor of the Zeraeus
Royal Traditioral Authority regarding the renaming of Aukas Street to Chief Christan
Eerike Zeracua Street. The Management Committee then recommended that the
request be referred to the Naming of Street, Public Places, Natura! Area and Council-
owned Buildings/Facilities Advisory Committee for consideration and subsequent
recemmendation to the Management Committee

Considering the above, membersindicated that the matter is long overdue and pointed
to the letter from the Zeraeua Royal Traditional Authority dated 05 May 2025

Clir B 'Goraseb as the chairperson read out both the letter from the Zeraeuas Royal
Traditional Authority and the comments from Clir W O Groenewald who could not
attend but provided his input about the renaming of Aukas Street. The comments from
Clie W O Groenewald are as follows:

1. Allthe strects leading out of Swakopmund ot Kramersdorf have a theme of all the old
rall stations starting from Swakopmund up to Aukas in its consecutive order
Renaming of Aukas wilf therefore disturh this theme.

2. Council has already renamed Riverside Ave to Kuima Riruako Ave in honour of the

genocide memoria!

The Jate Chief Zereaua never resided in Swakopmund.

This cemetery was also the general burial site of all other cultures including those

who died during the Spanish flu from 1918 to 1920

& o

The chairperson then placed a notion te the members to provide their comments on
the support or lack there of in renaming the street. As a result, the committee members
voted to have Aukas street reramed ta Chiet Christan Eerike Zeraeua Street
unanimously

RECOMMENDATION:

¢ That the Naming of Street, Public Places, Natural Area and Council-owned
Buildings/Facilities Advisory Committee of Swakopmund approved the
request to rename Aukas Street to Chief Christian Eerike Zeraeua Street.



11.1.14

195
Ordinary Council Meeting - 02 October 2025

NAMING OF THE MONDESA SPORTS FIELD
(C/M 2025/10/03 - 17/1/4/1/6)

Ordinary Management Committee Meeting of 11 September 2025,
Addendum 8.4 page 25 refers.

This item was submitted to the Management Committee for consideration:

1.

3.1

Purpose

The purpose of this submission is for Council to consider the naming of the
Mondesa Sport field as per the recommendation of the Naming of Streets,
Public Places, Natural Area, and Council-owned Buildings/Facilities
Advisory Committee meetings dated 17* July 2025.

Introduction and Background

The minutes of the Naming of Streets, Public Places, Natural Area, and
Council-owned Buildings/Facilities Advisory Committee meeting held on
the 17* of July 2025, were confirmed in the meeting of the 6" August 2025.
The minutes are attached herewith.

Discussion Points

The Naming of Streets, Public Places, Natural Area, and Council-owned
Buildings/Facilities Advisory Committee considered the following item for
Council’s approval:

Application For the Naming of the Mondesa Sports Field

An application to name the Mondesa Sports Stadium, dated 30 June 2025,
was received from Christof Maletsky. The proposed name for the stadium is
Paul Dansie /Gaseb. The applicant has indicated that the late Mr /Géseb
became synonymous with Mondesa when the Swakopmund Municipality
called for proposals on the naming of the suburb in 1978.

Mr /Gaseb was the eventual winner when he named the suburb Mondesa,
which derived "mund” from the Swakop river mouth; however, he changed
itto “mond” in Afrikaans and rounded it off to Mond-esa, which is Mondesa.
The name Mondesa came about years after the forceful removal of blacks
from the old location in the 1950s. It, therefore, gave a collective identity to
the black community in the suburb and now serves to reinforce a sense of
belonging to those who grew up there and went on to achieve great things
in life. In addition, it was indicated that Mr /Gaseb stood out as one of the
social activists of the time and a bright mind as well as a soccer star coming
from the lineage of the /Gaseb brothers.

The committee members indicated that Council, at its meeting held on 26t
July 2018, under Item No. 11.1.8, resolved that a street name be allocated
to Mr. Daniel Dansie /Gaseb, who is the same person as Mr. Paul Dansie
/Gaseb. This allocation was made for a street in Swakopmund Extension 36.
This area is commonly known as “Kramersdorf".

It was then concluded to name the Mondesa sports field after Mr Paul
Dansie /Gaseb and the recall the Council decision of the 26" July 2018
under ltem No. 11.1.8.
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After the matter was considered, the following was:-
RECOMMENDED:

(a) That Council approves the request to name the Mondesa Sport field
after “Paul Dansie /Gaseb”.

(b) That Council repeals its decision of 26 July 2018 to name a street in
Swakopmund, Extension 36, after Mr. Daniel Dansie /Gaseb, since he is
the same person referred to as Mr. Paul Dansie /Gaseb.
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ANNEXURE A - MINUTES

MINUTES

of a meenng held by the Naming of Street, Public Places, Natural Area and Council-owned
Buildings/Facilities Advisory Committee of Swakopmund in the Management Committee
Room, Municipal Office Building, Swakopmund an Thursday. 17™ July 2025 st 18:00

PRESENT:
Cle W O Groenewald Naming Advisory Committee Member
Chir C W Goldbeck Naming Advisory Committee Member
Mrs E Manga Naming Adwisory Committee Member
Mr G Gunrab 1 Naming Advisory Committee Member
Ms K Ganses Naming Advisory Committee Member
Mr J Heta Town Planning Drision
Mrs. J Angolo Town Planning Division
Ms M Kevanhy Town Planning Division
APOLOGIES
Clir B 'Goraseb Mayor {with apclogy)
Chr M Hannichsen Naming Adwisory Committee Member (with apoiogy)
Mrs T Musheko : Naming Adwisory Committee Mombar (with apology)
Clir P N Shimhanda Naming Advisory Committee Member (without apology)
Mr K Ngwena Naming Adwisory Committee Member (without apology!
1. Of ENING
Clir W O Groenewaid chaired the meeting and started by welcoming everyone present
atthe meeting.
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The minutes were confirmed with an amendment to shorten the name of the proposed
street from Chief Christian Eerike Zeracua Street to Chief Christian Zeraeua Street to
make it easier and user friendly by the public and inhabitants of the area.

Proposed by Mrs E Manga and seconded by Ms K Gareses. The minutes of the 9™ July
2024 were confrmed to be a true reflection of the said meeting

DISCUSSION POINTS
2.1 APPLICATION FOR THE NAMING OF THE MONDESA SPORTS FIELD

An application to name the Monrdesa Sports Stadium, dated 30 June 2025 was recewed
from Chnstof Maletsky. The proposed name for the stadium is Paul Dansie /Gaseb.

Upon the deliberation of the commmittee members, it was discovered that the
application vas rot arcompanied by a mativation and thus, the applicant was calied via
telephone ta provide a brief mativation for the propasal. The apphicant has indicated
that the late Mr /Giseb became synonym to Mondesa when the Swakepmund
Municipality called for proposals on the naming of the suburb in 1978,

Mr /Gédsab was the eventual winner when he named the suburb Mondesa, which
derived "mund” from the Swakop river mouth, however, he changed it to “mond” in
Afrikaans and rounded it off to Mond-esa which is Mondesa. The name Mondesa came
about years afer the forceflul removal of blacks from the old tocation in the 1950's. It,
therefore, gave a collective identity to the black community in the suburb and now
serves to reinforce a sense of belonging tu those who grew up there and went to
achieve greatthings in life. In addition, itwas indicated that Mr /Gidseb stood out as one
of the s:ial activists of the time and a bright mind as well as a scqcer star coming from
the linexge of the /Gaseb brothers.

The committee members indicated that Councif at its meeting held on 26™ July 2018
under ltem No. 11.1 8 resofved that a street name be ailocated to Mr Daniel Dansie
/Gaseb who is the same parson as Mr. Paul Dansie /Giseb. This aliocation was made
for a Steet in Swakopmund Extension 36. This area is commonly known as
"Kramersdorf™.

It was then concluded to name the Mondesa sports field after Mr Paui Dansie /Giseb
and the recall the Council decssion of the 26™ July 2018 under item No. 11.1 8.

RECOMMENDATION:

o That the Naming of Street, Public Places, Natural Area and Council-owned
Luildings/Facilities Advisory Committee of Swako, mund approved the
request to name the Mondesa Sport field after “Pauf Dansie /Giseb”,

s That the Naming of Street, Public Places, Natural Area and Council-owned
Buildings/Facilities Advisory Committee of Swakopmund recall the
decision to 1.ame Mr Daniel Dansie /Giseb who is the same person as Mr.,
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Paul Dansie /Giseb after a streetin Swakopmund Extonsion 36 as indicated
under Council Resolution no C/M 2018/07/26-N 8/1/2, N 7/3/6/1).

OTHER MATTERS
e None

The meating adjourned at 15:30

L A4xL

“lr W O Groenewald
ACTING CHAIRPERSON CF THE NAMING ADVISORY COMMITTEE

OTHER MATTERS
¢ None

The meeting adjourned at 18:40.

L 2 Mécrauh

/'I'HE CHAIRPERSON OF THE NAMING ADVISORY COMMITTEE
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1.

11.1.15 REQUEST TO TRANSFER ERF 7924, EXTENSION 29, SWAKOPMUND FROM
MR PAULUS NGHUUHULU TO MR ZUZE NGUVULU
(C/M 2025/10/03 - E 7924)
Ordinary Management Committee Meeting of 11 September 2025,
Addendum 8.5 page 30 refers.

A. This item was submitted to the Management Committee for consideration:

INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this submission is for Council to consider the change of
ownership of Erf 7924, Ext. 29, Swakopmund, from Mr. Paulus Nghuuhulu
to Mr Zuze Nguvulu.

For information, Erf 7924 (newly created erf) previously consisted of erven
556 and 557.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

During a meeting held on 21 July 2025 with the General Manager:
Corporate Services & Human Capital, Mr Mpasi Haingura, attended by Mr
C Awaseb, Mr Zuze Nguvulu, and Mr Paulus Nghuuhulu. Mr. Zuze Nguvulu
explained that he was appointed by the Municipality of Swakopmund as a
firefighter and was allocated Erf 792 at the time. No official allocation
records/minutes are available to substantiate; however, it can be confirmed
that the relative of Mr Nguvulu occupied the erf before relocating to South
Africa. Mr. Zuze Nguvulu and the Chief Fire Brigade Officer, Mr. Tony
Moller, at the time relocated from Swakopmund to work in the
Otjozondjupa Region.

After he relocated to another region, the relatives who remained on the erf
did not have access to water, as only registered tenants were allowed to buy
water cards. Mr. Nguvulu did not have an option but to allow one of his
relatives, Mr. Nghuuhulu, to apply for Erf 7924 to have access to water.
According to Mr Nguvulu, Ef 7924 was reserved for him as he was a
municipal employee.

A similar case happened in 2009 when Mr. Petrus Andreas (a volunteer
firefighter) was requested not to reside at the premises of the Fire Brigade
Station and was allocated. Erf 8034, previously known as Erf 377, Ext 29,
Swakopmund.

Mr. Paulus Nghuuhulu was allocated Erf 7924 (556) on 06 February 2008.
Mr. Nghuuhulu left Namibia 10 years ago and is now residing in South
Africa. Due to his continuous absence from Swakopmund, he did not
manage to sign the Preliminary Agreement, which was required to be
signed by all tenants in Ext 27, 29, and 30, Swakopmund (DRC Proper).

A sworn declaration (Annexure "A”) was submitted by Mr Nghuuhulu
requesting that Council transfer the right of use of Erf 7924, Ext 29,
Swakopmund, back to his uncle. Mr Zuze Nguvulu. Annexure “B” is a copy
of the application form of Mr Nghuuhulu, who applied on 06 February
2008 to lease an Erf 7924 (556) in DRC) Mondesa. Documents of Mr. Zuze
Nguvulu are attached as Annexure "C", i.e., copies of his identity
document, voters’ card, and payslip.
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3. CURRENT SITUATION AND DISCUSSION

The statistics of the socioeconomic survey conducted during 2025 (see
table below) indicate that Mr. Zuze Nguvulu is the only occupant on Erf 7924
with an income. Mr. Nguvulu returned to Swakopmund in November 2024.

3.1 SOCIOECONOMIC DATA AND HOUSING APPLICATIONS
S s;”"“'-  IDNumber | WorkStatus | Income | RegNo | RegDate e
556 Sondaha Employed SRN 20/05/2025 | No
(2/2) Tjakwanda 94050800403 1912
556 Nathalia N. 1032400013 Unemployed SRN 20/05/2025 | No
(2/2) Hausiku 1913
556 Anton M. 89090500707 Unemployed SRN 20/05/2025 | No
(1/2) Mapeu 1914
556 Zuze Nguvulu 70050500902 Employed NAD 18 SRN
(1/2) 874.62 1813 21/05/2025 17/09/2014
557 Jaimi J 79011101006 E 2063 M
Kangungu
557 Fernandu 86040800933 Unemployed Di 04/07/2024 07/12/2016
(1/1) Sininga 2039

For transparency purposes, Mr Jaimi J Kangungu applied for Erf 7924 (Erf 557
Overspill) on 16 October 2007, and he was the prioritized occupant for Erf 7924 due
to his application date. However, Mr. Kangungu was allocated Erf 2063, Ext 10,
Matutura, Swakopmund on 19 November 2018 under the Mass Housing
Development Programme. The registration took place on 01 November 2019 as per
Deed of Transfer No. 7409/2019. See the table above.
Sininga Fernandu, registration number 557 1/1, is unemployed.

JF.

f - ¥ S

The remaining tenant, Mr.

e Lot b .]||‘ !

Mr Zuze Nguvulu applied with the National Housing Enterprise (NHE), and his name
reflects on the Master Waiting List with the application date, 17 September 2014. (see
the screenshot below) of the Master Waiting List, number 12122.

4. PROPOSAL
It is proposed that Council approve the request of Mr Paulus Nghuuhulu to transfer Erf
7924 (556) to Mr Zuze Nguvulu. It is further proposed that Mr Nguvulu be allowed to
sign a Deed of Donation after the ministerial consent is obtained.

B. After the matter was considered, the following was:-
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RECOMMENDED:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

That Council takes note of the request of Mr Paulus Nghuuhulu to
transfer Erf 7924, Extension 29, Swakopmund to Mr Zuze Nguvulu.

That Council approves the change of ownership of Erf 7924, Extension
29, Swakopmund (previously Erf 556) from Mr. Paulus Nghuuhulu to
Mr Zuze Nguvulu.

That ministerial consent be obtained to donate Erf 7924 (556),
Extension 29, Swakopmund, to Mr Zuze Nguvulu.

That before the application for ministerial approval in terms of Section
30(1)(t) of the Local Authorities Act, Act 23 of 1992 (as amended), the
donation be advertised in terms of Section 63 (2) of the Local
Authorities Act, Act 23 of 1992 (as amended) at Council’s cost.

That Mr Nguvulu pays the administrative fee of N$1,000.00 to Council
and be invited to sign the Deed of Donation.
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REQUEST FOR TRANSFER OF FUNDS FROM VOTE: 800031033700
(REGULATORY STANDARDS) TO VOTE: 800031033800 (VHF RADIO'S -

AERODROME)
(C/M 2025/10/03 - 19/1/1/1/2)

Ordinary Management Committee Meeting of 11 September 2025,
Addendum 8.6 page 39refers.

This item was submitted to the Management Committee for consideration:

1.

Purpose of the Submission

The purpose of this submission is to seek Council's approval for the transfer
of funds from vote 800031033700 - Regulatory Standards to vote
800031033800 - VHF Radios, to meet aviation regulatory compliance
requirements at the aerodrome.

Background

An amount of N$55,000.00 was allocated under the capital budget to vote
800031033800 for the procurement of VHF radios for the aerodrome.
However, the successful bid for the required equipment was awarded at a
total amount of N$69,026.67, which exceeds the budgeted allocation by
N$14,026.67.

In order to proceed with the procurement and create the necessary
purchase order, we hereby request the transfer of N$14,026.67 from vote
800031033700 - Regulatory Standards, which aligns with the purpose of
this procurement, to vote 800031 033800 - VHF Radios.

After the matter was considered, the following was:-

RECOMMENDED:

That Council approves the transfer of N$14,026.67 from Vote:
800031033700 to Vote: 800031033800, to enable compliance with aviation
regulatory standards and ensure operational readiness at the aerodrome.
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11.1.17 ALLOCATION OF FUNDS & BUDGETARY PROVISION FOR URBAN
AGRICULTURE
(C/M 2025/10/03 - 18/5/2)
Ordinary Management Committee Meeting of 11 September 2025,
Addendum 8.7 page 40 refers.

A. This item was submitted to the Management Committee for consideration:

Purpose

The purpose of this submission is to request Council allocate funds to the urban
agriculture initiative for the 2025-2026 financial year.

Introduction

Urban agriculture is a proven tool for strengthening food security, improving
nutrition, creating employment, and promoting environmental sustainability in
cities. It provides communities with access to fresh and nutritious produce,
promotes sustainable land use, creates employment opportunities, and enhances
food security.

With growing pressure on food systems globally, the Municipality of Swakopmund
has an opportunity to champion the development of urban agriculture initiatives
to benefit its residents, schools, and community organisations. This will maximize
limited land and water resources while building community resilience.

Urban agriculture plays a vital role in:

(a) Strengthening food security & nutrition: By increasing the availability of
affordable, fresh produce for households and schools.

(b) Education & Skills Development: School gardens serve as living
classrooms, empowering learners with practical agricultural skills and
knowledge.

(¢) Encouraging smart agriculture practices: Adoption of modern and
climate-smart techniques such as drip irrigation, raised beds, and protective
structures to optimise production.

(d) Enhancing community resilience: Reducing dependency on external
supply chains and mitigating the impact of rising food costs.

(e) Environmental sustainability: Green spaces improve air quality, promote
biodiversity, and reduce the urban heat island effect.

Proposed Budget

It is requested that Council allocate N$100 000.00 to support and sustain urban
agriculture projects. This funding will specifically be directed towards:

(a)  The construction and establishment of school and community gardens.

(b)  The maintenance and expansion of existing garden projects.

(c) The procurement of smart agriculture technologies (irrigation systems,
construction of shade net structures, and raised beds).
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Budget Breakdown:

Estimated
Budget Item Description Allozation
Garden Construction & Shade net house, garden beds,
small maintenance and basic infrastructure. N$40 000.00
repairs.
Smart Agriculture Drip irrigation systems, to ensure
Infrastructure water efficiency and year-round N$25 000.00
production.
Tools & Equipment Basic garden{ng to<_)ls for schools N$15 000.00
and community projects.
Seeds & Seedlings Purchase of high-value vegetable
{(Horticulture) seedlings for distribution. e oty
Workshops for teachers,
Training & Capacity community leaders, and
Building volunteers  on  climate-smart i 000
agriculture,
A eremass & Gy Educational materials, awareness
campaigns on healthy eating, and N$5 000.00
Engagement o
volunteer mobilisation.
Total N$100 000.00|

Long-Term Budgetary Provision

To ensure sustainability, it is requested that Urban Agriculture be included as a
permanent item under the annual Operation Budget. This will provide consistent
funding for the growth and expansion of urban agriculture initiatives across
Swakopmund.

Conclusion

The Health Department will oversee the implementation, compliance, and
performance monitoring of the projects. Regular monthly progress reports will be
tabled to ensure accountability and transparency. Urban agriculture is not merely
a community initiative but a strategic investment in the health, sustainability, and
resilience of our city. The requested allocation of N$100,000.00 will lay the
foundation for stronger, smarter, and greener food systems in Swakopmund.

After the matter was considered, the following was:-
RECOMMENDED:

(a) The Council approves the allocation of N$100,000.00 for the support,
maintenance, and construction of urban agriculture projects, with
special focus on schools and community gardens.

(b) That the General Manager: Health Services and Solid Waste
Management, be granted permission to budget for Urban Agriculture
under the operational item.

(c) That the General Manager: Finance secures funds amounting to
N$100,000.00 for the Urban Agriculture project to Vote:
300031013600, (Urban Agriculture Project).
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1.

11.1.18 APPLICATION FOR CONSENT USE TO OPERATE A HOTEL PENSION ON ERF
406, MYL 4, EXTENSION 1
(C/M 2025/10/03 - M4 E 406)
Ordinary Management Committee Meeting of 11 September 2025,
Addendum 8.8 page 42 refers.

A. This item was submitted to the Management Committee for consideration:

Purpose

The purpose of this submission is for Council to consider the application for
consent use to operate a hotel pension on Erf 406, Myl 4, Extension 1, in
terms of Clause 5 (b) of the Swakopmund Zoning Scheme.

Introduction and Background

An application for the consent to operate a pension on the said erf was
received by the Engineering and Planning Services from Urban Green cc on
behalf of the registered owner, the Trustees for the Time Being of the
Cornelia Catharin Lewies Familie Trust. The application is attached as
Annexure A.

Zoning, Locality, and Size
Erf 406, Myl 4 Extension 1 is zoned general residential 1 with a density of

1:250 and is situated in Seal Street. The Erf measures approximately 4,203
m?2 in extent.

Ownership

The ownership of Erf 406, Myl 4 Extension 1, vests in the Trustees for the
Time Being of the Cornelia Catharin Lewies Familie Trust as indicated in the
Deed of Transfer T7226/2023.

Access and parking

Access to the erf will remain via Seal Street, and parking for the proposed
development will be provided on-site in accordance with the provisions of
the Swakopmund Zoning Scheme. In this case, for a pension, according to
Table B2 of the scheme, the parking requirement is "a minimum of two
parking bays plus 1.5 parking bays per room”. For the proposed eight (8)
bedroom development, a total of fourteen (8x1.5=12+2=14) parking bays
are required.
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Environmental Impact Assessment

Hotel pension is a listed activity for an environmental impact assessment to
be undertaken in accordance with the provisions of Regulation 6 of the
Environmental Management Act, Act 7 of 2007. Therefore, an
environmental impact assessment should be undertaken before the
approval of any building lines relaxation and building plans, as well as the
business registration.

Proposal

The applicant intends to erect buildings on the Erf for accommodation
(Hotel Pension) purposes. The objectives of the development are to create
an accommodation establishment offering luxury villas and studio units
tailored to the higher-end tourism market in the town, with a coastal village-
style look and feel.

The proposed Hotel Pension development will consist of eight (8) rentable
units in total, including family units comprising 2 x 2 and 2 x 3-bedroom
villas, which would be rented out, and studio units comprising 4 x one-
bedroom studio units. Planned additional activities, which will include a
service bar for the benefit of the guests, a wine cellar, and a breakfast or
dining room, designed to enhance the guests' experience while
maintaining a quiet and exclusive environment. Dedicated concierge
services would be at hand to assist guests with activity bookings, restaurant
reservations, and other personalised needs.

Considering the land uses and coverage of the immediate and larger
surroundings, which are of mixed-use nature, as well as the intended
development, the requested consent to erect a Pension development on
the Erf can be considered as desirable.

Advertisement

The proposed consent was advertised on the 17* and 25" April 2025 in the
Namibian and the Market Watch (Republikein, Allgemeine Zeitung, and
Namibian Sun). Neighbouring property owners were notified via registered
mail, and additionally, a notice was placed onsite. The closing date for
objections to the proposal was 8" May 2025.

Objections dated 20* and 22" April 2025 were received from H. K
Oosthuizen, the owner of Erf 405, Myl 4 Extension 1 through B. Oosthuizen.
The objection is attached to the application.

Discussion
Objection

The objector indicates that the rezoning was vaguely described in the
public notice as a pension. Additionally, the objector has questioned why
the burden is laid on the public to lodge objections and not on the applicant
to give a reason why their proposal is desirable.

The objector has also indicated that the present layout plans of the project
with a communal kitchen, central wine cellar, and the event space are a
suggestion of the planned hotel pension from the start. The objector has
thus questioned why the Building Inspectors and Town Planning Section
allowed for such plans.



208
Ordinary Council Meeting - 02 October 2025

The objector has also questioned why the owners of the adjacent erf and
most affected by the proposed, have been ignored by the Swakopmund
Municipality as well as Urban Green Planning Consultants.

It is further indicated that their objections pertain not only to the common
law concept of private nuisance, which deprives the neighbours of the
enjoyment of their properties, but also to public nuisance, which impacts
the right of the public at large. As such, the objector has indicated their
objection against the rezoning of the property, as currently, it is zoned
residential, implying tranquillity and regular family life for surrounding
neighbours. It is for this reason that investments were made. Therefore,
allowing for such developments would logically defeat the reason for
investments.

The objector has also indicated an increase in traffic and staff movements
that would convert the street into a busy and noisy one. In addition, the
objector has indicated that Council has allowed for the construction of a
large building proposed as a wine cellar, as the building is large enough to
be used for events, and this would disturb the neighbours.

The objector argues that since they moved into their property in 2024, they
have had to endure noise pollution from the construction of the
development on the Erf 406 Myl 4. The objector has indicated that their
peace has been destroyed as there is noise from both the construction as
well as the noisy chatting of the workmen and building material by heavy
trucks. The argument is that, should the tourist accommodation be erected,
it would result in continuous noise pollution, as well as dust pollution that
would not only result in extraordinary human endeavours to clean the walls
and sweeping, but would result in extreme waste of water to clean.

It is argued that sunlight and sea view will be affected by the dense
construction of buildings, and should the interests of the adjacent owners
had been considered by the municipality, servitudes of light should have
been registered on Erf 406, Myl 4 to protect their rights of light. In addition,
the objector argues that a public pension would imply that exterior
advertising light signs, as well as light illumination for the safety of the
tourists, would be put in place, which would disrupt their sleep due to the
severity of strong lights.

The objector argues that the construction of double-storey buildings near
their property, as well as the tourist inhabitants, will result in privacy
intrusion. Given that the objector's property was purchased from the
Swakopmund Municipality at a public auction, one would expect the
municipality to respect and protect the rights of its original contractual
party, who in good faith purchased such property, stated the objector. In
addition, the objector argues that their part of Myl 4 consists only of ordinary
residential properties, and at the time of bidding, cognisance was taken that
Erf 406, Myl 4, is earmarked for higher residential buildings; however, the
rezoning for hotel pension usage will reveal designations of the Municipality
on its city plans as unreliable.

The objector illustrates that Section 57 of the Urban and Regional Planning
Act, 2018 provides a framework for comments and objections to be
considered, moreover, the impact of the proposed development on the
area. It is further stated that none of the factors listed under section 57 has
been addressed, and this indicates the applicant's irresponsible disregard
for the legislative framework.

The objector claims that the increase in human traffic by the hotel pension
visitors and guests during events potentially held at the wine hall will cause
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severe erosion of the beach. Additionally, it is argued that the coastline
already comprises an oversupply of cluster housing, not contributing to
either an aesthetically pleasing coastline or protecting against severe
erosion of the beach.

Applicant response

The applicant drafted a letter to the objector in response to their objections.
The applicant has indicated that the application is for consent and not to
rezone the property, as argued by the objector. The applicant has also
indicated that the term pension refers to the activity of a hotel pension as
defined in the Swakopmund Zoning Scheme. The applicant has further
stated that the current zoning of the property, which is general residential
with a density of 1/250m?, allows for a total of 16 units; however, the
intention is to develop 8 units for the utilisation of the hotel pension. This is
8 units less than what is permitted on the property. It is also stated that with
only half the units on the property, the traffic and movement on the property
will be reduced by 50%.

With respect to the objector’s concern about the current project and the
indication of why the onus is laid on the public, the applicant argues that
the request for comment from the neighbours was conducted as stipulated
in the Swakopmund Zoning Scheme. The applicant further indicated that
the current layouts of the buildings on the property are in line with the
primary use of a general residential, and should the consent not be
successful, the property can still accommodate 16 units. Additionally, the
applicant has stated that should the building plans not have been in line
with Swakopmund regulations, they would not have been approved.

The applicant states that the objector was informed of the development
intention and has attached the proof thereof. Note should further be taken
that the same objector was consulted via registered mail regarding the
building plans.

The applicant clarifies that the wine cellar on the property, which is a
concern of the objector, will only cater to the guests staying at the hotel
pension, and an application for the liquor licence will be made to the
appropriate authority. It is further stated that the noise pollution argument
of the objector is inevitable during any construction phase. The applicant
has further indicated that advertisements or signs would need to comply
with the requirements of the Swakopmund Municipality.

Regarding the objector's claim of contractual betrayal, the applicant has
indicated that purchasing a property at auction does not influence the land
use and building rights as stipulated in the Swakopmund Zoning Scheme.
This is because the construction of the units, as well as the intended use of
the property, is in line with the land use rights. All parking requirements will
be in line with the land use rights, and each unit has a double garage for
parking purposes.

Evaluation

The objector states that the rezoning was vaguely described and that the
burden of justifying desirability lies on the applicant. Note should be taken
that the application is for consent to operate a hotel pension on the
property as stipulated under Table B of the Swakopmund Zoning Scheme
No. 12. The application is not for a rezoning as indicated by the objector.
Furthermore, the public notice followed the statutory requirements under
the Swakopmund Zoning Scheme No. 12, providing sufficient detail that the
intended land use was for a pension (hotel accommodation). The
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description met the requirements for public participation, ensuring fairness
and transparency. In terms of the notification for the building plans, note
should be taken that the owner of Erf 406 Myl 4 did not need to apply for
consent to relax their building line on the side of the objector’s property, as
they are not constructing beyond their building lines on the said side.

It is important to note that the planning process is designed to allow public
input, not to shift the burden, but to ensure balanced and participatory
development. The applicant has submitted a motivation and provided site
development plans to the objector as it is stipulated.

The objector suggests that the layout, including a wine cellar, communal
kitchen, and event space, indicates pre-conceived hotel use. The building
was designed within permissible building regulations, both the areas of the
communal kitchen as well as the bar and wine are minimal in size compared
to the size of the property. Unfortunately, the Council does not dictate the
architectural design preferences of property owners. There are also other
measures in place, as stipulated by the Swakopmund Zoning Scheme No.
12, to regulate the activities permitted on each property, hence the
application for consent. In addition, the applicant will be required to apply
for a fitness certificate that would ensure that all Council regulations are
adhered to.

Importantly, any allegations of administrative impropriety are unfounded.
Approvals were granted based on existing zoning (residential with higher
density allowances) and permitted building parameters, with all
construction adhering to building codes. The planning process has not
excluded or ignored the adjacent owner. The public participation process
included notices, publication in the press, and an opportunity to submit
objections, which the objector has rightfully utilised. Council has
considered all inputs in line with the zoning scheme regulations.

it should be noted that no constitutional or statutory obligation exists to
grant special procedural preference to any single property owner beyond
what s stipulated in law. In addition, the objector should note that the owner
of Erf 406, Myl 4 has equal rights to utilise their property to its full potential
as the objector has to theirs.

While concerns around noise, traffic, and nuisance are understood, it is
important to distinguish between construction-related temporary
inconvenience and operational realities of a small-scale, low-impact hotel
pension. In mitigating the concerns of the objector, the applicant will be
instructed to put in place the following:

o The applicant should operate within acceptable noise limits as governed
by local by-laws.

e Includes lighting control measures to limit disruption on the surrounding
erven.

The pension use is not expected to result in a material increase in public
nuisance and will be operated under strict rules operating within Council
regulations. In addition, that part of Myl 4 is known for its functionality in
providing relaxing, peaceful, similar establishments such as The Wreck and
Atlantic Villa, both of which accommodate a communal kitchen and bar
area. Council has not received complaints of nuisance to such
establishments, and accommodation areas of such nature are important for
the tourism industry of the town.

The objector claims that the rezoning contradicts expectations set during
the auction. However, the property was known to be earmarked for higher
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residential use, and the Swakopmund Zoning Scheme No. 12 allows for
consent applications such as the one at hand. In addition, the Municipal
planning frameworks must be adaptive to growth, including promoting
tourism, which is a key sector of the Swakopmund economy.

Furthermore, there is no credible evidence that the proposed hotel pension
will lead to severe erosion of the beach. In fact, the structure is set back
significantly from the high-water mark, and no development is planned in
the coastal buffer zone. Human traffic from a small-scale pension does not
materially contribute to coastal degradation.

The objector argues that the application disregards Section 57 of the Urban
and Regional Planning Act, 2018 (Act No. 5 of 2018). However, the
application is not made in terms of the Urban and Regional Planning Act,
2018 (Act No. 5 0f 2018), but it is made in terms of the Swakopmund Zoning
Scheme No. 12. In terms of the scheme, the applicant has submitted a
comprehensive motivation report, and all statutory procedures were
followed, including public notice and opportunity for objections. Note
should also be taken that the registration of servitudes of light, as indicated
by the objector to protect their rights of light, is not regulated in Namibia.

The Municipal Council remains committed to fair and lawful application of
all provisions under the regulations; the Council is also committed to
ensuring that all community members of the town are accorded the same
opportunity to enjoy their property benefits.

More importantly, the objector should be informed that should Council
receive valid complaints, Council reserves the right to withdraw any consent
to use.

10. Conclusion

The application for consent to operate a hotel pension on Erf 406, Myl 4
Extension 1, in terms of Clause 5 (b) of the Swakopmund Zoning Scheme
does not have a detrimental effect on the area and can be supported,
subject to reasonable operational conditions to protect neighbourhood
amenity. The application has been made in good faith, supported by
thorough planning and in line with Swakopmund Zoning Scheme
regulations. The objections raised, while noted, do not provide sufficient
grounds to deny the application.

After the matter was considered, the following was:-
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RECOMMENDED:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

f)
(9)

(h)
(i)

That the consent to operate a hotel pension on Erf 406, Myl 4 Extension
1 be granted subject to the following:

o The applicant should operate within acceptable noise limits as
governed by local by-laws.

o Includes lighting control measures to limit disruption on the
surrounding erven.

That the hotel pension registers with the Health Services and Solid
Waste Management, and that the standard Health Regulations will

apply.

That Council reserves the right to cancel a consent use should there be
valid complaints.

That an environmental impact assessment be conducted as stipulated
by the Environmental Management Act, 2007 (Act No. 7 of 2007).

That the applicant must operate within the Swakopmund Zoning
Scheme regulations.

That consent is not transferable.

That parking be provided on the premises in accordance with the
Swakopmund Zoning Scheme.

That no on-street parking will be tolerated.
That the objectors be informed of their right to appeal to the Minister

against Council’s Resolution as provided for in terms of Clause 8 of the
Swakopmund Town Planning Scheme within 28 days of the Section.
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ANNEXURE A- APPLICATION

URBAN Green cc
Sustainability Consultants

28 March 2025
Our Reference. ERONGO/ERF/40EMYL-4/EXT USWAKOP

The Chief Executive Officer
Department of Engineering and Planning Secvices
PO Box 83 ¥

umcmmmmwmdwmrumumrmmumwm
Lewies Famiie Trust (Reg. No. T33/99), the owners of Erf 408. Myl 4. Extension 1, Swakopmund, 1o
apply with the Swakopmund Municipality for the-

. c«md:m’mmm‘ﬂ&mtw::mﬂ
provided for by the Swakopmund Zoning Scheme.

IlahMMbmhwda‘w'mEﬂdm.W4.Etlmnom.
thmemmthwm
R,, Swakopmund Zoning Scheme.

On

2.1 Locality

Erf 406, is situated within the Myl 4. Extension 1. Swakopmund Township, lccated to the nonh-
western side of the larger Swakopmund Town area (see Annexure A).

2.2 Ownership

Eruos.llyll.EWl.m&ommdsmedbytheTnmmmmeﬂmﬂemdmmeﬂa
Catharina Lewies Famiie Trust (Reg No. T33/89). Find attached as Annexure H, the Deed of
Transfer No T7226/2023 and Trust Deed document No. 020298 (see Annexure )
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Erf 406. Myl 4, Extenscon 1, Swakopmund - Consent Use

2.3 Zoning & Donsity & Size

in accordance with the Swakopmund Zoning Scheme. the current zoning of Esf 406, Myl 4 Ext 1,
Swakopmund is ‘Genaral Residential 1" with a density of 1:250 and messures 4,203m? in extant as
indicated by Annexure D.

24. Buildings & Use
The Erf 18 lying vacant and is undeveloped, as indicated by Annexure B

25 Surrounding Urban Area

The area surrounding Erf 406, Myl 4, Extension 1, Swakopmund. is charactensed by a variety of land
uses and activites, ranging from a prominent single resxdential general residential 2 and institutional
along the beach area as seen from Annexure C. The larger area features nearby restauranis 1
The Wrack Restaurant. Atantic Villa and The Waterfront Development.

2.6 Street Access & Parking

Access 1o the Eff is currently obtained via Seal Street located to the northern side of the Edf (see
Annexure C). Parking wili be provided on the Erl, as provided for by the Swakopmund Zoning
Scheme.

2.7. Topography & Flood Line

The Ed 406. Myl 4. Extension 1, Swakopmund and larger area have a flat topography Drainage at
the Erf s well deveioped with no bodies of surface water present. The Atlantic Qcean is located west.
approximately 16 metres away from the Edf.

2.8. Existing Title Deed Conditions

The title conditions registered against the Erf is listed wilhin the attached Deeds of Transfer No
7226/2023 (see Appendix H).

2.9 Municipal infrestructure

All municipal bulk services (i.a., water, electricity and sewer) are existing and available to this
established Township of Myl 4, Extension 1, Swakopmund

3. DEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL
3.1 Intended Development

It is the owners' intention to apply for consent to erect buildings on Edf 406, Myl 4, Extansion 4,
Swakopmund for accemmodation (i.e. Pension) purposes on a General Residential 1 zoned erf for
which Pensions are a consent use, The objectives of the development are to creale an
accommodation establishment offering luxury viias and studio units tailored fo the higher-end
tourism market in Swakopmund, with a coastal, village-style look and feel.

The proposed ‘Pension’ development will consist of eight (8) rentable units in total, which includes
family units comprising 2 x 2 and 2 x 3 - bedroom willas which would be rented out as a whole; studio
units comptising 4x one-bedroom studio units; Planned Additional Activilies which will include a

URBAN GREENCC
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Erf 406 Myl 4, Extension 1. Swakopmund ~ Consent Use

service bar for the benefit of guests. a wine cellar and a breakfast/dining room, designed to enhance
the guest experience while maintaining a quiet and exclusive environment {see Annexure E)
Dedicated concierge services would be at hand to assist guests wilh aclivdy bockings, restaurant
reservations and other personalized needs

Considenng the land uses and coverage of the immediale and larger suroundings, which are of a
mixed land use nature, as well as the infended development, the requested consent lo erect &
‘Pension’ development on Erf 406. Myl 4, Extension 1, Swakopmund, can be considared as
desirable. The consent's need s purely motivated by the owner's desife to erect a pension for the
purpose of accommadation on the Er, in line with the requirements of the Swakopmund Zoning
Scheme.

3.2 Future Access & Parking Provision

Future vehicular and pedestrian access to the Erf will continue to be obtained from the current Seal
Street as provided (see Annexure C)

Parking will be provided on the Erf in accordance with the Swakopmund Zoning Scheme
3.3 Municipal Services

The existing municipal services will be expanded to provide for the ‘Pension’ development, which wall
be connected 1o the available municipal networks  All other requirements (e.g. coverage, height.
buikding fines, etc.) will be adhered to as prescnbed by the Swakopmund Zoning Scheme,

4. TIV.
4.1 Need and Desirability

Considering the land uses and coverage of he immediate and larger surroundings, which are of a
mixed tand use nature, as well as the intended developmeny, the requested consent to erect buildings
on Eff 408, Myl 4. Extension 4, Swakapmund for accommodation (i.e. Pension) purposes can be
considered as desirable.

The proposed ‘Pension’ development is considered a comprehensive project that embodies luxury.
exclusivity and the beauty of the Swakopmund's coastiine. It is designed to cater to a higher-end
tourism market, offering world-class accommodation and amenilies, including the employment
benefits for the inhabdants and the Local Authonty through long term and continued municipal rates
and taxes. The consent's need is purely motivated by the owner's desire (o erect a ‘Pension’ for the
purpose of accommodation on the Erf. in iine with the requirements of the Swakopmund Zoning
Scheme

4.2 Planning Policies
Tabie B of the Swakapmund Zoning Scheme pravides for pensions as a consent use for ‘General
Residential 1' as currently zoned.

In sccordance with the Swakopmund Zoning Scheme, Pension is defined as any premises
comprising no more than 20 bedrooms or 40 beds, whichever is the most restrictive, in or which the
business of providing accommodation with or vathoul meals is conducted against payment to tourists

URBAN GREEN CC
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£ 406, Myl 4, Extension |, Swakopmund - Cansent Use

and i which liquor may be served on payment to overnight guests only. but excludes a Residential
Guest House

4.3 Use of Existing and New Buildings

The Erf is lying vacant and is undeveloped, as indicated by Annexure B

4.4 Concept Design of the Intended Development

The aitached conceptual design plan (Annexure E) provides an overview of the intended ‘Pension’
development layout and parking arrangement

The proposed Pension’ development will consist of eight (8) rentable units in total, which includes
family units comprising 2 x 2and 2 x 3 - bedroom villas which would be rented out as a whole, studio
units comprising 4x one-bedroom studio units. Planned Additonal Activiies which woll include a
service bar for the benefit of guests, a wine cefiar and a breakfast/dining room, designed to enhance
the guest experience whie maintaining a quiet and exciusive environment (see Annexure E)

5. Public Consultation

On receipt of this consent application. piease prowvide our office with the official instruction (on Councd
letter head) 1o proceed with the public consultation for the intended development.

6. CONCLUDING REMARKS

We. on behalf of the Trustees for the Time Being of the Corneiia Catharina Lewies Familie Trust
(Reg. No T33/89), herewith apply with the Swakopmund Municipal Council for the-

« Consent of 3 “Pension” on Erf 408, Myl 4, Extension 1, Swakopmund as prescribed and
provided for by the Swakopmund Zoning Scheme

as motivated above and provided for by the Swakopmund Zoning Scheme

Find attached the following annexures in support of the above

Annexure A Locality Map

Annexure 8 Aanal Phato Map

Annexure C Land Use Map

Annexure D Zaning Centificate and SG. Erf Diagram

Annexure E Intended Development Layout Plans with Conleurs
Annexure F Special Power of Attorney

Armnexure G Trustees Resolution

Annexure H Deed of Transler No T7226/2023

Annexure | Trust Deed document No. 020299

URHAN GREEN CL
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Erf 406 Wyl 4 En 1.8 pmund - C Use

Should you require any further nformation and/or have questions on the proposed and intended
developmeant please do not hesitate to contact us

Yours fathfully

Brand van Zyl
(MNCTRP)
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SPECIAL POWER OF ATTORNEY
' i, the undersigned CORNELIUS JACOBUS LEWIES {ID 8103195104082} {name & ID)
| my capacily a8 DULY AUTHORIZED MANAGER capactty wan Trust]
of THE TRUSTEES FOR THE TIME BEING OF THE ;
CORNELIA CATHARINA LEWIES FAMILIE TRUST (bewng the)
| owner of ERF NO. 406, MYL 4. EXTENSION NO. 1, SWAKOPMUND {peoperty)

do heredy nommate constitute and appont

URBAN GREEN CC (2004/08398)

PO Box 11929 :

Kiein Windhoek :
with power of substituton, to be our lawful Attomey and Agent in our name, place and stead. 1o make the
necessary apphcation 1o the Swakopmund Muncipal Council for the

« Consent for a “Pension” on Erf 406, My! 4, Extension 1, Swakopmund

at the cost of the appicant and generally for effecting the purposes aforésad to ©o o cause I be done
whatsoever shall be requaide as fully and effectually 'or all ntents and purposes we mignt of could do ¢
personally present and acting heresn - hareby ratdying allwng and contrm all and whatsoever our sand
Attomey and Agent shail lawfully do. or cause 1o be done by virtue of these presents

SIGNED at Windhoek this 19 cay of March 2025 n the presence of 1he undersgned witnessas

. WITNESS WITNESS

'
.

L}

. ;?l\n‘s u:‘l'. r.«\ )‘i‘ (‘lhi S RN & 1,

Add mame, sumname & 10 numiber Add name. sumame 8 1D mumber
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| CC LEWIES FAMILY TRUST HEAD OVFICK
I1v99 7. Seitz Street Luxury hill
CONTACT
‘ Tel odis 425 000 |
POSTAL
l _ POBOX sgo, Windbork, NAM

w-wmmm:mmnnm 8103155104082) to sgn the specal
mdmﬂmmwmwmmammmuw
wc«mua?m'meam_ Myl 4 Extension 1. Swakopmund

Sgned at .\\l"t"\-‘."i s 1“1 aayof . l‘(\"(-" 2025 n the
presence of the undersigned aninesses

!‘.!I!!_E;ﬁﬁ
e

‘An "’i)‘d“ t.; ‘1‘ ("u‘n ER Y r- ,
Add name sumams & ID number

4 5B
Carndhos ( Lewmes (%% nitue)
Ada name. sumame 8 10 rumber
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_..nizanoc:mnspsni"'f e l’””‘ I

N 4
BE {1 HEREBY MADE KNOWN

THAT CLFFORD BEZUIDENHOUT

fora ma, Rege of Deeds_ 3 Winchoex fe e tas) 3poeare:s. Hesrg tuy Juhorsed
thereto Jy 3 Power of Aticrngy granted %o fum Iy

MUNICIWPAL COUNCIL OF SWAKOPMUND

dated the 2 day of Nowimber 2023 20 sgned 31 Seakopannd

Y
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AND fhe said appearer deciared 1@ s 330 Principal fiad iy and lawiuly so'd on 28 July 2023

mmum“mmw.mmmmu.mmw m full 3ng free
property. 10 and on behalf of

THE TRUSTEES FOR THE TIME BEING OF THE CORNELIA CATHARINA

LEWIES FAMILIE TRUST
Regstaton No 73399

S SLCORSSOr- -t OF aS3gn
CERTAIN ERF NO 406 MYL 4

(EXTENSION NO 1)
SITUATE N THE MUNICIPALITY OF SWAKOPMUND

REGISTRATION DIVISION °G™

ERCNGO REGIOM
EXTENT 4200 (FOUR TWO ZERQ THREE) SCUARE METRES win Genersd Pan

S$G Mo A 13852015

AND HELD BY CERTIFICATE CF CONSOUDATED TiTLE NO 735082017

SUBJECT 10 the folloming corcltors moosed n tems of Government Notce
Mo 278201 T, narnely -

% FAVOUR OF THE LOCAL AUTHORITY

a) The e rust only De used o SCCuPed for JUIDOSEs which 78 1 ScTrance wdh. 3nd e use
of the oocupation of the arf must a1 3 Lenes he subect . the provsons of the Swakoprrrd
Town Plarnng Scheme pregarec and approved n termis &f the Town Planming Ordinance.
1964 (Orgirance No 18 of 1954} P g

B) The buldding eaive of the man dulding ncuting he outbuldings. o be erected on the erf
must be at least four trres The pravaling valuation of 1he e

| %
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405 Seal Street
Ext 1 Mile 4
Swakopmund

my. 1 .00m
081 G160 648

20 Apnil 2025

Swakop Municpal Counail
Attention: Me. J T Heita
Department of Engineerning and Planmng Services

cc

Urban Green Town and Regional Planning Consultants
P O Box 11929

Klein Windhoek

Dear S&
Objections to “Pension” on Erf 406, Mile 4, Ext 1, Swakopmund

There-mﬁiwﬂdaﬂhdnmnﬂcmwhmw.

Fumuduoum.iumumasusummmumma
the word that is intended in the public notice. in ather words, a reference lo a Hotel Pension.

Furthermore. for purposes of these objections. it is assumed for that the application for pension
accommadation implies the construction of additional buldings on erf 4067 (The Consent Natice
reading. "the intention fo efect buildings on erf 4067).

Before procesding to our reasons for objecting aganst the zoning for pension purposes. we would
mmmamwmummmmmmu
present project on erf 406 itself.

1. Firstly the question arises as to why the onus s laid on the public to lodge objections.  and
why the burden does not fall on the cwners of erf 406 to give good reasons (o ther
nesghbours and fellow inhabitants of Swakopmund as fo why they desire the public to
Are ther any valid benefits for the public besides their own personal financial benefits?

2 m.muwwuummmmwmm
cellar and event space. not already suggest that a hotel pension was planned from the very
stant of the project?

21  As such lay-out is clearly not logical for residential purposes, questions anse as (o
wuwwmmmmamwm
allowed such building pians? Could an investigation perhaps reveal covent interests
of local officials or other interest groups?

22 The question that logically arises is whether the project was from its commencement
calculated 1o be used as a hotel pension? The imegular lay-out of the buildings and
communal fadlities do suggest that. though perhaps under the guise of sibling
usage?
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3. Thiﬂy.umm:uumuamdhm‘aﬂ.mmmm
mmmmwm.mmmwwmm

4. Laﬂy_puum;samumsmm-ﬂmm*dmw
mmmmmmmmmmnumd
mwmuﬂmlpmﬁaimdmm”m?

Answers [o the above are urgently awaited.

which impacts the rights of the public at large. Moreover, we cbject against the proposed scheme of
r&mmumamm.mmmummmmw
by their nesghbours.

1. Zonmg

BMBmwammmwmm&h
Mmluuﬂmuwmdm
owners, including ourseives, were made.

Tommmmmmuwmmwmu
mmwmmm.immmmh_m
character of. this area. Question Is this fair and just towards surrounding citzens who
wmamﬂmmmmw

2 Increased traffic and staff movements

it should be obvious that the establishment of a hotel pension will involve regular coming in
and out of staff working on the premises. wehicles collecting and removing laundry, defivery
mwmmmmmumnwmamﬂrnnd
tourists armving and leaving. M.mmaswmawmﬂ

4. Noise poliution

Ever since we moved into our house at the end of July 2024, we had to endure
WMWmMJﬁ&MMhMWTnWSpﬂ_
wmdmmwwwmwmammmmu
ummmmmwwmmm«mm.
the delivery of building material by heavy frucks, which aiso severely overloaded the
meﬂuﬂm.mwmnvmamM
should be expecied (o lolerate.

meuMimmmmmm.
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?dayspaweﬂ.mﬁdaﬂ(apﬁﬂedmw;uwdmﬂm.m

Blociing of sunlight:

Mmmmwm&mmmmm:a'm
nm.mwuwaamdnmm.mm
mmmmwwmmmemhme
mn-mmrmmdmm.ummmmwmu
mdmummmumm in the late aftemoan, will also be

MmdeWmmwuw.wmd
mmmmwmdmmmmmummwm
mmmmmmnmmummum.w
huedasmm:a.madﬁmdmmmﬁmmw
wmwdmuumddMasmamMnm
rights of adjacent property owners.

Light poliution

wwumdmmmmmmmam

munnmmudupmuumdmmm
W.MMMUWI(M“MM

Dust poliution

ummmmﬂmmw.mmm.mw
inconvenience will continue. WMMWWMMhmdm
above inconvemences and intrusions.

Lack of privacy

Ewmmumdmmmwmmdm
mmmunmm.wmmmmmum
cansists of several temraces and patios.

nmummmm.mumummdmwwﬁm.
mmammanu-udmm.uuwuwmmuuumm



228
Ordinary Council Meeting - 02 October 2025

9. Contractual refationsip ~ betrayal

Erf 405 was purchased from the Swakopmund Municipality at a public auction. One would
nmmmwmmm.umwﬂpmmmuu
bmmmmnmmmmw

*

Mmbmmwmmmumshwmuuw
“Pension” development.
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Dear Sir

Additional objections tp “Pension™ on Erf 406, Mile 4, Ext 1, Swakopmund

The owner of erf 405 has lodged objections dated 20 Apnl 2025 in respanse [o the physical notice
board placed on the sidewalk in front of erf 406. However, after perusal of the relevant documents
periaining to the rezoning of Erf 406, new grounds o lodge addilional objections have arisen.

We would fike to put on record that the owner of Exf 405 has not received any noltification of the
ntended rezoning by posL We received these per email afler so requested from Urban Green
Africa.

1 Omission regarding motivation and self-interest

mmmmmm.mwMummdmd
any motivation for such rezoning, but moreover the omission to show any benefit to the
public at large or sumounding property owners.

In facl. only the “desire” and “infent” of the owners of erf £06 are mentianed, which in
itself exposes the self-interest al stake.

In view thereof that the public is obligated to provide “grounds” in the case of obyjecting fo
razoning, would if not be equitable for the apgplicants fo be measured by the same
standards?

2 Breach of trust

mmammaﬂm«mﬂhmdm,
cognizance has been taken that the zoning of e 406 may i density
construction, which explains why the buildings on erf 405 were designed with liltte. if any,
windows on the side facing e«f 406, which is the direction of the sea. although erf 405 lies
onfy 90 m from the beach edge.
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However, the rezoning of esf 406 for hotel pension usage. will reveal the designations of
the Swakopmund Council on ifs city pians not only as fickle, but as unrefiable. Moreover. 2
rezoning of erf 406 fo be exploited for commercial purposes, as foreseen by the application,
would fundamentally defeat the reason why the owner of erf 405 made such a once in a
ife time large investment to live quietly by the sea. In facl, not only from a financiai
wiewpoint, but as an mvestment in a way of Iife.

Violation of principles sustainability and natural environment?

31

32

Sections 57 of the Urban Planning Act. 2018, provides for a framework for re-zoning.
We draw your alfention especially to paragraphs (a). (d} and (j} reading that -

“comments and objections received in response 1o the invilation for
comments and objections on the proposed rezoning” should be taken into
account.

AMorecver, attention should be padd o

“the impact of the proposed rezoning on existing or proposed
or fand uses i the area.” and "the "nalural and physical qualities of the

Please nole that according to the ndes of interpretation, ail the factors listed in
section 57(a) to (p) should be adhered (0. as paragraph (o) ends with the
conjuncion “and” and not “or”.

In the application for rezoning we find that absolute none of these issues, which the
legisiator prescribed as refevant for the decision maker to exercise his or her
discretion, have been addressed. In other words, the applicants’ disregard for these
legisiative faciors entads an imesponsible disregard for the legisiative framewark
designed for such appbcation lo be lodged and the Board and Minister fo apply their
minds during the decision makiing process according to the principles of
Admmistrative fawe.

Beach erosion: Even the present zoning of edf 406 per se, which in principle allows
fior dense development of up 017 units on the edge of the beach, has no coherent
connection with these prnciples n wview of status quo of the natural area. In other
words, it is in itself questionable in wiew of the severe ergsion of the beach in the
close vicinity of erf 406.

An investigation in foco of the nammowing beach area will make it clear that this is an
area \hat in ks present state after the winter tides of 2024 and damage caused by
e recent extraordinary rain storm suffered by Swakopmund. In view of the coming
winter fides. it should be clear that the already vulnerable beach could anly suffer
further damage with the ncrease of human trafic by the hotel pension visitors and
guests dunng events to be potentially held at the wine hall.

Coastal cluster developments: Furthermore, the coastline of Swakopmund siready
compnses of an over-supply of custer housing, not contributing fo either an
aesthetic pleasing coastline nor protecting the severe erosion of the beaches,
caused by controversial factors. We therefore submit that rezoning of the
development would imply an increase in human and vehicle traffic in violation of the
principle of sustainability which is a core focus of the Urban and Regional Planning
Act. 2018.
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IWMMMHMWAMW‘P

Wem&euﬂmdhmmdunmdmmummm

CC Lewies Trust. Rather, in our view the reasonable deduction would be that the planning
was intended (o oblain rezoning for hotel pension purposes.

In our view it is therefore an open question as fo why the Departiment of Engineering and
Ptanning Services failed to query the nature of these plans which dearly reflects public
usage.

Wine calfar

Swakopmund already benefits from the wide selection of Gellert Unfimited Hospitality
Solutions CC as well as BIN and their knowledgable managers.

Ibﬁmm

The applicant failled to motivate the need for such fadliies in Swakopmund as well as an
over-supply of hotels and other holiday. inciuding “high-end”. accommodation.

Questions

In addition o the above, answers and clanficalion in respect of the following are requested:

1

2

Type of development(s) intended on open space next o boundary wall of erf 405

Details regarding intended future development phases (buildings, faclites,
swimming/sport). Please indicate heights of such intended faclities.

Pariong:
The application refers in general and vague terms to “parking (that) will be provided on the
erf according o the Swakopmund Zoning scheme™

3.1 As the situaton plans fal to indicate any parlung spaces for the public,
please provide details in this regard.

32 Secondly, as the municipal parking are is in very close proximity - was the idea o
make use of this public parking area for the wine house guesis? In olher words,
has it been foreseen that the public’'s accessibility to the beach area will be imded
during events with many guests?

34  Lasly are we camrect to assume that a liquoriwine licence will be applied for in case
of rezoning of erf 4067
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URBAN Green Sustainability Consultants
Town & Regional Planning

Er ntal A t & Compliance

Water & Wastewater Treatment

Your communication dated 20 & 22 April 2025 with reference fo the above refers.

Find below our response. which has been submitted with the Swakopmund Municipality as well.

In response to your letter dated 20 April 2025. the following -

1. Please nole that whal is being applied for is a ‘consen!’ application and NOT a change in the
' land use (i.e. rezoning) as per your communication.

2. With regard to the term Pension’, i refers 1o the activity of a hotel pension as defined in the
Swakopmund Town Planning Scheme.

3. With respect 1o your questions concerning the cumant project. and in specific ‘why the onus
is laid on the public’. i.a.. point 1 of the letter dated 20 April 2025, the request for comment
from neighbours is as per the Swakopmund Town Planning Scheme stipulates.

Once again, there is no deviation from the present zoning. as hotel pension’ s a consent
allowed under the land use of ‘general residential’.

4. With respect fo the questions referring to the present layout, what is cumrently on the erf is in
line with the primary right, as approved by the Swakopmund Municipality. Should the
consent for an B-leasable room pension not be successful, the development will remain and
continue as per the primary right, i.e., 16 dwelling unis.

Developments on general residential zoned land is registered as sectional title developments
with the Office of the Surveyor general and the Registrar of Deeds, as per the Sectional Title
Act.

The deveiopment’s buiding plans would not have been approved by the Swakopmund
Municipality i it was not in line with all required legisiation and bylaws.

+364-61-300 €0 \!/{- . # 0 Sua 11639

Cofl: 4284-81-119 ST20 N JREFMN BUILDING (%0 e 14, Siyetem Mutda
Sl e -t l ;
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5. With respect to your statement that you as the neighbouring owner was ignored, find
attached an efectronic copy of the proof of registered post to whom the notification letters
were send to, which inciudes you as a neighbouring property owner.

6. With respect to relaxation of building fines that were granted, according to your point 4 of the
fetter dated 20 Apnil 2025, these would be avaiable from the Swakopmund Buiding Division,
The tayout of the buildings is as per the drawing that was send via registered post to you.
which is again attached for your ease of reference.

7. With respect to your comments under ‘Delict of nuisance’, the following ~

Once again, there is no rezoning being applied for, but a consent. Cument and future
developments will remain to be done as per the primary right allocated to the Erf and approved
as consent by the Swakopmund Municipality.
Zoning
a. Please note that Ed 406 is NOT zoned residential’, but ‘general residential 1" with the
density of 1:250. The zoning of ‘general residential’ aflows for multiple dweilings as
per the density. in this case 1:250. A density of 1:250 indicates that one dwelling per
every 250m? fand is allowed.

b. Considering the size of the erf (4.203n") and densily of 1:250, a total of 16 dwelling
units are aliowed to be erected on the Eri.

c. The Hotel Pension includes ONLY 8 rentable units, B less of what is allowed to be
developed. The Hotel Pension thus utifises only 50% of the allowable

development protentional of the erf under the primary right.
increased Traffic & Staff Movement
a. Once again, the Hotel Pension utilises only 50% of the allowable development
protentional of the erf, L.e., will generate 50% less traffic compared to when fully
developed for 16 dwelling units.
Wine Cellar
a. This activity as in the case of the bar is for use of guests only.
Noise Pollution
a. Construction noise is mevitable durng the construction phase of any building.
Complaints in this respect can be submitted with the Swakopmund Buidding Division
who will inspect the situation to confirm compliance by the contractor or not.
Bloking of Suniight
a. The buildings on the erf are being constructed in fine with the requirements of the
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b. If the developments are not inline with that of the Swakopmund Town Planning
Scheme, that should be reporied to the Building Division.

c. With respect fo the approval of the buiiding pians, that can be obtained from the

Light & Dust Poilution

a. Any advertisements. signs. efc.. aluminate or not nature need o comply with the
Swakopmund Town Planning Scheme. otherwise it would not be allowed.

b. Dust pollution and construction noises are inevitable and if you are of the opinion that
it is excessive, this can be reported to the Swakopmund Building Division.

Lack of Privacy
a. The buildings on the erf are being constructed in line with the requirements of the
Swakopmund Municipality.
b. If the developments are not inline with that of the Swakopmund Town Planning
Scheme, that should be reported to the Buiding Division.

c. With respect to the approval of the building plans, that can be obtained from the
Swakopmund Building Division.

Contractual Relationship - Betrayal
a. The faci that the Erf was purchased on public auction does not have an effect on the
land use and building nghts. as per the Swakopmund Town Planning Scheme.
b. What is being construcied and what is being applied for is as per the rights allocated
to the zoning of the ed, stipulated within the Swakopmund Town Planning Scheme.

In response to your letter dated 20 April 2025, the following —

1. The type of development intended on the ‘open space’ referred to can be obtained from the
Swal Municipaity.

2. At this poind in time it is not the intention of the cwner o develop more than the 8 dwelling
units and central guest area, which will be used for purpose of the hotel pension. Should the
need arise in future, then only will the owner take-up the right to develop the erf fo its full
potential.

3. Parking for purpose of hotel pension will be provided on the erf and no municipal parking
outside the erf is considered for the purpose of the hotel pension. Parking will be provided
within the garage of the dweliing units. as indicated on the site layout that was send io you.
Attached the site layout again for ease of reference.
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The parking requirements for a Hotel Pension is ‘2 plus 1 per room’, which calculates to 14
parkings to be provided. 8 of the 14 parkings are provided within garages. and the remaining
6 within the complex’s driveway at dedicated parking areas.

4. An application for a liquor/wine license will be submitied upon approval for consent from the

In summary -

1. What is being applied for is NOT a change (i.e. rezoning) in land use. The land use of Erf
406, Mile 4, will remain "genesal residential 1" with the densily of 1:250. The zoning of
‘general residential’ allows for mulliple dwellings as per the density. in this case 1.250. A
density of 1:250 indicates that one dweiling per every 250m” land is allowed.

2. Considenng the land use of ‘general residential 1’ with the density of 1:250, the size of the erf
(4.203m”) and density of 1:250. a total of 16 dwelling units are allowed to be erected on the
Erf.

3. What is being applied for. in line with the Swakopmund Town Planning Scheme, is the Hotel
Pension as a consent. There is thus no change in land use.

4. The Hotel Pension includes QNLY 8 rentable units and the centralised guest area, which is 8
dwelling units fess that what is allowed to be deveioped under the cument land use of
‘general residential 1" with the density of 1:250. The Hotel Pension would thus have 50%

lass of an effect/impact in ail respect, if compared to a development of 16 dwelling
units, aitowed under the current primary right.

Ym faithfully.
B

Brand van Zyl (MNCTRP)
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SUBDIVISION OF ERF 254, MATUTURA, EXTENSION 1 INTO 5 PORTIONS
AND REMAINDER
(C/M 2025/10/03 - E 254 M)

Ordinary Management Committee Meeting of 11 September 2025,
Addendum 8.10 page 127 refers.

This item was submitted to the Management Committee for consideration:

1.

Purpose

The purpose of this submission is for Council to consider the application for
the subdivision of Erf 254, Matutura, Extension 1, into 5 Portions and
Remainder.

Introduction and Background

An application was received by the Engineering and Planning Services
Department for the subdivision of Erf 254, Matutura, Extension 1, into
Portions A, B, C, D, E, and Remainder, from Van der Westhuizen Planning &
Properties CC, on behalf of the registered owner. The application is
attached as Annexure A.

Ownership

Currently, the ownership of Erf 254, Matutura, Extension 1, vests in Candice
Strauss as endorsed under the Deed of Transfer No. T4387/2024. See
Annexure B.

Zoning and Locality

The Erf is zoned “General Residential 2" and measures 1,881 m2 in extent.

Erf 254, Matutura, Extension 1, is located in Basil Street. See insert on the
next page.
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Access and Infrastructure services

Access to Erf 254, Matutura, Extension 1, and the proposed portions will be
obtained from Basil Street (14m in width).

Parking for the proposed development will be provided in accordance with
the provisions of the Swakopmund Zoning Scheme.

Erf 254, Matutura, Extension 1 is already connected to the existing
infrastructural services; however, should additional services be required,
the applicant is to provide those to the satisfaction of the General Manager:
Engineering and Planning Services.

Public consultation

In terms of the Urban and Regional Planning Act, 2018, Section 107,
subdivision is subject to the public consultation process.

The public consultation for the proposed subdivision has been made in
terms of section 107 and Regulation 10 of the Urban and Regional Planning
Act. The adjacent neighboring landowners have been consulted by
registered mail informing them of the intent (Annexure C). The last date to
submit their objections and comments was 3 April 2025, and no objections
have been received.

Seven (7) neighboring property owners were notified of the intention to
subdivide Erf 254, Matutura, Extension 1 via registered letters.

No objections have been received after the lapse of the closing date.
Proposal

The owner of Erf 254, Matutura, Extension 1, intends to subdivide the erf
into 5 Portions and a Remainder.

The proposed subdivision will enable the construction of single units on
each property and rent out or dispose of some of the properties.

The intentions came about with the marketing of the initial design, and it
was indicated by most of the interested persons that they do not wish to
purchase or rent where a body corporate is involved. Numerous persons
indicated their interest in acquiring a freestanding unit with its own title.

Currently, Erf 254, Matutura, Extension 1, is zoned “General residential 2"
with a density of 1:250, which, in terms of the current rights, the owner can

construct 7 units on the property.

However, the subdivision would enable the development of 6 units, each
on its own erf with its own title.

Subdivision

Erf 254, Matutura, Extension 1, is proposed to be subdivided into 5 Portions
and the Remainder.

The portion will be subdivided as per the table below:
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APPROXIMATE
PORTION NUMBER AREA (m?) PROPOSED USE
Portion A 312 General residential 2
Portion B 312 General residential 2
Portion C 324 General residential 2
Portion D 311 General residential 2
Portion E 311 General residential 2
Remainder/254 311 General residential 2
| Erf 254 1881 General residential 2

See subdivision plans attached as Annexure D.
Evaluation

The subdivision will facilitate the issuance of freehold land tenure titles for
each erf, promoting freehold title ownership and enabling more sustainable
development within the area. The proposed subdivided erven will create
distinct and manageable parcels of land, which allows for the development
of single residential properties.

As aresultthereof, the applicant will have to rezone the newly created erven
and the Remainder Erf 254, Matutura, Extension 1, from “general residential
2" with a density of 1:250 to “single residential” with a density of 1:300 to
bring all portions into conformity with Swakopmund Zoning Scheme
provisions.

Matutura, Extension 1 was created as a medium-high density area with a
density of 1:300 for single residential and a density of 1:250 for general
residential erven. The Matutura townships predominantly all accommodate
residential characters with similar density.

Therefore, although the erf remains residential in nature, the development
must conform to the existing density and zone of the area. The proposed
subdivision will indeed yield more than the 6 units mentioned by the
applicant, as they would be allowed a main dwelling together with
outbuildings (half the size of the main dwelling).

Additionally, there have been applications of a similar nature approved by
Council. Below is a list of erven where general residential erven had to be
rezoned and subdivided in the same township:

Erf 595, Matutura Extension 2

Erf 1440, Matutura Extension 7 (phase 1 and 2)
Erf 1266, Matutura Extension 7

Erf 1444, Matutura Extension 7

o Erf 1445, Matutura Extension 7

. & o o

The minimum erf size for erven zoned general residential 2 is outlined in the
insert below from the Swakopmund Zoning Scheme clause 5 C.

For Council to maintain consistency, the applicant will be required to
undertake the statutory process of rezoning the erf to “Single Residential"
with a density of 1:300 to finalize the subdivision of Erf 254, Matutura
Extension 1.
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The proposed development aims at addressing the demand for more
manageable and individually owned residential properties, while
enhancing the property value and resident satisfaction by providing secure
freehold tenure without radically changing it into a low-density area.

Engineering Comments

e The layout of Erf 254 should be evaluated based on the position of
access points and internal connectivity.

e Sub-dwelling units tend to have higher trip generation rates due to
multiple household types.

Compensation

However, the subdivision of Erf 254, Matutura, Extension linto 5 portions is
subject to a 7.5% compensation fee with respect to endowment calculated
according to Section 9 (b) of Regulations relating to the Urban and Regional
Planning Act, 2018 (Act No. 5 of 2018) in conjunction with the Swakopmund
Municipality Property Policy.

Title Conditions

That the title deed conditions registered against Erf 254, Matutura,
Extension 1, be retained for the newly created 5 Portions and Remainder Erf
254, Matutura, Extension 1, as follows:

The erf shall only be used or occupied for purposes which are in
accordance with and the use or occupation of the erf shall at all times
be subject to the provisions of the Swakopmund zoning Scheme
prepared and approved in terms of the Urban and Regional Planning
Act, 2018 (Act 5 of 2018);
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(i) The building value of the main building, excluding the outbuilding to
be erected on the erf, shall be at least four times the municipal
valuation of the erf.

Conclusion

The subdivision of Erf 254, Matutura, Extension 1 into Portions A-E and
Remainder will have to be rezoned from "General Residential 2" with a
density of 1:250 to “Single Residential 1" with a density of 1:300. The
applicant will have to undertake the statutory process in accordance with
the Urban and Regional Planning Act, 2018 for the development to be in
line with the provisions of the Swakopmund Zoning Scheme.

After the matter was considered, the following was:-

RECOMMENDED:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

That the subdivision of Erf 254, Matutura, Extension 1 into 5 Portions
and Remainder be approved on condition that Erf 254, Matutura,
Extension 1 be rezoned from “General Residential 2" with a density of
1:250 to “Single Residential” with a density of 1:300.

That the applicant agrees in writing that they accept condition (a)
above, failing which the application will be rejected.

That upon acceptance of the rezoning condition, the applicant
undertakes the notification procedure for the rezoning in accordance
with Regulation 10 of the Urban and Regional Planning Act,2018,
before applying to the Urban and Regional Planning Board, provided
that no objection to the proposed rezoning is made.

That should objections be received opposing the rezoning, such
objections be submitted to Council for consideration before the
application to the Urban and Regional Planning Board is made.

That the subdivision of Erf 254, Matutura, Extension 1 be subject to a
7.5% subject to a compensation fee with respect to endowment
calculated according to Section 9 (b) of Regulations relating to the
Urban and Regional Planning Act, 2018 (Act No. 5 of 2018) in
conjunction with the Swakopmund Municipality Property Policy, be
paid in full by the applicant (owner) before submission of any business
registration application, building line relaxation application and/or
building plans submission to the Engineering and Planning Services
Department for approval.

That if there be a need for upgrading the municipal services, it be for
the account of the applicant, and it must be designed to the satisfaction
of the General Manager: Engineering and Planning Services;

That all the parking be provided on-site in line with the Swakopmund
Zoning Scheme and no parking on street reserve; shall be tolerated.

That the applicant provide proof that the subdivision and rezoning
have been approved by the Minister and promulgated, and provide
approved erf diagrams from the Surveyor General's Office before any
business registration and/or submission of building plans to the
Engineering and Planning Services Department for approval.
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That the applicant provides proof that the subdivision has been
approved by the Minister and provides approved erven diagrams from
the Surveyor General’'s Office before any business registration
application, building line relaxation application, and/or building plans
submission to the Engineering and Planning Services Department for
approval.

That the title deed conditions registered against Erf 254, Matutura
Extension 1, be retained for the newly created 5 Portions and
Remainder Erf 254, Matutura, Extension 1, as follows:

(i) The erf shall only be used or occupied for purposes which are in
accordance with and the use or occupation of the erf shall at all
times be subject to the provisions of the Swakopmund zoning
Scheme prepared and approved in terms of the Urban and
Regional Planning Act, 2018 (Act 5 of 2018);

(ii) The building value of the main building, excluding the
outbuilding to be erected on the erf, shall be at least four times
the municipal valuation of the erf.

That the applicant be informed of this decision and of their rights to
appeal the Council decision to the Minister of Urban and Rural
Development with valid reasons within twenty-one (21) days from the
date of the decision in accordance with Regulations 18 of the Urban
and Regional Planning Act.
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ANNEXURE A
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TOWN PLANNING & PROPERTIES

Chief Executive Officer
Municipality of Swakopmund
PO Box 53

Swakopmund

Namibi

14 May 2025

Dear Sir,

APPLICATION FOR THE SUBDIVISION OF ERF 254, MATUTURA, EXTENSION NO. 1
SWAKOPMUND INTO POTION A, B, C, D, E AND REMAINDER.

Application is herewith made, on behalf of the registered owner of Erf 254, Matutura,
Extension No. 1. Swakopmund, Ms. Candice Strauss for the Subdivision of Erf 254,
Matutura, Extension No. 1, into Portions A, B, C, D, E and Remainder (Annexure C1)

1. BACKGROUND

The owner acquired the property for the purpose of developing of free-standing units in line
wimmedensﬂyailucaadb!heErfm,Uponmametingofmepropoaedasﬂmeninmnded
units. it was found that the public is not in favour of Body Corporates, and most of the
interested persons indicated that they are rather interested in obtaining their own fitle to a
property.

ltisagainstI!&sbackgmndmatmeownerdeddedmraﬂverapplytoCouncilbrme
subdivision of the property according to its density

2. LOCALITY, ZONING AND ERF SIZE

Erf 254, Matutura, Ext No 1, Swakopmund currently measures 1881m? in extent, and is

located alongside Basil Street in Matutura, Ext 1, Swakopmund (Annexure A). The property
is zoned as General Residential 2, with a density of 1.250m™.

3. OWNERSHIP

According to the Deed of Transfer Nr. 4387/2024, ownership Erf 254, Matutura, Extension
No. 1. Swakopmund. currently vests with Ms Candice Strauss (Annexure B1). Power of
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Attorney from the owner is attached as Annexure B2. The exist no conditions within the
Deed of Transfer that prohibits the intended intention to subdivide the property.

4.  ACCESS TO THE PROPERTY

Access to the property is currently obtained from Basil Street in Matutura, Ext 1,
Swakopmund. No change in access is envisaged for the newly created portions and access
is to remain from the same street. If and when any other needs in terms of access might
arise such needs shall be communicated to the relevant authority for consideration.

5. TOPOGRAPHY

Erf 254. Matutura, Extension No. 1, Swakopmund is relatively fiat with no natural features
on it (Annexure C2). The surrounding area is relatively developed already and itis expected
that the remaining erven will also be developed in the near future. This in itself is a good
indication that soil conditions are stable and suitable for the proposed intentions of our client.

6. INFRASTRUCTURE

The area is already serviced with the basic services and the property is already connected
to the service infrastructure. Any additional requirements that the owner might envisage shall
be communicated the relevant institutions and will be for the account of the owner. It is not
envisaged that any special infrastructure and service requirements will be of any concem

as it is a normal subdivision creating new portions that requires basic services.

T. PARKING

As with all developments and land uses intended fo be practiced on any site, the use of the
site must comply with the provision of the Swakopmund Town Planning Scheme. As such,
all parking requirements shall be calculated according to the provisions as contained within
the Scheme for the specific land use zone. No building plans to be approved unless
compliance with the parking provisions of the Schemes is adhered to.

8.  MOTIVATION AND INTENTION

It is the intention of the client to subdivide Erf 254 into 5 portions and remainder and
construct units on each of the properties and rent out and/or dispose of some of the
properties (Annexure C1).

The intentions came about with the marketing of the initial design and it was indicated by
most of the interested persons that they do not wish to purchase or rent where a body
corporate is involved. Numerous persons indicated their interest in acquiring a freestanding
unit with its own title.

Currently Erf 254 is zoned as General Residential 2 with a density of 1:250m?* meaning, due
its size being 1881m?, that in terms of the current fights the owner can construct 6 units on

page 2of 13
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the property. Instead of having 6 units on one property you will now have 6 units, each on
their own new erf with its own titte. The situation on the ground will remain exactly the same
and will under no circumstances increase the pressure on the services.

We do not foresee any negative impact to be exerted on to the local neighbourhood nor the
currents service infrastructure. The proposed intentions were supported by the neighbouring
properties as they weicome the proposed change and appearance as presented.

Proposed Subdivision of Subdivision of Erf 254, Matutura, Extension No. 1, into
Portions A, B, C, D, E and Remainder

The proposed subdivision and new esf sizes will be as follows:

Proposed Portions Portion Sizes inm*
Portion A 312m?
Portion B 312m?
Portion C 324m?
Portion D M1m?
Portion E 3IM1m?
Remainder of Eff 254 311m?
Total m* 1881 m?

The sizes of all the portions created are in line with the density aliocated to the property.

9. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

A Notice was also placed on the erf for public comments (Annexure D) Neighbouring
properties have also been requested for thewr comments. Attached please find copies of
letters to neighbours via registered mail (Annexure E). Closing dates for objections was on
the 3 of April 2025

10. RESPONSE FROM PUBLIC

Closing date for comment/objection to the proposed intentions were on the 3 of Apnl 2025.
By the closing of the objection period NO comments/objections were received, (Annexure
F).

11. CONCLUSION

It is our opinion that the intentions of the client will respond well with the existing situation to
be found in the immediate area. The intended subdivision will create five (5) new erven with
sizes in in line with the current situation in the area. Cumrently the property size in the area
is around 400m?* upwards being and also falls within the density of 1:.300m™

The intentions will not appear out of context with the surrounding area and as a matter of
fact blend in well_ It is evident from the Public Participation Process that the neighbouring
properties and the general public is in favour of the application as no objeclions were
received.

Page3of 13
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There exists no reason why the intended subdivision into Portion A, B, C, D, E and
Remainder cannot be supported as it is in line with the statutory documents that regulates
land use and regulates growth in the town of Swakopmund.

12. APPLICATION
On behalf of our client/s, we herewith formally apply for:

» SUBDIVISION OF ERF 254, MATUTURA, EXTENSION NO. 1 SWAKOPMUND INTO
POTION A, B, C, D, E AND REMAINDER

CONDITIONS TO BE REGISTERED AGAINST REMAINDER OF ERF 254:

(a) The conditions currently registered against the remainder be retained.

CONDITIONS TO BE REGISTERED AGAINST PROPOSED PORTION A, B, C, D,
AND E:

IN FAVOUR OF THE LOCAL AUTHORITY.

(a) The erf must only be used or occupied for purposes which are in
accordance with, and the use or occupation of the erf shall at all times be
subject to the provisions of the Swakopmund Zoning Scheme prepared
and approved in terms of the Urban and Regional Planning Act. 2018
(Act No. 5 of 2018)

(b) The building value of the main building, excluding the outbuildings to be
erected on the erf shall be at least four times the prevailing valuation of
the erf.

It is trusted that Council will find the above application for Subdivision of Erf 264, Matutura,
Extension No. 1, into Portion A, B, C, D, E and Remainder, in order.

Yours Falthfully,

£
A R VAN DER WESTHUIZEN

Page 4 of 13
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ANNEXURE B

A R |

4307 [ 2024;

DEED OF TRANSFER NO.

ERF NO. 254 MATUTURA (EXT 1)

Ted: (061) 224415
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PARED BY M¥

STOLZEN D

DEED OF TRANSFER NoL1_¢387 [202¢

BE IT HEREBY MADE KNOWN:

THAT HELMUT DEVILLIERS STOLZE
appeinsd bofor me. Depnity) Rezistrar of Doods 3 Windhuck. b the said Appemer. baus duly
sutborssod tharei by 2 Power of Altrsey gramiod W bun by e

MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF SWAKOPMUND

Dacd the 6TIL dav of JUNE 2024 and signod a8 SWAKOPMUND
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page twe

AND FHE SAID APPEARER declared thar fus Prscipal had truly and legally sold on the

13T MAY 2024

AND THAT HE, i his capacay aforesad. did by these presants, cede and transter, m full and free
property. 10 and oo behalf of

CANDICE STRAUSS
IDENTITY NUMBER 960620 0062 7
UNMARRIED

Her Heirs. Exocutors. Admimnsstrators or Assigns.

CERTAIN

SITUATE

MEASURING

HELD

A_SURBJECT

Frf No. 234, MATUTURA
Extension No i

In the Municipality of SWAKOPMUND
Registration Division "G"
Erougo Region

1881 (One Exght Eight One) Square Metres as will appear from General
Plan S.G No A 13342613

By Cenificate of Consolulaiod Tite No T 737320620

to the followme conditions n temus of  Governmant Naotice Mo
237 of 14 Sepramber 2018, nanely

IN FAVOUR OF EHE LOCAL AUTHORITY

al The erf must only be used or eccupied for purposes which are in accordance with, the
provisions of the Swakopmund Town Planmng Scieme, preparcd and approved in lems
of the Town Planmng Ordinance. 1954 (Ordinance 18 of 1954}

b} The building value of the mae building, mehding the eutbuildiog to be erected on the et

must be at least iwe times the prevahing valuatwn of the erf.
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page three

FURTHIR SUBIECT 1o the following conditions it favour of the Municipality of
Swakopmund. vamely:

The Purchaser may not commence with construction of any improvements until transfer
has heen cffected in histher name and only after the butlding plan have been approved by
the Seller in respect of the proposed improvements.

The Purchaser may not alicnate the Etf prior to transfer bewmg regstered.

The Purchaser hereby binds himsclf and undertakes to the Seller not to cffect the
registration of the transfer of the Frf into the name of its successor-in-title until and unless
its successors-in-title shall have bound itself and undertook wn writing to the Seller to
autaris musandi beheld bound and to comply with cach and every obligation of the
Purchaser created in or ansing from the Agreement. The Purchascr hereby agrees that the
Seller may withold the issue of the special clearance certificate until such tme as the
stipulations of this clause have been complied with.
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Page lour

WHERFFORE the Appearcr, amouncing all the Risht and Title which the said
TRANSFEROR heretofore had to the Premiscs. did, i consequence also acknowledge it
10 be entirely dispassessed of. and disentitled o the same and that, by virtse of these
presents, the said. TRANSFEREE

Her heirs, executors. admimstrators or assigns, now is and henceforth shall be entitled
thereto conformably to local custom. the State. however reserving its rights: and finally,
acknowledging th:at the purchase price of the aforesaid property amounts to

NS 1 934 550.00.

Signed at WINDHOEK on W% 07

and confirmed with my seal of office.
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o
SPECIAL POWER OF ATTORNEY w
(a5

>
e, the undersigned,

CANDICE STRALSS (ID- 360620 8062 7)

in myfour cagacity as:

THE REGISTERED OWMNER OF ERF 254, MATUTURA, EXTENSION MO 1, SWAKOPMUND

dio hereby norminate, consitute and appont,
VAN DER WESTHUIZEM PLAMMING & PROPERTIES CC, P O BOX 1588, SWAKOPBUND

With power of Substitution, i Be my awful Allorney and Agent in myfour name, piace and stead,
negoliate and ' make all necessary spplications o Municipality, Town Council, Binistry of
Urban and Rural Davelopment or any other aulhorily, for the:

SUBDIVISION OF ERF 254, MATUTURA, EXTENSION MC. 1, SWAKOPMUND, INTO PORTIONS A,
8, C, D, E AND REMAINDER.

Al the cost of the applicant and generally for effecting the purposes afioresasd, fo do of cause io
be dane whatsoever shall be requesite. as fully and effeclually. for all intents and purposes as UWe
might or could do if personally present and acting herein — herby ratifying, allowsng and confirm
all and whaisoever myfour said Altomey and Agent shall fawfully do, or cause lo be done. by
witue of these present.

i
- -
~

SIGMED at  ~Fsdman) tis 'S dayol Viay 26 %

]

in the presence of the undersigned Winessas
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ANNEXURE C
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(O S LIS R R

PO BOX 1538
TOWN PLANNIMG & PROFERTIES SWAKOPMUND . NAMIBIA
2B S 1o L -
A [ )
at ol y st VY-

ERF 252, MATUTURA, EXT.NO 1  Your REF: ERF 254, MATUTURA, EXT NO 1, SWK
ENS NDAKOLUTE
P.0. BOX 2152
SWAKOPMUND
13001
19 March 2025

Dear Sir / Madam,

APPLICATION FOR THE SUBDIVISION OF ERF 254, MATUTURA, EXT. NO 1,
SWAKOPMUND, INTO PORTIONS “A”, B”, “C”, “D”, “E” AND REMAINDER.

Notice is hereby given in terms of the Urban and Regional Planning Act of 2018 (Act 5 of
2018), that Van Der Westhuizen Town Planning and Properties CC, on behalf of our client,
Me C. Strauss, the registered owner of Erf 254, Matutura, Ext. No 1, Swakopmund, intends
to apply to the Swakopmund Municipality for the following:

» SUBDIVISION OF ERF 254, MATUTURA, EXT. NO 1, SWAKOPMUND INTO
PORTIONS “A"”, “B"”, “C”, “D", “E" AND REMAINDER.

Erf 254, Matutura, Ext. No 1, Swakopmund cumently measures 1881m? in extent, and is
located alongside Basil Street in Matutura, Ext 1, Swakopmund. The property is zoned as
General Residential 2, with a density of 1:250m2. it is the intention of the owner to subdivide
the property into Portions “A", "B", “C”, “D", "E” and Remainder and create 6 individual
erven to be developed separately.

Please further take note that -

(a) The proposed Subdivision plan of the Erf can be inspected at the Public Notice Board of
the Swakopmund Municipality located on the Comer of Rakotoka Street and Daniel
Kamho Avenue.

(b) Any person having objections to the proposed Subdivision or who wants to comment
thereon, may lodge such objections and comments, together with the grounds thereof, in
writing to the Municipality of Swakopmund and the Applicant within 14 days of the last
publication of this notice.

Please be advised that the written objection must be forwarded within the prescribed time as
required by the Urban and Regional Planning Act of 2018. Such written objections or
comments must therefore be submitted by no later than 17:00 on 3 April 2025.

Yours Faithfully,

&
A R VAN DER WESTHUIZEN
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s
-
e
PO BGX 1598

TOWN PLANNING 2 PROPERTIES SWAKORNULND , NAMIBIA
- L -

ERF 253, MATUTURA, EXT.NO1  Your REF: ERF 254, MATUTURA, EXT NO 1, SWK
JP FILLEMON
P.0. BOX 2523
OSHIKANGO
17008
19 March 2025

Dear Sir / Madam,

APPLICATION FOR THE SUBDIVISION OF ERF 254, MATUTURA, EXT. NO 1,
SWAKOPMUND, INTO PORTIONS “A™, B”, “C”, “D”, “E” AND REMAINDER.

Notice is hereby given in terms of the Urban and Regional Planning Act of 2018 (Act 5 of
2018), that Van Der Westhuizen Town Planning and Properties CC, on behalf of our client,
Me C. Strauss, the registered owner of Erf 254, Matutura, Ext. No 1, Swakopmund, intends
to apply to the Swakopmund Municipality for the following:

> SUBDIVISION OF ERF 254, MATUTURA, EXT. NO 1, SWAKOPMUND INTO
PORTIONS “A”, “B", “C", “D", “E” AND REMAINDER.

Erf 254, Matutura, Ext. No 1, Swakopmund currently measures 1881m? in extent, and is
located alongside Basil Street in Matutura, Ext 1, Swakopmund. The property is zoned as
General Residential 2, with a density of 1:250m2. It is the intention of the owner to subdivide
the property into Portions "A", “B", “C’, “D", “E" and Remainder and create 6 individual
erven to be developed separately.

Please further take note that -

(a) The proposed Subdivision plan of the Erf can be inspected at the Public Notice Board of
the Swakopmund Municipality located on the Comer of Rakotoka Street and Daniel
Kamho Avenue.

(b} Any person having objections to the proposed Subdivision or who wants to comment
thereon, may lodge such objections and comments, together with the grounds thereof, in
writing to the Municipality of Swakopmund and the Applicant within 14 days of the last
publication of this notice.

Please be advised that the written objection must be forwarded within the prescribed time as
required by the Urban and Regional Planning Act of 2018. Such written objections or
comments must therefore be submitted by no later than 17:00 on 3 April 2025.

Yours Faithfully,

A R VAN DER WESTHUIZEN
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NOTICE OF INTENTION:
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ANNEXURE D
|
LOCALITY PLAN-ERF 254, MATUTURA, EXT. 1, SWAKOPMUND ﬂ__.j AKOPMUND
3 pmns 2 === i e DA BRTUTARAENY §
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PROPOSED SUBDIVISION PLAN- ERF 254, MATUTURA, EXT.NO. 1, SWAKOPMUND. NTO | SWAKOPMUND
PORTIONS A, B, C. D. EAND REMAINDER — WITH 50CM CONTOUR INTERVALS —
T ; \) \ . Ul ¥ l o ES 2]
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FROM SINGLE RESIDENTIAL WITH A DENSITY OF 1:600M2 TO GENERAL

BUSINESS WITH A BULK OF 2.0 AND CONSENT TO OPERATE A CARWASH
ILE THE REZONING | PROCESS

(C/M 2025/10/03 - M 690)

Ordinary Management Committee Meeting of 11 September 2025,
Addendum 8.12 page 161 refers.

This item was submitted to the Management Committee for consideration:
1. Purpose

The purpose of this submission is for Council to consider the application for
the rezoning of Erf 690, Mondesa Extension 2 from “Single Residential” with
a density of 1:600m? to “General Business” with a bulk of 2.0, in terms of
Section 105 (1) (a) of the Urban and Regional Planning Act, 2018 (Act No.5
of 2018).

2. Introduction and Background

An application for the rezoning of Erf 690, Mondesa Extension 2, from
"Single Residential” with a density of 1:600m? to "General Business” with a
bulk of 2.0 was received by the Engineering and Planning Services
Department from Stewart Planning Town and Regional Planners on behalf
of the registered owners. The application is attached as Annexure A.

3. Ownership
Ownership of Erf 690, Mondesa, Extension 2, vests in Victor Silimwe
Maswahu & Elina Nelago Maswahu as per Title Deed No. T 8174/2023.
Proof of ownership has been attached to the application.

4. Zoning, Locality, and Size
Erf 690, Swakopmund, is zoned “Single Residential” with a density of

1:600m2, and it measures 1183m?2in extent. The erf is located at the corner
of Rakotoka Street and Vrede Rede Avenue. It is within the conservation

area.

I ocality and zoning map of Erf 690, Mondesa
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Access Municipal Services and parking

Erf 690, Mondesa, is accessible from both Rakotoka Street and Vrede Rede
Avenue.

Parking for the proposed development will be provided on-site in
accordance with the provisions of the Swakopmund Zoning Scheme. In this
case, for a general business zoned property, the parking requirement is
“one parking bay per 33.33m?".

The property is already connected to the existing service networks.
However, all additional infrastructure resulting from the proposed
development shall be the responsibility of the owner of the property, to the
satisfaction of the General Manager of the Engineering and Planning
Services.

Public consultation

The public consultation for the rezoning has been made in terms of section
107 and Regulation 10 of the Urban and Regional Planning Act. The
proposed rezoning was advertised in the Namibian and Namib Times on
the 6t and 13% of June 2025. A notice was placed on Council's notice board
as well as on-site.

The neighbouring property owners were notified in writing via registered
mail, informing them of the intention to rezone the property.

Additionally, a notice was published in the Government Gazette Number
8665, Notice No. 359, dated 13 June 2025

The last date to submit objections and comments was 4 July 2025, and no
objections were received.

Proposal

The owner intends to rezone Erf 690, Mondesa Extension 2, from “single
residential” with a density of 1:600m? to “general business” with a bulk of
2.0, with consent to operate a carwash while the rezoning is in process, to
formalise the existing land uses operational on-site.

There is currently a variety of business activities running from the said erf,
such as a carwash, hair salon, and three dwelling units. It is thus necessary
to rezone the property to general business to legally permit the land uses
being operated on-site.

The ownerfurther requested consent to continue operating a carwash while
the rezoning is being finalized.

Evaluation

The proposed rezoning of Erf 690, Mondesa Extension 2 from “single
residential” with a density of 1:600m? to “"general business” with a bulk of
2.0 is aimed to spatially correct the existing land use activities that are taking
place on the premises, which currently do not conform to the provisions of
the Swakopmund Zoning Scheme under the current zoning, single
residential.
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The three existing dwelling units exceed the density being single residential
with a density of 1:600m2. Supposedly, the erf must accommodate only one
main dwelling with associated outbuildings not exceeding 50% of the total
floor area of the main building. The building plans submitted for approval
in 2012 and 2024, respectively, were conforming to the provisions of the
scheme; however, they were altered and partitioned after construction and
issuance of completion certificates.

The hair salon was operating without Council’s approval, however; in July
2025, after having undertaken consent procedures, Council granted its
special consent to operate a hair salon on Erf 690, Mondesa, on condition
that the carwash currently operating on the same property cease, until the
rezoning is finalized.

The operation of carwashes on single residential zoned properties
contravenes the provisions of the scheme. Hence, the condition is to cease
its operations until the appropriate zone is granted. The request by the
applicantto continue operating the carwash while the rezoning is in process
cannot be supported as it is not part of the secondary rights (consent uses)
under the current single residential zoning.

The carwash can only be permitted to operate after the rezoning has been
finalized, under “general business” zoning, as a service industry.

“SERVICE INDUSTRY"” means use of land or a building which in the opinion
of the Council is a small scale industry incidental to the needs of the local
community and the retail trade and which in the opinion of the Council will
not interfere with the amenities of the surrounding properties or be of
nuisance value by virtue of noise, appearance, smell or activities, or for any
other reason whatsoever but excludes a service station.”

TABLE B
1 2 3 4

PURPOSES FOR WHICH

HYL st 2 LAND OR BUILDINGS

MAP FOR WHICH
ZONE REFERENCE LAND MAY MAY BE USED WITH
BE USED THE CONSENT OF THE
COUNCIL ONLY
D | General Blue fill Shops, Office | Service Stations, Service
Business Buildings, Industry. Launderettes,
Parking Dry-cleanettes, Place of
Garages, Assembly, Place of
Licensed Amusement, Institutional
Hotels, Blocks | Buildings, Drive-in Cafés,
of Flats, | Funeral Parlours and
Residential Chapels, Warehouses,
Buildings Liquor Stores, Bed and
Breakfast, Pensions.

On the proposed zoning, the general business will allow the conformity of
the existing activities taking place on Erf 690, Mondesa, Extension 2. The
property is in close proximity to other commercial land uses, namely
general business and local business. Vrede Rede is one of the mixed-use
economic corridors that promotes connectivity between economic nodes.

The applicant has, however, omitted the request to operate a carwash after
the rezoning. Council can consider granting its special consent for the
operation of the carwash after the rezoning has been approved by the
Minister and promulgated in the Government Gazette. The applicant is
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exempted from conducting public consultation; however, they will be
subjected to other provisions, such as the application fee of not less than
N$2218.78, and business registration procedures, including applicable

fees.
Tawn Planaing Application Fees
E wuems| s o)
| 5 | Resadens accmpation (Conmrd Pk oY) )
9. | Comsent Use (Table B of the Swakupeend Zommg Schene) 33983 rin

The Swakopmund Structure Plan 2020-2040 advocates for mixed-use
developments for the stimulation of economic growth for the town.
Therefore, the proposed development is compatible to the area and its
desired land use types are as provided for in terms of both the
Swakopmund zoning Scheme and the Swakopmund Structure Plan 2020 -
2040.

9. Environmental Impact Assessment

In terms of Section 27 of the Environmental Management Act, Act 7 of 2007,
in conjunction with Section 5.1 (a) of the Environmental Impact Assessment
Regulations, rezoning to commercial use has been listed as one of the
activities that cannot be undertaken without an environmental clearance
certificate, in business-oriented areas, and within the built-up environment.
Therefore, the rezoning of Erf 690, Mondesa, Extension 2 is subject to an
environmental impact assessment.

10. Compensation

The rezoning of Erf 690, Mondesa, Extension 2 from “Single Residential”
with a density of 1:600m?2 to "General Business” with a bulk of 2.0, for the
rectification of the unauthorized activities, is subject to a 75% compensation
fee with respect to betterment, calculated in accordance with Section 9 (b)
of the Urban and Regional Planning Act, 2018 (Act No. 5 of 2018)
Regulations in conjunction with the national betterment fee policy of 2009.

11. Conclusion

The proposed rezoning of Erf 690, Mondesa, Extension 2, from “Single
Residential” with a density of 1:600m?2 to "General Business” with a bulk of
2.0 is intended to bring the current activities into conformity with the
Swakopmund Zoning Scheme and is not foreseen to have any detrimental
negative impacts on the neighborhood. It can therefore be supported.

After the matter was considered, the following was:-
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RECOMMENDED:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

()

That the rezoning of the Erf 690, Mondesa, Extension 2, from “Single
Residential” with a density of 1:600m? to “General Business” with a
bulk of 2.0 be approved.

That consent to operate a carwash while the rezoning is in progress be
turned down.

That the operation of a carwash must cease with immediate effect on
the date of notification of the applicant of this Council decision.

That the environmental impact assessment be undertaken and a copy
of the environmental clearance certificate be submitted to Council
before the submission of the application to the Urban and Regional
Planning Board.

That the rezoning of Erf 690, Mondesa, Extension 2, from “Single
Residential” with a density of 1:600m?2 to “General Business” with a
bulk of 2.0 is subject to a 75% compensation fee calculated according
to the National Betterment Fee Policy of 2009 and be paid by the
applicant.

That no building plans, inclusive of relaxation of building lines or
aesthetics application, be approved until proof of payment of the
compensation fee for the rezoning has been received by Council.

That after the rezoning has been promulgated in the Government
Gazette, the applicant can submit the business registration application
for the carwash, subject to an application fee of not less than
N$2218.78 and business registration procedures, as well as other
applicable fees.

That all the parking be provided on-site in line with the Swakopmund
Zoning Scheme and no parking on street reserve; shall be tolerated.

That the applicant provides proof that the rezoning has been approved
by the Minister and promulgated, before any submission of building
plans to the Engineering and Planning Services Department for
approval, and

That all additional infrastructure required as a result of the proposed
development be for the account of the applicant and in accordance
with the specifications of the General Manager: Engineering and
Planning Services.
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1. Introduction and Background

This report s submitfed to the Mumopal Counal of Swakopmund for the purpose of
motivating and prowiding adequate background to enable the rezoning of Erf 630 Mondesa
Extension 2 (lhe site} from Single Residential (1:600) to General Business with a bulk
factor of 2.0.

The site s located in a fully developed mixed use context and is subject 10 an existing
Zoning Scheme witha which it Is zoned Single Residential with a densdy of 1 dwelling unit
per 600m” The proposal therefore aims at rezoring the site in ocder to formalise the existing
land uses on-side with permanent business nights. There s currently a variety of land-uses
onsite such as carwash and hair salon in addition to the three dwelling units. Thus, it will
be necessary o rezone the site to legaify permit the proposed land uses

The application wil not only spatially comect the existing land use achwities but will aiso
enable Counail to charge and benefit from the business tanll in line with site developments.

The owner has appointed Stewart Planning fo apply to the Municipality of Swakopmund
and the Urban and Regional Planning Soard for the folfowing:

L Application for the rezoning of Eef 690 Mondesa Extension 2 from “Single
Residential™ with a density of | dwelling unit per 600m* w “Genesal Business™
with a bulk of 2 .0 in s of Section 105(2) of dhe Uthan and Regionsl Phinsing
Act, 2018,

2. Consent from the Municipal Council of Swalkopmund w operate a “Carwash™
(Service Industry) on Eff 690 Mondesa Extension 2 in o of Amcndment
Scheme No. 12 of tie Town Plinning Scheme of Swikopmund while the rezoning is
in progress.

considering a refevant palicy and legisiation, followed by the intended public consultation
that will be followed as part of the rezomng/consent use process.

2. Site Locality

e The site is located at No. 33 Vrede Rede Avenue, Mondesa Extension 2 The sie is
afforded gocd access from two streets namely Vrede Rede Avenue {25m wide} and
Rakotoka Street (30m wide}.

s VWrede Rede Avenue and Rakotoka Sireet are both particularly important coffector
noads.

» Therefore. the existing road structure allows for good permeability in and around the
area.

o The site is situated in close procamity fo magor bus and tan routes within the area of

4630 Wondesa Extmrepon 2 Page 3o 14
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s Vrede Rede Avenue connects lo Independance Straet on the East and to Danisl
Kamho Avenue to the YWest ingependence Sireet «s the main ink to the Mondesa
CBD and other areas DRC and Matuturs Daniel Kamho Avenus is the main link 1o
Wineta and to Ocean View

» The propesty :s located n ciose procamidy o other commercial land uses such Stop
2 Shop. Super Save and Mondesa Woemman Brock that forms part of the mixed-use
node n the broader area

» in the same vicindy, you 3iso find shebeens, carwashes and infarmal sirest vendors

s The site s locaied wihn a fully developed residential and commercial contexd
hosting a range of development typologies.

s The site is appropriately suted for the rezoning o Genera! Business fo permanently
entrench commercial nghts and formalise the sxisting land-uses

« The sie s adequately serviced in terms of infrastruciure development therefore, the
rezoning will not put pressure on the existing sarvices bul is merely adminssirative in

Figure 1:Aerial Photo.

Above is an aenal photo depicting the sis on relation to its broader context. As can be seen
the site s strategcaily located m terms of the road network and land uses thereof On the
naxt page s the location of the sie.

£+ 490 Mongesa Sxerson 2 Page dof 14
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The subject property is described as Erf No 690 Mondesa (Extension No 2), situate i the
Aoty Jf SRR Regeiation Division °G, € Rsch

In terms of Deed of Transfer No. T4597/2004, the registered owners of Erf 850 Mandesa
Extension 2 are Victor Siimwe Maswahu and Elina Nelago Maswahu (see Annexure B}
mmwwmﬁmmmrmwm(mm
A)hlﬂmm.*m‘l‘lw in extent.

Table 1: Summary of the Property Description of the site.

ERF 530 MONDESA EXTENSION 2

[ Deed of Transfer

Ef 800 Mondass Extension 2 Paga Sof 14
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4. Existing Zoning

CURBRENT IONING: 3« 3.23208NTAL |7 40mit

L S ATy A _H.\
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< The zones in the immediate context of the site are Instituional, Local Business and

7 At @ broader context, the following zones can ba found: Special, Authonty, General

v mmmmwmmmmuemﬂmmm
commercial zones inlhe area ars indicative of the aree's need for commercial aciivity
2nd that Councl supports the mix of zones and land uses within the area. The
commercial land uses are not anérous or burdensome and do not encroach on the
land use rights of he surrounding residential develcpment Theredore, the proposad
Zone s suitable from a town planning perspective

< The sie is siualed n 3 umque and sirategic iocaton. being a comer 2 the
intersection of two imporiant coliector roads.

v The site is a focal node and therefore 1 adds to the mixad-use context in which it is
located

+ Bacause the site 's located at the comer, it is easdy accessible and visible

v The current cn-site developments contribute towards sustainable development as
the site is located in an actvity comidor

Ed 630 Moncesa Extersion 2 Paga 8o 14
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< The area in which the site is located is transforming rapidly This can be seen with
uses.

« The curent on-site developments are not 2 ‘sore thumb' as the area is fransforming,
and the proposed zone 15 congruent with ifs suroundings

< Formalising the cument on-site developments should be encouraged and supported

€4 880 Mncwivas Exfonaine 2 Poge 7ol 14
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5. Zoning Proposal

The proposed application encompasses the rezoming of the site from Single Residential
(1:600) to General Business with 2 bulk factor of 2.0 1o formakse the current on-site

develgpments

PROPOSED IONING: GENERAL BUIINESS BUS 200

6. Proposed Consent Use

As alluded to earfier in my regort and as can be seen in the photos an page 7 there is
cumently 3 successiul carwash operating on the sita. The owner intends to mamtain the
operation of the land-use while the rezoning process is ongoing. Rezoning applications can
take between 8 fo 14 months to complets, and the owner has conditionally cbtained the
business regisirations from Council subject 0 rezoning approval

O. GENERAL BUSINESS

Y Colowr Notation: Bhue 58
Primary Uses Shogs, Ofice Buldings. Paung Garages. Licansed Hotols,

Consent Uses- Senwoe SIMnns, S s dualy, Place of Assemdly Piace of

As can be seen in the above snapshot, the Carwash falls under consent uses as a Service
Industry n the General Business zone

Bt 290 MomSesa Exforsion 2 Page 9ot 24
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“SERVICE INDUSTRY" mears uss of land or 3 busiing whech m the opsnien of the Counal
13 3 maf scale ndustry nadetd (C the needs ¢f the Gl comeunty & e feter Kade
and whech i) e opimar of the Councs wir 1ot mterte s with the ameniies of e suroundey
propanies o Do OF Musancn v by wrtue of rose 3ppeaanty emal o aetvites o for
2y Other rags0or whatsoaver but exciudes 8 servics siston Ths use aiso provdes for one
dwelng i as prnary use and more dweling urets win he specal consert of ihe Councll

The cperation of the Carwash and ancillary services has proven not 1o be noxicus and will
not have a significant negative impact on tha heaith and safely and amenity of the
neghbourhood.

Therefore, smultaneously with the rezoning, it is deswabie to obizin Councl's consent for
the following:

Mhﬂw&m«smuwsww
690 Mondesa Extension 2 whik the rzoning is in progress.

mmmd‘hwmmammwwmnm
sofioca LIS _

i MMWﬂMammdmmw

ﬂ“ﬂmhvmdymwmﬁmmmd

fand will mwwmmummm
OENErats ¢ noise after howrs.

Il Vrsde Rede Avenue and Rakoicka Sirest are popular route chowces and
axpenienceas a relatively high volume of waffic. This has made the goods and
sennces being avaded on Me site desireble and complementary o the
broader area.

. Tne cumren! on-site developmentis continue to infegrate well with the mix of
land uses in this area which comprisa shops, shabeens, high school, hair
aperments.

salons and high-density

IV  The proposad "General Business' zoning must be ancouraged on such
sirategically located stes to promote higher-intensdy cavelopments, and a
wider ranga of permitted land uses o improve waikabdity and new urbanism

V. The existing on-site davelopmanits have created much needed employment
opportunities for the local residents.

£ 290 Morcess Eceson 2 Pagn 0 of 14
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8. Legislation Overview
The application has been evaluated in terms of the following statutory provisions

« Swakopmund Zoning Scheme
« Urban and Regional Planning Act of 2018
¢ Environmental Management Act of 2007

8.1.Swakopmund Zoning Scheme

The proposed rezoning is evaluated in terms of Swakopmund Amendment Scheme No
12 and No 71 as summarised in Table 2

Tabie Z- Land use restrictions for the “General Business™ roning.

Coverage

In both Schemes., the maximum coverage of The cent irtends (o ublse e exrting buidrgs
WMMMMMMH:*- an sde wih mmor Sterations that wel not
Buldngs significantly increase the 1otal floor area of the
buldngs The proposed devellopment «ill comply

| aith the coverage resimchion

Bulk

| Iy Scherne 12, (he recommended maximum bulk s | The exsting bulidings and land uses generate an
20_-::““-”-&4“5@“7: actual bulk factor of less than 2 0 and will comply

Whichever buk zone s apphed fo the brosder area | wih current bulk requarements,
willl take affect

Minimum Erf Sizes
in both Schemes, no minmum &f 52e & specfied | NO resiriclion apphes

fior fhe "General Busmess” zone i D S
"Demsity Controi 1

In Schame 12, denssy control does not 3pgly ™ | Thers are cumrently 3 dwelling unds on he s4e
e “Gemeral Business” sone Denily s
determned by the bull factor

For Scheme 71_densty zones sl be specfied

which is expecied (o be 1 200, 1 250 or 1 300 for
e susrrounding ea

Haight
Mo Buldnig shall exceed 3 meght of 13 melres The ensing 3nd proposed Duldong extensons will
lasins of Schema 12 unfess relaxed 10 IS melies. | pe cnaie storey in Neignt and unilfely (0 be hgher

Scheme T hexgiht resarcion Tatres
un.;‘:m..‘:&.- M’Smwm will comply wilfy hesght
—— rESnelons

| Bullding Lines

| In Schems 12, no bullding may be erected 3 The st sl comply with Bhe budd of

~ medres from the rear bourdary wnless relaxed by Counat pertarmg 10 buldng (=2 reanatons The
| the Counal. but business buildings may be arscted clhent will submit bulding plans for any aterations

the + for ; = iy g
an the street and side boundanes (except % 0 aid

development Any changes fo be done on site will
lin Scheme 71, the street bulding Ine is also zerp | cOmpiy with the building line provisions of the
metres but 3 metres from any sde and ress Scheme

Doundares

Ert S50 Moncesa Extensan 2 Page 11 of 14
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" Lard Use Restrictions Evatuation

Parking
ﬂmlz,mmmperﬂw&m The ficor aree of the exissng deveioprnents does
|=usmmhummuum comply with the proinsion of Scheme 12 in tesms of

| uriess reiaxed by e Councid parking bays
Scheme 71 akso recommends 1 bay per 33 3m'n | The docor area of the existing developments does |
| he Ceneral Business zone | comply with the provsion of Scheme 71 n fems of
| parung bays

|

'

In conclusion, the exsiing on-sfe deveiopmentis do comply with the provisions of the
proposed "Ganeral Business” zoning

8.2.Urban and Regional Planning Act of 2018

Rezonings require pubkic consultation and permission/approval of the Local Authority and
the Urban and Regional Planning Board This application is submitted (o obtain consent
fram the Local Authority in accordance with the provisions of the Urban and Regional
Pianning Act, 2018 {Act No 5 of 2018).

8.3. Environmental Management Act of 2007

The rezaning of land from “residential use to industnal or commercial use® is a listed actvity
and requires an environmenial dearancs in terms of the Environmental Managemant Act
of 2007 (Act No7 of 2007) Thersfore, the “Genersl Business™ razoning can be
recommended for spproval, provided that an Environmental Clearance Certiicate be
coraned tefore the appiicaion is iodged with the Urban and Ragional Planning Sosrd

9. Policy Overview

The proposed applicaion is evaiuaied in tanms of the Swakcpmund Urban Structurs Plan
of 2020 to 2040

9.1. Swakopmund Urban Structure Plan 2020-2040

1 530 Mongesa Exteniun 2 Pags 120014
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Most importantly, the site is situated at the corner of two busy activity corndors namely.
Vrede Rede Avenue and Rakotoka Street

From the above, it can be concluded that the proposed rezoning 18 in accordance with the
Swakopmund Municipality Urban Structure Plan 2020-2040.

10. Public Consultation

Public consultation allows affected parties to submit written comments. representations. or
objections o the application to assist the relevant authorities with its decision-making in
terms of the Urban and Regicnal Planning Act of 2018 (Act No.5 of 2018) and its
Regulations

The application was advertised in the following manner:

Regulation 10(1): Notice in the Gazette.

Reguiation 10(2) Notices in 2x Newspapers.

Regulation 12(a). Notice(s) on Site.

Regufation 12(b): Notice at the Local Authority.

Regulation 10(4): Natice to neighbouring landowners.

The proof of consuitation report is attached as Annexure E. There were no objections
received on the appiication on the last date of consuitation, which is Friday, 04 July 2025.

11. Summary

There ane feasible reasons which make the proposed rezoning favourable as summansed

below

= The site is well located within a developed context and situated on the intersection of
two busy activity comidor routes such as Vrede Rede Avenue and Rakotcka Street,

e The current exising onsile development ulilises the site in an appropriate and
sustainable manner.

s The scale of the existing development does not hawve a significant impact on the existing
traffic network and does not contribute 1o congestions and defays of traffic in the area.

s The proposed rezomng will confinue fo provide permanent employment.

e The proposed rezoning complies with the guidelines and recommendations of the
Enwwonmental Management Act

o The utilisation of the site for the provision of mixed-use development s fully supported
by the Swakopmund Urban Structure Plan.

a8 & »

£ 080 Mondesa Extermuon 2 Page 1) 0f 14
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12. Recommendation
Therefcre. it (s recommended to the Municipal Counal of Swakopmund for the foliowing

L wnmm«maxmmzmw
Residential” with a density of 1 dwelling unit per 600m? t “General Business™
- with a bulk 0f 2.0 in terons of Section 105(3) of the Urban and Reional Plaring

Act, 2018,

2 mmuﬁnﬁumumnmwm
of a “Carwash”™ (Service Indusary) on Erf 690 Mondesa Extension 2 ia ferms of
Zuoning Scheme No.12 of Swakopmuind while the nezoning is in progress.

{

¥Ve rust the above recommendaticn maels your favourable approval. Should you require
any addiional snformation, then please do not hesitate to contact our office.

Yours fasthfully.

- b=
'S

Mmo Ibcru
Flugastersy rn-um I—.M (NCTRP}

i@ SngvAP:r bLANMNc
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Brce! ieenf
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DEED OF TRANSFER NO.

BE T HERESY WADE KNOWN.
THAT

sgpesred bafore ma Regutrer of Deeds st Wedhosi heishe the sad
Agpearar being duty authorsed thereto By 3 Power of Aftomey granted to

& I oo F e Seanied N
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tarect that bher Ponapal busd tridy ardd lagally

t AKER e
s " Navernber 2023

L SR ma e capan ity aforesasi dvd by these presents cade and

o) hoe properly o amnvg on behall of

VICTOR SILIMWE MASWANU
identity Number 651006 0028 7

And

ELINA NELAGO MASWAHU
identity Number 760604 0055 8
Married in community of property to sach other

Thew hews Executors Admunstrators or Assigns

CERTAIN Er? No 850 Mondesa (Extension No 2)
SITUATE n the Municipality of Swakopmund
Registration Division "G*
Erongo Region

MEASURING
FIRST TRANSFERRED

AND HELD
SUBJECT of
Urban and Regional Planning Act 2018 (Act 8 of 2018),

1183 (One One Exght Three) Square Metres

by Deed of Transfer No T 4208/1987 with Genaral Plan
No SG No A 2/1984 relating thereto

By Deed of Transfer No T 4597/2004

to the followang condbons imposed in Terms the

namely.

A IN FAVOUR OF THE LOCAL AUTHORITY

aj

b)

The erf must only be used or occupied for purposes which are in accordance
with, and the use or occupation of the erf shall at all times be subject to, the
provisions of the Swakopmund Zoning Scheme prepared and approved in lerms

of the Urban and Regional Planning Act 2018 (Act § of 2018)

The buiding value of the main building, exciuding the oulbuilding to be erected
on the erf shall be at least four times the prevailing vaiuation of the erf

g  Sosnned
HAGUE B
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WHEREFORE the Appaarer, renouncing all the Right and Title which the
said

TRANSFEROR

neretofore had to the Premises, did, in consequance aiso acknowiedge him
to be entirely dispossassed of, and disentitiad to, the same, and that by
virtue of these presents the sald

TRANSFEREE

Their Heirs, Executors, Adminisirators or Assigns, now and henceforth shall
be entitled therelo, conformably lo local custom. the State, however,
reserving Hs rights, and finally acknowledging thal the purchasa prce of the
aforesaid propearty amauns to N$ 1 050 000.00

3 2-19
SIGNED AT WINDHOEK ON , together with the appearer,

and confimed with my seal of office.

AL

SIGNATURE OF .QPF'EAF!ER_:7

in my presance
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Fgura 1 Pheto of the site notice put up along Virede Rede Avenue.

l\\ I
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14 | Government Garete 13 June 2025 8665

Shauld this applicaton be sucoesstul, the namiber of weiicles for which pakag must be provided
om-site wall be m sccondance with the Wndbock Zoming Scheme.

The locality plams of the orf lic for mspocton o the Town Plannmg Notice Board of Windisock
Mumicipality, Customer Care Contre, Main Municipal Offices, Rev. Michael Scoft Street. Windbock
md the applicant: Nghavelun Plamng Comsulizats (Hfice No 3, 64 Jerner Street, Windack West

Amy person objecting 10 the proposed e of the land as se1 out above may lodge such abjection
togeiber with the grounds thereaf. with the Windhoek Munscypalsty and with the appiicant{ Nghivelwa
Planming Consultants) w wriing within 14 devs of the Tast publicagion of thes motice. The List dute for
vy obyections e 11 July 2015

Applicans:  Nghivelws Plaaning Consultants
P.O. Box 4690, Ausspannplatz
Cell: 981 41 273 59
Email: planaing@ nghivelwa.com.na

| REZONING OF ERF 690, MONDESA EXTENSION?

Stcwart Planning - Town aad Regioaal Plansers mucnds to apply. on behalf of registered
owner, to the Mumapal Council of Swakopmund, the Urban and Regional Planning Board and the
Envi ntal C ner for p for the following

Reroning of Erf 690, Mondesa Extension 2 from “single residential™ (1:600) to “general
basinesy™ with 3 bulk factor of 2.0 with Coancil’s special consent to operate a “carwash™ 23 3
service industry while the rezoning is in progress. Application for an Favircamental Clearance
Certificaic far the abave reraning

The aforementioned application is submutted m termes of the Urban and Regronal Plaoning Act, 2018
(et No $§ of 2018} and the Swakopmund Zoamg Scheme. The rezoning of land from residential to
commercial usc 1 a listed sctmity, and an application for an Env ental C e Cemtificate will
be made m terms of the Enviroumental Management Act, 2007 {Act No 7 of 2007)

Take note that

[EY] The complete application Lies open for mspection o the Town Planming Department of the
Mumiapality of Swakopmund stusted on the comer of Rakotoka Street and Daniel Kamho
Avenue, of can be requested from mandddsp com na

(b) Potential mierested end affected parties are mvited o register with Stewant Planning, and
any person having comments or objections 10 the application, may m writing lodge such
objections and cormnents, together sith the grounds thereof, with the Chief Executive
Officer of the Municipahty of Swakopmund and with Stewart Planning withe 14 days of the
last publication of thus notice; sad

{) Regstration and winiten comunents or objections must be submutted before or on 17Tha0
Friday, 4 July 2025

Applicant: fLacal Authority

Stewart Planning Chief Fxecutive Officer

Town and Regional Planners Municipality of Swakopmund
P.O. Box 2095, Walvis Bay P.03. Box 53, Swakopmund
mario@ sp.com.as Namibia

064280 773 jheitadswhkmun.comns



285
Ordinary Council Meeting - 02 October 2025

TRRE ". _:_ ..,._ [ _.._m iy it _z__:__. R T E__ L E_ jili
“ _ _ _q__ M_m h_ = i um—.._ __” “ ____: i m ___. £ ﬂm. ~= =~ :w_
___ _ _.m“. “. _mm___m “ w_mw““_.m“&n_. ““_ﬂ____!m-__. mm;m_.w__m_mwmm__ﬁ_.__w..m”“.__wmw.@_
12 2 MU - 3 “ ]
e r ___ b
Il i ____ “_ il ]
“,.,m_mmm .:. mwzm : \ ". T —._mu_. J:mem -
: :.mmm ._.._ T u m m
_“M_Nw__ : il _,_._m,. mr.___mw“mmw _mm_ bt ,___r__“ .“._m __ m_.m,._
i «_m :_m, LRI AT e A
m._mm mm,mm i ___ i Il u_ *_ i _____ il __ i __.._.. _w_
; m w«_mr: __._ m__. b _ m__ M_“ ___._: TR ____._m_r__. i
“m UL ““ 3_ n _ ! _- li: .:m“- _ Te
i __ “ :_.“__w_ x | “
ﬂ__ narits Wt Em__ __“_ _




286
Ordinary Council Meeting - 02 October 2025

7 WANIS TRES COMMUNITY NEWS
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€ Access, Traffic and Parking

As mentioned in the Locality section of this report, Section 3 on Page 4, the site is located on the
corner of 2 streets, Dr. Eugene Muller Street (25m) and Acacia Street {20m). It is proposed to
have the access point from Dr. Eugene Muller Street, which would have also been allowed if the
site remained Single Residential The proposed development of 4 dwelling units wifl only result in
a shight increase in traffic volume to and from the site along Dr Eugene Muller Street. However,
this local access street is 25m wide, whereas the average road reserve of local access streets i
+13m 10 +16m wide. Therefore, Dr Eugene Muller Street, with its wide road reserve, is more than
capable of handling this minor increase.

Each townhouse will have a double garage for parking purposes. Therefore, it can be concluded
thatsafe and suitable access and parking will be achieved without causing traffic congestion or
nqaﬁnhaﬁmhumefmuremvdtheamasﬁleslleisideaﬂvioatedforlhemunded
purposes.

< Impact on Services

Existing bulk and internal municipal sewerage, water and electricity connections are available on
site, and extensions of these connections can be made to the townhouses. Rezoning the site from
Single Residential to General Residential 2 will result in a slight increase in service provision on the
site. The increase in the use of services will be compensated through the payment of betterment
fees by the owner 10 the Local Authority, who is responsible for allocating the fees 1o the
maintenance and upgrading of services in Walvis Bay. Furthermore, with the proposed rezoning
the site will still be used for residential purposes, which is 3 less intensive land use with a lower
impacl on service provision when comparad 10 other land usezones in town.

< impact on Neighbourhood

With the development of the site for 4 townhouses under the General Residential 2 land use zone
provisions, there remains a sufficient amount of vacant Single Residential zoned land within this
neighbourhood to accommodate the ongoing and future need for freehold title detached
diwelling units. it should also be noted that the ather higher-density residential erven within the
neighbourhgod have 3 zoning density of 1:250m”. The proposed development only requires a
zoning density of 1:300m’, which is less than the average censity zone for higher density
residential areas in the neighbourhood.

It is evident that the proposed utilisation of the site for 4 townhouses is more in demand than the
utifisation of the site for a larger dwelling unit since the site has been vacant and undeveloped since
the establishment of the township prior to 2003 (20 years ago). Even though the site was zoned
Single Residential with the initial layout of Swakopmund Extension 9, it should be taken into
consideration that kayout planning is not an exact science, but rather a dynamic process of systems
and methods 10 ensure improved environments for human habitation over time. Standards and
Guidelines cannot be cast in stone and should be subject to the constant needs of individuals.

The careful design of the proposed townhouses 1o integrate into the existing residential character
of Ocean View will also strengthen and promote the creation of sustainable neighbourhoods. A
sustainable neighbourhood i a place that is safe, well-planned and buiit to last, where pecpie waat
to live now, and in the future. it & a neighbourhood that is sodally, envircnmentally and

economically healthy.
Page 7 of 12 e
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11.1.2% APPLICATION FOR RELAXATION OF LATERAL BUILDING LINES AND SET-
BACK ON ERF 177, MYL 4 PROPER
(C/M 2025/10/03 - M4 E177)

Ordinary Management Committee Meeting of 11 September 2025,
Addendum 8.13 page 194 refers.

A. This item was submitted to the Management Committee for consideration:
1. Purpose

The purpose of this submission is to seek Council's consideration for the
"Special Consent" to relax a lateral building line from three (3) metres to
zero (0) metres and for the setback of the first floor from five (5) metres to
three (3) metres on Erf 177, Myl 4 Proper.

2. Introduction and Background

An application for consent to relax a building line and set-back to extend
the garage from three (3) meters to zero (0) on the lateral and set back the
first floor from five (5) metres to three (3) metres for the construction of a
first floor on the existing concrete slab, on Erf 177, Myl 4 Proper was

" received by the Engineering and Planning Service from Messrs HAD
Consulting.

One of the neighbours objected against the proposed development, and it
is for this reason that the application for building line and setback is being
submitted to the Management Committee for consideration. The
application is attached as Annexure A.

Sh Ownership
The ownership of Erf 177, Myl 4 Proper currently vests in G Pandeni.

4. Locality, Zoning and Size
Erf 177, Myl 4 is situated along Crafish Crescent and is zoned "Single
Residential” with a density of 1:300 and measures approximately 546m? in

extent.

] SR G e [P e _

Figure 1: Locality of Erf 177, Myl 4
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Discussion

In terms of Clause 5, sub-clause (A) 2.4 of the Swakopmund Zoning Scheme
stipulates that:

2.4 Building lines

(a)  No building, permanent structure or portion thereof, except for
boundary walls and fences, may be erected on the site within:

(i) 5 metres from any street boundary;
(ii) 3 metres from any rear boundary;
(iii) 3 metres from any side boundary; and

(iv) 5 metres in the case of a garage from any street boundary
or half the height of the building, whichever is greater.

(b)  The three (3) metres requirement for side and rear boundaries
shall apply to single-storey units and shall increase by two (2)
metres for each additional storey, measured from the external
walls of the building under consideration.

Neighbours’ Consent and comments

The body corporate “The Dunes” that manages Erf 175, Myl 4 Proper, that
borders Erf 177, Myl 4 Proper, objected against the proposed building lines
relaxation and setback.

The ground of their objection is that there is a half-built structure on their
eastern boundary line that is standing abandoned and has become an
eyesore, and people use it to gain access into the complex. Secondly, they
argued that the sun will be blocked by the proposed double-storey
development, especially for Unit 8.

Evaluation

The semi-finished building on the other side of the objector’s property
cannot be used against the proposed development at hand, and the
applicant is not obliged to take the half-built structure to completion. The
objector must find a different platform to address that concern with the
owner of the incomplete structure.

The objector further alluded that the unfinished building gives access to
unauthorised people. It is therefore understood that having an area
developed to its potential capacity helps curb crimes in the neighbourhood.

On the claim for the sun loss, the aforesaid unit, Unit 8, will still get sunlight
for almost the whole day. Only late in the day, when the sun is about to set
that will the sunlight be gone, which is natural.

Conclusion

The proposed relaxation for the lateral building line and setback for the first
floor on Erf 177, Myl 4 Proper will not have a significant negative impact and
no interference with the amenities of the neighbourhood. It can therefore
be supported.
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After the matter was considered, the following was:-

RECOMMENDED:

(a)

(b)

(c)

That the lateral building line on the southern boundary of Erf 177, Myl
4, Proper be relaxed from three (3) metres to zero (0) metres,

That the first floor be set back from five (5) metres to three (3) metres.

That the objector be informed of their right to appeal to the Minister
against Council’s Resolution in terms of Clause 8 of the Swakopmund
Town Planning Scheme within 28 days of receipt of notice of this
Resolution, provided that written notice of such an appeal shall be
given to the Ministry, as well as Council, within the said period.
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COSSENMT FROM ADIJONENG OWNER / NEIGHBOUR (160 TEMANTS) FOR THE
RELANATION OF DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

e cwmer of ef
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The proponed developraert ol have & Steat and indirect posdive IMpact ON SCORGING
powth aad employ which are much reeded io light of the carent
g The develop il tute to the owers! improvement of the

regdential
L —— e R LRSIl
The rovuon of teghar resdential dens et promones spatis! Tewtity n the Browsion of
hoating typet, while 3l maintaining 2 cohesive 3nd hamonious aeighbourticod

7. SUMMARY

There are feasible reasons which make the propased rezoning favourable, as summarised below:

L The site 5 fat, vacant and undeveloped. which makes 2 ideal for housing development:

2 The site is 3 lange, square-shaped o situated on the corner of Dr Eugene Muller Street and
Acacia Streer, which malkes the site highly accessible and desirable for higher-density
resident al development;

3. The adjacent streets have wide road reserves {25m and 10mj to accommodate the minoe

4. The site is situated in a neighbourhood already characterised by mived-density residential
2rven with 3 variety of supporting community land uses;

5. The provision of different housing typologies not only creates vibrant communities but also
aligrars more people access Lo homeoamership;

6. The propesed development anly requires 3 roning density of 1:300m°, which s bess than the
average densily rone for higher dersity residential areas in the neighbourhood, which &
1:250m’;

7. The utiisation of the site for 4 townhouses is mare in demand than the utifisation of the site
for a larger dwelling unit and there remains sufficient vacant Single Residential zoned erven to
accommodate this need in future;

B Thesite is ideal for providing townhouses and will strangthen the exsting residential character
of Otean View, especially since the size and design of the grogosed up-market townbouses
will 3 constiructed to fit in and beautfy the neighbourfiood,

9. The groposed develcoment will have 2 direct and indirect pasitive impact on economic groath
and employment areation which s much needed in light of the current ecoromic environment:

10. The proposed rejoming compiies with the guidelines and recommendations of the
Swakopmund Zoning Scheme, Saakopmund Structure Plan 2020-2040, and the Minaterial
Town Planning Standards and Urban Design Guidelines.

8. PUBLIC CONSULTATION
The public was notified of the application in 3¢cordance with the Urhan and Regiona! Planning Act.
2018 as follons:

* Regulation [O{1]: Motxe in the Gazette (30.05.2075}

* Reguiation 10(2i: Motices in 2x Mewspapers for ) Weeks [23 052025 & 30.05.2025)
e Regufation 11{a): Notice{s} on Site (02.06.2025 - 20.06 1025}

e Regulation 12{bl: Notice 3t the Local Autherity {02.06.2025 - 10 .06 2015)

= Regufation 10{4): Notice to neighliouring landowners. (03.06.2025)

The groof of consultation is attached as Annexure E.

et ) e -
s ? Pags 100012 e
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. RECOMMENDATION
Given the need and desirability of the rezaning proposal, we hereby recommend the favourable
consideratian of the following:

Should you require any additional information, then please do not hesitate 1o contact me.

Yaours faithiully,

Tond Faras
STEWART PLANNING
YOWN & REGIONAL PLANNERS

Te! =264 58 120 770 | Evad Delasalep Comes

Bruce Stewart
Tonn Parrer

STEWART PLANNING

TOANN & REGIONAL PLANNERS
Yot +265 58 280 7)) | Ermal Qrp0afla comn oa

5 ]
P Y mpnnpengnd £ epegics ;- 26012 .



306
Ordinary Council Meeting - 02 October 2025

SPECIAL POWER OF ATTORNEY

1, e underssgned,
Lione! John Matthews ID No. 4071000716}

in myy cagacity as the OWNER OF ERF 4665, SWAKOPMUND EXTENSION 9

STEWART PLANMING — TOWN AND REGIONAL PLANNERS
P.0. BOX 2095, WALVIS BAY, NAMBLA

with full power of subsiitution, to be my frue and fawiul Attormey and Agent for me and in ay fame.
mmmnmummuuwdw.m
Usban and Regional Planming Board for the

mwwmmwwmnmmmm
(1:600m°) TO GENERAL RESIDENTIAL 2 (1:300m’).

2t the cost of the applicant ard generaly for effectng he purpeses aforesad, in do or cause (o be
done whatsoever shall be requisite, as fully and efiectually, for all intents and purpases | might of
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fn termes of Sacten £ and 7 of the Marmed Permons Eguabty Act. 19688 (A« 1 of 1596}, . Johanna
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BASSON, CA
CARICIA BASSON LEGAL PRACTITIONERS
Legal Practitionar, Conveyancer & Notary Public
5§ Seitz Street, Windhoek
P O Box 97254 Maerua Park
Windhoek e -
B oz977 2025

o —Ta

DEED OF TRANSFER

BE IT HEREBY MADE KNOWN:

THAT CARICIA ANNETTE BASSON

appeared before me the Depuly Registrar of Deeds, at Windhook, she, the said
Appearer, being duly authorised thereto by a Power of Attorney granted to her by

LEONHARD HICO KURZ

Identity Number 710917 0019 2
Married out of community of property
(harsinaRer styled the TRANSFEROR)

dated the 13™ day of May 2025 and signed at Windhoek s

/v\/ -
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2

AND THE SAID APPEARER DECLARED TIHAT her said principal on the 28™ of April
2025 had vuly and legally soid, and that she, in her capacity aforesaid, did, by these
presents, cede and transfer, in full and free property, to and on behalf of

LIONEL JOHN MATTHEWS

Identity number 640710 0071 6

Marrlod to Johanna Matthews, which marriage Is governed by the laws of the
Republic of South Africa

(hereinafter styled the TRANSFEREE)

His Heirs, Executors, Administrators or Assigns,

CERTAIN  Edf No. 4665 (A portion of Exf No. 1534) Swakopmund (Extension No. 9)

SITUATE  In the Municipality of Swakopmund
Registration Division "G*
Erongo Region

EXTENT 1420 (One Four Two Nif} Square metres

FIRST transferred by Deed of Transfer No. T4600/2010 with General Plan S.G. No.
A491/2004 relating thereto and held by Deed of Transfer No. T4161/2011

SUBJECT to the following conditions imposed In terms of the Urban and Regional
Planning Act, 2018 (Act No. 5 of 2018} nemely:-

IN FAVOUR OF THE LOCAL AUTHORITY

The erf must only be used or occupied for purposes which are in accordance with, and
the use or occupation of the ecf shall at ali times ba subject to the provigions of the
Swakopmund Zoning Scheme prepared and approved in terms of the Urban and
Regional Ptanning Act, 2018 (Act No. § of 2018}.
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CURRENT ZONING: SINGLE RESIDENTIAL (1:400m7)
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PROPOSED ZONING: GENERAL RESIDENTIAL 2 {1:300m")
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Guwvernment (azette 30 May 2025 8651

In terms of the Urban and Regional Plasaing Ad, 2008 i 4 thus required to apply 10 both the
Swakopmend Manicips] Cosact] aad the Mimistry of Urbus and Rural Develogment fre spproval of
wch mtentions.

Take note that -

{ap

®

The plus of the erf can he wnpected at the Public Notrce Board of the Swakopmund
Mamcpality kocated on the comer of Rakotoka Street 3nd Damc] Kambo Avenue.

rmay lodge ssch objoctions wed comments, tagether with fhe grosnds thareol, m wnlmg
the Swakopemnd Mhuricipabity snd the spplicant within 14 deys of the Last publication of thie
notice.

Any p hsuing ob s e proposed rezoaing of who wast 0 comment thereoa,

Be advited that the writien clbjection wud be fivaarded witha the prescribed time as coquined by
the Urham snd Regional Plasnng Act, 2018, Such mritien objection of comment mud theaefore be
ssbeniticd by no later than 17h9 on 14 Jume 2025,

Applicant: Van Der Westhuizen Town Plansing & Progerties cc

P. O Bax 1998, Swakopmund

Ciontact Persons: A, van dor Westhuizen
Cellz 0811124661

Email: andrew s vdwipons
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NOTKE OF THK CONSENT
APPLICATION IN TERMS OF THE
WALVES BAY TOWN FLANNING
SCHEME
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ANNEXURE B- OBJECTION
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11.1.22 WRITING OFF: REDUNDANT MATERIAL - WATER WORKS
(C/M 2025/10/03 - 17/2/5/1)

Ordinary Management Committee Meeting of 11 September 2025,
Addendum 8.14 page 220refers.

A. This item was submitted to the Management Committee for consideration:
The following items at the Water Works Section have become redundant and thus
need to be written off and sold at the next public auction.

Quantity Description
105 Meter Boxes
10 Standpipe Heads
60+ Standpipe Batteries
100+ Electronic Meters
18 Valve Boxes
B. After the matter was considered, the following was:-

RESOLVED: (For Condonation by Council)

(b) That the following redundant items from the Water Works Section be
written off and sold at the next public auction:

Quantity Description
105 Meter Boxes
10 Standpipe Heads
60+ Standpipe Batteries
100+ Electronic Meters
18 Valve Boxes

{(b) That the Chief Executive Officer and the Chairperson of the
Management Committee determine the upset prices for the above-
mentioned items.
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1.

11.1.23 PROCUREMENT QUARTERLY PROGRESS REPORTS JULY 2024 TO MARCH
2025
(C/M 2025/10/03 - 5/P)
Ordinary Management Committee Meeting of 11 September 2025,
Addendum 8.15 page 221 refers.

A. This item was submitted to the Management Committee for consideration:

INTRODUCTION

In accordance with Section 25(2) of the Public Procurement Act, 2015 (Act
No. 15 of 2015), as amended, the Accounting Officer of a Public Entity is
mandated to submit a quarterly progress report to the Procurement Policy
Unit within 30 days following the conclusion of each quarter.

BACKGROUND

The submission history of the quarterly progress reports is as follows:

o July 2024 - September 2024: Submitted on 31 October 2024.
o October 2024 - December 2024: Submitted on 27 January 2025.
s January 2025 - March 2025: Submitted on 8 April 2025.

These submissions align with the stipulations of the Act and correspond
with the Council's financial year cycle.

3. QUARTERLY HIGHLIGHTS

Quarter:1 - 01 July 2024 to 30 September 2024

e Total procurement awarded N$54 558 587.32
» Key projects

Procurement Procurement Name Of Bidder Awarded
Number Description Awarded Amount
Remedial Measures For Om'kuto
W/ONB/SM- | Structural Damages At
004/2024 T I Contractors And N$171 231 868,00
.y Developers
Tamariskia
Om'kuto
W/ONB/SM- | Extension Of Main Fire | (oMractorsAnd | N82 94158517
001/2024 | Brigade Station P
Supply And Delivery Of .
%/";f/‘%sz"z Pre-Paid Water Meters Nets‘f,’&g cﬁ‘g’itgg’”g N$1 319 488,40
And Water Meter Boxes
G/ONB/SM- | Supply & Delivery Of | Indongo Auto T/A
005/2024 Water Tanker Hino Indongo N$2 204 584,95
Extension Of Existing
W/ONB/SM- | Water  Network  For Unity One
005/2024 | Swakopmund Investment Cc s 471 0o
Smallholdings
Request For Proposal
For The Procurement Of
e Internal Audit Services Ernst & Young N$2 530 368,00
006/2024
For 3 Years Was
Advertised
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Quarter: 2 - 01 October 2024 to 31 December 2024

e Total procurement awarded N$102 424 870.26
e Key projects

Procurement Procurement Na-rn Y oid
Number Description Bidder Awarded Amount
Awarded
NCS/ONB/SM- | Provision Of Security
003/2024 Services For A Period om,amb“d_“ N$3 418 754,40
Of Fifteen (15) Months | Security Services
NCS/ONB/SM- | Provision Of Landfill | Frontier Multi
004/2024 Management Service Industries Pty Ltd WIS 14038000
NCS/RFQ/SM- | Printing And Mailing
053/2024 Of Accounts And Namibia Post
Statements For The | ' or 2708 N$1757 244,94
Limited
Swakopmund
Municipality
W/ONB/SM- Renovation Of The Jesaya Steel
008/2024: Seating Cubicles At Manufacture
The Mole And Engineering b 725 S50
Cc
W/ONB/SM- Renovations,
006/2024 Upgrades, And
Additions To The Unity O
Health & Solid Waste nity One N$3 891 183,24
Investments Cc
Management
Facilities, Rem/1596
(Rem/1596)
CS/RP/SM- Design Of A Potable
007/2024 Water Reservoir For Element
the New Northern c It
Wedge Area And | . onsuiting N$2 334 171,96
Ocean View ggieesG i)
. Ltd
Extensions
Swakopmund
W/ONB/SM- The Renovation Of The Jesaya Steel
007/2024 Facilities On Erf 610 Manufacture
Tamariskia To Serve As | And Engineering N$8 068 784,13
An Emergency Shelter Cc Jv Esh
(T610 Trading Cc
W/RFQ/SM- Construction Of Speed 1S Tradin
015/2024 Calming In Regenstein 2ding N$606 075,30
Street Enterprises Cc
W/ONB/SM- Upgrading Oof
011/2024 (bertina ~ Amathila | F2UIANILucy | \gc ogg g1
Investment
Street
Quarter: 3 - 01 January 2025 to 30 March 2025
e Total procurement awarded N$52 865 740.14
e Key projects
Procurement Procurement Name Of Bidder Awarded
Number Description Awarded Amount
Provision Of Municipal Zero Six Five
W/ONB/SM- | Services For Extension Trading Jv
005/2024 | 42, Wagdaar - Phase 1 | Mawila Technical MESE 562 SU0.75
Services Cc
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Supply, Delivery And
Installation Of A 1000 Om'kuto
W/ONB/SM- | Cubic Meters Portable
012/2024 | Water Tank At Small. | COTtractors& | N$4 24722283
Holdin Developers
gs,
Swakopmund
Procurement Process:
Placement Of Rock
%gfgzs:ﬂs- Armour  For The | Refuse Solutions | N$1767 653,50
Revetment At Jetty &
Mile 4
Supply And Delivery Of N$19,09
Fuel And Oil To The P’;’;Z,f;q N$18,54
G/ONB/SM- | Municipality of[ - Zn g N$11 167,61
006/2025 | Swakopmund For The Dist 'bg i
Period 1 March 2025 - e N$12 300,56
28 February 2028 (PTY)

After the matter was considered, the following was:-

RECOMMENDED:

That Council takes note of the procurement quarterly progress reports for the
periods stated above, as submitted by the Chief Executive Officer.
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11.1.24 UNCLAIMED DEPOSIT POLICY
(C/M 2025/10/03 - 3/P)
Ordinary Management Committee Meeting of 11 September 2025,
Addendum 8.16 page 224 refers.
A. This item was submitted to the Management Committee for consideration:
INTRODUCTION
Currently Council does not have an Unclaimed Deposit Policy in place for
guidance and control of unclaimed monies.
The unclaimed monies mainly originate from:
(a)  Unidentified direct deposits into Council’s current account
(b)  Service Accounts with credit balances
The purpose of this submission is to implement a clear procedure for handling
Unclaimed Deposits (monies) received by Council, attached hereto as “Annexure
A”. Resultantly, the objective is to reduce the liability of the Municipality now that
there will be a framework on how to identify and deal with unclaimed deposits.
B. After the matter was considered, the following was:-

RECOMMENDED:

That Council approves the ‘Unclaimed Deposit Policy’.
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“ANNEXURE A"

UNCLAIMED DEPOSIT POLICY

Approved by Council: September 2025
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1. DEFINITIONS
“Accounting Officer” means the Chief Executive Officer of the Swakopmund Municipality.
"Council” means the Municipal Council referred to in Section 6 (1) of the Local Authorities
Act, 1992 (Act No 23 of 1992), as amended.
“Creditor’ means a person or legal entity to whom money is owed by the Municipality.
“Customer” means any person, legal entity, or civic organisation who makes use of
services or facilities provided by the Municipality.
"Municipality" means a municipality declared as such or deemed to be under section 3 of
the Local Authorities Act, 23 of 1992.
“Primary bank accounts” means a designated bank account opened in the name of the
Municipality.
"Register' means the official register kept in respect of the receipt of unclaimed deposits.

2. INTRODUCTION
Revenue management involves all the procedures necessary to ensure that the income of
the Municipality is properly planned and fully accounted for and that cash, once received,
is safeguarded and banked promptly.
The Accounting Officer must take all reasonable steps to ensure that the Municipality has
and maintains a management, accounting and information system which-
(i) recognises revenue when it is earned;
(i) accounts for Debtors; and
(iii) accounts for receipts of revenue;
Unclaimed monies are a challenge faced by the Municipality, where monies are paid or
deposited into the Municipal primary bank accounts, which cannot be identified nor are
claimed by any Consumer or Creditor of the Municipality. Monies are unclaimed for
various reasons and commonly arise amongst other things from the following:

e Money deposited into the Municipal primary bank accounts without any reference,
instructions, or documentary proof.

e Amounts/deposits payable to Consumers or creditors which were either not claimed
or banked.

e Creditors / Consumers are unaware of their legal right to the monies.

e The purpose of the deposits and the identity of the depositor cannot be identified
and can therefore not be allocated to a service account or any designated income
votes.

e Deposits paid for utilization of facilities or service accounts not claimed by Customers.

3. OBJECTIVES OF THE POLICY
The objectives of the policy are:
3.1 To provide a framework on how to identify and deal with unclaimed deposits.
3.2 To reduce the liability of the Municipality.
3.3 To provide a guideline for the disclosure of the unclaimed deposits in the annual
financial statements.

4. LEGISLATIVE FRAMEWORK
Local Authorities Act, 23 of 1992, as amended.

5. IDENTIFICATION OF UNCLAIMED DEPOSITS
5.1 An unclaimed deposit can be:

5.1.1  Any amount of money paid into the Municipal primary bank accounts without
any reference, instructions or documentary proof on how the deposits should
be allocated and which amount remains unclaimed for a period of three (3)
months.
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5.1.2 Any amounts of money legally payable to a Customer or Creditor by the

municipality, and which amount has not been claimed or banked within a period
of three (3) months.

5.1.3  Any amount of money paid to the municipality by a Customer as security for

municipal services or for the use of municipal facilities, which amount has not
been claimed within a period of three (3) months.

PROCESSING OF UNCLAIMED DEPOSITS

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

The General Manager: Finance is required to create and maintain an account
(or Vote) to account for all unclaimed deposits

After all the unclaimed deposits mentioned in paragraph 5.1 have been identified
and the mentioned period has expired, the unclaimed deposits must be transferred
to the liability vote by an official after a written approval from the General Manager:
Finance.

(Amounts credited to the liability vote may only include unknown debits on
the bank statement and do not include any other amount.

Unclaimed deposits mentioned in paragraphs 5.2 and not claimed within the
mentioned period must be re-allocated to an applicable general ledger liability
vote for unclaimed deposits.

Unclaimed deposits mentioned in paragraphs 5.3 and which were receipted
against a deposit account but not claimed within the mentioned period, must be
allocated against an applicable general ledger liability vote for unclaimed deposits.

REGISTER OF UNCLAIMED DEPOSITS

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

All unclaimed deposits, mentioned in paragraph 6, together with an indication of
the type of deposit and any further details for future reference purposes, will be
noted in a register kept by the Municipality.

The register will be maintained and updated regularly and kept for a period of five
(5) years.

The total on the register will be reconciled to the liability vote and be reviewed
monthly.

After the unclaimed deposits have been noted in the register the rightful owner
thereof must claim the depaosits within a period of three (3) years from date the
deposits were deposited subject to documentary proof being provided by the
claimant of the deposits or become unclaimed.

DISCLOSURE OF UNCLAIMED DEPOSITS

The total value of unclaimed deposits must be recognised as a liability in the financial
statements of the Municipality. This liability vote must be included under Payables from
Exchange Transactions in the statement of Financial Position annually.

UNCLAIMED DEPOSITS TO BE PAID AS PUBLIC REVENUE

9.1

9.2

Should unclaimed deposits not be claimed within the period of three (3) years

provided for in section 7.4 supra, the deposits will be written off from the register

and the liability vote, declared forfeit, subject to the completion of the process in

section 9.2 below and be allocated as revenue in that financial year.

The following process must be followed before any deposits are declared forfeit

and allocated as revenue:

9.2.1 An advertisement will be placed for 2 subsequent weeks in 2
newspapers stating that the register will lie open for public inspection;

9.2.2 Such register must lie open for inspection for a further period of four (4)
months;

9.2.3 The register will be made available for inspection at the main Municipal
buildings.

9.2.4 A prescribed form must be completed with documentary proof should any
deposits be claimed by a customer or creditor; and

9.2.5 After the expiry of the four (4) month period, a report will be submitted to
Council on the unclaimed deposits to be written off from the register and be
transferred to general revenue.



325
Ordinary Council Meeting - 02 October 2025

10. REVIEW
This policy will be reviewed annually to ensure that it complies with changes in applicable

legislation and the operating requirements of the municipality.

11. SHORT TITLE
This policy shall be called the Unclaimed Deposit Policy of Swakopmund

Municipality.
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TRANSFER OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURE - PROCUREMENT OF ELECTRONIC

PALLET STACKER / FORKLIFT
(C/M 2025/10/03 - 17/2/5/2/3)

Ordinary Management Committee Meeting of 11 September 2025,
Addendum 8.17 page 231 refers.

This item was submitted to the Management Committee for consideration:
PURPOSE

The purpose of the submission is to request Council approval for the transfer of
capital expenditure funds, from the previous financial period (2024 / 2025) to the
current 2025 / 2026 financial year, for the procurement of an electronic Pallet
Stacker/ Forklift for the Stores section.

INTRODUCTION

Funds were allocated in the previous financial period for the procurement of an
electronic Pallet Stacker to replace the current manual Pallet Jack in the Stores
Section. The procurement process was duly completed, and a successful bidder
was appointed, with a succession bidder identified in the event of non-delivery.

The supplier has confirmed that delivery of the Pallet Stacker will be affected by
30 August 2025. However, all purchase orders issued in the previous financial year
were cancelled on 15 August 2025, rendering the original purchase order invalid.

Itis therefore necessary to transfer the allocated funds to the current financial year
to enable the issuing of a new purchase order to the supplier, to ensure delivery.
Restarting the entire procurement process at this stage would be impractical, as
the process has already been finalised and a supplier appointed.

MOTIVATION

The electronic Pallet Stacker will offer the following operational benefits
compared to the manual Pallet Jack:

¢ Improved Efficiency: Enables faster and smoother movement of heavy loads.

o Enhanced Safety: Reduces risk of workplace injuries by minimising manual
liting and pushing.

e Higher Load Capacity: Capable of handling larger and heavier pallets with
ease.

e Reduced Physical Strain: Lessens fatigue and improves productivity among
staff.

s Better Manoeuvrability: Operates efficiently in confined spaces within the
Stores.

The acquisition will improve operational efficiency, reduce health and safety risks,
and extend the lifespan of handling equipment in the Stores.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The required funds were already budgeted for in the previous financial year under
the Stores Section budget - Vote: 2010 310 287 00 (Forklift: Stores). A transfer
of the equivalent amount to the current financial year is required to facilitate
payment to the supplier.
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After the matter was considered, the following was:-

RECOMMENDED:

(a)

(b)

(c)

That Council approves the transfer of funds from the previous financial
year (2024 / 2025) allocation to the current financial year (2025 / 2026)
for the procurement of the electronic Pallet Stacker.

That the General Manager: Finance secures funds amounting to
N$350,000.00 to Vote: 300031013600, (Forklift: Stores).

That a new purchase order be issued to the appointed supplier to
enable delivery of the Pallet Stacker/ Forklift.
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ANNEXURE 1

From: Imanuel Kaufilwa < ka - lwaC i 1.nas
Sent: Tuesday, 19 August 2025 11 54 am

To: Hellao Naruseb <hnarseh 13>
Subject: Transfer of Funds- Electromc Pallet Stacker (Stores)

Dear Mr INaruseb,

Please find attached the soft copy of the submission regarding the transfer of funds for the
procurement of an electronic pallet stacker, which was budgeted for in the 2024/2025 financial
year, to the current financial period. The evaluation process has been completed, and a
successful bidder has been appointed.

The transfer of funds is necessary to ensure delivery, as all purchase orders created in the
previous financial period were cancelled on 15 August 2025.

Regards,

Imanuel Kaufilwa | Stores Controller | Finance | +264 410 4335

ANNEXURE 2

From: Hellao Naruseb <hnaruseb@swkmun.com.na>
Sent: 13 August 2025 08:28 AM

To: # Workgroup <workgroup@swkmun.com.na>
Subject: Old Year Payments

Dear Colleagues.

Good morning, attached hereto is the list of ALL orders/commitments for the 2024 / 2025
financial year.
We therefore inform and request you ALL:
1. To forward all old-year invoices in your possession immediately to the Finance
Department.
2. Thatall old year orders and sundry payments will only be processed till 15 August
2025.
3. That All orders (commitments) will be cancelled on 18 August 2025.
4. The above action is necessitated to ensure that our VAT returns for the months June
and July 2025 are submitted timeously before 25 August 2025.

Hellao Naruseb | General Manager: Finance | Finance | +264 64 410 4301




11.1.26

329
Ordinary Council Meeting - 02 October 2025

INVITATION: HATS & ROSES SWAKOPMUND
(C/M 2025/10/03 - 3/15/1/1)

Ordinary Management Committee Meeting of 11 September 2025,
Addendum 9.1 page 03 refers.

This item was submitted to the Management Committee for consideration:

Attached is an invitation from Ms Rodnicia de Waal, the Projects & Fundraising
Manager of Cancer Association Namibia (CAN) - Erongo Centre. The CAN's
Erongo Branch will be hosting a Hats & Roses Ladies breakfast in support of
women fighting cancer in Namibia.

Council resolved on 27 October 2022 under item 11.1.15 as follows:

(a) That the invitation to the Hats & Roses breakfast from the Cancer Association of Namibia (CAN)
- Erongo Centre be noted.

(b) That Council supports the Hats & Roses breakfast, scheduled to be hosted on 29 October 2022
at the Dome (Sky Hall) in Swakopmund by donating N$5,000.00 “in kind”.

(c) That the funds be defrayed from the Corporate Service’s Publicity Vote: 150515533000, where
N$253 500.13 is available.

(d) That the Cancer Association Namibia (CAN) - Erongo Centre provides Council with feedback
on their activities in the Erongo region for 2021 and 2022, especially to the Swakopmund
residents.

The Hats & Roses Ladies' Breakfast is a cherished event dedicated to celebrating
the strength, resilience, and beauty of women, while raising much-needed funds
to support our various cancer outreach and care programmes across Namibia.

The Hats & Roses Ladies' Breakfast will take place on 18 October 2025 at the
Swakopmund Town Hall, Tamariskia, in Swakopmund. The Sponsorship
Committee on 22 July 2025 recommended to the Management Committee for
Council to purchase a table of ten (10) valued at N$5,500.00 towards the event.

The selection of the attendance should be from the female staff members who
served Council for more than twenty (20) years. It is also proposed that the two
female Councillors and the General Manager: Health Services & Waste
Management be invited, should they be available.

After the matter was considered, the following was:-

RECOMMENDED:

(a) That the invitation to the Hats & Roses breakfast event scheduled to
take place on 18 October 2025 at the Swakopmund Town Hall,
Tamariskia in Swakopmund, be noted.

{b) That Council supports the Cancer Association Namibia (CAN) - Erongo
Centre by purchasing ten (10x) tickets valued at N$5,500.00.

(c) Thatthe two female Councillors, the General Manager: Health Services
& Waste Management and seven (7) female staff members who served
Council for more than twenty (20) years be nominated to attend the
Hats & Roses Breakfast event.

(d) Thatthe funds be defrayed from the Corporate Service’s Publicity Vote:
150515533000, where N$15,073.00 is available.
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Cancer Association of Namibia

21/81/096 — Incorporated Association not for San L Regrstered Welfare Crganzation (WO30)

Www.Con.org.na

§ £mait ogdmn@can.org.no
et b B .
-\ - Hationat Switenboard: 081 - #53 7740

Tel: D6 — 237740

' Fax: 061 — 237741
PO Box X230
Windhoek
14 July 2025
Corporate Services & Human Capital Department
Swakopmund Municipality

PO Box b3
Swakopmund, Namibia

Dear SirfMadam,
Re: Request for Support — Hats & Roses Women's Moming 2025
Warm greetings from the Cancer Associafion of Namibia.

It is with great appreciation that we acknowledge the Swakopmund Municipality for the ongoing
support and collaboration you have extended 10 us over the years. Your commitment to

wellness and development continues to inspire and sirengthen our efforts, and we
are indy grateful.

We are pleased to announce that our annual Hats & Roses Women's Moming will be hosted on
Saturday, 18 October 2025 at the Tamariskia Town Hall. This chenshed event is dedicated to
celebrating the strength. resilience, and beauty of women, while raising much-needed funds to
support our vanious cancer oufreach and care programmes across Namibia.

We kindly request the Swakopmund Municipality to consider purchasing tickets for this evert.

Ticket prices are as follows:
NS$550 per person
= IN$5,500 per table of ten pecple

Please note that there will be no VIP fables at this event, as we aim to ensure an equally wanm
and empowering experience for all our guests

Your presence and support would not only contribute 1o a meaningful cause but would also
senve as a continued testament to the Municipality’s dedication to community wellness. We look
forward fo your favourable consideration and thank you once again for always walking this
joumney with us.

Should you require more information or wish to discuss sponsorship opportunities further,
please feel free 1o conact me directly at +26481853 8674 or projects |@can org.na.

Yours sincerely,

Rodnicia de Waal

Projetts & Fundraising — Erongo Centre
Cancer Assocation of Namibia (WO30)

Directors: De # Forisch (Chairperion). Ms 5 Nombinao [Vice Charperson). Mr Gorth Petersen [Treasurer],
Mr R Hansen |Chief Executive Officer), Ms M Mentz, Mr G de Klerk, A J Busb. Ms A du Toit



331
Ordinary Council Meeting - 02 October 2025

- SCEEIPSIETE IRAQLLL STY T O TN
i O] DN Berreoe ==
) @ L 1aAves YL spine(] 9<)-e\yses

.__ i = NG SN :AQ s@suRWIOLISd
4 pm_.“sa( P YUY
R e Do

o .

pu-Bio-upos@isioefosd « (L22) OVLL £56 180
1V 3NaVIUIVAY S1INOIL

OOSSSN - 0L jo 9|quL
0SS$N - 1039} 8jBus

sojqqng jo uesnd leweylL
1IDH UMO] DS |IBLIDL
00:60 49} 0€:80
STOT 18¢0¥20 8l '‘Appimps

_ -
_ m&me@ £ Mﬂq\x‘
@ zuelly | wejues &

AB G3¥IMOd

TININYN 40
ZO-F(-G_O“.( VAINYD

¥

—



332

Ordinary Council Meeting - 02 October 2025

Tan fmvoice
Date 14072025
Cancer Association of Mamibia
P OBox 31230 Page 1
Pioniempark
Windhpek
Namibia
Decument No IN10100D
Deliver{o
POBOX 53
SWAKOPMUND MUNIC IPALITY SWAKOPWUND
PO BOX 53 NAMIBIA
SWAKOPMUND
MNAMBIA
Account Your Reference Tax Exempt  Tax Reference Sales Code
MILNDDA N Exclusive
Code Description Quantity Uit UritPrice  Disc®% Tax etk Prioe
2058000 HATS & ROBES DDI% 5 500.00
Sub Total 5 500.00
Bank Windhoek
WMaevua Mall (4B3-B72) Disoount @@ D.00% oo
Acc. CHK 1026 818 701 -
Amount Exel Tax 5 50000
Received in good orer
Tax oo
Signed Date I Total 550000

D Sage South Afvea (Ply) Lid
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BAMK HINTASES LLTD

20250714

Bank Windhoek
o member of Capricom Group BEAMCH MANAGE MENT

& ADMINISTRAT:CN

To verify this letter, use the below reference number and customer account number, visit
bankwindhosk.com.na, select Verify Document under Useful Tools, and follow the screen instructions.

Reference number: 9a9233198d2b436b
Generated date: Wednesday, July 16, 2025

To Whom ft May Concerm
ACCOUNT CONFIRMATION: The Cancer Association of Namibia

We hereby confirm that The Cancer Association of Namibia, with registration:
21/1981/0096, has an active account in our books since Tuesday, March 29, 1983.

Account details are as follows:

Account Number: 1026618701
Account Type: CHK

Bank: Bank Windhoelk Ltd.
Branch: Maerua Mall (WHK)
Branch Code: AB3-872

Swift Code: BWLINANX

Disclalmer

This lgtter serves to confirm that the above-mentioned persondentity is an account holder with Bank Windhoek Limited and is issued
at the specific request ofthe acrount holder for informational purposes only This lettar serves as confirmation that the above
information is, according to the recoris avadl able to Bank Windhoek Limited, factually correct at the date this letter was genesated
This letter contains confidental information and should be treated as such

Bank Windhoek Limited provides no warranties, guarantees, assurances, or undertakings of any nature in connection with the above
information, the account and/or the account holder, and cannot be held responsible for anw rediance which may be placed on this
laiter Thisletter isissued to you without any liability for Bank Windhpek Limited or its employees

Without limiting the above in any way

li) Thisletter does not conshiute a letter of guarantee or a letter of cradit

{ii} This letter doss not imply or infer in any way that Bank Windhosk Lim ited has reserved any funds held in the account m favour
of any person, nor that Bank Windhoek Limited has placed ahold on or limited the amount available in the account The amount
available inthe account may change at any bime withowt prior noticeto you, and

fiii) Bank Windhoek Limited wifl npt be held responsibie for any change in the information contained in this letter

Should you hawe any guerles, please visht oer website www bankwindhoelocom naor feel free to contact us on D61 299 1200,

Tel +764 0163 2799 1900 Eark Windhoek Limited Hep - 501,081 3¢ no- 023118013
indog@ barkw ndhock com-ra Dieclers |1 5w sraepot] Kharma, | thapman (Maiaging Oiedor), BHae, | AldareSheya

W tarkow vathoes wm- ra 1) bsterbuyae ™, UG Forie, V1 Mugundi, [} Mapams, E Soloman”
Paeath Alvgn
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1.

11.1.27 DECLARATION OF SWAKOPMUND MUNICIPALITY AS AN “AUTHORISED
PLANNING AUTHORITY" IN TERMS OF SECTION 113(1)(A) OF THE URBAN
AND REGIONAL PLANNING ACT, 2018 (ACT 5 OF 2018)
(C/M 2025/10/03 - 1/1/1/16, 2/1/2/1)
Ordinary Management Committee Meeting of 11 September 2025,
Addendum 10.1 page 03 refers.

A. This item was submitted to the Management Committee for consideration:

Purpose

The purpose of this submission is to inform Council of the approval of its
application for the declaration of Swakopmund Municipality as an
"Authorised Planning Authority” (APA) by the Minister of Urban and Rural
Development.

Swakopmund will be the first such “Authorised Planning Authority” in
Namibia.

Introduction and Background

Following Council's first attempt in December 2020, which served before
the Urban and Regional Planning Board in April 2021 and Council's
subsequent response in August 2022, the Minister of Urban and Rural
Development approved the Swakopmund Municipality “Authorised
Planning Authority” application on the 19" August 2025, as per the approval
letter dated 2" September 2025.

The Authorised Planning Authority status is expected to be gazetted by the
end of October 2025. The ministerial approval is attached as Annexure A.

Approval conditions

In accordance with Section 113(a), the Minister of Urban and Rural
Development approved conditions complementary to the "Authorised
Planning Authority” status. The Swakopmund Municipal Council should
adhere to the set conditions as outlined below:

1. “The Local Authority shall have an approved Zoning Scheme and
Structure Plan as specified in terms of Section 41 and Section 31 of the
Urban and Regional Planning Act, 2018 (Act 5 of 2018);

2. The local authority shall have at least one registered Town and
Regional Planner as specified in Regulation 2(1)(a) of the Urban and
Regional Planning Act, 2018 (Act No. 5 of 2018) with at least three
years of post-registration experience in town and regional planning;

3. The “Authorised Planning Authority” status will be for the duration of
the employment of that Local Authority’s registered Town and
Regional Planner as employee or as a consultant on a personal basis
with a contract to that Local Authority for the duration of the envisaged
authorization to recommend planning applications in terms of the
Urban and Regional Planning Act, 2018 (Act No.5 of 2018);

4. Upon termination of the employment of the registered Town and
Regional Planner or the contracted consultant assigned, applications
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in terms of the Urban and Regional Planning Act, 2018 (Act No. 5 of
2018) shall be submitted to the Urban and Regional Planning Board
for consideration, until a replacement registered Town and Regional
Planner with at least three years post registration experience as
required in terms of Regulation 2(1)(a) of the Urban and Regional
Planning Act, 2018 (Act No.5 of 2018) has been appointed;

The contracted town and regional planning consultant or associated
town and regional planning firm which employs him or her or is owned
by the said town and regional planning consultant, may not perform
or be involved in any way with applications made in terms of the Urban
and Regional Planning Act, 2018 (Act No. 5 of 2018) in that Local
Authority other than if directly instructed to by the Local Authority to
attend to such a matter;

A draft contract shall be made available in the Urban and Regional
Planning Act, 2018 (Act No. 5 of 2018) Manual to guide Authorised
Planning Authorities when contracting a registered Town and
Regional Planner as a consultant, but the contract shall not be contrary
to the Public Procurement Act, 2015 (Act No. 15 of 2015);

The “Authorised Planning Authority” status will be for the duration of
the approval of the structure plan or for a period of 10 years,
whichever is lesser, and will be reviewed on the proclamation of a 5-
year revision of the scheme, unless extended by the Minister;

Any application not in line with the structure plan and zoning scheme
or any final decision of the Authorised Planning Authority that is not in
line with the recommendation of the registered town and regional
planner must be submitted to the Urban and Regional Planning Board
for consideration;

An Authorised Planning Authority be accorded all the powers as
envisaged in the Urban and Regional Planning Act, 2018 (Act No. 5 of
2018), in accordance with the provisions of Sections 56(1), 63, 64, 75,
78(1), 88(1) and 97(1) of the Act;

The Authorised Planning Authority be required to adhere and comply
with such policy directives as envisaged under Section 17(1) & (2) of
the Urban and Regional Planning Act, 2018 (Act No. 5 of 2018) as
directed from time to time by the Minister;

Appeals shall be dealt with in accordance with the provisions of
Section 129 of the Urban and Regional Planning Act, 2018 (Act No.5
of 2018);

Exclusions envisaged in terms of Section 43(7), 104, 105, & 114 of the
Urban and Regional Planning Act, 2018 (Act No. 5 of 2018), be
maintained, and applications in respect of an Authorised Planning
Authority Council’s own land or that deviate from the approved
structure plan be made to the Urban and Regional Planning Board for
consideration;

The Authorised Planning Authority must keep its records as per the
stipulation of Section 122(1) of the Urban and Regional Planning Act,
2018 (Act No. 5 of 2018) and submit the records, decisions and
reasons in respect of applications, authorizations and actions taken in
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terms of the Urban and Regional Planning Act, 2018 (Act No. 5 of
2018) and zoning scheme on a 6 month basis to the Minister;

14.  Once an Authorised Planning Authority status is granted, the Planning
Division of a local authority becomes a separate department that
reports directly to the Chief Executive Officer and does not fall under
any other department/division in the local authority’s structure;

15.  The Ministry of Urban and Rural Development provides training and
awareness to Councillors and Technical staff on the implementation
of the above conditions; and

16.  Allthe land use changes, or alteration of boundaries or deletion oftitle
conditions should be submitted to the Ministry of Urban and Rural
Development within 30 days of approval for promulgation in the
Government Gazette, as required in the Urban and Regional Planning
Act, 2018 (Act No. 5 of 2018).”

Benefits of being an Authorised Planning Authority

As a result of the declaration of Swakopmund Municipality as an “Authorised
Planning Authority”, the following benefits emanate:

e Planning decisions are taken locally and will be understood to be more
sensitive to the concerns of residents and local circumstances,
The public image of the Swakopmund Municipality will be enhanced,
Planning and approval processes are shortened, and service delivery
happens in a shorter period of time,

e Private sector implementation of developmental projects will be quicker,
and

o Investors will be attracted by the quicker procedures,

In addition, the faster the development, the quicker Council generates
income and recovers its cost. Betterment and endowment {compensation)
fees derived from an increase in value through rezonings and subdivisions
of concerned properties would be paid within a shorter period as compared
to previous situation.

Accorded powers

In terms of Section 16 of the Regulations of the Urban and Regional
Planning Act, 2018 (Act 5 of 2018) an ‘authorised planning authority” is
empowered to decide on applications made in accordance with its
approved structure plan.

Notwithstanding exclusions envisaged in terms of Section 43(7), 104, 105,
& 114 of the Urban and Regional Planning Act, 2018 (Act No. 5 of 2018).
The Miniter of Urban and Regional Planning accorded all the powers as
envisaged in the Urban and Regional Planning Act, 2018 (Act No. 5 of 2018),
in accordance with the provisions of Sections 56(1), 63, 64, 75, 78(1), 88(1)
and 97(1) of the Act.

The types of application to be decided upon by an “authorised planning
authority are the following:

(a) rezoning of land,

(b) establishment of a township,
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(c) alteration of the boundaries of an approved township,

(d) disestablishment of an approved township or a portion of an
approved township,
(e) subdivision or consolidation of land, and

(f)  alteration, suspension, or deletion of conditions related to land.

However, applications for Council's own land or that deviate from the
approved structure plan should be made to the Urban and Regional
Planning Board for consideration.

What it means for the Swakopmund Municipality

Firstly, it should be highlighted that when the Swakopmund Municipality
was not an Authorised Planning Authority, various land applications were
required to obtain ministerial approval in addition to approval from the
Swakopmund Municipal Council. A process which was cumbersome and, to
a certain degree, slowed the town’s development and discouraged some
potential investors.

The planning authority status accorded to the Swakopmund Municipal
Council serves as a clear demonstration that the Minister of Urban and Rural
Development has been convinced that the Council possesses and meets
the required competency levels and capacity to handle its spatial planning
processes. It also means that planning decisions will be speedily taken, and
development and service delivery will become more efficient and
effectively achieved.

Conclusion
Having attained the "Authorised Planning Authority" status, Swakopmund

Municipality has an obligation and responsibility to demonstrate that it can
plan, implement, and manage spatial and development plans on its own.

After the matter was considered, the following was:-

RECOMMENDED:

(a)

(b)

(c)

That Council take note of the Swakopmund Municipal Council
“Authorised Planning Authority” status approval by the Minister of
Urban and Rural Development.

That operational aspects related to the implementation of the
Authorised Planning Authority status and transition be identified and
presented with recommendations for Council consideration.

That a public announcement be issued advising the public of Council’s
success in being declared the first “Authorised Planning Authority” in
Namibia in terms of the Urban and Regional Planning Act, 2018 (Act
No. 50 of 2018) and of the benefits this will have for Swakopmund.
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ANNEXURE A- MINISTERIAL APPROVAL

Republic of Namibia
Ministry of Urban and Rural Development
Erquiries: N. Khoa Governmnent Office Park Private Bag 13239
Tel: (+268+61 ) 297-5221 Lather Street Windhaek. 10001
Fax: (+264+61) 297-5%05 Namibes
Email: pkhowe mard g0v.0s
Ouwr Ref: 177752
Your Ref:
The Chief Executive Officer
Municipality of Swakopmund
P.O. Box 53
Swakopmund
NAMIBIA

Attention: Mr. A. Benjamin,

SUBJECT: ITEM 182022: APPLICATION FOR DECLARATION OF SWAKOPMUND
MUNICIPLITY AS AN AUTHORISED PLANNING AUTHORITY AS
PROVIDED FOR BY THE URBAN AND REGIONAL PLANNING ACT, 2018
(ACT NO. 5 OF 2018) (MUNICIPALITY OF SWAKOPMUND)

I. The subject application has reference.

2 Ymmhﬁyhhndhhmmhm&umwmnl Development has on
MIfdAwMMW&MoHHHdWHM
Resolution [tem 182022 dated 21 September 2022 i terms of Section 113(1 )(a) of the Urban and
WMMMIS(MNO.SCINISL

3 mmmumﬂwmm&mwmams
Mmlammmumdswanmm
Authority (APA) and stipulating the conditions of such approval.

4. Mmmhhmd&muﬂwhpﬂﬂamhhhmt
terms of Section 16(1) of the Urban and Regional Planning Act, 2018 (Act No. 5 of 2018) ©
declare the Municipality of Swakopmund as an APA.

‘lmmﬁll':y. ‘ba“- nn&_ﬁu,uo
I,(/| Divisron, Planning &
T 0 2 SEP 2025

P/ Bag 13239
WINDHOEK

All officicl correspendence it Be addressed w0 the Exerative Director
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P Bag 13289
WINDHOEX

mnmmmmmmcm.mumm.swnm
WNICDALCOIMLOFSWM]

The Board recommended that-

a}WﬂWMMWMIMHZ]WWM
amended to read as follows:

b) the application be approved in terms of Section 16(1)2) and (b) of the Urban and Regional
Planning Act, 2018 (Act No. 5of 2018);

c) the mm;wuum-&mmmm&s
dated 16 July 2025 shall spply: aad

1. mmmmm-wmm-&mm-wﬁdh
terms of Section 41 and Section 31 of the Urhan and Regional Planning Act, 2018 (Act 5 of

2018)

2 mmmmmamuwrm-ﬂwm.qu
'-mmnllndml}ﬁ--dlwmMEI!(MN&SO‘NIS)"I&

F medwmw-mﬂwm

3. m-wmwm-ﬂuﬁumduwau
Mm‘:Wdew&waw«samua
wm-ﬁ.m“uwmﬁumauw
m»wmwhmdummw
Planming Act. 2018 (Act No. § of 2018k

4. Up”dh#d&md?mﬂwﬂ-lwh
Mml--ﬂmiu—dml:ﬂ-dmn_‘u
2008 (Act S of 2018) shall be schuiticd to the Urban 2ad Regional Plaomng Board for
m.-u-ﬂu--.mwrmuwmm;
mnmwmw-q—u-mdwwmdu

Urban sad Regional Plasning Act. 201 % (Act No. S of 2018) has bocn sppoistod;

5 mMMdWMMGwmﬂM
mh-&iwlophlmhuiswﬂwhﬂmdwm
anﬂ—.nyﬁﬂhnahc‘-ﬂuﬂiqwﬂ#hs-kimﬁﬁ
ummwmmmummsdmumuwmmn-
f&ﬂywwwumm»“--&aﬂ

o 4
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[ Ammﬂh-ﬂeMnﬁcl}ﬂ--ﬂwmmmth
No $ of 201 8) Mansal to gusde Acth d P1 A 2 2 reg
Town and Rogsonal Planscy as 4 comultan, Mhmmmhmwhm
Procarcment Act, 2015 (Act No. 120 2015);

7 The “Authorised Planning Autbority™ ststus will be for the & of the app I of the
mﬂ-wﬁtupﬂu‘dmmm“m and will be revicwed on the
prociamation of a five-year revision of the sch dod bry the Mimister;

L3 mwmmmﬂmﬂndmmu-yﬁnﬂmd&e
Asthorised Planning Authority that is st m hne with the
Town mnd Regpomal Planner must hd—uﬂmmu&ﬂmm‘m&
COnSRATEOn.

9 Aa Amhonsed Planmag Asthority be dad all the por 25 ernvsaged m the Lrban and
wn—-mmuqmw.sdmugummﬂzmd
Soctioms $6(1), 63, 64, 75, T8(1). 38(1) and 97¢1 ) of the Act.

10. The Asthorised Plasaing Authority be roquined to adbere and comply with such policy
directives 3 envisaged under Section 17(1) md (2) of the Urban and Regional Plansiog Act,
2018 {Act No S of 2018) as Srocted from t==e 10 time by the Minister;

11. Appeals shall be dealt with m d. with the pr soms of Soction 129 of the Urban snd
Regional Plansing Act, 2018 (Act No. 5 of 2018}

12 Exclosons cavisaged in tonms of Scction 43(7), 104, 105 sad 114 of the Urbas and Regponal
Plansing Act. 2018 (Act No 5 of 2018), be mamtaincd, and spplications n respect of an
Mhmc«-ﬂnmu_awﬂdﬂmhh

13 The Asthorised Plamning Authority must kocp its reconds as per the stipslation of Scction
lnl)d-tkt-_lwmmmtatumsamtndﬂh
in respect of the applications, astharizations aad actions takes

ﬂ“dhlﬁh.ﬂlﬂhmmw{mﬂqulﬂﬂldmm
on 3 6 moesh hasas 1o the Mizster,

ll.mn:-mﬂ—‘mn-ss ‘!h:- Diva of a tocal

P ﬁ'_ ﬁ P bwk(:hefﬁuu-u:m
-d-nﬁh‘lnlﬂ'-yc‘tr pom om the local ssthonty s Sruciune.

I5  The Mimssary of Lrben sad Raral Devel A g nd 1o Commalioes

and rmmuuqh—-dumm—d

16. AN the lamd see chaoges, o 2 of b A or dek of trtle conditions ssoulkd be
submmtted 1o the Minstry of Urban iod Rural Development wizhin 360 days of approval for
m-uwm:w-uw-&mm—gm

2018 (Act No 5 of 2018).

P Bag 13i8%
wiMDROER

d) the Minister must publish a notice in the G n of Section 161 ) of the Urban and
Regiomal Plasming Act. 2013 (A<t No. 5 of 2018) mnd must inform the Local Acthority in
writing of the approval of the Authorised Planning Authority status.

0 2 SEP 2025

P iBag V34D
WINDOER
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11.1.28 REQUEST FOR ADDITIONAL FUNDS TO PARTICIPATE IN THE SAIMSA GAMES
- MASERU, LESOTHO
(C/M 2025/10/03 - 13/6/3)
Ordinary Management Committee Meeting of 11 September 2025,
Addendum 10.2 page 03 refers.
A. This item was submitted to the Management Committee for consideration:
1. Background
The Municipality of Swakopmund will be participating in the Southern Africa
Inter-Municipal Sports Association (SAIMSA) Games scheduled to take
place in Maseru, Lesotho, between 19 - 29 September 2025. In preparation
for the event, funds amounting to N$200,000.00 were budgeted.
However, after finalising the logistical requirements, it has become evident
that the budgeted amount is insufficient to cover the actual costs.
2. Financial Requirements
The following costs have been identified and confirmed:
» Transport: N$203,000.00
e Accommodation: N$302,400.00
e Branding: N$50,000.00
» Registration Fee: N$11,000.00
Total Cost: N$566,400.00
Less: Budgeted Funds: (N$200,000.00)
Shortfall: N$366,400.00
3. Current Commitments
A 50% deposit has already been paid to three of the four accommodation
establishments reserved for the delegation. The outstanding balance,
including payment for the additional accommodation establishment where
councillors will be hosted, still needs to be settled. Failure to secure these
bookings in full could jeopardize the Municipality’s participation in the
Games.
Request
In view of the above, Council is kindly requested to approve an allocation
of additional funds amounting to N$366,400.00 to cover the
outstanding expenses for transport, accommodation, branding, and
registration.
B. After the matter was considered, the following was:-
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RESOLVED: (For Condonation By Council)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

That Council approves the additional funding of N$366,400.00 for
participation in the SAIMSA Games 2025.

That the General Manager: Finance transfers the additional
N$366,400.00 to Vote: 101015563500, where N$55,049.75 is
currently available.

That it be recorded that, even though approval was granted by the
Management Committee, Councillor W O Groenewald did not support
the additional funding request that would bring the total spending to
over N$500,000.00.

That it be recorded that Councillor W O Groenewald maintained that
Council was supposed to be informed of the total participation cost
with the first submission that requested approval of Council’s
participation in SAIMSA Games 2025 in Maseru, Lesotho.
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FEEDBAC E 3 CIPAT
IM/C 2024/39/12 - 11/1/4/6)
RESO Dz

{a}

(&)

{c}

{d)

GM: HSSWM

That the feedback report by the Swakopmund Municipal Sport & Social
Club be noted.

That Council spproves an additional N$100,000.00 in the 2025/2026
financial year towards the Mumicipal Sport and Social Club for
accommadation and travelling expenses incurred when representing the
Council in the NALASRA and SAIMSA games.

That it he noted that the allocation in (b) will ease the financal burden on
the staff members and allow the Municipality of Swakopmund to be fully
represented and compete equally with other Local Authorities at the
games.

That a budget provision of N§50,000.00 per annum be availed for branding
materials/items for Municipal staff members participating st both the
MALASRA and SAIMSA games.
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WMADE FOR
o SWAKOPMUND MUNICIPALITY
l J l VAT ar NA
GUESTHOUSE & TOURS
lssue Date: 250712025
Through: 30i0712025
Quotation # GG&T20250725
Gens Guesthouse & Towrs
PO Bat 1637
JJ Streel, Ha-Mabote Lesotho
Prone: +266 22336584/Cell +265 59088068
DESCRIPTION ROOM QTY, NO_OF NO_BEDS{ UNIT SUBTO | V.
TYPE GUESTS PRICE/ TAL
NIGHT
ACCOMODATION STANDARD 4 a 1(DOUBLE) T46 20888
ROCM B6{(SMNCGLE) 1£
©
ACCCNODATM SUPERIOR 4 B 2(SINGLE) 852 23856
ROOM 3(DOUBLE)
ACCOMODATION FAMILY 1 4 2(SMGLE) 1492 10,444
1(DOUBLE)
ACCOMODATION EXECUTIVE 1 2 2(SINGLE) 860 6,720
ROOM
SIXTY-ONE THOUSAND MNE HUNDRED AND EIGHT MALOTI AMD 00 CENTS
SUBTOTAL M61,908.00
VAT M0.0O
Total M61,908.060

NOTE: -Reservations are only confimmed uporn receipt of payment, with 50% payable now and the rermaining 50% due on o before

arrival date, or all at once.

- All prices inciude breakfas!.

[
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&4

VAT NUMBER: 50030287
QUOTATION

To: SWAKOPMUND MUNICIPALITY NAMIBIA
Quotation Me.: KGHO2507

Date: 25 july 2025

IBR No.: 50526

Arvival date: 20 September 2025

Departure 1Date: 27 September 2025

1 utive rooms 2 | E | 760.00 ]  42,560.00
2 Eaﬂdad ropms E | 7] 56000  19,600.00
3 [sreakdast | 44 7 85.00]  26,180.00
4 [JFamily rooms 3] 71 760.00 ]  15,960.00
5  Juackpackers 4 1 460.00]  12,880.00
6  Jchalet | f | k| 1,110.00 7.770.00
§ 5ub Total 124,950.00
I vat @ 15% 18,782.50
I Grand Total uﬂm

THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS. WE HOPE YOU ENJOY YOUR STAY WITH US.

BANKING DETAILS

BANK NAME: HIRST NATHONAL BANK
ACCOUNT NAME: XUBUNG GUEST HOUSE
ACCOUNT NUMBER: §2591021408
BRANCH: PIONEER MALL

BRANCH CODE: 280061
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QUOTATION DATVE 26th August 2025

BlE) for SWAKOPMUND MUNICIPALITY

NMANIEIA
DESCRIPTION QUANTITY |UNIT PRICE TOTAL
SELR-CATERIM,
ACCONOD A TION |
6 nughts $.000 0O | 30.000 00
l
st ot al | 30 000,00
Tas @15% | 4 500,00
_____ E— TOTAL AMOUNT | 34 500.00

TERMN & ¢ ONDEIIONS

b1 st o vaded G 14 davs

t 2 When the guete s sccepled. 2 S0% . deposat o requis od

8 Balance must be pasd before or upon asrmval

BASKING DETAINLS First Natoand Bank | esotho Aoc? 60730857
REF Lion Guard Guest House

Proot of payment smust be 1emt to  inda@lionguardguesthouse net
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A

3

A
SWAKOPMUND

Enquiries: Mr. H Kanandjembo
Ref No: 13/43

NOTICE FOR SELECTION OF AWARD
[Secton S} of Act)
[Regulation 38(1)
PARTA

NOTICE TO BIDDER SELECTED FOR AWARD
BIDDER SELECTED FOR AWARD

NCS/RFQ/SM-018/2025: PROVISION OF TRANSPORTATION SERVICES FOR THE
SWAKOPMUND MUNICIPAL SPORT TEAM TO LESOTHO

FROM : SWAKTOPMUND MUNICIPALITY

TO : BOETA'S TOURS AND TRANSFERS CC
POSTAL ADDRESS : PO BOX 1801, SWAKOPMUND
EMAIL = poetgeaxgress @gmail com

(2)  The prce ananded s. MS N$203 000.00 (VAT Excdl.]

b} You are hensloy irformed thar in the sbsence of arny applications for reconsideranon of the
selection for an award within 7 days of this notice, the accounting officer of the Mumicipality
of Swakogmund shall award the contract 1o the selected budder

iz} The standstil pencd of 7 days refamrad 1o m (D) starts on S September 2025 and ands on 15
September 2025.

{4} In the ibsence of an applcstion for recomsideration. the pracurement contract will be
awarded

ety LY



